\ s
Z N CITY QE

YO R K Licence

COUNCIL

Ve

Licensing/Gambling Hearing

To: Councillors Hook, Norman and Orrell
Date: Monday, 8 June 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Remote Meeting
AGENDA
1. Chair

To elect a Member to act as Chair of the meeting.
2. Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider the exclusion of press and public for part or all of the
hearing in relation to Agenda Items 6, 7 and 8 if the Sub-Committee
considers that any information is exempt in accordance with paragraph
7 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972
(as revised by The Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006).
3. Introductions
4. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare:
e any personal interests not included on the Register of Interests
e any prejudicial interests or

e any disclosable pecuniary interests

which they may have in respect of business on this agenda.

www.york.gov.uk



5.

Minutes

To approve and sign the minutes of Licensing Hearings held on 4 July
2019, 7 November 2019 and 27 February 2020. (Pages 7 — 32)

6.

The Determination of an Application by Anthony Dean for
the Review of Premises Licence [Section 52(2)] in respect of
The Regency, 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA
(CYC/009221) (Pages 33 -148)

The Determination of an Application by Anthony Dean for
the Review of Premises Licence [Section 52(2)] in respect of
Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP (CYC -
053937) (Pages 149 — 344)

The Determination of an Application by Yan Tong Feng for
the Transfer of Premises Licence [Section 44(5)(a)] in
respect of Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1
6LP (CYC - 053937) (Pages 345 — 388)

Democracy Officer:
Name: Angela Bielby
Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

Distribution:

Members of Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee
Licensing Officer

Legal Services

Applicant

Representors

Press


mailto:a.bielby@york.gov.uk

Page 1 Agenda ltem 1

LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB — COMMITTEES
PROCEDURE FOR REMOTE LICENSING HEARINGS

Introduction

1. During the coronavirus pandemic emergency period it will be
necessary for licensing hearings to be dealt with remotely. This
procedure sets out how City of York Council will deal with such
hearings. This procedure must be considered in conjunction with the
Council’s Delivery of Remote Meetings document which sets out how
all meetings, including licensing hearings will be held in York.

2. The procedure adopted at a licensing hearing is at the discretion of
the Sub-Committee but will normally follow the pattern outlined
below:

3. The Council's hearings procedure is based on regulations made by
the Secretary of State under the Licensing Act 2003. The procedure
Is intended as a general framework to ensure natural justice and a
fair hearing. The Sub-Committee has a duty to view all evidence
presented before them impartially. The Sub-Committee is not bound
by the formal rules of evidence. Nevertheless, Members must carry
out their duty placing what weight they feel is appropriate given the
nature of the evidence and the manner in which it was obtained, and
communicated.

4. The Council will provide a record of the hearing in a permanent and
intelligible form and keep it for 6 years from the date of determination
or disposal of any Appeal. The Hearing will be recorded and the
recording placed on the Council’s website.

Preparation for the Remote Licensing Hearing

5. The Sub-Committee will use the video-conferencing platform when
the hearing is in public session. Clear instructions will be provided to
participants on how to join the remote hearing. The Sub-Committee
may exclude the public from all or part of a hearing if it considers it is
in the public interest to do so. Should any part of the hearing need to
be held in private session, a separate private online meeting will be
convened by the Sub-Committee. This video-conferencing platform
will also be used for decision making in private. All paperwork
relevant to the hearing will be published online on the Council’s



Page 2

website, 5 working days before the remote hearing. The documents
will be produced in PDF format and will be paginated to permit ease
of reference during the remote hearing. Name and address details
of those making representations will be made public. Telephone
numbers, email addresses and signatures will be omitted.

6. 5 working days before the remote hearing is due to take place, the
Council will contact the parties with a list of issues they would like
any party to specifically address them on or clarify at the hearing.

7. Ifin light of the Council’s list of issues any party wishes to produce
any further documentary evidence they should submit this to the
Council by email three working days before the hearing.

8. Any documentary evidence that is not submitted to the Council by
email three working days before the hearing will not be admitted
without the agreement of all parties. If it is essential to a party’s case
that the material be admitted, then the Sub-Committee will consider
adjourning the remote hearing to allow all parties a fair opportunity to
consider it.

9. Should any party wish to rely on any points of law, specific
references in the s.182 Guidance, specific references in the
Council’s Policy or any other external resources, these should be set
down in an electronic document and submitted to the Council by
email three working days before the hearing.

The Remote Licensing Hearing

10. The Applicant is permitted to speak at the remote hearing (see
below). Ward Councillors, responsible Authorities and Representors
are only permitted to speak if they have made written submissions
during the consultation period. Any party to a hearing may be
assisted or represented by any person, legally or otherwise.

11. All parties will be given a fair hearing and each party will have the
same amount of time in which to address the Sub-Committee and
question each other. Each party will have 15 minutes to address the
Sub-Committee and call any witnesses and 5 minutes for questions.



Page 3

12. However, where there are groups of individuals with a common
interest, for example local residents making similar representations
either for or against an application, consideration should be given to
nominating a spokesperson. Otherwise the Sub-Committee may
iImpose a time limit for such representations where there is pressure
on the Sub-Committee to hear numerous applications in a short
period of time or for any other valid reason.

13. If any Representors fail to attend the hearing, the Sub-Committee will
normally proceed but will consider their written representation. In
considering written evidence in the absence of a Representor,
appropriate weight will be attached, given that the person cannot be
guestioned by Members.

14. The Sub-Committee is required to disregard any information
given or evidence produced by a party or witness which is not
relevant to the application, representations, or notice, and the
promotion of the licensing objectives. Duplication should be
avoided. Comments must be confined to those points already made,
although the parties may expand on their written submissions. The
Sub-Committee will have read and familiarised themselves with all
the written submissions and the issues prior to the hearing, and
therefore do not require the points to be made at length.

15. A Representor may not introduce any new ground or objection not
referred to in their written submission. Additional representations
which do not amount to an amplification of the original representation
will not be considered by the Sub-Committee.

16. Any person behaving in a disruptive manner will be asked to leave
the hearing. However, if this occurs, that person will be entitled to
submit in writing any information they would have been entitled to
give orally.

ORDER OF PROCEEDINGS AT THE REMOTE HEARING

Chair’s introduction and opening comments

17. The Chair will introduce the Sub-Committee Members and Officers
and welcome the Applicant and Representors (or their



18.

19.

Page 4

representatives), and establish the identity of all who will be taking
part.

The Chair will outline the procedure to be followed.

The Chair will proceed with the order of business on the agenda.

Licensing Manager

20.

When the agenda item relating to the application is reached, the
Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to present the application. The
Chair will invite all present, one by one, to ask the Licensing Officer
questions if they wish, to clarify any points raised in the report.

The Application

21.

22.

The Applicant (and/or their representative) will address the Sub-
Committee and present information in support of the application and
may call any witnesses to support the application, one witness at a
time [maximum 15 minutes].

The Chair will invite the Representors to ask questions of the
Applicant in the following order [maximum 5 minutes each party]:

Police;

Other Responsible Authorities;
Ward Councillors;

Members of the Sub-Committee;
The Sub-Committee’s legal adviser.

The Representations

23.

The Chair will invite the Representors and/or their representative in
the following order to address the Members of the Sub-Committee
and call any witnesses in support of their representation [maximum
15 minutes each party]:

Police
Other Responsible Authorities



Page 5

Ward Councillors
Public representation

24. The Chair will invite the Applicant to ask questions of each

25.

Representor and/or their witnesses after each presentation
[maximum 5 minutes per Representor]. The Chair will invite the
Committee Members to ask questions of each Representor (or their
representative) and/or their withesses after each presentation.

Where there are groups of individuals with a common interest, for
example local residents, presentation through an appointed
spokesperson is preferred but not mandated.

Summaries

26. The Chair will invite the Representors (or their representative) in the

27.

28.

following order to summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes each
party]

Police

Other Responsible Authorities
Ward Councillors

Local residents

The Chair will invite the Applicant (or their representative) to
summarise their case [maximum 5 minutes].

The Chair will provide the Sub-Committee with a final opportunity to
seek clarification from any of the parties on any points raised, or
seek advice from the Licensing Officer on policy, or from the Legal
Advisor on law and jurisdiction.

Determination

29. The Sub-Committee will withdraw to consider their decision with the

Legal Adviser and the Democratic Services Officer in a separate
private on line meeting. These officers will not comment on the
merits of the application, but will be present to provide advice on
legal and procedural points and to record the decision.



30.

31.

Page 6

If the decision is made following the conclusion of the hearing, the
Sub-Committee will return to the public online meeting to announce
an outline of the decision to those present. This decision will then be
communicated in full in writing, including reasons for the decision, to
the Applicant and all Representors (whether in attendance or not)
usually within 5 working days of the hearing. There can be no further
questions or statements.

If the Sub-Committee does not make a decision on the day of the
hearing, the decision will be made within 5 working days beginning
with the day or the last day on which the hearing was held. The
Democratic Services Officer will inform the parties that they are no
longer required and the decision will be communicated in writing to
the Applicant and Representors within 5 working days of the decision
being made.

The natification will include information about the rights of appeal
against the determination made.



Page 7 Agenda ltem 5

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing

Date 4 July 2019

Present Councillors Galvin, Mason and Norman

18. Chair

Resolved: That Councillor Mason be appointed to Chair the meeting.
19. Introductions
20. Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not included on the
Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they may have in respect of business on the agenda. None
were declared.

21. The Determination of an Application by Marston's PLC to Vary
Premises Licence [Section 35(3)(a)] in respect of Corner Pin, 17
Tanner Row, York, YO1 6JB (CYC-008996)

Members considered an application by Marston's PLC to Vary Premises
Licence [Section 35(3)(a)] in respect of Corner Pin, 17 Tanner Row, York,
YO1 6JB (CYC-008996).

In considering the application and the representations made, the Sub-
Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives were relevant
to the Hearing:

1.  The prevention of public nuisance

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into consideration all
the evidence and submissions that were presented, and determined their
relevance to the issues raised and the above licensing objectives,
including:

1.  The application form.
2.  The following late evidence, circulated prior to and at the hearing:



Page 8

o Updated proposed conditions received from the applicant’s
solicitor

The Senior Licensing Officer’s report and her comments given at the
Hearing. She outlined the report noting the proposed variation to the
extension of licensable hours and activities for Fridays and Saturdays
only and the information contained within the annexes to the report.
She advised that the premises were in the red zone area of the
cumulative impact assessment area. She explained that consultation
had been carried out correctly.

The Senior Licensing Officer advised that North Yorkshire Police had
made a representation on the grounds that that the licensing
objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and prevention of
public nuisance would be undermined by the granting of the
application. The representation had been withdrawn as the Police
and applicants had agreed to an additional condition. There was one
representation received from ‘other persons’ mainly on the grounds
that the ‘prevention of public nuisance’ licensing objective will be
undermined if the variation is granted. The Senior Licensing Officer
noted the additional information submitted by the applicant’s solicitor
and from the representor. She then outlined the options available to
Members in determining the application.

The Senior Licensing Officer was asked and explained that the patio
Is not included in the licensable area and is used for the consumption
of alcohol.

The representations made by Mr Patrick Robson, Solicitor on your
behalf at the hearing. The premises Manager and Area Manager of
the premises also attended the hearing but did not make any
representations. Mr Robson explained the reason for the extended
hours on Fridays and Saturdays and during British summertime was
for late night events and to allow flexibility to stay open later. He
highlighted that the premises was not going to be open later than
other premises in the vicinity and that there had been no objections
from the Police or environmental health officer. He noted the
condition that had been mediated with North Yorkshire Police.

With reference to the objection from the representor based on noise
nuisance, Mr Robson referred to licensing guidance and in response
to the representor’'s complaints about noise; he had submitted a
Freedom of Information (Fol) request to City of York Council which
stated that there had been no noise complaints to City of York
Council. He added that there had not been any complaints regarding



Page 9

the noise to the premises. Regarding noise he noted that doors had
been left open during the day and the noise on a quiz night took
place on a Wednesday, which had not been included in the licence
variation. With regard to the outside festoon lighting, he noted that
there had been a fault which had been rectified. He added that the
outdoor CCTV was not directed at the representor’s window and that
the outside speakers were deregulated and were no longer in use.

Mr Robson commented on the personal relationship between the
representor and premises manager noting that the representor had
been banished from the premises since February and had entered
the premises three times since. Mr Robson advised Members of the
current licence conditions and he outlined the conditions the applicant
was willing to put forward. He ended by stating that the applicant did
not seek to trade every Friday and Saturday.

In response to questions, Mr Robson confirmed that:

o There had been two temporary event notices over the last year
and under the further licence conditions offered, the licensable
activities on Fridays and Saturdays would not be provided
beyond 01:00 hours the following mornings more than 50 times
per calendar year. The proposed condition related to a total of
50 Fridays and Saturdays.

o It was unlikely that the premises would trade later every Friday
and Saturday.
o If incidents were report an incident register would be kept.

o The premises did not have any noise complaints.

o The Temporary Event Notices in the past had run to 02:00
hours with some being at 02:30 hours and 03:00 hours.

o The external lighting included festoon lighting and spotlights.
The spotlights were turned off at 23:00 hours.

A Representor in writing and at the hearing. The Representor stated
that the issue was the noise and lighting coming from the
conservatory at the premises. He explained that his property was a
Tudor house and because of this there were limitations with the
building, for example with sound insulation which meant that from his
home he could hear people talking in the outside area of the
premises. He noted that if the door to the conservatory was open
from 11:00 hours he could noise and this would become an issue if
loud bass music was being played 01:00 hours. He added that the
doors were open during club nights and he could hear the music from
his house and that during the temporary event notices there was loud
music from bass music.



Page 10

The Representor stated that he didn’t want loud music coming
through his walls past 23:00 hours on a night and that the outside
speakers faced his wall. He explained that he had made complaints
about noise to the manager and that the speakers were on during the
day. He explained that there was an issue with lights being on all
night which illuminated his house and two bedroom windows. He
expanded on how noise and lighting were an issue and in noting that
there was after hours drinking and card games he referred to the
photographs he submitted as additional information. He noted that up
to 50 nights of extended hours could make his weekends hell and as
the spotlights, outside speakers and doors being left open were an
iIssue. He noted that doors and windows at the premises needed to
be closed after 23:00 hours and that the current conditions needed to
be adhered to.

In response to questions The Representor confirmed that:

o He was not happy that the outdoor spotlights did not face his
home as they still illuminated his bedroom. He would be happy
if the spotlights faced away from his house and were off by
11:00 hours.

o Only music being played from the conservatory was audible
from his property.

o It would be useful to have a route of contact to make
complaints.

The Senior Licensing Officer was asked and clarified that:

o Under the current licence the outdoor area needed to be
cleaned and vacated by 23:00 hours every day. Mr Robson was
then asked and confirmed that the applicant would be happy for
all external lighting to be turned off at 11:00 hours and he
requested that such a condition referred to the beer garden.

o Music was deregulated, resulting in existing conditions relating
to this being unenforceable.

The Senior Solicitor was asked and advised that the outdoor lighting
could be conditioned in relation to the proposed variation as offered
as a condition by the applicant.

The applicant and representor were then given the opportunity to
sum up. The Representor noted that the issues went back to the
2005 condition with the problems with lighting, bass music and doors
being open. He concluded that to put back the times to 03:00 hours
was unacceptable and the conditions needed to be controlled.



Page 11

Mr Robson then summed up noting that the proposed condition
regarding lighting may help. He was happy to propose limiting the
number of times that licensable activities will be provided under the
extended hours to a total of 40 times per calendar year. He noted the
current conditions concerning the conservatory and entertainment.
He added that there was a proven track record of the applicant was
good, there had been no complaints, including during the Temporary
Event Notices. He asked the Sub-Committee to grant the licence with
the additional conditions as discussed and referred to the case of
Daniel Thwaites plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates’ Court [2008] that
he had included as additional information. He was asked and
explained how the two door staff would be managed on Friday and
Saturday nights under the variation.

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee had to determine
whether the licence application demonstrated that the premises would not
undermine the licensing objectives. Having regard to the above evidence
and representations received, the Sub-Committee considered the steps
which were available to them to take under Section 35(3)(a)of the Licensing
Act 2003 as it considered necessary for the promotion of the Licensing
Objectives:

Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This option was
rejected.

Option 2:  Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions imposed
by the licensing committee. This option was approved.

Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates and modify / add conditions accordingly. This
option was rejected.

Option 4. Reject the application. This option was rejected.

In agreeing Option 2 the following conditions and modified/additional
conditions were added to the licence:

1. On Fridays and Saturdays two SIA registered door staff will be deployed
from 22:00 hours until the premises closes to the public but only when
the premises is open to provide licensable activities after 01:00 hours.
At all other times, door staff will be deployed on a risk assessed basis.
When on duty, SIA door supervisors will wear high visibility armbands
and sign in and out of the premises providing their full name and SIA
number.



Page 12

2. When regulated entertainment comprising live or recorded music is
provided then external doors and windows will be kept closed except for
the purposes of immediate access/egress. All external
floodlights/spotlights shall be directed away from the neighbouring
residential property.

3. All external lighting in the beer garden shall be turned off at 23:30 hours
each and every day.

4. There shall be no regulated entertainment in the conservatory area
shown edged [green] on the attached plan on Fridays and Saturdays
after 00:30 hours.

5. Telephone contact details for the management of the premises shall be
made available to the neighbouring residents to contact in the case of
noise-nuisance or anti-social behaviour by persons or activities
associated with the premises. The telephone number will be a direct
number to the management who are in control during opening hours.

All conditions offered by the Applicant in the application, including the
operating schedule, for granting the premises licence under the Licensing
Act 2003, shall be included in the licence, unless contradictory to the above
conditions.

The Sub-Committee were not minded to grant the British Summer Time
variation because this would adversely affect the neighbouring residential

property.

The Sub-Committee concluded that the application was acceptable with
the above mandatory and additional conditions attached which addressed
representation made both in writing and at the hearing, as it met all the
licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee made this decision taking into
consideration the representations, the Licensing Objectives, the City of
York Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy especially in relation to
cumulative impact, the Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section
182 of the Licensing Act 2003 and the High Court's decision in Daniel
Thwaites Plc v Wirral Magistrates’ Court (relating to the standard of
evidence at licensing hearings).

The Sub-Committee notes that the premises is located in the cumulative
Impact Zone and that the Police had withdrawn their representation on the
basis that a condition relating to door staff had been agreed with the
applicant. The Sub-Committee also noted that none of the other
Responsible Authorities had objected.

The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the representation of Mr
Clark, who lived in a property adjacent to the premises. The Sub-
Committee had careful regard to the concerns of the neighbouring resident



Page 13

about the noise and light nuisance created by the current licensable
activities and the close proximity of the application site to his residential
property. The Sub-Committee noted that the proposed extended timings
relate to licensable activities on Fridays and Saturdays only.

The Sub-Committee concluded that if the variation application were to be
granted in the terms originally applied for there would be the likelihood of
the resident being subjected to public nuisance in terms of noise nuisance
from licensable activity in the conservatory and from outside lighting in the
beer garden. The Sub-Committee therefore considered that the additional
hours for licensable activities should not apply to the conservatory area of
the premises and that, together with the imposition of other additional
conditions including with regard to outside lighting and the exclusion of an
additional hour on the commencement of British Summer Time, the
variation to the premises could operate without undermining the licensing
objectives. It also considered that this would not lead to an increase in the
cumulative impact of premises in this area. Therefore the steps it had taken
were appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The Sub-Committee therefore agreed to grant the licence with the
additional and mandatory conditions referred to above which were
appropriate and proportionate in the circumstances to promote the
licensing objectives.

Cllr Mason, Chair
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.30 am].



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing

Date 7 November 2019

Present Councillors Galvin, Hook and Mason

22.  Chair

23.

24,

25.

Resolved: That Councillor Mason be appointed to Chair the meeting.
Introductions
Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not included on
the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or any disclosable
pecuniary interests which they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. None were declared.

The Determination of an Application by Deniz Durdu for A
Premises Licence [Section 18( 3) (a)] in respect of Cecils, 7
Kimbelow Hill retail Park, York, YO10 5LA (CYC-065069)

Members considered an application by Deniz Durdu for a Premises
Licence [Section 18( 3) (a)] in respect of Cecils, 7 Kimbelow Hill retall
Park, York, YO10 5LA (CYC-065069)

In considering the application and the representations made, the Sub-
Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives were
relevant to the Hearing:

1. The prevention of public nuisance

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into consideration
all the evidence and submissions that were presented, and determined
their relevance to the issues raised and the above licensing objectives,
including:

1.  The application form.
2.  The following late evidence, circulated prior to and at the
hearing:



Page 16

e Updated proposed conditions received from the applicant’s
solicitor and corresponding emails between the solicitor and
representor.

The Senior Licensing Officer’s report and the Licensing
Manager's comments given at the Hearing. The Licensing
Manager outlined the report noting the opening and operating
hours and schedule, she noted the information contained within
the annexes to the report. She advised that the premises was
not in the cumulative impact assessment area. She advised that
North Yorkshire Police had made a representation on the
grounds that the licensing objectives, prevention of crime and
disorder and prevention of public nuisance will be undermined by
the granting of this application. The representation had been
withdrawn. There was one representation received from ‘other
persons’ mainly on the grounds that the ‘prevention of public
nuisance’ licensing objective will be undermined if the variation is
granted. She noted the additional information submitted by the
applicant’s solicitor and from the representor, which had been
circulated to all parties. She then outlined the options available to
Members in determining the application.

The representations made by Mr Walker, the Applicant’s Solicitor
at the hearing. Mr Walker distributed a map which the location of
the premises in proximity to other licensed premises and
residential properties. He explained that the premises sold hot
food to eat in or take away, opened at 11.00am and closed no
later than 11.00pm. He added that the application was to sell
alcohol with food and clarified that no one would be able to buy
alcohol and take it away. This meant that alcohol would only be
provided as part of the delivery service post 11.00pm. He noted
that the applicant was asking to sell alcohol with food for
delivery.

Mr Walker advised that included in the additional information was
two similar licenses and that the application being considered
was more modest than those two applications. He explained that
residential properties were not significantly affected by the
premises because of their distance to it. He noted that the lease
from the university was stringent. He added that that Unit 7 on
the site was able to sell alcohol until 10.00pm without food.

Mr Walker reminded Members that the police had withdrawn
their representation and advised that if the licence was
breached, it could be reviewed. He ended by stating that the



Page 17

application showed that the applicant has considered all of the
licensing objectives.

In response to questions to the Applicant and Mr Walker it was

confirmed that:

e Most orders came via the telephone

e There had been no consultation with the security team at the
university. However, there had been no objection from the
university.

The representations made by Cllr Norman, Hull Road Ward
Councillor on behalf of the University of York Student Union and
Graduate Student Union. Clir Norman welcomed the condition
offered by the Applicant. He asked Members to consider the
Council Plan and noted that the nature of the campus was
residential. The location of the premises was important, in
particular because of the number of takeaways in the local area.
He noted that the premises presented a high likelihood for
students to purchase alcohol late. Clir Norman was asked and
explained that the University of York Student Union and
Graduate Student Union had not made representation because
of the timescale and complexity of making a representation. He
added that it would have been useful for both to have been
consulted on the application.

Cllr Norman highlighted that there was two issues with the
application — the late night sale of alcohol which could contribute
to public nuisance and the litter caused by the disposal of items
from the takeaway. He requested an additional condition for the
premises to help the local community pick to litter.

In response to questions from Members Clir Norman explained

that:

e Most of the litter came from takeaway packaging

e Residential properties were 150yds away from the premises
and there were concerns about noise and disorder as a result
of the late night alcohol being sold.

e His main concern was about alcohol being sold on the
premises.

The applicant and representor were then given the opportunity to
sum up. Mr Norman had nothing further to add in his summing

up.



Page 18

In summing up, Mr Walker, on behalf of the Applicant, stated that
there was no noise issue at the premises at present and that
alcohol would only be served with food. He offered the conditions
to consult with the university and to assist with the collection of
litter if assistance was needed. He was asked and clarified that
customer could sit and dine until 11.00pm and that there would
be no alcohol after 11.00pm.

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee had to
determine whether the licence application demonstrated that the
premises would not undermine the licensing objectives. Having regard
to the above evidence and representations received, the Sub-
Committee considered the steps which were available to them to take
under Section 18(3) (a) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it considered
necessary for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives:

Option 1. Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This option was
rejected.

Option 2:  Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions
imposed by the licensing committee. This option was approved.

Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable activities
to which the application relates and modify / add conditions
accordingly. This option was rejected.

Option 4: Reject the application. This option was rejected.

In agreeing Option 2 the following conditions and modified/additional
conditions were added to the licence:

1.  Alcohol only be sold after 11.00pm as part of the home delivery
service — ie it will not be possible to buy alcohol at the unit itself
after 11pm.

2. Alcohol would only be available for purchase with food at all
times.

3. A colour digital CCTV system shall be installed within the
premises and be operational and recording at all times when
licensable activities take place.

4.  The CCTV equipment shall have constant time /date generation
which must be checked on a daily basis for accuracy.



10.

11.

12.

Page 19

CCTV cameras shall be installed to provide adequate cover of all
public areas in the premises and entrances / exits and outside
designated smoking areas (excluding toilets).

The CCTV system recordings must be kept for a minimum of 28
days.

North Yorkshire Police or a Responsible Authority (as defined in
the Licensing Act 2003) may at any time request a recording.
This should be complied with within 24 hours of the request
being made.

It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are
sufficient members of staff available during the hours of
operation to be able to download evidence from the CCTV
system at the request of the police or responsible authority.

All CCTV recordings will have sufficient clarity / quality / definition
to allow facial recognition.

A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all
members of staff at the premises in respect of the:

- retail sale of alcohol;

- age verification policy;

- conditions attached to the premises licence;

- permitted licensable activities;

- the licensing objectives;

- opening times for the venue,

with such records being kept for a minimum of one year. (For the
avoidance of doubt the one year period relates to each entry in
the log book and runs from the date of the particular entry.)

A refusal register / incident report record shall be maintained for
the premises. Such registers, electronic or otherwise stored, will
record incidents of staff refusals of underage or drunk people as
well as incidents of any anti-social behaviour and ejections from
the premises. Such registers shall be kept for a minimum of one
year. (For the avoidance of doubt the one year period relates to
each entry in the log book and runs from the date of the
particular entry.)

Alcoholic drinks purchased on the premises may only be taken
off the premises in sealed containers.



Page 20

All conditions offered by the Applicant in the application, including the
operating schedule, for granting the premises licence under the
Licensing Act 2003, shall be included in the licence, unless
contradictory to the above conditions.

The Sub-Committee concluded that the application was acceptable
with the above mandatory and additional conditions attached which
addressed representation made both in writing and at the hearing, as it
met all the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee made this
decision taking into consideration the representations, the Licensing
Objectives, the City of York Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy
and the Secretary of State’s Guidance issued under Section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003.

The Sub-Committee considered very carefully the representation of
Cllr Norman, Hull Road Ward Councillor. The Sub-Committee
considered that on balance, it had received sufficient assurances and
evidence from the applicant in order to have a high level of confidence
that the premises would be operated responsibly and that it could, with
the imposition of conditions, operate without undermining the licensing
objectives of prevention of public nuisance. They felt that this decision
was proportionate on the basis of Home Office and local guidance and
they concluded that on balance that all four licensing objectives would
be met in granting the application with the mandatory and the above
additional conditions.

The Sub-Committee therefore agreed to grant the licence with the
additional conditions referred to above which were appropriate,
proportionate and necessary in the circumstances to promote the
licensing objectives.

Cllr Mason, Chair
[The meeting started at 10.20 am and finished at 10.55 am].



Page 21

City of York Council Committee Minutes

Meeting Licensing/Gambling Hearing

Date 27 February 2020

Present Councillors Melly, Norman and Wells
30. Chair

31.

32.

33.

Resolved: That Cllr Wells be appointed to Chair the meeting.
Introductions
Declarations of Interest

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not included on
the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or any disclosable
pecuniary interests which they may have in respect of business on the
agenda. None were declared.

The Determination of an Application by Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd
for a Premises Licence [Section 18(3)(a)] in respect of York Sports
Club Fields, Event Site, Clifton Park, Shipton Road, York, YO30 5RE
(CYC-065763)

Members considered an application by Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd for a
Premises Licence [Section 18(3)(a)] in respect of York Sports Club
Fields, Event Site, Clifton Park, Shipton Road, York, YO30 5RE (CYC-
065763).

In considering the application and the representations made, the Sub-
Committee concluded that the following licensing objectives were
relevant to the Hearing:

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder
2. Public Safety

3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

4. The Protection of Children from Harm

In coming to their decision, the Sub-Committee took into consideration all
the evidence and submissions that were presented, and determined their



Page 22

relevance to the issues raised and the above licensing objectives,
including:

1.

2.

The application form.

The following information circulated prior to and at the hearing:
e Proposed noise conditions received from the applicant’s solicitor

The Licensing Manager’s report and the comments of the Senior
Licensing Officer given at the Hearing. The Senior Licensing
Officer outlined the report noting that the application was for 3
event days per calendar year indefinitely. She noted the opening
and operating hours and schedule, that it had an occupancy of
19,000 she noted the information contained within the annexes to
the report. She advised that consultation had been carried out and
that conditions had been agreed with North Yorkshire Police. She
gave an overview of all representations, from the City of York
Council Public Protection (Environmental Protection) from ‘other
persons’ which had been received in support and objection. She
advised that there were no planning issues and she then outlined
the options available to Members in determining the application.

The representations made by the Applicant’s Solicitor at the
hearing, and his witnesses:

Commercial Director Cuffe & Taylor

Senior Event Manager, Cuffe & Taylor

Technical Operations Manager, Cuffe & Taylor

Managing Director, Cuffe & Taylor

Acoustic Consultants

Mr Crier explained the application as being over three concert days
from 3.00pm — 10.00pm, noting that 40% of ticket sales to date
were from the York area. He noted the target audience for the
event and economic and social benefits to the City. He advised that
the applicants had engaged with the local community, and noted
that the representors had been in support and objection. He
advised that traffic management was not a licensing matter and will
be dealt with through the SAG and that the logistical planning for
the event was comprehensive.

Mr Crier referred to conditions agreed with the police and the
proposed condition from City of York Council Public Protection
(Environmental Protection) (PPU) for a Noise Management Plan to
contain a requirement that the Music Noise Level expressed as an
LAeq shall not exceed 65dB(A) over a 15 minute period as



Page 23

measured at the nearest noise sensitive premises. Mr Crier
explained that from noise modelling the noise would go above
65dB(A) which was why the applicant had requested the noise
condition of 75 dB(A) at two locations and 65 dB(A) at other
locations. He referred to guidance on noise levels in context of
overall noise levels. He advised that his clients would comply with
noise level conditions and the higher noise levels proposed were to
allow a more flexible approach to avoid a breach of the licence. He
then invited the applicant’s noise consultants to speak. The noise
consultants referred to examples of other festival around the
country where the permitted noise was above 65 dB(A) and
explained that the national code of practice was under review and it
is likely that the distinction between urban and rural locations will
be removed. Mr Cuffe, the Managing Director of Cuffe & Taylor
then explained that the company is a part of Live Nation, not a
large corporate organisation but is a local business with a long
term approach to using York as a destination for the festival.

In response to questions from the parties Mr Crier and his

witnesses clarified:

e The sound checks would take place the day before or the
morning of the event and although this was not licensable,
residents would be notified.

e The locations of the noise survey and clarification that the
background noise level would be referred to as 51 dB(A)
although the application is not based on background noise
levels.

e An operational plan would be adopted in accordance with the
conditions.

e That most acts wanted to finish earlier than the timings stated

e The Vanguardia noise report included information on the sound
levels

e The total noise level on Shipton Road was 69 dB(A) on average,
which was why it was unfair to set a limit of 65 dB(A). An
explanation was then given about the location of the noise
survey for the noise modelling.

e There would be sound propagation tests carried out in advance
at nominated control points and this would be kept under review
continuously throughout the event.

e The role of the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) in developing
plans for the event.

The representations made by Mr Golightly, on behalf of City of
York Council Public Protection (Environmental Protection) (PPU) in
writing and at the hearing. He explained their objection on the



Page 24

grounds of public nuisance noting the location of the festival as
being in an area with a large number of residential properties
nearby. He outlined the previous complaints received about live
music at the venue. He advised that the noise levels within national
guidance had been incorporated into local guidance for an urban to
rural venue such as this, and he explained that the limit of 65 dB(A)
had been requested in order to avoid public nuisance. Mr Golightly
referred to his witness Mr Gray (York Council Public Protection
(Environmental Protection). Mr Gray expanded on the points made
by Mr Golightly in relation to the noise survey and modelling and he
explained that the difference between 65 dB(A) and 75 dB(A) was
effectively a doubling of the noise level. He cited examples of
festivals with a limit of 65 dB(A). There is no reason to deviate from
the national guidance in this location.

In response to questions, Mr Golightly and Mr Gray clarified

e The request for 65 dB(A) was in line with local guidance

e There were no examples of events in York where noise levels
had gone above 65 dB(A)

¢ If national noise guidance changed the position of Public
Protection would be to retain their current recommendations.

e The rationale for their requested noise condition of 65 dB(A) and
that 70 dB(A) would not be acceptable.

e Where events had exceeded 65Bb(A) there had been noise
complaints.

e An explanation of the process for investigating noise complaints
was given.

The representations made by Clir Sam Waudby, Rawcliffe and
Clifton Without Ward Councillor on behalf of Rawcliffe and Clifton
Without Ward Councillors in writing and at the hearing. She
outlined the concerns of the Ward Councillors and local residents
and she gave an update on the discussions at a Ward Committee
meeting about the festival on 23 January 2020. She noted that the
views expressed by residents had been mixed and she noted
concerns about the licence being in perpetuity, traffic and parking
and noise. During questions to the Councillor, Mr Crier noted that
traffic was not relevant to the licensing application and he advised
that the traffic management plan was being done in consultation
with traffic management at the council. In answer to a question ClIr
Waudby confirmed that there are a number of care homes in the
area and she pointed these out on the location map.

The representations made by Rawcliffe Parish Council and Clifton
Without Parish Council in writing and represented by Clir Darryl



Page 25

Smalley (Rawcliffe and Clifton Without Ward Councillor) at the
hearing. He explained that the main issues were with traffic,
parking and noise. He explained concern about the proposed traffic
permit scheme creating increased congestion outside the area and
trapping residents in for the three days. He noted concern about
car parking and noise from the festival affecting residents, including
the impact of this on Limetrees Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Service (CAMHS) and Clifton Park hospital. He requested that if
the Sub-Committee were minded to grant the licence, that it be for
one year. During questions to the Councillor, the applicant stated
that they would be willing to meet with the Parish Councils to
discuss their concerns about the parking permits and it was
suggested that there would be a large number of people walking to
the festival.

Cllr Smalley was asked and explained the concerns of the Parish
Councils about public safety and he was asked and advised that
Limetrees and Clifton Park hospital were open on Fridays.

A Representor in writing and in person at the hearing. The
Representor outlined his concerns that traffic management and
parking at the festival would create a public nuisance and he
suggested that the site was not suitable for an event of that size.
He added that that trialling the event for one year would not change
the unsuitability of the site. He explained his role as Vice Chair pf
the York and North Yorkshire Modern Slavery Partnership and
cited their concerns about county lines drugs problems at the
event. He also explained that the bus drop off at Clifton Alliance
Cricket ground was unsuitable and that there would be problems
with public safety from people leaving the site after the event.

A Representor in writing and in person at the hearing. The
Representor explained his concerns about public safety and crime
and disorder from people leaving the site, and he added that during
the festival on Fridays, children would walk home from school at
the same time people would arrive at the venue and would have to
navigate their way through the restricted area. He explained where
he resided in close proximity to the venue and that he had not
received any satisfactory answers from the applicant or any
consultation on his concerns about noise. He stated that his
concerns had not been addressed in the noise report submitted on
18 February 2020 and he requested that the acoustic survey be
made available. He would be happy for his house to be used as a
noise monitoring point. Mr Crier explained that the baseline report
could be made available.



Page 26

10. A Representor in support in writing and represented by his wife at
the hearing. She explained that parking was a perpetual problem
on her street and she acknowledged the issue of public nuisance
caused by the festival. She expressed support for the economic
benefits of the event and noted that the profile of people attending
the event would be different to those visiting the city centre.

The Chair then asked PC Hollis (North Yorkshire Police Alcohol
Licensing Department) to clarify the proposed police condition no.
1 on page 101 of the Agenda papers. PC Hollis clarified the role of
the SAG in the context of the condition and confirmed that traffic
management was within the remit of the SAG and that the Event
Management Plan required by the condition could include a
dispersal policy.

e The applicant and representors then summed up. In response to
further questions from the Sub-Committee on points for
clarification the applicant confirmed:

e The security measures in place at the festival

e That there could be two under 16s per adult and under 18s
could not queue at bars

e There would be SIA security on each bar

e There was no reason for the showing of films in section 18 of
the application

Mr Golightly, on behalf of City of York Council Public Protection
(Environmental Protection) (PPU) confirmed that a noise restriction
of 70 dB(A) would not be acceptable.

Mr Crier, on behalf of the applicant stated that the applicant wished
to amend its application to a one year only licence to start at 5pm
on the Friday. He also said that the applicant would be willing to
agree to a noise limit of 70 dB(A) (15 minutes) for the headline acts
on Shipton Road and Clifton Park Avenue and 65 dB(A) for the
support acts.

In respect of the proposed licence, the Sub-Committee had to determine
whether the licence application demonstrated that the premises would
not undermine the licensing objectives. Having regard to the above
evidence and representations received, the Sub-Committee considered
the steps which were available to them to take under Section 35(3)(a)of
the Licensing Act 2003 as it considered necessary for the promotion of
the Licensing Objectives:



Page 27

Option 1: Grant the licence in the terms applied for. This option was
rejected.

Option 2: Grant the licence with modified/additional conditions imposed
by the licensing committee. This option was approved.

Option 3: Grant the licence to exclude any of the licensable activities to
which the application relates and modify / add conditions accordingly.
This option was rejected.

Option 4: Reject the application. This option was rejected.

In agreeing Option 2 the following conditions and modified/additional
conditions were added to the licence:

1. Prior to an event taking place a documented noise management
plan shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by City of York
Council. Once approved, it shall be implemented immediately. No
event shall take place until the approval of the plan. The agreed
Noise Management Plan must contain a requirement that the
Music Noise Level expressed as an LAeq shall not exceed 65dB(A)
over a 15 minute period as measured at any of the agreed noise
sensitive locations.

2. A draft of the Event Management Plan (EMP) will be produced
three months prior to the event each year and will be submitted to
the Licensing Authority and all the members of the Safety Advisory
Group (SAG). Following consultation with the SAG, the Licensing
Authority shall notify the premises licence holder in writing that the
draft EMP is acceptable or unacceptable not less than one
calendar month prior to the event taking place. The event shall not
take place until the draft Event Management Plan has been
approved by the Licensing Authority in consultation with the SAG.
Once approved no change shall be made to the EMP without the
agreement of the Licensing Authority or Police. The event shall
operate at all time in accordance with the EMP as approved by the
Licensing Authority.

3.  With the exception of private areas exclusively for artists and bona
fide guests, all drinks shall be served in non-glass vessels only. For
glass bottled drinks, the drink is to be decanted into non-glass
vessels.



Page 28

The licence holder will operate a Challenge 25 Age Verification
Policy. Notices must be displayed in prominent positions indicating
that the Challenge 25 policy is in force.

e Documented staff training will be given regarding staff's
obligation under the Licensing Act in respect of the:-
Retail sale of alcohol

Age verification policy

Conditions attached to the Premises Licence

Permitted Licensable activities

The Licensing objectives and

The Opening Times of the venue.

Such records shall be kept for a minimum of one year and will
be made available immediately upon request from any
Responsible Authority.

A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept.
Such documents will record incidents of staff refusals of alcohol
sales to under-age or drunk people as well as incidents of any anti-
social behaviour and ejections from the premises.

Such records shall be kept for at least one year. [For the avoidance
of doubt, the one year period relates to each respective entry in the
log book and runs from the date of that particular entry]: They will
be made available immediately upon a reasonable request from
any responsible authority.

No retail sale of alcohol shall take place from a bar or beer tent
unless there is a Personal Licence holder present to authorise
sales. The Personal Licence holder shall be based on the bar and
will be available within 5 minutes of request by authorities when
alcohol sales take place.

It is the responsibility of the Designated Premises Supervisor to
conduct a risk assessment to decide the number of SIA registered
security staff needed for the event. This shall include a minimum of
2 x SIA door supervisors on each bar and be included in the Event
management plan which is to be submitted to the Licensing
authority and Safety advisory group (SAG) before the event.

When SIA Door Supervisors are on duty, they shall wear high
visibility arm bands and sign in and out of the premises in a register
providing their full name and SIA number.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Page 29

Music Noise Levels to be monitored regularly throughout the event
by the appointed noise consultants at the agreed noise monitoring
locations to check both compliance with the specified maximum
levels and the avoidance of any noise nuisance. The measures
stated in the Noise Management Plan shall be implemented so that
the noise limits are met.

Low frequency levels between 30 and 125Hertz shall also be
monitored by the appointed noise consultants throughout the event
at the agreed monitoring locations.

The premises licence holder shall ensure that the promoter, sound
system supplier and all individual sound engineers are informed of
the sound control limits and that any instructions from the
appointed noise control consultant shall be implemented.

A sound propagation test will be undertaken either the day before
or on the day of the event in order to set appropriate guideline
limits at the sound mixer position. The sound system will be
configured and operated in a similar manner as intended for the
event and the noise source used for the test will be similar in
character to the music likely to be produced during the event.

A dedicated complaints line shall be set up prior to and operated
throughout the event. All noise complaints shall be communicated
immediately to the consultant’s noise monitoring team who will
investigate immediately including visiting the nearest noise
monitoring location to the complainant and requesting immediate
action as required.

Information regarding the event shall be circulated to local
residents within an area agreed with the local authority at least 2
weeks prior to the event taking place. The information will include
details of the timings for the show including propagation tests and
the dedicated telephone line number for any complaints.

All complaints shall be recorded together with the action taken and,
together with the data of sound levels taken during the event, shall
be included in a summary Noise Report to be prepared by the
appointed noise consultants. This report should be submitted to the
Environmental Health Department at York City Council no later
than 3 weeks following the event.

A post-event meeting will be held between the premises licence
holder and the environmental health department following



Page 30

submission of the Noise Report with a view to assessing the noise
levels during the 2020 event.

18. The licence is limited to one calendar year for a maximum of three
event days.

19. All licensable activities shall not commence before 5.00pm Monday
to Friday (excluding Bank Holidays).

20. The licensable activities for Saturdays, Sundays and Bank
Holidays were granted for the hours as applied for.

21. There shall be no age restricted films.

All conditions offered by the Applicant in the application, including
the operating schedule, for granting the premises licence under the
Licensing Act 2003, shall be included in the licence, unless
contradictory to the above conditions.

The Sub-Committee noted that the applicant amended its
application at the hearing to be limited to a licence for one calendar
year to start at 5pm on a Friday and that it had amended its
proposed condition as to maximum noise levels.

The Sub-Committee carefully considered all the evidence placed
before them including the application and all the representations
and had regard to the licensing objectives, the section 182
Guidance issued by the Secretary of State and the Council’s own
statement of licensing policy.

They considered the likely effects of the grant of the premises licence on
the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee
considered very carefully the representation of Mr Golightly Mr Golightly,
on behalf of City of York Council Public Protection (Environmental
Protection). The Sub-Committee had careful regard to the concerns of
the neighbouring residents about the noise created by the licensable
activities and the close proximity of the application site to his residential
properties.

The Sub-Committee concluded that if the application were to be
granted in the terms y applied for there would be the likelihood of
residents being subjected to public nuisance in terms of noise
nuisance from licensable activity on the site. The Sub-Committee
considered that the noise condition proposed by PPU was
appropriate and proportionate to address the issue of noise



Page 31

nuisance and ensure that noise levels from the premises could be
reduced to an acceptable level for nearby residents. The Sub-
Committee was encouraged by the other measures stated in the
application to satisfy the four licensing objectives and the
conditions agreed with the Police. The overall conclusion of the
Sub-Committee was that a one year licence should be granted for
the licensable activities requested but subject to the additional and
amended conditions set out above. It was considered that all these
measures should ensure that an appropriate balance is met in order
to promote the licensing objectives.

The Sub-Committee considered only those issues that relate to the
licensing objectives. As aresult the Sub-committee considered that
it was not within its remit to consider traffic/parking control issues
on event days and did not take into account the fact that tickets
have already been sold for the event.

The Sub-Committee therefore agreed to grant the licence with the
additional and mandatory conditions referred to above which were
appropriate and proportionate in the circumstances to promote the
licensing objectives.

, Chair
[The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 1.50 pm].



Page 32

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 33 Agenda Item 6

YORK

4‘—"j$ CITY OF
g COUNCIL

Meeting of Licensing Act 2003 Sub- 8 June 2020
Committee

Report from the Assistant Director — Planning and Public Protection

Section 52(2) Review of Premises Licence CYC/009221 for
The Regency, 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA

Summary

1.  This report seeks Members determination of an application for a
review of a premises licence which has been made under the
Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) in respect of The Regency, 16
Barbican Road, York YO10 5AA, premises licence number
CYC/00921.

2. Name of applicant: Anthony Dean, Public Protection Manager, on
behalf of the Licensing Authority, City of York Council, Eco Depot,
Hazel Court, York, YO10 3DS.

3. Summary of Review: The application to review the premises
licence relates to the following licensing objective;
e The prevention of crime and disorder.
e Public safety.

4. A copy of the ‘application for review’ is attached at Annex 1 and is
briefly summarised as follows:

a) On two occasions, 8 September 2017 and 6 September 2019, City
of York Council (CYC) Licensing Officers have accompanied North
Yorkshire Police (NYP), the Home Office Immigration Service and
Gang Master and Labour Abuse Authority to the premises following
the receipt of intelligence that staff working at the premises did not
have the right to remain in this country and therefore did not have
the right to work in this country. An Officer from North Yorkshire
Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS) as well as Enforcement Officers
from CYC Housing Standards were also present on both



Page 34

occasions. Officers from the HMRC were also present on 6
September 2019.

b) On both occasions Immigration Officers removed people working at
the premises who did not have the right to remain in this country.

c) On both occasions CYC Licensing Officers recorded that the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was not present at the
premises and that some of the premises licence conditions were
not being complied with.

d) NYFRS had served notice on the premises, under the provisions of
the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, on two occasions.

5. A copy of the current premises licence is attached at Annex 2. The
premises licence currently authorises the following:

Licensable Current Days & Hours
Activity
Live music 10:00 to 3:30 Monday to Sunday

Recorded music
Performance of
dance

Activities like
music/dance

Late night 23:00 to 03:30 Monday to Sunday
refreshment

Supply of alcohol 10:00 to 03:30 Monday to Sunday

Opening Hours 10:00 to 04:00 Monday to Sunday

6. The premises licence issued on conversion with variation under the
Licensing Act 2003 was granted on 28 September 2005.

Consultation

7.  Consultation was carried out by the Applicants and the Licensing
Authority in accordance with S51(3) of the Act and Regulation 42,
Part 4, Paragraphs 29 and 38 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises
Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005, which



10.

11.

12.

13.

Page 35

concerns the notification of a review and the advertisement of a
review by licensing authority. Copies of the application were
served on all responsible authorities and the premises licence
holder. Notice of the application was displayed in the vicinity of the
premises, on the exterior noticeboard at the West Offices and on
the Councils website. In addition relevant Ward Councillors were
informed by way of register.

Representations were made by North Yorkshire Police on the
‘application for review’, and a copy is attached at Annex 3.

Witness statements were received from North Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service, the statement is attached at Annex 4.

Please note that within the ‘application for review’ there is a
witness statement from Immigration Officer Glynn Jones (appendix
3), within this statement Mr Jones first name is incorrectly spelt
(due to an autocorrect function). Mr Jones submitted an amended
statement attached at Annex 5 with the correct spelling of his
name, Glyn Jones.

To provide further clarification, a second witness statement was
received from Immigration Officer Glyn Jones, the statement is
attached at Annex 6.

A map showing the location of the premises is attached at Annex 7.

Other Relevant Information

There are no planning implications in relation to this application.

Options

14.

15.

16.

By virtue of S52(4) of the Act, the Sub-Committee may in making
their decision take such of the following steps as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

Option 1: To modify the conditions of the licence (ie to alter, omit
or add any new condition).

Option 2: To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the
licence.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

Page 36

Option 3: To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

Option 4: To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three
months.

Option 5: To revoke the licence.

Where the Sub-Committee takes a step mentioned in Option 1 or
Option 2, it may provide that the modification or exclusion is to
have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) as it
may specify. Otherwise the modification of conditions or the
exclusion of a licensable activity will be permanent.

Where the Sub-Committee determines to takes a decision as
mentioned in Option 4 or Option 5, Members should be mindful that
this will not close the premises, they will still be able to continue
trading as a restaurant. It will however prevent licensable activities
taking place, in this case the supply of alcohol, the provision of late
night refreshment, and the provision of regulated entertainment
after 23:00 hours - the playing of live and recorded music, the
performance of dance and activities like music/dace.

In deciding which, if any, of these steps to take, the Sub-
Committee should direct its mind to the cause or causes of the
concerns which the application and representations identify. The
remedial action taken should generally be directed at these causes
and should always be no more than an appropriate and
proportionate response to address the causes of concern that
instigated the review.

The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is appropriate if it
finds that the Review does not require it to take any steps that are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

Analysis

24.

25.

The following could be the result of any decision made by this Sub-
Committee:

Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.



26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

Page 37

Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 3: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 4: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder, the review applicant or any of the representors.

Option 5: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder.

The decision of the Sub-Committee will not have effect until the
end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or if the
decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

Members are reminded that they may only use their discretion to
take remedial action in relation to matters that are raised by this
review and are relevant to the promaotion of the licensing objectives.

Council Priorities

32.

33.

The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives; the prevention of crime
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when
determining licensing applications for review the Council are
supporting the licence trade, as well as local residents and
businesses. The functions support the Council’s Plan of safe
communities and culture for all, and a good quality of life for
everyone.

Implications

34.

. Financial - N/A

. Human Resources (HR) — N/A



Page 38

Equalities — N/A

Legal — The legislation and policy considerations associated
with this report are contained in Annex 8. The decision made by
this Sub Committee is subject to appeal rights to the Magistrates
Court.

Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime
and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and
disorder in the city.

Information Technology (IT) — N/A
Property — N/A

Other — none

Risk Management

35. All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received
full training on the Act and the Regulations governing hearings.
They are aware that any decision which is unreasonable or
unlawful could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image,
reputation and potential financial penalty.

36. The report details the options available to the panel in determining
the application and recommends that a decision be reached.
There are no risks involved with this recommendation.

Recommendations

37. Members determine the application.

Reason: To address the application for review received as
required by the Licensing Act 2003.



Page 39

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Matt Boxall Michael Slater

Head of Public Protection  Assistant Director

Ext 1528 Planning and Public Protection
Ext 1300
Report N Date 29/05/20
Approved

Wards Affected: Fishergate Ward

Annexes

Annex 1 - Copy of application for review of premises licence, plus
appendices

Annex 2 - Copy of premises licence, including layout plan

Annex 3 - Representation from North Yorkshire Police

Annex 4 - Witness statement North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue

Annex 5 - Amended witness statement from Home Office Immigration
Service

Annex 6 - Second witness statement from Home Office Immigration
Service

Annex 7 - Map showing location of premises

Annex 8 - Legislation and Policy Considerations



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

Annesc_ \

CIL

o aat_York Y010

F COUNTL . 3Ds

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premlises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form pleass read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure your answers
are inside the boxes and wrltten In black Ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/IWe Anthony Dean of PUBLIC PROTECTION (insert name(s) of applicant) apply for the revlew of a
premises licence under section 51/apply for the review of a club premises certificate under

section 87. of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises descrlbed In Part 1 below (delete as
applicable)

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or club premises, o if none, ordinance survey map reference or |
description

Regency
16 Barblcan Road

Post town York

_—['Fost code: YO10 5AA

Name of premises licence holdar or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) Chen

Part 2 — Applicant details

lam Please tick v yes
1 An interested party (please complete (A) or (B) betow)

a) A person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) A body representing persons living in the vicinity of the premises

c) A person Invalved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) A body representing persons involved In business In the vicinity of the premises

2 Aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) 4

3 A mémber of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below)



Page 42

Other title

o IS Tiss Ms (for example, Rev)
Surname First namas

[ ] -

Please tick v Yas

| am 18 years old or over

Current postal address
if different from
premlses address

Post Town Postcode

o
Pk

Daytime contact telephone number

Emall address (optionat)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name

Address

Telephonhe number (if any)

E-mall (optionai)




Page 43

{C) DETAILS OF RES LEA TCANT

Mamer-PobticProtectiorr{amttony-Bean)

Address

City of York Council
Public Protection
Hazel Court Eco Depot

York
YO10 3DS
Telephone number (if any) “

01904 551588

E-mail (optional)

anthony dean@york.qov.uk / public.protection@york.gov.uk T
This appllcation to review relates to the following licensing objectives(s)
Please tick one or more boxes v/

the prevention of crime and disorder ‘!
public safety \I
the prevention of public nuisance

the protection of children from harm

i

| Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guldance note 1)

| make this application on behalf of the Licensing Authorlly, City of York Gouncil (CYC), wha wish to
seek a review of the above premises licence as the Licensing Oblectives in relation to ‘prevention
of crime and disorder' and ‘public safety' have been undermined on a number of occasions.

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) Chen has been the prem nce holder and designated premises
supervisor (DPS) for this premises since 25 June 2015.

On two occasions CYG Licensing Officers have accompanied North Yorkshire Police (NYP) and
the Home Office Immigration Service to the premises following the recelpt of intelligence that staff

working at the premises did not have thg right to remain _Ip_ﬂ*js country and therefore did not have
the right to work in this country. %f‘ RA .

On both occasions, on 8 September 2017 and 6 September 2019, Immlgratiorﬁr@#noved
people working at the premises who did not have the right to remaln in thls country.

On both occaslons CYC Licsnsing Officers recorded that the DPS was not present at the premises
and that some of the premises licence conditions were not being complied with,

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS) has served notice on the premises, under the
provislons of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005, on two occasions




Page 44

5 - o

guidance note 2)

Orrg-September201T-CYC tioen: ci Ly (el (e on, WOGK part in an
operation with officers from NYP and the Home Office Immigration Enforcement Team at
the premises. On arrival at the premises it was noted that the premises where open to
customers. Six people working at the premises were removed by Immigration Officers as
they did not have the right to remain in this country and therefore did not have the right to
work in this country or for illegal entry. During this visit It was noted that sleeping’
accommodation was provided on the second floor, this information was glven to
colleagues in CYC's HMO Licensing team and also to NYFRS.

Mr Zhong Le Chen was niot present when officers arrived at the premises, Helen Seflon
spoke to the duty manager, (G | S D (='so known a . Mr Chen arrived
later on during the visit and advised officers that he did not understand English very well,
$0 translated on his behalf. During the visit a number of licensing Issues were
found including the CCTV system which no one on site appeared to be able to operate,
lack of staff training in relatlon to licensing matters, no documented noise management
plan, and no notices regarding customers leaving quletly. Verbal advice was given to Mr
Chen and (P o this occasion,

On 6 September 2019 Helen Sefton took part In an operation with officers from NYP,
Home Office Immigration Enforcement Team, NYFRS, HMRC, Gangmasters and Labour
Abuse Authority and CYC Housing Enforcement Team. On arrival at the premises it was
noted that the premises was open to customers. Three people working at the premises
were removed by Immigration Officers as they did not have the right to remain in this
country and therefore did not have the right to work in this country. During this visit it was
noted that sleeping accommodation was provided on the second floor of the premises,
with some staff identifying a room as thelr bedroom. In addition decoration works were
taking place on the second floor and access routes to means of escape were
restricted/blocked,

At the request of the Fire Safety Officer (who had had to leave the premises to visit
another location), Helen Sefton aske* to test the fire alarm. The alarm activated
but could not be reset, identifying faults. Dueto this the Fire Safety Officer returned to the
premises and issued a notice under the provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety)
Order 2005 to prevent use of the upper floors and sleeping on the premises.

Mr Chen was not present during this visit, the Senior Licensing Officer and Licensing
Manager spoke 1o the duty manage . It was evident to the Senior
Licensing Officerdhiat no action had been taken Tollowing the verbal advice given to Mr
Chen andﬂon 8 September 2017, as there were still a number of licensing issues
including the CCTV system which no one on site appeared to be able to operate, lack of
staff training in relation to licensing matters, no documentéd noise management plan, no

refusals register or incident report reglster, and inadequate notices regarding customers
leaving quietly.

On 24 October 2019 CYC Licensing Enforcement Officer, Nigel Woodhead, and PC Kim
Hollis carried out a further unannounced visit to the premises, to check for compliance
with premises licence conditions. Mr Chen was not present during this visit. Officers
spoke to A number of breaches of the premises licence were identified
including not belng connected, no staff records, no incident or refusals book, and
no notices asking customers to leave quietly. As a result PC Hollis served a closure notice
under Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001, glving the premises licence
holder and DPS seven days to rectify these matters.




Page 45

On the 31 October 2019 Nigel Woodhead and PC Kim Hollis carried out an unannounced
¢ 1 1 el s H -1 Sor x llm’) (o the

outstanding issues. At the time of the visit all the previous conditions breaches had been
rectified and the previously served Section 19 notice was lifted.

in additlon to the above licensing matters, it is also worthy on note that on the 14 August
2018 China Regency Ltd, trading as Regency Restaurant, and Xiu Lan Chen were
prosecuted by Public Protection for three breaches of Food Safety and Hygiene
Regulations at the Barbican Road, York site.

Ms Chen pleaded guilty to all offences on behalf of both herself and China Regency Ltd at
York City Magisirates' Court on 14 August 2018. China Regency Ltd were fined £8,000,
with prosecution costs of £4,906.63 and & £170 Court Surcharge, Ms Chen was fined
£540 fine and £54 court surcharge.

Furthermore on the 19 November 2017 Tina Feng signed, on behalf of York Regency
Assaociates Ltd of 4 George Hudson Street, York, a simple caution in relation to the sale of
a knife to a person under the age of eighteen in July 2017, contrary to the Criminal Justice
Act 1988, Tina.Feng, as detailed in Nigel Woodhead's statement, was a manager of the
Regency Restaurant at 2-4 Gearge Hudson Street and took control of the premises in the
absence of the DPS Mr Chen.

A statement from Helen Sefton, Senior Licensing Officer, is attached at Appendix 1

A statement from Nigel Woodhead, Licensing Enforcement Officer, is attached at
Appendix 2

A statement from Glynn Jones, Immigration Officer at the Home Office, is attached at
Appendix 3

A copy of the summonses relating to Food Safety and Hygiene Offences are attached as
Appendix 4

A copy of the signed simple cautlon relating to'the sale of the knife to a person under the
age of eighteen is attached at Appendix 5

Please tick v yas
Have you made ah application for review relating to this premisss before?

Day Menth  Year o
If yos please state the date of that application l } |

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please stafe what
they were and when you made them

N/A




Page 46

Please tick ¥ Yes

vt immmmmmmmmmmmwme——mame
premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certlficate, as appropriate

® lunderstand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance
noteb). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature: 1 ™ % °
Date: 07/02/2020

Capaclty: Public Protection Manager (Investigations and Compliance)

Contact Name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this applicatlon (please read guldance note 6)

Victoria Waudby
Legal Services
Station Rise

Post town: YORK N Post code: YO1 6GA )

Telephone number (if any): 01904 554350

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

victorla,waudby@vork.gov.uk

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers and to this end may
use the information you have provided on this form for the prevention and detection of fraud.

It may also share this Information with other bodies responsible for auditing or administering
public funds for these purposes.



Page 47

Notes for guidance

oy u..apuuulu:c atthort I!.y fr |uludﬁT*hﬂmmﬂlﬁf'ﬁmuc
authority and other statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in
the local area.

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing
objectives.

3. Please list any additional Information or details for example dates of
problems which are included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

5. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their
behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so.,

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about
this application.



Page 48

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certiflcate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 1

A statement from Helen Sefton, Senior Licensing Officer



Page 49

INTHE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

FIRST WITNESS STATEMENT OF HELEN LOUISE SEFTON

I, Helen Louise SEFTON, Senior Licensing Officer of City of York Coundil,
Hazel Court, EcoDepot, James Street, YORK, YO10 3DS, make this statement
in support of an application by The Council Of The Clty Of York for a review of
premises licences, namely The REGENCY Barbican Road and The REGENCY
George Hudson Street, YORK.

1. ldeclare that the contents of this my statement are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and belief. | make this statement in the knowledge
that it will be used in premises licence review proceedings.

2. 1 make this statement based upon the records held by the Council. The
information provided In this witness state is_ within my own

' @igdge, u:Iess expressly stated otherwisemwgm @ '

e ey -

| am a Senior Licensing Officer employed by the City of York Council to
administer and enforce a wide range of licensable activities. Part of WS
to inspect licensed and unlicensed premises in accordance with the Licensing

Act 2003.

On 8 September 2017 Wed to attend a multi-agency operation targeting
two licensed premises within the district of York. At that time | held the position
of Licensing Enforcement Officer. The operation was led by North Yorkshire

Police, also in attendance were officers from the Home Office Immigration



Page 50

Enforcement Team. At 18:00 on 8 September 2017 | attended a briefing at

Fulford Road Police Statlon in York where Inspector FREAR outlined the plan
for the evening and allocated roles and responsibilities to Officers. | was to
attend the address at 16 Barblcan Road, York, YO10 5AA entering the
premises under my powers conferred under Section 179 of the Licensing Act
2003, once | had carried out my inspection at 16 Barbican Road | was then to
attend a premises at 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP also under the

powers conferred by Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003.

At 18:45 accompanied by PC BOLLAND Police Licensing Officer, North
Yorkshire Police, | entered the licensed premises known as REGENCY
Restaijrant at 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. The restaurant was busy
with customers and staff. | identified myself as a Licensing Enforcement Officer
and spoke with the person who identified himself as the manager, he told me
his name was (D 2nd he advised his actual name was (D
@D bt preferred to be called () @MMPacvised he had been the
manager at the premises for 2 years. PC BOLLAND and | proceeded to speak
to- about the various permissions and conditions contalned within the
premises licence, issued in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. At this time
other Officers from North Yorkshire Police and the Home Office Immigration
Team proceeded to search the premises and speak with other members of
staff. We asked to see the CCTV system anc-stated that only the
business owner could aperate the system as it required a passcode which he
did not have access to. At approximately 19:25 the premises licence holder and

named Deslignated Premises Supervisor (DPS), ZHONG LE CHEN arrived at



Page 51

the premises. At first he spoke with Staff members in a language | could not

understand. PC BOLLAND and | proceeded to speak with CHEN about the
llcence permissions and conditions. CHEN stated he could not fully understand
English and asked @l to interpret for him. | asked CHEN who owned the

business and he stated it was his (i) (EEEEED he further state ol

@D .- =vay in China and when asked about the CCTV system he

stated only_ could operate the CCTV system.

Both-and CHEN stated the restaurant did not stay open past midnight.
They stated that staff were trained in licensing matters but it was not
documented. | noted there were no notices displayed asking customers to leave
the premises quietly and there was no documented noise management plan.
After speaking with both gentlemen PC BOLLAND and | carried out a full
inspection of the entire premises which included the ground floor bar area,
waiting area, restaurant and kitchen. We also went upstairs to the first floor and
noted several ro;ms set up with karaokg equlpment. televisions/screens, bench
séating and gambling equipment suchﬁ*a's dicfé and éiice shakers. The first floor
had a locked room with a name plate stating ‘Reception’. CHEN provided entry
to tfﬁs rogm. Once entry was gained to this room it contained alcoholic drinks,
various items of stock, several packets of playing cards and the CCTV system,
On the second floor of the premises there were more karaoke rooms and also
bedrooms contalning bunk beds and personal effeqts. queral maore rooms on
this floor were locked via external padlocks. PC BBLLAND and | were made

aware by the Police Officer in charge that the Immigration Officers were in the



Page 52

process of detaining four members of staff as they potentially did not have the

right to work in the UK

PC BOLLAND and | left: the premises at Barbicall"ROS with Pollce and
mation Officers stille‘w_\@: ﬁ_;ﬁmade our way to the second
Rremises to be visited at George Hudson Street, York. e
At approximately 20:00 on the 8 September 2017 PC BOLLAND and | attended
a prepises,, called REGENCY located at 2 ~ 4 George Hudson Mrk,
YO1 6LP. Police and Immigration Officers were already in attendance at this
premises and had already searched the premises and spoken with staff. The
premises consisted of a supemmarket to the left of the front door/entrance and
a restaurant/takeaway to the right. | was introduced to the Manager who
introduced herself as Tina FENG. FENG advised me she had worked at the
premises for 2 years, she was unable to use or view the CCTV as she did not
have the necessary permission to use the system. FENG stated staff were
trained in licensing matters but it was not documented. She stated the
Desigﬁated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was ZHONG LE CHEN. She stated the
restaurant side of the premises also had a manager but did not provide a name
for that person. She advised the premises did not open beyond 1am. | noted
that the front glass door of the premises which was also a fire exit was broken
and in need of urgent repair, one side of the door was in a locked position due
to the damage — | asked FENG to get this done as a priority as this meant the
fire escape route was effectively reduced in width by 50%. FENG was advised

that someone on site needed to be able to access the CCTV and that all staff



Page 53

CCTV training must be documented. | was also informed by a Police Officer on

site that when they first attended the premises the rear fire door, which had a
push bar, was locked shut. | was made aware on the night that the Immigration

Officers had detained members of staff from this premises who potentially did

no%g,l‘]e right to worlggmsthe UiGgl do not know the specific number of staff

members g d. [ i w

L s
After the visits | reported my findings on the nigmem-'_ln the@ouncilh
Housing Eniwﬂ?t Team, GW\_-@,ommtsslon:and;.'Fl-@-W. 4

-

In the summer of 2019 | was contacted by Inspector FREAR of North Yorkshire
Police, he told me of his intention to organise another multi agency visit to both
the REGENCY premises in York, he wanted suppomhe Licensing Team.
He also advised a premises in the Selby area would be involved In the visits

and some residential addresses in York and SW#

At 16:30 on 6 September 2omnded a briefiiiit"Fulford Road Police
Station. In attendance were officers from North Yorkshire Police, HMRC, Home
Office Immigration Enforcement, the Gangmasters and Labour Abuse
Authority, North mhire Fire Authority Officers, City of York Council Housing

Enforcement Officers and several interpreters,

At 18:10 on 6 September 2019, in company of Lesley COOKE Licensing

Muat City of York Council | entered the premises known as REGENCY
Restaurant at 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. We entered the premises



Page 54

under powers conferred by Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003. Police and

Immigration Officers were already In the premises as they had entered using

powers granted under a warrant.

| spoke with the manager of the premises (D rea! name (D
@@ o vod e his personal licence with Numbe P issued

by Manchester City Council and showing his address as (| [ D
G @R i< hovever this address needed to be
changed to (I | - \iscd @ to contact

Manchester City Council to amend his licence ASAP. | reminded-that
we had met 2 years earlier, he advised me he had left his job at the premises
shortly after September 2017 but had recently returned. | sat in the walting area
of the restaurant with-and went through the conditions on the premises
licence whilst the Officers from the other agencies carried out the inspections
and interviews with staff (i flstated he was not the DPS at the premises
that was Mr CHEN. He stated CHEN was not often at the premises but was in
regular contact with (il and did call -when he needed to. Whilst
going through the conditions on the premises licence several breaches were
identified as follows; ( the corresponding condition appears in brackets)

The CCTV system was running 36 minutes behind (7). (i} had no idea
how many days the CCTV recordings were kept (5). Staff were trained verbally
how to lawfully operate the CCTV but this training was not documented (16, 18
and 18). There was no refusals register or incident report register (20, 21, and
22). There were no notices asking customers to leave quietly (23). -

stated the premises closed before midnight and therefore they do not use door



Page 55

staff at any time. There was no evidence of a noise management plan on site

ToT WS Tere eVItence of one belng submitted to the Licensing Authonty (35).
| produce a copy of the Part A of the premises licence including the conditions

as Exhibit HLS/1. m

Adter speaking with (Il | undertook a full inspection of the premises in
company of Lesley COOKE. On the first floor | noted a strong smell of cigarette
smoke in both the karaoke rooms and evidence of cigarette smoking (smelland
used cigarettes and ash) in the Gentleman's toilet. There were also sets of dice
and dice shakers in each karaoke room. On the second floor there was
evidence of persons sleeping in some of the karaoke rooms this included
bedding (duvets, pillows etc.), personal effects such as clothing, shoes,
toothbrushes and luggage. Some rooms on the second floor were in the
process of being renovated/decorated. Whilst | was in one of the karaoke rooms
a young white male with an Eastern EurfiiBER aécent cdine into the room, he
said he'd come to get his passport. When asked where he was sleeping he
stated it was in this karacke room. At the ground floor level | met my collleague
Nigel WOODHEAD, Licensing Enforcement Officer in the rear car park | n-ﬂ
there was evidence of a severely blocked drain at the rear entrance to the car
park which was overflowing with foul water and grease. | then met with Kevin
CAULFIELD from North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service who informed me
that due to a defect on the fire alarm system he would be issuing a Prohibition
Notice which would prohibit any persons sleeping on the premises. The Police
Officer in charge informed me that several members of staff had been detalned

and four persons had been detained for potential immigration offences.



Page 56

After the inspection | reported my findings on the night to colleagues in the
Council Gambling Commission, the City of York Council Neighbourhood
Enforcement Team (regarding the blocked drain), | also contacted Manchester
City Council's Licensing Team regarding -PerSOnal Licence details.

On 4 November 2019 an application was received by#FEs@y of York Council's
Licensing Team to apply to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at
the premises known as Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street, York. | produce a
copy of the application as Exhibit HLS/2. The DPS is the person who holds
overall control and day to day management of a licensed premises, they are
also responsible for authorising the sale of alcohol. As part of the application
process the Licensing Authority must consult with North Yorkshire Police.
Enquiries were made with North Yorkshire Police who in turn consulted Home

Office Immigration Officers as to the status of the person named to be the new

DPS at the premises@iil NP

As a result Immigration Officer Glyn JONES provided a statement regarding
-and his status regarding being unable to work in the UK. The application
to vary the DPS was ultimately rejected by the Licensing Authority due to the
application being incomplete. This was confirmed in my letter dated 28
November 2019 and hand delivered to the premises address, copied to the
DPS home address and the registered office of the premises licence holder,
The letters were all hand delivered on 28 November 2019. | produce a copy of

the letter dated 28 November 2019 as Exhibit HLS/3.



Page 57

| BELIEVE THAT THE FACTS STATED IN THIS WITNESS STATEMENT
ARE TRUE.

Signed:

.........................................

Dated: 4 February 2020



Page 58

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003
EXHIBIT
Copy of Premises Licence for The REGENCY 16 Barbican Road,
YORK, YO10 5AA

This is the Exhibit HLS/M referred to in the statement of Helen Louise SEFTON,
dated 3 February 2020.



Page 59

Ues h

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE

Schedule 12
Part A

_Eremlses licence number.
cyc - 009221

Part 1 Premises details

‘Postal address of premises: - T

16 Barbican Road

Past town: York

Post code: YO10 SAA

Telephone number: 01904 623134

Expiry date: This licence has no explry date.
Licensabie activities Sutﬁ"b“ﬁé}éd'ﬁﬁ"th'é licence: 77 LR
Live Muslc

Recorded Music

Performances of Dance

Actlvities like music/dance

Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrylng out of licensable activities:

LIVE MUSIC

Indoars

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30



Page 60

RECORDED MUSIC

Indoors

Monday
10:00- 03:30

Friday
10:00- 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

Indoors,

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

ACTIVITIES LIKE MUSIC/DANCE

Indoors

Monday”
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indoors

Monday
23:00-03:30

Friday
23:00 - 03:30

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Non Standard Timings for Live Muslc, Recorded Muslc,

Tuesday
23:00 - 03:30

Saturday
23:00-03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
23:00 - 03:30

Sunday
23:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Music/Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply of Alcohol:

From the end of

Year's Day,

An additlonal hour on the day that B-Itish Summertime commences.

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
23:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Performances of Dance, Actlvities like

permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New



Page 61

The Opening Hours of the Premisas S -

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00

Non Standard TimIngs:

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on Naw
Year's Day.

An addltional hour on the day that British Summertime commences.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

On and off the premlses

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and small (where relevant) of holder
of premise licence:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 16 Barbican Road
York

YO10 5AA

Telephone number; None

Emall address: Nane

Name, address and telephone number of deslgnated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 16 Barblcan Road
York

YO10 5AA

Teleghone number: None

Personal licence number and issulng authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol!

Selby District Councll
LN/000006043




Page 62

Annex 1 ~ Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with sectlon 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorlses the supply of alcohol, tha licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first vondition Is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the pramlses licence -
(a) at a time where there Is no deslgnated premises suparvisor In respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the dasignated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence Is suspended,

3. The second condltion Is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorlsed by a person who holds & personal licence,

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that stalf on relevant premises dao not carry out,
afrange or participate In any liresponsible promotions In relation to the premises,

(2) In this paragraph, an Irresponsible promotion means any one or mare of the following
activities, or substantlally similar activitles, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises — '

(#) games or other actlvities which fequire or encourage, or are deslgned to require or
encourage Individuals to -

(1) drink a quantity of alcohal withln a time limit (other than to drink alcohal sald or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the perlod In which the responsible person Is
authorised Lo sull or supply alcohol), or

() drink as much alcohol as possible (whather within a time lmit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecifiad quantities of alcohol free of for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by & partieular characteristic in a manner which carries
a siynificant risk of undermining a licensing objective; :

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol o any other thing as a prize to enourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a perfod of 24 hours or less In b manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining 8 leensing ubjective;

(d) selling or supplying alcehol In assoclation with promational posters or flyers o, or In the
vicinity of, the premlsds whieh can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
alamorlse antl-soclal behaviour oF to refer to the effects of drunkenness In any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol diractly by one person Into the mouth of another (other than where
that ather person is unable to drink without asslstance by reason of disabllity).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water Is provided on request to
customers where It Is reasonably avallable.

6. (1) The premises liconce holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verlfication policy Is adopted In respect of the premises In relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor In relation to the premises lleenee must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on In accortance with the age verification
policy. _

(3) The policy must require Individuals who 2ppear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified In the policy) to produce on request,
before belng served alcohol, Identification bearing thelr photograph, date of birth and elther -
(a) a holographle mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature,



Page 63

7. The responsible persan must ensure that —
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks (s sold ar supplied for consumption on the
premlses (other than alcohollc drinks sold or supplled having been made up In advance ready

for sale or supply In & securely closed contalner) it Is avallable to customers In the following
measures -~

() beer or cider: Y2 pint;

() gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25mi or 35ml; and

(ill) still wine In a glass: 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed In a menu, price list or other printed materlal which Is
avallable to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not In relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer Is made aware that these measures are avallable.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol Is sold or supplled for consumptlon on or off
the premises for a price which Is less than the permitted price,

2. For the purposes of the condltlon set out In paragraph 1 ~
(a) “duty” Is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Dutles Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” Is the price found by applylng the formula - P = D + (D x V)
where -

(I) P isthe permitted price,

(1) D Is the rate of duty chargeable In relation to the alcohol as If the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the aicohol, and

(1) Vv Is the rate of value added tax chargeable In relation to the alcohol as If the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relatlon to premises in respect of which there Is in force a
premises licence -

{l) the holder of the premises licence,

(1) the designated premises supervisor (If any) In respect of such a llcence, or ,

(i) the personal |lcence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohal under such a
licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, In relation to premises in respect of which there Is In force a club
premises certlficate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises In a capaclty
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged In accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994,

3. Where the permitted price glven by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennles, the price glven by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the prica actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4, (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applles where the permltted price glven by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the
hext day ("the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applles to sales or supplies of

alcohol which take place before the explry of the perlod of 14 days beglnning on the second
day.



Page 64

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives

Preventlon of Crime & Disorder

L. CCTV recordings will Include, as a minimum, a head and shouldars Image of each Individual
who enters the premises through the maln entrance,

Protectjon of Chlldren from Harm

2. There shall be a "Challenge 21" policy In operation at the prermises requlring any Individual
wha appears to be under the age of 21 to produce Identification to prove thal they are over
the age of 18, the sale of alcohol being refused where they are unable to do so.

3. The followlng ferms of fdentification are acceptable: photocard driving licence, valld
passport, PASS accredited ‘Proof of Age Card', any other form of Identification previously
agreed with representitives of North Yorkshire Police llcensing Unit,

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authorlty

1. Prior to using the karaoke rooms customers must have consumed a meal In the restaurant,
excludlng snacks.

2, Digltal olaur CCTV will be installed to cover the premises and will Include all areas to where
public have access for licensable activities and where the public can ¢onsume alcehol. For the
purpose of clarity this will [nclude all rooms and stalrways to which the public huve access for
licensable actlvitles and where the public can consume alcohal,

3. It will be maintalned, working and recording at all imes when the premises are open,
4. The recordings should be of sufficient quality to be produced In Court of other such hearing,
5. Coples of the recordings wlil be kept avallable for any Responsible Authorlty for 28 days.

6. Coples of the recordings will be made avallable to any Responsible Authority within 48hrs of
reguest. -

7. Coples of the recordings wlll display the correct time and date of the recording.

8. All off sales shall be made In sealed contalners save for those that are intended for
consumption within the bullding,

9. After 24:00hrs the only door used by members of the public to enter the premises shall be
the matn daor on to Barblcan Road, '

10. Last public entry to the premises shall be 24:00hrs. For the purpose of clarity no members
of the public will be aliowe:d entry to the premises after 24:00)rs untll the close of business
(this does nol prevent re-entry to customers who have left the venue Lo smoke).

11. After 24:00hrs customars who have left the venue to smoke shall be monitored by a Door

supervisor In a clearly demarked area at the front of the venue which will not block the
footpath.



Page 65

12. Two SIA Door Supervisors shall be provided at the venue from 24:00hrs untll the close of
business, with at least one staffing the maln door on to Barbican Road.

13. The only acceptable proof of age ldentification shall be a current passport, photocard
driving licence or Identlfication carrylng the PASS logo.

14. Standard one pint capacity, half pint capacity and “high ball tumbler” drinking glasses wiil

be strengthened glass (tempered glassware) In design whereby in the event of breakage the
glass wlll fragment and no sharp edges are left. ‘

15, Drinking glasses of any type should not be allowed to enter or leave the premlses whilst
under the customers care.

16. Documented staff training will be given regarding the retall sale of alcohol, the conditlons
attached to the premises licence and the opening times of the venue.

17, such tralning (referred te In Condltion 16) wlll be refreshed and documented every 6
months.

18, Such training records (referred to In Conditlon 16) should be kept for at laast 3 years,

19, Such training records (referred to Candltion 16) wili be made avallable for Inspection upon
request by any Responsible Authority.

20. A Refusals Register and Incldent Report Register will be kept. Such documents will record
Incldents of staff refusals to underage or drunk people, as well as Incidents of any antl-social
behaviour and ejectlons from the premises,

21. Both the above documents (referred to In Condition 20) will be kapt for at least 3 years.

22. Both the above documents (referred to In Condition 20) will be avallable for Inspection
upon request by any Responslble Authority.,

23. Prominent clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exlts requesting the public to
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quletly,

24, So as to ensure the Licensing Objective the preventlon of crime and disorder Is not
undermined there shail be a maximum capaclty of 100 persons of which there shall be no
more that 30 persons on the first floor and no more that 20 persons on the secqnd floor.

25. When the karaoke rooms are belng used there shall be at least ane member of staff
permanently sltuated on each floor of the venue on which the room Is belng used.

26, The member of staff shall monitor the rooms that are In use and will enter each room that
Is occupled no less than every 30 minutes.

27, The members of staff situated on the flrst and second Ffloor shall be In direct radlo link with
the Door Staff.

28, All alcohol consumed In the karaoke rooms shall be served by way of ‘walter/waltress
service,

29. No danc\ng Is to take place on the ground floor of the bullding at anytime.

30. All users of the karaoke rooms must have evidence of thelr room hire on thelr food bill as
sultable evidenca of food purchase,



Page 66

31. All doors and windows shall be closed during regulated entertalnment or, when
entertalnment Is not provided, after 23:00hrs each night (except for Ingress and egress).

32, A direct contact number for the duty manager shall be made avallable to resldents living in
the vicinity .of the premises on request.

33, The use of external areas shall be restricted to 10:00hrs - 23:00hrs each day. After this

time, customers shall only be permitted at the front of the property, fronting onto Barblcan
Road, for the purpose of smoking.

35, A detalled nolse management plan shall be devised prior to the premises operating. The
plan should be submitted and agread by the local licensing authority to thelr reasonable
satlsfaction prior to its implementation, 1t shall show how nearby resdential properties will be
protected from nalse generated at the premises, The agreed noise management plan shall be
implemented at all times during regulated entertalnmait,

Annex 4 - Approved Plan - plan Number BR.(16)/01

For and on behalf of Date: 28/09/2005

The Director of Communities 25/06/2015 (Transfer and DPS Varlation)
& Neighbourhoods

Licensing Servicas Phone: 01904 552512

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Emall: licensing.unit@york,gov.uk

York

Y010 3DS Website: www.yark.gov.uk/licensing



Page 67

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT '
Copy of Application to Vary the Designated Premises Supervigor at The
REGENCY, 2-4 George Hudson Street, YORK, YO1 6LP

This is the Exhlbit HLS/2 referred to in the statement of Helen Louise SEFTON, dated
3 February 2020.



Page 68

HELS f? L sl
PP v o CITY OF YORK COUNGIL
YOR K Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Street, York, Y010
couNCil 308

Appllcation to vary a premises llcancs to speclfy an Individual as deslgnated
promlses supervisor under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guldance notes at tha end of the forim.
If you are comipleling this form by hand please write lagibly in block capitals, In all

cases ansure that your answers are inslde the boxes and wriltan In black Ink. Use

additional sheets if necessary.

You may wish lo keep a copy of the completed form for your racords.

Uwe JTHONG LE CWENS
(full nama(s) of premises llcence holder)

being the premises licance holder, apply to vary a premises licence to specify

the Individual named In this application as the pramisas supervisor under
seclion 37 of the Licensing Act 2003

Premlses liconce number

[CNC-Oemy — —

Part1-Premises detalls B
Postal address of pramises or, [f none, ordriance survey map raferance or
descriptlon

Recency
20-L GecRge  HUDXN  STREET,

Post town a— [ Post code (if known)
NORK Nol 6LP

“Description of premises (pléase read guidance nole N o

CHINESE RESTAURANIT %  SUPERNARKET




Page 69

Part 2

Full name of proposed designatod pramisos supervisor T

Natlonallty
CHINESE

Place of birth
CHINA

Date of biii | .

] Piaéé6}@"E'Iéanoa'}'mrhbor'Eiri:bbia'd*de‘éigriéfad’fré&lsas supervisorand

issuing authorlty of that llcence (If anH

Full name of existing des|gnatod promises supervisor (ifany) |

—ZHONG LE CHEN

Pleasa tick yos

| would lika this application to have Immedinte sffect under &
sectlon 38 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidance note 2)
I have enclosed the premises flcence or relevant part of it g

(If you have not enclosed the premises lIcence, or relevant part of It, please glve
reasons why not)

Reasons why | have falled 16 encloss i premises liconce of relevant part of ii

~ Please tick yes
| have made or enclosed payment of the fee

¥ 1 will give & copy of thls application lo the chief oificor of polica
(Please read Guidance nole 3)

* | have enclesed the consent form compleled by the proposed premlses
supervisor

bd
A
* Thave'enclosed the promises licence, or relevant part of |t or explanation Ef

* | will nolify the existing promises supervisor (if any) of this application
(Please raad guldance note 4)

* lunderstand that If | do not comply with the above réquirements my v
application will be rejected

&

See detalls of Lieenslng Act 2003 statutory fees:
2

gww.vnrkgj(w.ukJLlcunulngl\clzoﬂasmlumw_ﬁg;ﬁ




Page 70

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 168 OF THE LICE

R
RECKLESSLY MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN - ATION.
THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A
FINE OF ANY AMOUNT,

IT 18 AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 248 OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1871 FOR A PERSON TO
WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION BTATUS.

THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT A VALID LEAVE TO ENT
UK OR AN ADULT WHO |18 BUBJECT TO CONDITIONS WHIGH WOULD /
PERSON FROM TAKING UP EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIWVIL. PENALTY UNDER
SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND, PURSUANT
TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME'ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO
SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE S DISQUALIFIED BY VIRTUE . A ]

E

Part 3 - Slgnatures (please read guidance note 5)

Bignature of applicant or applicant's sollcltor or other duly authorised agent

(See guidance note 6), I€ slgning on behalf of the applicant please state In what
capacity.

Slgnature e

R EER A ay

oo 95 lolama

---------------------- R A T LN e T T T LT T T e

G DANAGER

SRERE N rr e P TR RVIRRN P €001 vy 1 LSRR e A e s e a e e

For Jolnt applicants signature of 2" applicant 2" applicant's sollcltor or other
authorlsed agent (please read guldance note 7). If signing on behalf of the
applicant please state in what capacity,

Signature

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Capacity

Bikdaavay A R L R R P R T R P TR IIN



Page 71

Contacl namo {where not pravlouaiy glvon} and posm ddress for

ROLELGAGHS Golista | \PIURGE read guldance note 8)

| REGENCN™
o CEORAE ,,HLil{){'jch STREET

Post t - s - -
o °“‘ﬁo‘{1\& - A 6 "
 Telaphona homber (Ifﬂny}' Tl P T P——

fyou would profer us 1o correspond wlm vou by e-mn!! your a-mall addioss |
(aptlonal)




Page 72

YORK Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDapot, James Streat, York, Y010
3ps :

COURE|

Cansent of Indlvidual to belng specified as premises supervisor

.-'{;.r.h: neme of prospective premises suporvisor]

of

e oeldeoss of prospuctive premises supsnisor

hereby conflrm that | glve my consent to be specliied as the designated premises
supervisor in relation to the application for

AR CATION . To. NARM . DR

{typs of applioation] T T
by
{name of applivent)
e B
relating to & premises livence CNC -08s2a370 |
[numbor of existing licence, if any]
for

SEQENCN . 21 GEORAE. HUDSE) BTRECT, YORK,

fname and sddiross of premisas to which the application relates] UM A



Page 73

Guldance notes

——

1
2,

8.

il
+ Describe the premises. For example (ho lype of prermilges It |s,

An application to vary the premise

3,8

Suparvisar may be givon immet ST eara 5o neme hea

recelved by the licensing authority) If the premises licence hajder requests Il at the time
he makes an application under Section 37. Seclion 38 enables the holder of a
premisos licence to conllnue the supply of aleahol If, for example, the existing premises
supavisor Is suddenly Indisposed or unable to work, If the application Is rejacted, the
lieence reverts to tha form it look beforo the application was made,

Atull copy of the application form must be sont to the chlof officel(s) of poliee for tha
police area(s) in which (he pramises are situstod. The notloe should stale Whather
section 38 of thal Act (circumstances I which seclion 37 application glven Interirn
affect) applies to e applicalion,

Section 37(4)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the premises licence holder to
notify the exisling designated premises supervisor (i any) about this applicatian, |l is
sulficlent for the licenses Lo (nform the existing pramises supeivisor In wriling, without
the need 1o share the Specific detulls of the application, Tha notice should slale
whether section 38 of that Act (cireumstances In which section 37 application glven
Interim effact) applies to he application,

The appllication form must be signed, c
An-applicant's agont (for examplo selicitor) may sign the form on thelr behalf provided
that thay have actual authority to da so,

Where Ihare Is more than one applicant, both applicants or thelr tespective agents
fust sign the applicatlon form, ‘

This Is the address which ve shall uge 10 correspond with you about this applicatjon.



Page 74

and any premises licence to be granted or varlad In respect of this appllcation made by

concserning the supply of elcohol at

\C
L6

DEOENCL, QK. GECRAC. HUON, SRATAOR
el

[name and address af premises 1o which application relates)
| also confirm that | am entitled to work in the Unlited Kingdom and am applylng for,

Intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, detalls of which | set out
below,

Personal llcence number

{insert paraonal licence number, If any}

Personal licence issuing authotity

LHEEDS QT COUNCIL. .

cassreannme ane L L L LIz T

finaert name and address and felephione numbar of petsonal ficence lssuing authorlly, if any]

Slghed

o (psese prn) o | Eal—

Deto a5 o] 19



Page 75

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT
Copy of Letter dated 28 November 2019

This Is the Exhiblt HLS/3 referred to in the statement of Helen Louise SEFTON, dated
3 February 2020.

i



Page 76

CITY OF

Economy and Place

COUNCIL Eco Depot

s,

Hazel Court
York
YO10 3D8
Mr Zhong Le Chen
21a Blake Street Tel: 01804 552422
York E-mall:  licensin rk.gov.uk
YO1 8QU e

Ask for:  Helen Sefton
Qurref:  cyc 63037

Delivered by hand 28 November 2019

Dear Sir

Licensing Act 2003
The Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York

| am writing to you as the premises licence holder at the above address
and further to receipt of an application to vary the Desighated Premises
Supervisor (DPS) mads In accordance with Section 37 of the above Act.

My oolleague Mr Woodhead wrote to you on 13 November 2019 to
advise that we were not in a position to proceed with this application.
Furthermore the Licensing Authority has not recelved the original
premises licence as required by Section 37 (3), (b) of the Act.

| would like to speak to both you and your proposed new DPS Mglllp
*about this application. We have made attempts to call and

email you in addition to the hand delivered letters but so far no contact
has been made. You are therefore invited to attend an informal interview

at the City of York Council Hazel Court, Eco Depot, James Street, York,
YO10 3DS.

! would be grateful If you could contact me on 01904 552422 or via the
email address above to arrange a mutually beneficial date for that
Interview. If | do not hear from you within 14 days we will be following this
up by making visits to the premises to resolve this matter.

Yours sincerely

Helen Sefton
Senior Licensing Officer

www.york.gov.uk
Director: Neil Ferris RS LS, Public Protection



Page 77

Canwvin:
“p, Wy

¢ North Yorkshire Police Licensing Team, via emall

* MrZhong Le Chen, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP
R SR



Page 78

Appilication fo review’é&f a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 2

A statement from Nigel Woodhead, Licensing Enforcement Officer



Page 79

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION EQOR A REVIEW-OF-A-PREMIGES

LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

WITNESS STATEMENT OF Nigel Philip Woodhead

[, Nigel Philip Woodhead the Licence Enforcement Officer of City of York
Council, Eco Depot, Hazel Count, York, make this statement in support of an
application by The Councll Of The City Of York for a review of a premises

licence, namely Regency Restaurant, George Hudson Street, York and
Regency Restaurant, Barbican Road, York

1. ldeclare that the contents of this my statement are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and bellef. | make this statement In the knowledge
that it will be used in premises licence review proceedings.

2. I make this statement based upon the records held by the Council. The
information provided in this witness statement Is within my own

knowledge, unless expressly stated otherwise.
3.

| 'am the Licence Enforcement Officer for the City of York Council and part of
my duties are to enforce all legislation with premises licensed by this authority
under the Licensing Act 2003.

Inthe su‘mmer of 2019 | was asked by the Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton
to assist in a multi agency visit to two premises in York by the name of Regency.
About 16.30hrs on Friday 6% September 2019 | attended a briefing at Fulford
Road Police Station, In attendance were officers from North Yorkshire Police,

HMRC, Home Office Immigration Enforcement, The Gangmasters and Labour



Page 80

Abtse-Authority-North-Yorkshire-Fire-Authority OfficersCy oY ork Couneh

Housing-Enforcemment officers and-saverat IeTpreters.,

About 18.00hrs the same day | attended at the Regency Restaurant and
Supermarket at 2-4 George Hudson Street, York. Also In attendance were
officers from HMRC, Immigration and North Yorkshire Police. Two Interpreters
waere also in attendance. Once inslde the premise | spoke to the female
manager named as YAN FENG. Ms FENG also goes by the name of 'Tina'.
The Premise Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premise Supervisor (DPS)
ZHONG LE CHEN was not present.

| took 'Tina' to a table to go through the condlitions on the Premise Licence.
Whilst speaking to her she was constantly fooking around and trying to use her
mobile phone and told not to by the police as well as looking at a CCTV monitor
which showed various areas of the premises. Several breaches of the
conditions were identified as follows with the number of the condition appearing
in brackets

(2)The CCTV was displaying wrong time and date

(8) Yan Feng is the only person who can download footage

(7) There is no documented staff training

(9) There Is no incident boolk/refusals register

(16) No notices asking the public to leave quistly

Throughout my dealings with her she was very un co-operative and wouldn't
say much to me. She was then spoken to by Immigration and HMRC.

I can pfoduce a copy of Part A of the premise licence as an exhibit marked

NPW/1,



Page 81

I'then walked round the premises including going into the lii8Ment under the

supermarkel part of the pretses whore Lsaw-thattwo-potice officors-trr oyt

several suitcases containing fem* clothing along with paperwork that
appeared to be in Chinese and also unsigned letters from the University of York.
About 19.30hrs | was then called to the Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road,
York whére I met up with my colleagues, Lesley COOKE (Licensing Manager)
and Helen SEFTON. | noted near the entrance to the premises from th&r
park there was a blocked draln which was overflowing with fowl water and
grease. | went up onto the first floor where the karaoke rooms were and found
a strong smel| of ciga%:@mqking a8 well as used cigarettes and ash in a
basin on the floor of the gent's toilet. There were also sets of dice and dice
shakers in each karaoke room.

I went ipto the kitchen where the fire alarm was being tested and noted that
there was a large amount of water on the floor which was flowing out of the
bottom of a kitchen unit.

Kevin CAULFIELD from North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue service was testing

the alarm with a Chinese male I now know to be the Manager ~
whose real name Is — The Fire Officer informed us that due

to a defect on the fire alarm system he would be isollB"8 prohibition notice
which would prohibit any persons from sleeping on the premises.

About 11.15hrs on Thursday 24" Qctober 2019 In company with the North
Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer Pc Kim HOLLIS we attended at The Regency

Restaurant on George Hudson Street, York for the purpose of carrying out a

routine inspection, The manager YAN FENG was not present and nelth@igas

the PLH and DPS ZHONG LE CHEN. WE spoke to another female who gave



Page 82

her name as @ She said that she was In charge and on going through

the-eenditions-of-ficence-it-wasToted-thatthe S Coramons Wars being
breached as of my 6" September visit. Ms.said that did not know how to work
the CCTV system. As a result of the Inspaction Pc HOLLIS issued the premises
with a Section 18, Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 closure notice giving
the premises seven days 1o rectify the breaches. This was clearly explained to
Ms @and she signed the notice.

About 12.10hrs the same day again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at the
Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road, York, again to carry out a routine
Inspection. We spoke with the manager (i P The PLH and DPS
ZHONG LE CHEN was not present. it was seen when the top floor of the
premises were checked that saveral males were resldent in bedrooms who
appeared to be of Eastern European descent. Detalls of the males were
obtained by Pc HOLLIS. They stated that they were not employed by the
restaurant. On checking the karaoke rooms the dice and dice shakers were still
in situ. Several breaches of the licence conditions were noted including the fact

thaMas not connected, no staff paper records, no incident/refusals

book and no notices asking for customerstises quietly. Pc
HOLLIS then issued (iJfJJ§ with a Section 19, Griminal Justice and Police Act

2001 closure notice giving the premises seven days to rectify the breaches
which he duly signed.

At 10.30hrs on Thursday 31% October again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at
The Regency Restaurant on George Hudson Street where we again spoke with
@D \ciher YAN FENG or PLH and DPS ZHONG LE CHEN were

present. All the condition breaches had been rectified apart from the fact that



Page 83

the CCTV system Wﬁﬂwwmmdm

were a ﬁfn iSSLl i i " nad Dol bl Dk

o A
ATV WL ZUNTT

notice by Pc HOLLIS glving them another seven days to rectify the CCTV fault.
About 12.15hrs the same day again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at the
Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road where we spoke with -

-lt was noted that all the licence conditions were now being applied with

and the Section 18, Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 notice was lifted.
On Monday 4" November 2019 the Licensing office recelved an Application to
vary a premises licence to specify an indlvidual as designated premises
supervisor under the Licensing Act 2003. The application was in the name of
Zhong Le Chen and was for the Regency premises at 2-4 George Hudson
Street, York, YO1 6LP.

The new DPS who had signed the necessary consent form was to be a (il

. o : P - - - ooona
licence (NG '<:cd by Leeds City Council,

The application was copled and sent to the North Yorkshire Licensing Office at

Fulford Road, York.

As a result of information then received | wrote a letter to ZHONG LE CHEN

stating ;hat we couldn't accept the application over problems with -
- right to work in this country. This was hand delivered to both 2-

4 George Hudson Street and the PLH address at 21a Blake Street, York, YO1

8Q4J. | can produce a copy of this letter as NPW/2

I BELIEVE THAT THE FACTS STATED IN THIS WITNESS STATEMENT
ARE TRUE.



Page 84

Signed

Dated 2 January 2020

#2400
1RE
QRS TR e Q-

-8



Page 85

INTHE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

=

EXHIBIT
Copy of Premise Licance for Regency Restaurant, 2-4 George Hudson
Street, York

This Is the Exhlbit NPW/1 referred to in the statement of Nigel Philip
Woodhead, dated 2™ January 2020.



Page 86

COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE
Schedule 12

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 24:00

Part A

Premises Iicen_ce number
Part 1 Premises details _ cye - 0539?12 .
Postal address of premises: - - -
2-4 George Hudson Street
York
Post town; York Post code: YO1 6LP
Telephone number: 01904 623656
Expiry date: This licence has no expliry date.
Licensable activities authorised by the licence: o -
Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol
RECQRDED MUSIC
Indoors’
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday




Page 87

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indoors

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 24:00

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 24:00

The Opening Hours of the Premises o -

OPENING HOURS

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

23:00 - 03:30 23:00 ~ 03:30 10:00 - 24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these

supplies:

On and off the premise

Part 2

Name,_ (re_gi-sterad_)"adil;esg, tél_a:l;t;le number and email (whére re_le_v‘a'rit) of holder

of premise licence:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address; 21a Blake Street
York
Y01 8QJ

Telephone number: 07477030338

Emall address: service@ukregency.com

are on and/or off




Page 88

premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 21a Blake Street
York
YO1 8Q)

Telephone number: 01757 705101

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licance authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Selby Distrlct Councll
LN/000006043

Annex 1 — Mandatotry conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. 1In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(a) at a time where there is no deslgnated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
{lcence, or

(b) at a time when the deslgnated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
persanal licence fs suspended,

3. The second condltion Is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person wha holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any Irresponsible promotions In relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an Irresponslble promotion means any one or more of the following
actlvitles, or substantially simllar actlvities, carrled on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises —

(a) games or other actlvitles which require or encourage, or are designed to requlire or
encourage Individuals to - ,

(1) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorlsed to sell or supply alcohal), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwlse);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohal free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic In a manner which carrles
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less In @ manner
which carries a significant rlsk of undermining a licensing objective;




Page 89

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in assoclation with promotional posters or flyers on, or In the

vicinlty of, the premlses which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorlse anti-soclal behavlour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness In any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person Into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person Is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water Is provided on request to
customers where It [s reasonably avallable,

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification paolicy Is adopted In respect of the premises In relatlon to the sale or supply of
alcahol,

(2) The deslgnated premises supervisor In relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carrled on In accordance with the age verification
policy.

(3) The policy must require indlviduals who appear to the responsible persan to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to praduce on request,
before being served alcohal, identlficatlon bearing their photograph, date of birth and either —
(a) a holographic mark, or
(h) an ultraviolat feature.

7. The responsible person must ensure that -
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks Is sald or supplled for consumption on the
premises (other than alcohalic drinks sald or supplied having been made up In advance ready

for sale or supply in a securely closed contalner) It is available to customers In the following
measures -

(i) beer or cider: ¥z pint;

(1) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25m! or 35ml; and

(1) stlll wine in a glass; 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed Iin a menu, price Iist or other printed material which is
avallable to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumptlon on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out In paragraph 1 -
(a) “duty”Is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979,

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applylng the formula — P = D + (D x V)
where -

(1) P is the permitted price,

(i) D Is the rate of duty chargeable In relatlon to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(1) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable In relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

() “relevant person” means, In relation to premises In respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(1) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) In respect of such a licence, or

(Hi)- the personal-licence -holder-who ‘makes-or authorises a-supply of aleshel under such a
licence;



Page 90

(_d_)lre[ _.'l _______ mean nrelation to premises in respect of v nere nforce g b,
premises certificate, any member or offlcer of the club present on the premises in a capacity

which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax" means value added tax charged In accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994,

3. Where the permltted price glven by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (aparl from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennles, the price glven by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually glven by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applles where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day ("the first day”) would be different from the permitted price

on the next day (“the second day") as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value

added tax,

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplles of

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

MANDATORY CONDITION: DOOR SUPERVISION

1. In accordance with sectlon 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Vliolent
Crime Reductlon Act 2006), where a premises licence Includes a condition that at specified
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a securlty actlvity, the
licence must include a conditlon that each such individual must -

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Securlty
Industry Act 2001; or

{(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

2, But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be Imposed -

(a) In respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Securlty
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or

(b) In respect of premises in relation to -

(i) any occasion mentloned in paragraph 8 (3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certlficate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays ot fllms or under a gaming licence, or

(li) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act).

3. For the purposes of this section -

(a) "security actlvity" means an actlvity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that Act), and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (Interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as It
applles In relatlon to paragraph B of that Schedule.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. A colour digital CCTV system shall be installed within the premises and be operational and
recording at all times when licensable activities take place.,



Page 91

2, The CCTV equipment shall have constant time/date generation which must be checked on a

0Ty BaslE Tor aeclracy.

3. CCTV cameras shall be Installed to provide adequate cover of ali public areas in the
premises (excluding tollets).

4, The CCTV system must be capable of providing quality Images of good evidentlal value.
Recordings must be kept for a minimum of 28 days.

5. North Yorkshire Pollce or a Responsible Authority (as defined in the Licensing Act 2003)

may at any time request a recording. This should be complied with within 24 hours of the
request being made.

6. It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficlent members of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able ta download evidence from the CCTV
systemn at the request of the police or responsible authority.

7. A docurnented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the
premises In respect of the:-

a) retail sale of alcohol;

b) age verification policy;

€) conditions attached to the Premises Licence;
d) permitted licensable activities;

e) the licensing objectives; and

f) opening times for the venue.

with such records belng kepl for @ minlmum of one yeai, [For the avoidance of doubt, the one

ycar period rojates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that
particular entry].

8. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 policy for the sale of alcohol.

9. Anincldent book / refusals register will be kept at the premises and made available on
request to an authorised officer or the police which will record the following:-

a) all alcohol related crimes reported to the venue

b) any complaints received regarding alcohol related crime and disorder
c) any faults in the CCTV system

d) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

10. Alcohalic drinks purchased on the premises may only be taken off the premises In sealed
containers,

11. All alcahol on sales will be ancillary to a meal, sold by waitress service and for seated
consumption only,

12. The restaurant section of the premises will be securely dividable from the Supermarket
area when the Supermarket is not In use. The restaurant wlll be lald out with seating and
tables to accommodate a minimum of 40 seated patrons at any one time.

13. There shall be a minimum of one door supervisor on duty at the restaurant premlses from
23:00hrs-to-close-of-business at all times-when-open-to-the-public-8-undertaking-licensable
activity beyond 01:00hrs.



Page 92

14. Where door supervisors are on duty they shall sign in and out of the premises log baok,

providing full details of thelr name and SIA number,
15. The Deslgnated Premises Supervisor shall be responsible for risk assessing the need for
additlonal door staff at the venue on days of Yark Races, on Fridays, Saturdays or bank
holldays or other locally or nationally significant events.

Public Nuisance

16. Prominent, clear and legible notices wlll be displayed at the exlt requesting the public to
respect the needs of nearby residents and to leave the premises and area quletly.

17, Deliverles of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a
time or in such a manner as to prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents,

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

No hearing held

Annex 4 - Approved Plan

Plan Number Endorsed on the 12/08/2015

For and on behalf of Date: 10/09/2015
The Director of Communities
& Nelghbourhoods

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552512

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Emall: licensing.unit@york.gov,uk
York Webslte: www, york.gov.uk/licensing

Y010 3DS



Page 93

INTHE MER-WMGN-FGR-A—REWEWWWSES

LICENCE
THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT .
Copy of letter sent to DPS ZHONG LE CHEN at 21a Blake Street, York

This is the Exhlbit NPW/2 refsrred to in the statement of Nigel Phillp
Woodhead, dated 2" January 2020.

oS



Page 94

Economy & Place

Hazel Court EcoDepot
James Street

York
Y010 3DS
Mr Zhong Le CHEN Tel: 01904 552422
21a Blake Street Fax: 01904 551590
York Email: licensing @york.gov.uk
YO18QJ
13" November 2019
Dear Mr Chen

Licensing Act 2003
Application for Variation of Designated Premise Supervisor
Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP

| am writing to you today to inform you that we cannot proceed with the proposed variation to
your Desighated Premise Supervisor at the above premises to . It has been
brought to our attention by the relevant Authorities that M doss not have the right to
work in this country and therefare his Personal Licence to supply alcohol is not valid, this

having lapsed at the time that his right to work ended or at the time that Schedule 4 of the
Immigration Act 2016 came into force.

In order to proceed we will have to receive another application and until we do you will be
remaining as the Designated Premise Supervisor unless we hear to the contrary.

Further investigations will need to be made into this matter and it may well be that we will
have to formally interview you with regard to the checks that you make on your employees

Yours sincerely

Nigel Woodhead
Licence Enforcement Officer
City of York Council

Director: Nell Ferrls www.york.gev.uk

ﬂ“""“‘"“'“"



Page 95

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 3

A statement from Glynn Jones, Immigration Officer at the Home Office



Page 96

Government Security Classification OFFIGIAL SENSITIVE
Appraved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

=2

WITNESS STATEMENT

Crmmmtnmmmmmr. s. Jj Magistrates' Courts Act 1980, 8.58

URN |GRJ Ieeﬁsﬂﬁﬁuozd l 1 ‘
Statement of: Glynn Ronald JONES Pl el I
Age If under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 Insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 2 (twé) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the besl of my knowledge and
beliel and | make L knowlng (hal, If it Is tendered In evidence, | shall be llable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in It anything whicly | know to be false, or do not belleve to be true,

SIgNature: i e nereceninianns, e e nesseon (WItHESS)  Date: 07/01/2020

Tam the person named above and I am employed by the Flome Office as an Imimigration Officer. I am currently a member
of the Arrest” Tenm Yorkshire & Humberside ICE (YHICE) based st Waterside Court, Kirkstall Road, Lecds LS4 2QB I
have been employed by the Home Office since October 2003, My position as an IMMIGRATION OFFICER grants me

access to information held on Home Oftice systesms that stores delails of enforcement visits conducted by YHICE and the

numbers of arrested persons and (heir nationalities from each of those visits,

On 10" DECEMBER 2019, T was requested to provide a summary of YHICE visits conducted to both the REGENCY, 16
BARBICAN ROAD, YORK YOI0 5AA and the REGENCY, 2-4 GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YO1 6LP in
terms of breaches of the IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 (AS AMENDED), as part of on-

businesses,

going enquiries info the two

HOME OFFICE records show YHICE have conducted FIVE enforcement visits to the REGENCY, 16 BARBICAN
ROAD, YORK YO10 5AA which are recorded below,

1). 7% JUNE 2014 - 2 Chinese nationals amrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING, and 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (CLANDLESTINE)
(initially provided false deteils and later found to have been previously served as an ILLEGAL ENMTRANT
(CLANDESTINE)).

2). 21" MAY 2017 — 1 Chinese national arrested for WORKING TN BREACH (held extant leave with no permission to
work),

3), 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 — 6 Cliincse nationals arrested; 4 for OVERSTAYING their leave, and 2 for ILLEGAL ENTRY
(ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE),

4). 16" MARCH 2018 - No arrcsts were made, all staff present had permission to live and work i in the United Kingdom,

5). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 -- 3 Chinese nationals arrestcd 1 for OVERSTAYING thelr leave, | for WORKING IN
BREACH (held extunt leave with no permission to work) gnd 1 as & PERSON LIABLE TO DETENTION (previously
REFUSED LEAVE TO ENTER but granted temporary admission/bail at port following an application for leave to remain,
and subsequently failed to appear for an interview to progress their application),

Signaturediye ivaiaiisnii o SIgNature withesseg by: ..............,

[ 2014 | { Gavernment Securlty Classification OFFIGIAL SENsﬁiin?|




Page 97

L&o;arn;nen_t_Seourlty Classlfication OFFICIAL SENSITIVE 1 [ wert |

Approved for Immigration Enforranient use — April 2014

Similatly, HOME OFFICL records show YHICE have copducted THRER enforcement vigits to the REGENCY. 2-4

GEORGL IHUDSON STREET, YORK Y01 6LP which are recorded.below.

1). 7% APRIL 2017 ~ 1 Ch.iuesc tntional arrested for ILLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).

2). 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 1 Chincsc national arrcsted for WORKING IN BREACH (held ealanl leave with no
pemission to work) )

3). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 - 4 Chinesc nationals arrested; 1 for WORKING IN BREACI! (hekd extant leave with no
“permission to work), 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (VERRBAT. NECRPTION) by pro‘fid.ing informalion {0 an Entcy Clearance
Officer which was later fourid not to be true, which, if it had heen dinclosa‘d at the tiine of the upplié‘ation would have led to
the entey olearance being refused, 1 for JLLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE), and 1 for being » PERSON
LIABLE TOQ DETENTION (previously served oy un ILLEGAL ENTRANT {ENTRY WITIIOUT LEAVE) and failed to
adhete to (hoir bail conditions by failing to report to the Home Office, and warking withowl penmigsion).

This witness statement was made and completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 7% JANUARY 2020 at 14:15 hrs,

Signature!.......ocvien e s Signature witnessed by: .........

R L P L E L TR T PR T PR T VPP U POy

E2N Government Securlty Classification OFFIGIAL SENSITIVE




Page 98

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 4

A copy of the summonses relating to Food Safety and Hygiene Offences



Page 99

SUMMONS

IN THE COUNTY OF NORTH YORKSHIRE

YORK MAGISTRATES COURT
The Law Courls, Clifford Street, York, YO1 9RE

01904 818300
CODE: 2541
ACCUSED: China Regency Ltd
Co. NUMBER: 10961793
ADDRESS: 16 Barbican Road
York
Y010 5AA

You are hereby summonsed to appear on 14 August 2018 at 10am before the
Magistrates' Court at The Law Couirls, Clifford Street, York, to answer the following
information:

ALLEGED OFFENCE:

Count 1

Thal you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, In the City of York being a food business operator did fail to comply with a
Community provision, namely to keep food premises clean and maintained in good repalr
and condition, conlrary to Annex Il Chapter | Paragraph | and Article 4(2) of Regulation
(EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England)

Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under secfion 2(2) of the European Communities
Act 1972

Count 2

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barblcan Road, in the City of York being a food business operator did fall to comply with a
Community Provision, namely to provide washbasins with materials for cleaning hands
and hyglenic drying, contrary to Annex |l Chapter 1 Paragraph 4 and Article 4(2) of
Regulation (EC) No 862/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hyglene

(England) Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European
Communitles Act 1972

Count 3

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the City of York belng & food business operator you failed to comply
with a Communlty provision, namely to effectively clean and disinfect all articles, fittings
and equipment with which food comes Into contact, contrary to Annex il Chapter V
Paragraph 1(a) and Article 4(2) of Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the

VWA/LCNI.622 (1187034)




Page 100

made under section 2(2) of the

Europsan Communities Act 1972

PROSECUTOR: Andrew Docherty, Assistant Director Legal & Governance
on hehalf City of York Council

ADDRESS: Legal Services, West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

DATE OF INFORMATION: 22 June 2018

-

élé?li“hbuauw.;}du;sﬂ ' patFREPEace

L 28 JUN 2018

VWA/LCNI.622 (1187034)



Page 101

SUMMONS

IN THE COUNTY OF NORTH YORKSHIRE

YORK MAGISTRATES COURT
The Law Courts, Clifford Street, York, YO1 SRE
01904 818300

CODE: 2541
ACCUSED: Xlu Lan Chen

DATE OF BIRTH: 16 August 1976

ADDRESS: 16 Barbican Road
York
Y010 5AA

You are hersby summonsed to appear on 14 August 2018 at 10am before the
Magistrates' Court at The Law Courts, Clifford Street, York, to answer the following
informatlon:

ALLEGED OFFENCE:

Count 1

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the Cily of York being a food business operator did fall to comply with a
Community provision, namely to keep food premises clean and maintained in good repair
and condition, contrary to Annex Il Chapter | Paragraph | and Article 4(2) of Regulation
(EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England)
Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European Communities
Act 1972 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency Limited, and the said
offence was commitied with your consent or connivance or is attributable to your neglect,
contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hyglene (England) Regulations 2013

Count 2

That you belween 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the Clty of York being a food business operator did fail to comply with a
Community Provision, namely to provide washbasins with materials for cleaning hands
and hygienic drying, contrary to Annex || Chapter 1 Paragraph 4 and Ardicle 4(2) of
Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene
(England) Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European
Communities Act 1972 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency Limited, and
the said offence was commilted with your consent or connivance or is attributable to your

neglect, contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations
2013

VWA/LCNL.622 (1187038)



Page 102

Count$

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16

sarbican Road, in the City of York being a food business operator you failed to comply
with a Community provision, namely to effectively clean and disinfect all articles, fittings
and equipment with which food comes into contact, contrary to Annex Il Chapter V
Paragraph I(a) and Article 4(2) of Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the
Food Safety and Hyglene (England) Regulations 2013 made under section 2(2) of the
European Communities Act 1972 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency
Limited, and the said offence was commifted with your consent or connivance or is

attributable to your neglect, contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hyglene
(England) Regulations 2013

PROSECUTOR: Andrew Docherty, Assistant Director Legal & Governance
on behalf City of York Councll
ADDRESS: Legal Services, West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

DATE OF INFORMATION: 22 June 2018

5
DATE: 28 JUN 2018 (

VWA/LCNY,622 (1187038)



Page 103

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certlificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appeondix 5

A copy of the signed simple cautlon relating to the sale of the knife to a person under
the age of elghteen



Page 104

Public Protection

Enas Do &

York Y010 3DSl

COUNCIL Telephone: 01804 551546

T —

CASE REFERENCE: 2628 /9

SIMPLE CAUTION (COMPANY)

COMPANY NAME: York Regency Associates Ltd.

COMPANY REGISTERED ADDRESS: 4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP

COMPANY REGISTERED NO: 09197841
DATE of OFFENCE(S): 18 July 2017

PLACE of OFFENCE(S}: In the City of York

BRIEF CIRCUMSTANCES of OFFENGCE(S)

That you on 18 July 2017 in the City of York sold to a person under the age of eighteen an article,
namely a knife, contrary to section 141A of the Criminal Justice Act 1988,

PLEASE READ THE 'NOTES AND DECLARATION AND MAKE SURE YOU UNDERSTAND IT BEFORE YOU SIGN.

DECLARATION
[ have read and understand ail this information.
| hereby declare that| ,, Tmag ek __yam authorised by the Company?

to admit the offence(s) described above and agree to accept a Caution in this case. | understand that
a record will be kept of this caution and that it may Influence a declsion to institute proceedings should
the Company be found to be infringing the law in the future. | further understand that this Caution may
be cited should the Company subsequently be found guilty of an offence by a Court of Law. 1 also
understand that in some circumstances the Company may be under a duty to disclose the existence of
this Caution.

NAME (Block capitals) , {(¢/lct { (:f':‘,-L;_(; . SIGNED: ,°
POSITION WITH THE COMPANY , /(77,292

DATED THIS , (9  DAYof, ({ 2007

AFTER A SIGNATURE HAS BEEN ADDED ABOVE, AN OFFICER OF CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
WILL COUNTERSIGN AND RETURN A COPY.

NAME (Block capitals) MATTHEW BOXALL SIGNED: (———

DESIGNATION Acting Head of Public Protection

DATED THIS 23X . DAYof . 20 17

! SEE NOTES OVERLEAF
2 ONLY DIRECTORS/AUTHORISED OFFIGERS OF THE COMPANY MAY SIGN



NOTES:

Page 105

The Campany admits to committing the offence(s) shown above. A simple caution
is not a criminal conviction, but | understand that details of the caution may be kept
on-any-national.convictions-databasas.

If new evidence comes ta light suggesting that the offence(s) the Company has
committed are more serious, you might still take legal action against the Company.

If there are any victims as a result of these offences, they might still take civil action

against the company and you might give the name and address of the Company's
registered office to the victims so they can do this.

If the Company is chargéd with another offence and we go to court, you will tell the
court that the company has received this simple caution.

it the Company applies for certain licences connected with the business, e.g. under
the Consumer Credit Act 1974 or Licensing Act 2003, this caution may be taken
into account in any decision whether to issue any licenc :

| also understand that in some circumstances the Company may be under a duty to
disclose the existence of this Caution.



CITY OF

Page 106

| Economy and Place Directorate
{

COUNCIL

| Eco Depot
| Hazel Court

For the addressee only
Yantong Feng

3 Lincomhe Bank
Leeds

LS8 1QG

Dear Yantong Feng

| Tork YO0 3D5

Tel: 01904 551598

Email; jane.aird@york.gov.uk
Our ref: 2629

Date: 21 November 2017

Simple Caution - Sale of a Knife to a Minor

Public Protection has received a signed caution in relation to the sale of
a knife to a minor. | have noted that the caution has been signed by Tina
Feng (please see the copy enclosed), whom | note is not a Director or
Company Secretary of York Regency Associates Ltd. We are happy to
accept the signed caution however we would like to make sure you are

aware of this document.

Please contact me if you wish to discuss this further. If | do not hear from
you | will assume that you are happy for Ms Feng to sign the caution and

it will be processed.

Yours sincerely

Jane Aird

Trading Standards Officer

Corporate Director Economy and Place: Neil Ferris

www.york.gov.uk



N

Page 107

s
Ny CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE

Part 1 Premises details

Schedule 12
Part A

Premises licence number
CYC - 009221

Postal address of premises:

16 Barbican Road

Post town: York

Post code: YO10 5AA

Telephone number: 01904 623134

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Live Music

Recorded Music
Performances of Dance

Activities like music/dance

Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities:

LIVE MUSIC
Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30
Sunday

10:00 - 03:30



RECORDED MUSIC

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Page 108

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

PERFORMANCFS OF DANCF

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30
Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

ACTIVITIES LIKE MUSIC/DANCE

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday

10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

thlrda\‘/

10:00 - 03:30

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indeoors

Monday
23:00 - 03:30

Friday
23:00 - 03:30

Manday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Non Standard Timings for Live Music, Recorded Music, Performances of Dance, Activities like

Tuesday
23:00 - 03:30

Saturday
23:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30
Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Cnnday

10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
23:00 - 03:30

Sunday
23:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Music/Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply of Alcohol:

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New

Year's Day.

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences.

Thursday

10:00 03:

Thursday

10:00 - 03:

Thursday

10:00 - 03:

Thursday

23:00 - 03:

Thursday

10:00 - 03:

30

30

30

30



Page 109

The Opening Hours of the Premises

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00

Non Standard Timings:

From the end of permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New
Year's Day.

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences.

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

On and off the premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of premise licence:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 16 Barbican Road
York

Y010 5AA

Telephone number: None

Email address: None

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 16 Barbican Road
York

YO10 5AA

Telephone number: None

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Selby District Council
LN/000006043




Page 110

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of aicohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by o person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on reievant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcoho! for consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified guantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or disc

—_ -
[
g

ee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which
a significant risk of undermining a iicensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification
policy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either -
(@) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolet feature.



Page 111

7. The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures -

(i) beer or cider: 2 pint;

(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(@) “duty”is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;
(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P =D + (D x V)

where -
(i) Pis the permitted price,
(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and
(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;
(c) T“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -
(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or
(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;
(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and
(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day"”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.



Page 112

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. CCTV recordings will include, as a minimum, a head and shoulders image of each individual
who enters the premises through the main entrance.

Piotection of Children from |larm

hall A DY fole} lEmvs 1
2. o H v\ rat!on ot +hao r\vem!cne v-nrllllr ]

I~ o 0 i R
\. o Slluq bC a \.;llclll\_ny\_ ol (ALY n AL v oo Ty uini ing a.".‘,’ I.".dl‘.’ldua!

]
who appears to be under the age of 21 to produ e identification to prove that they are over
the age of 18, the sale of alcohol being refused where they are unahle to do so

3. The following forms of identification are acceptable: photocard driving licence, valid
passport, PASS accredited 'Proof of Age Card', any other form of identification previously
agreed with representitives of North Yorkshire Police licensing Unit.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

1. Prior to using the karaoke rooms customers must have consumed a meal in the restaurant,
excluding snacks.

2. Digital colour CCTV will be installed to cover the premises and will include all areas to where
public have access for licensable activi t es and where the public can consume alcehol. Fer the
purpose of ciarity this wiii inciude aili rooms and stairways tu which the public have access for
licensable activities and where the public can consume alcohol.

3. It will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are open.
4, The recordings should be of sufficient quality to be produced in Court or other such hearing.
5. Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28 days.

6. Copies of the recordings will be made available to any Responsible Authority within 48hrs of
request.

7. Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

8. All off sales shall be made in sealed containers save for those that are intended for
consumption within the building.

9. After 24:00hrs the only door used by members of the public to enter the premises shall be
the main door on to Barbican Road.

10. Last public entry to the premises shall be 24:00hrs. For the purpose of clarity no members
of the public will be allowed entry to the premises after 24:00hrs until the close of business
(this does not prevent re-entry to customers who have left the venue to smoke).

11. After 24:00hrs customers who have left the venue to smoke shall be monitored by a Door
Supervisor in a clearly demarked area at the front of the venue which will not block the
footpath.



Page 113

12. Two SIA Door Supervisors shall be provided at the venue from 24:00hrs until the close of
business, with at least one staffing the main door on to Barbican Road.

13. The only acceptable proof of age identification shall be a current passport, photocard
driving licence or identification carrying the PASS logo.

14. Standard one pint capacity, half pint capacity and “high ball tumbler” drinking glasses will
be strengthened glass (tempered glassware) in design whereby in the event of breakage the
glass will fragment and no sharp edges are left.

15. Drinking glasses of any type should not be allowed to enter or leave the premises whilst
under the customers care.

16. Documented staff training will be given regarding the retail sale of alcohol, the conditions
attached to the premises licence and the opening times of the venue.

17. Such training (referred to in Condition 16) will be refreshed and documented every 6
months.

18. Such training records (referred to in Condition 16) should be kept for at least 3 years.

19. Such training records (referred to Condition 16) will be made available for inspection upon
request by any Responsible Authority.

20. A Refusals Register and Incident Report Register will be kept. Such documents will record
incidents of staff refusals to underage or drunk people, as well as incidents of any anti-social
behaviour and ejections from the premises.

21. Both the above documents (referred to in Condition 20) will be kept for at least 3 years.

22. Both the above documents (referred to in Condition 20) will be available for inspection
upon request by any Responsible Authority.

23. Prominent clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting the public to
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

24. So as to ensure the Licensing Objective the prevention of crime and disorder is not
undermined there shall be a maximum capacity of 100 persons of which there shall be no
more that 30 persons on the first floor and no more that 20 persons on the second floor.

25. When the karaoke rooms are being used there shall be at least one member of staff
permanently situated on each floor of the venue on which the room is being used.

26. The member of staff shall monitor the rooms that are in use and will enter each room that
is occupied no less than every 30 minutes.

27. The members of staff situated on the first and second floor shall be in direct radio link with
the Door Staff.

28. All alcohol consumed in the karaoke rooms shall be served by way of waiter/waitress
service.

29. No dancing is to take place on the ground floor of the building at anytime.

30. All users of the karaoke rooms must have evidence of their room hire on their food bill as
suitable evidence of food purchase.



Page 114

31. All doors and windows shall be closed during regulated entertainment or, when
entertainment is not provided, after 23:00hrs each night (except for ingress and egress).

32. A direcl contact number for the duty manager shall be made available to residents living in
the vicinity of the premises on request.

33. The use of external areas shall be
ume, LubLUIHEIb blldll Ullly L)U pelllllt
Road, for the purpose of smaoking.

restri
PR Loal f mv—
[B=V] L 1

~r
~
~
_I

35. A detailed noise management plan shall be devised prior to the premises operating. The
plan should be submitted and agreed by the local licensing authority to their reasonable
satisfaction prior to its implementation. It shall show how nearby residential properties will be
protected from noise generated at the premises. The agreed noise management pian shaii be
implemented at all times during reguiated entertainment.

Annex 4 — Approved Plan - Plan Number BR.(16)/01

For and on behalf of Date: 28/09/2005

The Director of Communities 25/06/2015 (Transfer and DPS Variation)
& Neighbourhoods

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552512

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Email: licensing.unit@york.gov.uk

York

Y010 3DS . Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing




Page 115

/_ ] Car Park

Key To Symbols

(B) o et s e it
[ [
n e
© Fre sn wtarn et
(] Sy o 1
(] 1LUMAATED R P s sign
©  virter et Eoimnher

(OIS LR
[CRETE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Rt 1k \

SECOND FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1
@ m _m Jm  tm

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

SCALE 1100
o m

100

I 3n _in

5m

Farvmiors

[eroject
ROYAL DRAGON 16 BARBICAN ROAD
YORK YO10 5AA

Royal Dragon

Drawing Tile
LICENSING DRAWING:

GROUND. FIRST AND SECOND FLOOR
PLANS

Stophen Wood

Architeclural Services Lld

Scale Grawn
11100 @ A1 Sw

Date
July 2012

Drg Na. Rre

BR. (16)/01 E




Page 116



Page 117

POIICE REépresentation
11 ncy.
16 Barbican Road
York
Y010 5AA

City of York Council

Licensing Services

Hazel Court EcoDept

James Street

York

Y010 3DS
5 March 2020
Dear Sir/Madam,
As the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police, | am delegated on behaif Chief
Constable to respond to all applicatio nder the Licensing Act 2003. This represen felales to
the Licensed Premises, The Regen arbican Road York YO10 5AA, and for which the Police

deem that the Premise Licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor Mr Zhong Le Chen has
undermined the licensing objective Prevention of Crime and Disorder, which will be evidenced below,

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) CHEN has been the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises
Supervisor since 25" June 2015. The premises have licensable activities as follows:-

Recorded Music Mon- Sun 1000-0330hrs
Performance of Music/Dance Mon- Sun 1000-0330hrs
Late Night Refreshment Mon-Sun 2300-0330hrs
Supply of Alcohol Mon - Sun- 1000-0330hrs

On two separate occasions in September 2017 and September 2019 North Yorkshire Police have
atiended the premises as part of a multi-agency operation with officers from the Home office
(Immigration) due to intelligence that persons have been employed to work at the Premises who do
not have a right to work in the UK. As a result of attending the premises on these occasions persons

were removed by Immigration officers on the grounds, they did not have leave to remain in the
country.

North Yorkshire Palice are concerned that the Premises have undermined the licensing objective
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and are concerned that the Premises has failed to ensure
compliance with the authorisation issued by the Licensing Authority.

On 8t September 2017, PC Bolland an offlcer from North Yorkshire Police licensing department and
staff from the home office and licensing enforcement officers from City of York Council attended the
premises, which was open to the publie. Upgn entering the premise a male who provided his detalls
as % (preferred to be called ) stated he was the manager. PC Bolland elen
Seflton from ity of York Enforcement Team went through th ses licence wilh M%
Upon requesting to see the CCTV, he advised that anly the buswnor could access il st
officers were still in attendance, the Premises Licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor Mr

Zhong Le Chen arrived al lhe premises. He was asked aboul the Pggmise Licence conditions and the
CCTV however, he stated he did nol fully understand and asked to interpret for him. It was
established that Mr Zhong Li Chen could not access the CCTV, his was lhe only one wha

could do this but was abroad in China. Officers were therefare unable to check If the CCTV equipment
was operating in accordance with the following conditions:



Page 118

« Digital colour CCTV will be instalied to cove ses and will include all areas to

0

r the preml

W C Can consume

alchol.

= |t will be maintained, working and recording at all times when the premises are open.

« The recordings should be of sufficient quality to be produced in court or other such
hearing.

« Copies of the recordings will be kept available for any Responsible Authority for 28
days.

¢« Coples of the recordings will be made available to any responsible authority within
48hrs of request.

+ Copies of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

On 6'" September 2019, as part of a multi-agency partnership operation, officers frorm Norlh Yorkshire
Police's Safeguarding team, Home Office Immigration officers, staff from the Gang masters and Labour
abuse Aulhority and licensing enforcement officers from Clty of York Council, attended the Premises.
Three persons working at the premises were removed by Immigratlon officers dus to concerns around
their right to work in the UK. The premises were open to the public, and operating licensable aclivities.
Helen Sefton identified a number of breaches in respect of the Premises Licence authorisation. As a
result of the breaches identified, a follow up visil was arranged with a police licensing officer.

On 24" October 2018, PC Kim Hollis, police licensing officer and Nigel Woodhead, re-alfended the

memises.“ was again present and stated the DPS Mr.Zhong Le Chen was not at the premises.
PC Hollis wen ugh the Premise Licence Conditions with and identified the following:-

The CCTV equipment was not working having been removed by the Police on 6" September 2019 and
none of the CCTV conditions referred to above where belng adhered to

No notices displayed at the exit/entrance, which is a breach of the following condition:-

= Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at all exits requesting the public
to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

No incident book, could be produced upon request, which is a breach of the following condltion:-

« Arefusals register and incident report reglster will be kept. Such documents will
record incidents of staff refusals to undaerage or drunk people, as well as incidents of
any anti-social behaviour and ejections from the premises.

Both the abave documents will be kept for at least 3 years.

¢ Both the above documents wlil be available for inspection upon request by any

Responsible Authority.

No staff training records were available. The Premise Licance states the following: -
s Documented staff training will be given regarding the retail sale of alcohol, the
conditions attached to the premises licence and the opening times of the venue.
*  Such training will bo refreshed and dooumcentod evory 6 months
* Such training records should be kept for at least 3 years.

e Such tralning records will be made available for inspection upon request by any
Responsible Authority.

] q sy
Prior ¢ing BC Hollis issue; fion 19 Closure Nolice (Section 19 of the criminal justice and
police dct 2001) and informed thal every alcoholic drink sold would be a prosecutable
offence, and that she would return in seven days to check compliance.

oLyt
i

On 31" Qctober 2019, PC | nded the Premises lo check compliance wilh the Seclion 19
nolice. Present agaln was and PC Hollis went through the Premise Licence Conditions
again, to check compliance and advised (hat the Section 19 had been complied with and the
Premlises now operating in accordance with an aulhorisation. oty ‘1



Page 119

Appandind—Slalamentfiom 2L Balland

Appendix 2 - Statement from PC Hollls
Appendix 3 - Sectlon 19 Notice 1 — dated 24/10/19

Appendix 4 - Statement of Inspactor Freer

Yours Sincerely,

JBooth

PS133 Booth

Force Licensing. Manager
Alcohol Licensing Department
Fulford Road Police Station
York

Y010 4BY

Emall: - Jacqueline.booth@northyorkshire.pnn.police,uk




Page 120

under the Licensing Act 2003

The Regency, Barblcan Road, York

Appendix 1

Statement from PC Bolland



Page 121

RESTRICTED (when complete) : MG11
WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justica Act 1967, 8. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1880, &.5B
URN
Statement of: Samantha Bolland
Age ifunder 18: Over  (Fover 18 Inser ‘over 18) Occupation: Police Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 page(s) each signed by ms) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make It knowing tha, If it Is tendered in evidance, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wifully stated
in it amything which { know to be felse, ar do net belleve to be true.

Signature:.... « * v 7 T =S~ T BN (=Y 2 SRR (witness) Date: 0303/2020

I armm PC 1520 Samantha Bolland from North Yorkshire Police. T am stationed at Fulford Road Police
Station, York, in the role as a Police Alcohol Licensing Officer, and I have been in this role for the
last 4 years.

On 8th September 2017 at 1800 hrs I was on duty when I attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police
Station, York targetting The Regency Chincsc Restaurant Barbican Road, York and The Regency,
George Hudson Street, York, as part of a multi-agency partnership operation, in company with
officers from North Yorkshire Police's Safeguarding team, Home Office Inmigration officers, and
Licensing enforcement officers from City of York Council.

My role was to assist City of York Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton to inspect both premises
under section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003.

At 18:45 on the same date above, in company with Senior Licensing Officer, Helen Sefton, I entered
The Regency Chinese Restaurant, Barbican Rouad. Upon entering the premise it was open to the
Public, there were customers and stafl present. Myself and Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton
oceeded to speak to a male who identifed himself ns the manager, he stated his name was
We then went through the Licence conditions outlined within the Premise Licence,
We agked to sce the CCTV system, however slated he could not access it and it wes only
the owner who had access. The owner and Designated Premise Supervisor, ZHONG LE CHEN,
arrived at approximately 19:25 hours, Helen Sefton approached the owner and {reid to communicate
with him, the stated he could not understand English. Helen Sefton asked to interpret, Helen
Sefton asked CHEN, who owned the business and he stated it was his but
he was in China, and he was the only person able to access the CCTV system.

After furtHER discussions myself and Helen Sefton conducted z full inspetion of the premise and
found the following breaches as per the licence conditions attached to the Premise Licence:

-staff (raining records were not present/ documented
-No notices asking patrons to leave quietly

-no noise management plan

-no access to CCTV /recordings or retention

Signature:‘............‘...,...........A............§.MSignature WItN@ISEGO DY oo ieasvicirinse s s s

[ 2011 | | RESTRICTED (when complete)




Page 122

RESTRICTED (when complate) | | Mot |

Continuation statement of: Samantha Bolland

‘After (hie inspection we then attended Lhe second premises at George Hudson Street, Y OfK.,

A female called Tina FENG stated she was the manager of the premise and spoke with Helen Sefton
regarding the Premise Licence conditions, FENG stated she was only in charge of the supermarket
part of the premises and there was a separate manager for the restaurant as the premise wa divided into
two parts.

FENG stated she did not know ot have access 1o the CCTV system, that staff training had been given
in relation to licenisng matters, but this was not documented, She also stated that the Designated
Premise Supervisor was ZHONG LE CHEN.

Stortly after we lefl the premise and this was the last time 1 dealt with both premises,

4
(570
L 8
oy
]
Wﬁ‘-ﬁff-*‘;{'m;‘,r L3
Signature: a.ue s v, Signature whtnaesed bY: ... ainoricaormaanoin

| 2010+ | RESTRICTED (when complete)



Page 123

Pollce representation In response to a review of a premises licence or club premises certiicate

undertheticensing Aet-2663—

The Regency, Barblcan Road, York

Appendix 2

Statement from PC Hollis



Page 124

RESTRICTED (when complete) | [ war |

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1867, $. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1580, 3.5B,

URN
Statement of; Kimberiey HOLLIS

| Age lfunder 18: Over 18 (I over 18 insert ‘over 18]

Ocoupation; Police Constable

This statement (conalsting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) Is {rue to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if It |s tendered in evidence, | shal! be Hlable fo prosecutlon If | have wilfully stated
In It anything which | know to be false, or do not belleve to be true.

Signature: - Pedbrl  (witness)
Date: 4" March 2020

Lam PC 1671 Kim HOLLIS of North Yorkshire Police currently stationed at FULFORD ROAD POLICE

STATION, YORK, | am an Aleohal Licensing Offlcer covering York and Selby and | have been In the role since
April 2018.

At 11.18hrs on 24" October 2019 | attended The Regency restaurant and supermarkel 2-4 GEORGE HUDSON
STREET, YORK In company with Nigel WOODHEAD Clty of York Council Licensing enfarcement Offlcar with
the intention to carry out a licensing check under Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003.

We enlered the restaurant and spoke wllh” who asked lo be called , identifying ourselves and
explaining lhal we were conducling a licensing check. | asked to speak with the designated premises
supervisor and premises licance holder Zhong le CHEN. explainad she did not know who thie person was

but the manager was nol in and thal she would assist us.

| asked her to olarffy If Mr Zhong le CHEN ever attended the premises as she confirmed again thet she did not
know him and had not seen him.

Al 11.18hrs | noted thal the CCTV in the main restauranl was incorrect showing the time as10,30hrs and |
made a note of this as il breached conditions ss per the premises licence, advised she did not know
how 1o use the CCTV and thal only Tina knew how to change L.

| proceeded fo go through the conditlons’ of the llcence and document any breaches.

The breaches were as follows:
+ CCTV displaying Incorrect time
No notlces on the exit asking patrons to be quist/respect nelghbours
No challenge 26 posters on display
No incldent book
Staff being unaware of whe authorised the sale of alcohol (DPS)
No staff training recorde

e & 8 &4

| documented these on a closure notice under Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 and
numbserad these CYC-053937-1 and CYC-053937-2,

| placed on the natice steps to be taken to address these Issues which Included:
« Immediate DPS Change
e CCTV time to be made correot (7 days given)
+ Challenge 26 posters (7 days given)
¢ Incident book (7 days given)




Page 125

RESTRICTED (when complate) | wott |

«_Nolioes (7 days glven) Ll

«  8teff refrasher tralning and cecords {7 days given) B

| axpla."iha M ’ and asked for her signatuse on both parts. After signing | laft a copy of the two

5.10 notlces with
Myself and Nigel WOODHEAD than left the premises,

At approxir&sly 12.10hrs that same day Nigel and ( attended the Regency restaurant 16A BARBICAN ROAD,

YORK. o”«i B - AL
On out arrivel wo spoke with MR that identifiod himsolf to ba , askad to be knawn aswf
We explained thal we lhere to conducl & licensing check and &9 1e deslgnaled premises

% sald that he was nol and | then bagan to ough the premises licance wih

|it>lder was presant bu

Hexpialned W ine that currently the COTV was aot worklng aller 8 pravious vigll from Pollce and

mmigralion and It has not been able o ¢onnect since, | also identilied some furttier breaches of the |ivence and
as such | documented thess on a Section 19 closure notice as bafors: This nalice was given number CYC-
008221 and thay were as follows:

»  No staff tralning records conditions 18,17,18 and 19

¢ Noincident book conditions 20,21 and €2

«  No nolices asking patrons to be quite and respact neighbours condition 23
¢ CCTV not working conditions 2-7

The steps | documented to be taken ware as follows:
Staff retralned and records made (7 days glven)
Incident book (7 days given)

Notices displayed on exit (7days given)

CCTV working (7 days)

Whilst belng shown around the premises on the top floor hown rg bads Inside and ona
romin had & male inside that gave his datalls to asm born passad these delalls
on o me as the male did not speak English, He rm did not wo | ises.

Bafore leaving the premises | explained the Sectlon 19 notice to and asked him to sign this which he did.
1 (eft & copy of the nolica with and we then left,

On 31% October 2018 &t arciind 10.30hrs | ajaln sttended R , GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK In

company with Nigel WOODHEAD and we again spoke with ( _
A follow up check was conducted after Isatus of the Saction 18 nollce and | noled that the noticas had been
placed up, the challenge 25 posters wara displayed,_an inclde tar was |n place and a nota about

authorigation 1o sell alcahol showing the new DPS
application to transfer DPS from Zong Le CHEN, a als re
had been created but unfortunately did not have signatures on them,

who | was advised had submitted an
ad been crealed and slaff training records

| also noted that the CCTV af 10.30hrs was now showing 11.28hrs.

Julie explained that she had not realised the staff had to sign the lraining records and the CCTV had been
attempted to be changed but this must not have been done.

Due to this | made the dacislon to issue a further saction 19 notice allowing a further 7 days ta rectity these final
lssues, The notice breaches were as follows:

e« CCTVtime incorrect
« Staff training records to be fliled in correctly

| asked for the following steps to be taken:
= CCTV time to be made correct
4 Staff tralning forms (o be sighed (7 days given for both)



Page 126

RESTRICTED (when complete) E [ wetn |

1 again explained this to .and asked her to sign the notice leaving her a copy before we left number CYC-

At around 1200hrs wa attended Rogency BARBICAN ROAD, YORK and again spoke wi
who showed me the work they had done to rectify any breaches listed on the section 18
paints were now rectified and they were complying with licence condllions so [ explained lo
notice was now closed,

OEIUIT-T.
b=

hat the

On 4™ November 2018 | was mada sware that an spplication (o change DPS had been accapled by Gily of
| Licensing and as such checks were made by our department In relation {o the applicant

born # Ag a rasult of hese checks T made contact with Immigration Officer 6633 Glyn
JONES th e day via emall and requ on check be conducled on
Officar JONES advised me by reply thal | did not have permisslon to work Inthe U ssed this

information on to the Force Licensing Manager PS 133 Jackle BOOTH.

On 13" November 2018 Immigration Officer Giyn JONES provided me vith @ statement n relation o (il qump
| produce the section 1B notices as exhlbits;

KH/ - 24/10/19 Ragency Gearge Hudson Street CYC-053037-1
KH/2 - 24/10/19 Regency George Hudson Street CYC-06§3937-2
KH/3 - 24/10/19 Regency Barblcan Road CYC-009221

KH/4 - 31/10/18 Regency George Hudson Street CYC-053937-3

Signature: B pc 162/

Signature witnessed by:
¢ e @

‘ “
€« @&
i



Page 127

—~Police-representationinrrespometoareview of wpremizesticence-orciutrpremisescertificate
under the Licensine Act 2003

The Regency, Barbican Road, York

Appendix 3

Section 19 Notice 1 - dated 24/10/19




Page 128

l’nu-ru!.ll-.uqm1°

THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE

AND POLICE ACT 2001

Date and lime of the Closure Nelice)

Person making the Molice:

eI VAL s cnrraeants i e asaanagy

Mang (il applicable} and address ol the affecied prenlises

Allpprd unahorsed use of tha [iremises:

'.lrp‘ wvhich iy e taken to end the allegad ahautvonsad
s of the preaiiges, oo prevent i frai n-

'S 1Tkll.|||:‘1

un wiham

)
Name; AR e e et ehr e a9 A S T b v v uera ey donbes

.

White copy: Ocoupler Blue copy: Legal Servicee Pink oopy: Officer




Page 129

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 135

AW\@Q 4

NORTH YORKSHIF
FIRE & RESCUE SERVI

NYFRS Reference: Premises: York Fire Station
Job: Kent Street

York

North Yorkshire

YO10 4AH

When telephoning please ask for: K Caulfield Tel: 01904 625272

Fax: 01904 620732
Email: kevin.caulfield@northyorksfire.gov.uk

11 February 2020

Dear Sir or Madam

Cover Letter from Watch Manager Kevin Caulfield

Regency Restaurant, 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA

| have provided a witness statement on the request of City of York council with reference to
Regency Restaurant, 16 Barbican Road, York, and Regency Restaurant, George Hudson Street
York.

The witness statement is to assist the review of the premises licences for these premises.

The majority of information we collect regarding business fire safety is non-personalised
information, however any personal data we collect will be managed in accordance with our Privacy
Notice which can be viewed on our website, www.northyorksfire.gov.uk/ about-us/yourdata.

Under the Regulatory Reform Order 2005 we are obliged to publish a public register of
enforcement action which can be viewed via our website, www.northyorksfire.gov.uk/about-
us/key-documents/links-registers.

Yours faithfully
K Caulfield

West Offices,
Station Rise,
York,

YO1 6GA

Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives
www.northyorksfire.gov.uk



Page 136



Page 137

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

STATEMENT OF Kevin Caulfield

AGE OF WITNESS: over 18

OCCUPATION OF WITNESS Fire Safety Officer

ADDRESS OF WITNESS: York Fire Station, Kent Street, York, YO10 4JF

This statement (consisting of ...3 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief, and | make it knowing that if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if
| have wilfully stated in it anything which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

DATED THE 30th day of January 2020

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

1.0 My name is Kevin John CAULFIELD. | am employed as a Watch Manager by North
Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS) and have worked in various Fire Service roles
for over 26 years. | am currently working within the Fire Safety department as a Fire Safety
Officer. My current duties include planning and implementing audit inspections on
commercial/business premises, building consultations, within the York area, and assisting
the Service to meet its statutory obligations as an enforcing authority. | have a national
qualification Level 3 Certificate in Fire Safety (Fire Auditors) (QCF). | have completed
courses including Fire Safety & Building Design, Building Regulations and Technical
Guidance, Fire Safety & Building Design Complex Buildings: BS9999. | hold I0SH

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

Page 1 of 3
RRO.WIT.01



Page 138

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

CONTINUATION SHEET

Managing Safely qualification. | hold Leve! 3 NVQ in Walch Management.

2.0 |am warranted under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (RRFSO) to carry out
the duties imposed by it on the Fire and Rescue Authority.

This witness statement is.In relation to two premises;
e Regency Restaurant 16 Barbican Road YO10 SAA
* Regency Restaurant 2-4 George Hudson Street York YO1 6LP

Regericy Resiaurant 16 Barbican Road YO10 5AA

Fire caiis received
None

Complaints Received
s 16/04/20106
Complaint received from customer. Overcrowding, staff living on top floor and smoking on site.
Fire Safety Audit carried out - fire safety advice given no further action.
s 11/09/2017
Complaint received from Police. 20 People living in cramped conditions. Fire Safety Audit carried
out- fire safety advice given no further action.

09/09/19
Fire Safety Audit carried out as part of Operation Alligator - Regency Restaurants. Multi-
agency operation Joint visit.
During this visit a number of fire safety issues were found;

* Padlocks fitted to sleeping accommodation, fire doors held open with catches, fire exits blocked
due to refurbishment work.

¢ Fire alarm not working

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

Page 2 of 3
RRO.WIT.01



Page 139

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

CONTINUATION SHEET

* Prohibition and Enforcement notices severed. A Prohibition notice was served due to the
premises being not safe for sleeping as the means of escape had been blocked and the fire alarm
was not working.

09/10/19 Compliance fire safety audit carried out following previous audit

* Two Emergency lights not working — otherwise satisfactory

Regency Restaurant 2-4 George Hudson Street York YO1 6LP

Fire calls received

None

Complaints received

e 29/7/2009 Complaint received from City of York Environmental Health Officer. Fire doors held
open by boxes of food. Language line used to advise senior staff member to remove obstruction.
e 13/9/17 Complaint received from licensing enforcement officer. Fire exit between restaurant and
front exit in state of disrepair and one side holted shut. Fire safety audit carried out and
notification of deficiencies sent.
Recent audits

14/9/17 Fire Safety AudIt (due to complaint received 13/09/2017)

¢ No fire detection in basement and fire door to basement held open
¢ No weekly testing of fire alarm

o Staff training not recorded

¢ Notification of deficiencies served.

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

Page 3 of 3
RRO.WIT.01



Page 140



Page 141
Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE e
"A‘/\/\&G (

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use - April 2014

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN [GRJ | 6833 [o303020 1]

Statement of: Glyn Ronald JONES
Age if under 18. Over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 2 (two) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

SIGNAIUIE: i mssviiaivaiissinradnn. _ R sare i yassss s R o (witness) Date: 03/03/2020

1 am the person named above and I am employed by the Home Office as an Immigration Officer. T am currently a member
of the Arrest Team, Yorkshire & Humberside ICE (YHICE) based at Waterside Court, Kirkstall Road, Leeds LS4 2QB. 1
have been employed by the Home Office since October 2003. My position as an IMMIGRATION OFFICER grants me
access to information held on Home Office systems that stores details of enforcement visits conducted by YHICE and the

numbers of arrested persons and their nationalities from each of those visits.

On 10" DECEMBER 2019, I was requested to provide a summary of YHICE visits conducted to both the REGENCY, 16
BARBICAN ROAD, YORK YOI10 SAA and the REGENCY, 2-4 GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YOI 6LP in
terms of breaches of the IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 (AS AMENDED), as part of on-going enquiries into the two

“businesses.

HOME OFFICE records show YHICE have conducted FIVE enforcement visits to the REGENCY, 16 BARBICAN
ROAD, YORK YO10 SAA which are recorded below.

1). 7" JUNE 2014 - 2 Chinese nationals arrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING, and 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (CLANDESTINE)
(initially provided false details and later found to have been previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTRANT
(CLANDESTINE)).

2). 21 MAY 2017 — 1 Chinese national arrested for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant leave with no permission to
work).

3). 8% SEPTEMBER 2017 -- 6 Chinese nationals arrested; 4 for OVERSTAYING their leave, and 2 for ILLEGAL ENTRY
(ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).

4). 16% MARCH 2018 - No arrests were made, all staff present had permission to live and work in the United Kingdom.
5). 6 SEPTEMBER 2019 ~ 3 Chinese nationals arrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING their leave, 1 for WORKING IN
BREACH (held extant leave with no permission to work) and 1 as a PERSON LIABLE TO DETENTION (previously
REFUSED LEAVE TO ENTER but graated temporary admission/bail at port following an application for leave to remain,

and subsequently failed to appear for an interview to progress their application).

SINARIE cacnnimrc  Saubenisisvariaiesssiscm Signature witnessed DY: .uuurisimriiniesisin

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 142

Government Security Classiflcation OFFICIAL SENSITIVE mMG11
Approved for Immigratlon Enforcement use — April 2014

Similarly, HOME OFFICE records show YHICE have conducted THREE enforcement visits to the REGENCY, 24
GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YO1 6LP which are recorded below.

1). 7% APRIL 2017 - 1 Chinese national arrested for ILLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).

2). 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 -~ 1 Chinese national arrested for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant leave with no
permission to work)

3). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 - 4 Chinese nationals arrested; | for WORKING IN BREACH (held exiani leave with no
permission to work), 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (VERBAL DECEPTION) by providing information to an Entry Clearance
Officer which was later found not to be true, which, if it had been disclosed at the time of the application would have led to
the entry clearance being refused, 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE), and 1 for being a PERSON
LIABLE TO DETENTION (previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTRANT (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE) and failed to
adhere fo their bail conditions by failing to report to the Home Office, and working without parmission).

This witness statement was completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 3™ MARCH 2020 at 09:45hrs.

Signature witnessed by: ......,........

AR RSO T A A RS s b h b

| 2014 | Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 143

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE
Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014 FAVAN @L_,

—_—

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27, 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN ‘ GRJ | 6633 | 04032020 [1]
Statement of: Glyn Ronald JONES T s o
Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 insert ‘over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 (one) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make |t knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to Prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or dn not believe to be true,

Signature:............ovooereovroo s, (WilNGSS) Date: 04/03/2020

I'am the person named above and I am employed by the Home Office as an Immigration Officer. 1 am currently a member
of the Arrest Team, Yorkshire & Humberside ICE (YHICE) based at Waterside Court, Kirkstall Road, Leeds 1.84 20QB. I

The remaining FIFTEEN Chinese nationals were arrested on suspicion of either holding no leave, as ILLEGAL
ENTRANTS or, REMAINING BEYOND THE TIME LIMITED BY THEIR LEAVE and served as such.

This witness statement was made and completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 4t MARCH 2020 at 12:46hrs,

Signature:..........,.ve. " =T Ty Signature witnessed by: ...

[ 2014 | Government Security Classification OFFICIAL smsmwil




Page 144



Page 145
Annex 7 - Regency, 16 Barbican Road YORK

An

A G B
= SPERCY Y e At
| - |‘ i " by "\ \
. ’ #,1: '-. i g
93 3 . (e R R
_n 11 2 ‘.-“ X . % \ |
- . ﬂ A ‘ 1A

Date: 11 Mar 2020

Author: n/a

0 0.035 0.07 0.105 0.14

Scale: 1:2,500 km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 147
ANNEX 8

Legislation and Policy Considerations
Review of Premises Licence

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application: S4 general
duties of licensing authorities; s51 Application for review of premises licence; s52
Determination of application for review; s53 Supplementary provision about review.

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application: Regulation 42, Part
2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to applications, notices and
representations and advertising of reviews.

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this application:
Chapter 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates
and Chapter 11 Reviews.

The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy apply
to this application: 8.0 Licensing Hours;11.0 Review of licences.

The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the city.

The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the right to a
fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights. The Act also provides
for the protection of property, which may include licences in existence, and the
protection of private and family life.

(amended 27/02/19)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 149 Agenda Item 7

YORK

4‘—"j$ CITY OF
g COUNCIL

Meeting of Licensing Act 2003 Sub- 8 June 2020
Committee

Report from the Assistant Director — Planning and Public Protection

Section 52(2) Review of Premises Licence CYC/053937 for
Regency, 2 — 4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP

Summary

1.  This report seeks Members determination of an application for a
review of a premises licence which has been made under the
Licensing Act 2003 (the Act) in respect of Regency, 2 — 4 George
Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP, premises licence number
CYC/53937.

2. Name of applicant: Anthony Dean, Public Protection Manager, on
behalf of the Licensing Authority, City of York Council, Eco Depot,
Hazel Court, York, YO10 3DS.

3. Summary of Review: The application to review the premises
licence relates to the following licensing objective;
e The prevention of crime and disorder.
e Public safety.

4. A copy of the ‘application for review’ is attached at Annex 1 and is
briefly summarised as follows:

a) On two occasions, 8 September 2017 and 6 September 2019,
City of York Council (CYC) Licensing Officers have
accompanied North Yorkshire Police (NYP), the Home Office
Immigration Service and Gang Master and Labour Abuse
Authority to the premises following the receipt of intelligence that
staff working at the premises did not have the right to remain in
this country and therefore did not have the right to work in this
country. Officers from the HMRC were also present on 6
September 2019.



Page 150

b) On both occasions Immigration Officers removed people
working at the premises who did not have the right to remain in
this country.

c) On both occasions CYC Licensing Officers recorded that the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was not present at the
premises and that some of the premises licence conditions were
not being complied with.

d) North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS), following a
fire safety audit in September 2017, served a notification of
deficiencies on the premises, under the provisions of the
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005.

A copy of the current premises licence is attached at Annex 2.
Please note the premises licence exhibited as part of Nigel
Woodhead’s statement within the ‘application for review’ at NPW/1
contained a typographical error, the opening hours on Friday and
Saturday were incorrectly shown. The correct hours are detailed
below. The premises licence currently authorises the following:

Licensable Current Days & Hours
Activity

Recorded music 10:00 to Midnight Sunday to Thursday
10:00 to 03:30 Friday & Saturday

Late night 23:00 to Midnight Sunday to Thursday
refreshment

Supply of alcohol 10:00 to Midnight Sunday to Thursday
10:00 to 03:30 Friday & Saturday

Opening Hours 10:00 to Midnight Sunday to Thursday
10:00 to 03:30 Friday & Saturday

The premises licence issued under the Act was granted on 10
September 2015. This premises was previously licensed on
conversion under the Act on 9 August 2005, this licence lapsed in
June 2015 as the company that held the licence was dissolved.



Page 151

Consultation

7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

Consultation was carried out by the Applicants and the Licensing
Authority in accordance with S51(3) of the Act and Regulation 42,
Part 4, Paragraphs 29 and 38 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises
Licences and Club Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005, which
concerns the notification of a review and the advertisement of a
review by licensing authority. Copies of the application were
served on all responsible authorities and the premises licence
holder. Notice of the application was displayed in the vicinity of the
premises, on the exterior noticeboard at the West Offices and on
the Councils website. In addition relevant Ward Councillors were
informed by way of register.

Representations were made by North Yorkshire Police on the
‘application for review’, and a copy of it is attached at Annex 3.

Witness statements were received from North Yorkshire Fire and
Rescue Service, the statement is attached at Annex 4.

Please note that within the ‘application for review’ there is a
witness statement from Immigration Officer Glynn Jones (appendix
3), within this statement Mr Jones first name is incorrectly (because
of an auto correct in place). Mr Jones submitted an amended
statement attached at Annex 5 with the correct spelling of his
name, Glyn Jones.

To provide further clarification, a second witness statement was
received from Immigration Officer Glyn Jones, the statement is
attached at Annex 6.

A map showing the location of the premises is attached at Annex 7.
Other Relevant Information

The applicant has applied to vary the designated premises
supervisor (DPS), in accordance with S37 of the Act on recent two
occasions. The first application was refused following a police
objection, the second was successful. From the 12 February 2020
the DPS for this premises has been Yan Tong Feng.

On 25 February 2020 an application was made under S42 of the
Act for the transfer of the premises licence by Yan Tong Feng.



15.

16.

Page 152

On 10 March 2020 a notice was received from PS Booth from
North Yorkshire Police objecting to the transfer of the premises
licence in accordance with S42(6) of the Act. This is the subject of
a separate report.

There are no planning implications in relation to this application.

Options

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

By virtue of S52(4) of the Act, the Sub-Committee may in making
their decision take such of the following steps as it considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

Option 1. To modify the conditions of the licence (ie to alter, omit
or add any new condition).

Option 2: To exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the
licence.

Option 3: To remove the Designated Premises Supervisor.

Option 4: To suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three
months.

Option 5: To revoke the licence.

Where the Sub-Committee determines to takes a step mentioned in
Option 1 or Option 2, it may provide that the modification or
exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three
months) as it may specify. Otherwise the modification of conditions
or the exclusion of a licensable activity will be permanent.

Where the Sub-Committee determines to takes a decision as
mentioned in Option 4 or Option 5, Members should be mindful that
this will not close the premises, they will still be able to continue
trading as a restaurant and supermarket. It will however prevent
licensable activities taking place, in this case the supply of alcohol,
the provision of late night refreshment and the playing of recorded
music (as regulated entertainment) after 23:00 hours.

In deciding which, if any, of these steps to take, the Sub-Committee
should direct its mind to the cause or causes of the concerns which



26.

Page 153

the application and representations identify. The remedial action
taken should generally be directed at these causes and should
always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

The Sub-Committee may decide that no action is appropriate if it
finds that the Review does not require it to take any steps that are
appropriate to promote the licensing objectives.

Analysis

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

The following could be the result of any decision made by this Sub-
Committee:

Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 3: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the premises licence holder, the review applicant or any of the
representors.

Option 4: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder, the review applicant or any of the representors.

Option 5: This decision could be appealed by the premises licence
holder.

The decision of the Sub-Committee will not have effect until the
end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or if the
decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of.

Members are reminded that they may only use their discretion to
take remedial action in relation to matters that are raised by this
review and are relevant to the promotion of the licensing objectives.



Page 154

Council Priorities

35.

36.

The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives; the prevention of crime
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

By taking the statutory requirements of the Licensing Act into
consideration, as well as the four licensing objectives when
determining licensing review applications the Council are
supporting the licence trade, as well as local residents and
businesses. The functions support the Council’s Plan of safe
communities and culture for all, and a good quality of life for
everyone.

Implications

37.

. Financial - N/A
. Human Resources (HR) — N/A
. Equalities — N/A

. Legal — The legislation and policy considerations are contained
in Annex 8. The decision made by this Sub Committee is subject
to appeal rights to the Magistrates Court.

. Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime
and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and
disorder in the city.

. Information Technology (IT) — N/A
. Property — N/A

. Other —none

Risk Management

38.

All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received
full training on the Act and the Regulations governing hearings.
They are aware that any decision which is unreasonable or



Page 155

unlawful could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image,
reputation and potential financial penalty.

39. The report details the options available to the panel in determining
the application and recommends that a decision be reached.
There are no risks involved with this recommendation.

Recommendations

40. Members determine the application.

Reason: To address the application for review received as
required by the Licensing Act 2003.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Matt Boxall Michael Slater

Head of Public Protection  Assistant Director

Ext 1528 Planning and Public Protection
Ext 1300
Report N Date 29/05/20
Approved

Wards Affected: Micklegate Ward

Annexes

Annex 1 - Copy of application for review of premises licence, plus
appendices

Annex 2 - Copy of premises licence, including layout plan

Annex 3 - Representation from North Yorkshire Police

Annex 4 - Witness statement North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue

Annex 5 - Amended witness statement from Home Office Immigration
Service

Annex 6 - Second witness statement from Home Office Immigration
Service

Annex 7 - Map showing location of premises

Annex 8 - Legislation and Policy Considerations



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 157

Annor |

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL

y TR, TUTU

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are
completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capltals. In all cases ensure your answers
are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish 1o
keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

IWe Anthony Dean of PUBLIC PROTECTION (Insert name(s) of applicant) apply for the review of a
premises licance under section 51/apply for the review of a club premises certificate under
section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below (delete as
applicable)

Part 1 - Premises or club premises details

‘Postal address of premises or club premises, or if none, ordinance survey map reference or -
description

Regency
2-4 George Hudson Street

Post town York Post code: YO1 6LP

Name of premises licence holder or club holding ciub premises certificate (if known)

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) Chen

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

CYC — 053937

Part 2 — Applicant details

| am Please tick v yes
1 An interested party (please complete (A) or (B) below)

a} A person living in the vicinity of the premises

b) A bady representing persons living in the viclnity of the premises

¢) A persen involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

d) A body representing persons involved in business in the vicinity of the premises

2 A responsible authority (please complete (C) below) v

3 A member of the club to which this application relates (please complete (A) below)



Page 158

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fillin as applicable)

— J

Other title

Mr Mrs Miss Ms |
Surname Firsl names

(for example, Rev)

} am 18 years cld or over

Current postal address i
if ditferent from
premises address

Past Town l I Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number |

Email address (nptional) l

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name

Address

Please tick v' Yes

Telephone number (if any)

E-mall (optional)




Page 159

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name: Public Profection (Anthony Dean)

Address

City of York Council
Public Protection

Hazel Court Eco Depot
York

Y010 3DS

Telephone number (if any)
01904 551588

E-mall (optional)

This application to review relates to the following licensing objectives(s)
Please tick one or more boxes v’

the prevention of crime and disorder v
public safety Nt
the prevention of public nuisance

the protection of children from harm

PN~

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 1)

I make this application on behalf of the Licensing Authority, City of York Council (CYC), who wish to
seek a review of the above premises licence as the Licensing Objectives in relalion to 'prevention
of crime and disorder’ and ‘public safety' have been undermined on a number of occasions.

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) Chen has been the premises licence holder and designated premises
supervisor (DPS) for this premises since 10 September 2015.

On two occasions CYC Licensing Officers have accompanied North Yorkshire Police (NYP) and
the Home Office Immigration Service to the premises following the receipt of intelligence that staff
working at the premises did not have the right to remain in thls country and therefore did not have
the right to work in this country.

On both occasions, on 8 September 2017 and 6 September 2019, Immigration Officers removed
people working at the premises who did not have the right to remain In this country.

On both occasions CYC Licensing Officers recorded that the DPS was not present al the premises
and that some of the premises licance conditions were not being complied with.

North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS) has served notice on the premises, under the
provisions of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 on two cccasions.




Page 160

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 2)

On 8 September 2017 CYC Licensing Enforcement Officer, Helen Sefton, took part in an
operation with otficers from NYP and the Home Office Immigration Enforcement Team at
the premises. On arrival at the premises it was noted that the premises where open to
customers. One person working at the promiscs was removed by Immigration Officers as
they did not have the right to remain in this country and therefore did not have the right to
work in this country.

Mr Zhong Le Chen was not present during this visit, Helen Sefion spoke to the duly
manager, Ms Tina Feng. During the viait a number of liccnsing issuos wara found
including the CCTV system which no one on site appeared to be able o operate or had
permission to use, and lack of documented staff training in relation to licensing matter. In
addition it was found that the glass fire exit door had broken glass and one side of the
door was locked in position.

On 6 September 2019 ihe CYC Licensing Enforcement Officer, Nigel Woodhead, took
part in an operation with officers from NYP, the Home Office Immigration Enforcement
Team, NYFRS, HMRC, Gangmasters and Labour Abuse Authority and CYC Housing
Enforcement Team. On arrival at the premises it was noted that the premises was open
to custoimiers. One person at the premises was removed by Immigration Officers as they
did not have the right to work in this country.

Mr Chen was not present during this visit so Nigel Woodhead spoke to the duty manager
Ms Van Ceny (also knowi as Tina), A number of breaches of the premises licence

conditions were identified including the CCTV displaying the wrong time and date, lack of
documented staff training, no incident book or refusals register, and no notices asking the

public to Isave quietly.

On 24 October 2019 Nigel Woodhead and PC Kim Hollis carried out a further
unannounced visit to the premises, to check for compliance with the premises licence
conditions. Mr Chen was not present during this visit, Officers spoke to a lady called
,who stated she was in charge. The same breaches of conditions on the premises

cence as seen on 6 September 2019 were identified. As a result PC Hollis served a
closure notice under Section 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001, giving the
premises licence holder and DPS seven days to rectify these matters.

On the 31 October 2019 Nigel Woodhead and PC Kim Hollis undertook an unannounced
revisit to the premises, to check for compliance with the Section 19 notice, previously
served by PC Hollis on the 24 October 2019. PC Hollis extended the period for
compliance with the notice for a further seven days as there was stlill an issue with the
CCTV not working in accordance with the licencing conditions as it was showing the
wrong date and time. All other condition breaches had been rectified.

On the 28 November 2019 CYC Senior Licensing Officer, Helen Sefton, and PS Jackie
Booth carried out an unannounced revisit to the premises to check for compliance with the
Section_19_notice_in relation_to_the_outstanding.issue concerning the CCTV. The Section
19 notice was lifted as matters had been rectified and the notice complied with.

On the 4 November 2019 an application was received from Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) Chen
to vary the DPS on the existing premises licence tom. Upon receipt of the
application City of York Council contacted NYP, who ha urn contacted the Immigration
Service regarding the proposed new DPS. The Immigration Service confirmed that the
proposed DPS Mm did nol have the right 1o work in the UK. As a result
the application was refused by Cily of York Council on 28 November 2019,




Page 161

A nat.of the i
Lo

ihe status of the of the proposed DPS to work in the UK, this being only two months after

Immigration Officers had removed staff from his premises, who were not eligible to work in
this country, where he had not carried out the necessary checks on a new employee in
relation to their rights to work in the country.

In addition to the above licensing matters, it is also worthy on note that on the 14 August
2018 China Regency Ltd, trading as Regency Restaurant, and Xiu Lan Chen were
prosecuted by Public Protection for three breaches of Food Safety and Hygiene
Regulations at the Barbican Road, York site.

Ms Chen pleaded guilty to all offences on behalf of both herself and China Regency Ltd at
York City Magistrates' Court on 14 August 2018. China Regency Ltd were fined £8,000,
with prosecution costs of £1,906.63 and a £170 Court Surcharge. Ms Chen was fined
£540 fine and £54 cour surcharge.

Furthermore on the 19 November 2017 Tina Feng signed, on behalf of York Regency
Associates Ltd of 4 George Hudson Street, York, a simple caution in relation to the sale of
a knife to a person under the age of eighteen in July 2017, contrary to the Criminal Justice
Act 1988. Tina Feng, as detailed in Nigel Woodhead's statement, was a manager of the
Regency Restaurant at 2-4 George Hudson Street and took control of the premises in the
absence of the DPS Mr Chen.

A statement from Helen Sefton, Senior Licensing Officer, is attached at Appendix 1

A statement from Nigel Woodhead, Licensing Enforcement Officer, is attached at
Appendix 2

A statement from Glynn Jones, Immigration Officer at the Home Office, is attached at
Appendix 3

A copy of the summonses relating to Food Safety and Hygiene Offences are attached as
Appendix 4

A copy of the signed simple caution refating to the sale of the knife to a person under the
age of eighteen is attached at Appendix 5

please tick v yes

Have you made an application for review relating to this premises before?

Month  Year

Day B
If yes please state the date of that application ‘ J I [ J ] 1
L i e e —=—1 =

If you have made representations before relating to this premises please state what
they were and when you made them

N/A



Page 162

Please tick v Yes

e inhave sent coples OI__ RIS Torm ana enciosures 1o the iE§bBH5|BI§ admonues ana the

premsesfeeree tolderurehtr oty e ciob premises tertticate as appropriate

e |understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my applicatlon will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON
THE STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003

TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS
APPLICATION.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signalure of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See guidance
noted).If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacily.

Signatur:
Date: U//02/2020

Lagduiy. Fublic Protection ivianeyge (nvesigaiuns and Culnphanve)

Contact Name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated
with this applicatlon (please read guidance note 6)

vicioria sWaudsy
Legal Services
Station Rise

‘Post town: YORK ' ' o ] Post code: YO1 BGA T

Telephone number (if any): 01904 554350

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

victoriaawaudby@york.gov.uk

This authority is under a duty to protect the public funds it administers and to this end may
use the information you have provided on this form for the prevention and detection of fraud.
"It may also share ttiis information with other btdies responsible for-auditing or administering™
public funds for these purposes.




Page 163

Notes for guidance

Aresponsible authorily includes the local police, fire and rescue

authority and other statutory bodies which exercise specific functions in
the local area.

The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing
objectives.

Please list any additional information or details for example dates of
problems which are included in the grounds for review if available.

4. The application form must be signed.

. An applicant's agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their

behalf provided that they have actual authority to do so.

. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about

this application.



Page 164

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 1

A statement from Helen Sefton, Senior Licensing Officer



Page 165

IN THE MATTER OF AN APP1ICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES

LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

FIRST WITNESS STATEMENT OF HELEN LOUISE SEFTON

I, Helen Louise SEFTON, Senior Licensing Officer of City of York Council,

. Hazel Court, EcoDepal, James. Street, YORK, YO10 30S, make this statement

in support of an applicalion by The Council Of The City Of York for a review of
premises licences, namely The REGENCY Barbican Road and The REGENCY

George Hudson Street, YORK.

1. | declare that the contents of this my statement are true and correct to the
best of my knowledge and belief. | make this statement in the knowledge
that it will be used in premises iicence review proceedings.

2. 1 make this statement based upon the records held by the Council. The

information provided in this witness statement is within- my own
knowledge, unless expressly stated otherwise.

| am a Senior Licensing Officer employed by the City of York Council to
administer and enforce a wide range of licensable activities. Part of my role is

to inspect licensed and unlicensed premises in accordance with the Licensing

Act 2003.

On 8 September 2017 | was tasked to attend a multi-agency operation targeting
two licensed premises within the district of York. At that time | held the position
of Licensing Enforcement Officer. The operation was led by North Yorkshire

Police, also in attendance were officers from the Home Office Immigration



Page 166

Enforcement Team. At 18:00 on 8 September 2017 | attended a briefing at

Fotford-Road-Pofice-StatiorrimYork-where-inspector FREAR oothimed-theptan
for the evening and allocated roles and responsibilities to Officers. | was to
attend the address at 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA entering the
premises under my powers conferred under Section 179 of the Licensing Act
2003, once | had carried out my inspection at 16 Barbican Road | was then to
attend a premises at 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP also under the

powers conferred by Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003.

At 18:45 accompanied by PC BOLLAND Police Licensing Officer, North
Yorkshire Police, | entered the licensed premises known as REGENCY
Restaurant at 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. The restaurant was busy
with customers and staff. | identified myself as a Licensing Enforcement Officer

and spoke with the person who identified himself as the manager, he told me

his name was{ P and he advised his actual name was ~
@D ot proferred to be called () @IPcvised he had been the

manager at the premises for 2 years. PC BOLLAND and | proceeded to speak
to (@ =bout the various permissions and conditions contained within the
premises licence, issued in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003. At this time
other Officers from North Yorkshire Police and the Home Office Immigration
Team proceeded to search the premises and speak with other members of
staff. We asked to see the CCTV system and -stated that only the
business owner could operate the system as it required a passcode which he
did not have access to. At approximately 19:25 the premises licence holder and

named Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), ZHONG LE CHEN arrived at



Page 167

the premises At first he spake with Staff members in a laoguage | could not

understand. PC BOLLAND and | proceeded to speak with CHEN about the
licence permissions and conditions. CHEN stated he could not fully understand
English and asked -to interpret for him. | asked CHEN who owned the
business and he stated it was his (i O - rther stated D
@ s -2y i Ciiina and when dsked about the CCTV systam hie

stated only - could operate the CCTV system.

Both-and CHEN stated the restaurant did not stay open past midnight.
They stated that staff were trained in licensing matters but it was not
dacumented. | noted there were no notices displayed asking customers to leave
oo quictly and there was no doniimentad noise management plan,
After speaking with hoth gentiemen PC BOLLAND and | carried out a full
inspection of the entire premises which included the ground floor bar area,
waliting area, restaurant and kitchen. We also went upstairs ta the first floor and
noted several rooms set up with karaoke equipment, televisions/screens, bench
seating and gambling equipment such as dice and dice shakers. The first floor
had a locked room with a name plate stating ‘Reception’. CHEN provided entry
to this room. Once entry was gained to this room it contained alcoholic drinks,
various items of stock, several packets of playing cards and the CCTV system.
On the second floor of the premises there were mare karacke rooms and also
bedrooms containing bunk beds and personal effects. Several more rooms on

this floor were locked via external padlocks. PC BOLLAND and | were made

aware by the Police Officer in charge that the Immigration Officers were in the



Page 168

process of detaining four members of staff as they potentially did not have the

—_————right{o-work-in-the. LK

PC BOLLAND and 1 left the premises at Barbican Road with Police and
Immigration Officers still present. We then made our way to the second

premises to be visited at George Hudson Street, York.

At approximately 20:00 on the 8 September 2017 PC BOLLAND and | attended
a premises, called REGENCY located at 2 — 4 George Hudson Street, York,
YO1 6LP. Police and Immigration Officers were already in attendance at this
premises and had already searched the premises and spoken with staff. The
premises consisted of a supermarket to the left of the front door/entrance and
a restaurant/takeaway to the right. | was introduced to the Manager who
introduced herself as Tina FENG. FENG advised me she had worked at the
premises for 2 years, she was unable to use or view the CCTV as she did not
have the necessary permission to use the system. FENG stated staff were
trained in licensing matters but it was not documented. She stated the
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) was ZHONG LE CHEN. She stated the
restaurant side of the premises also had a manager but did not provide a name
for that person. She advised the premises did not open beyond 1am. | noted
that the front glass door of the premises which was also a fire exit was broken
and in need of urgent repair, one side of the door was in a locked position due
to the damage — | asked FENG to get this done as a priority as this meant the
fire escape route was effectively reduced in width by 50%. FENG was advised

that someone on site needed to be able to access the CCTV and that all staff



Page 169

CCTV training must be documented. | was also informed by a Police Officer on

site that when they first attended the premises the rear fire door, which had a
push bar, was locked shut. | was made aware on the night that the Immigration
Officers had detained members of staff from this premises who potentially did
not have the right to work in the UK, | do not know the specific number of staff

meimbers detaiiied.

After the.visits Jreported my findings on the night {e_colleagues.in the Council

Housing Enforcement Team, Gambling Commission and Fire Service.

In the summer of 2019 [ was contacted by inspector FREAR of North Yorkshire

AlA A Af lie int +H + e e g 3 3]
old me of his intontian fo arganise ancthar mulli agancy visit {n hath

He also advised a premises in the Selby area would be involved in the visits

and some residential addresses in York and Seiby.

At 16:30 on 6 September 2019 | attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police
Station. In attendance were officers from North Yorkshire Police, HMRC, Home
Office Immigration Enforcement, the Gangmasters and Labour Abuse
Authority, North Yorkshire Fire Authority Officers, City of York Council Housing

Enforcement Officers and several interpreters.

At 18:10 on 6 September 2019, in company of Lesley COOKE Licensing
Manager at City of York Council | entered the premises known as REGENCY

Restaurant at 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA. We entered the premises



Page 170

under powers conferred by Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003. Police and

—immigration-Officers-were-atready-imthe-premises asthoy tad-emteredusing

powers granted under a warrant.

| spoke with the manager of the premises—. real name -

@D @ oved me his personal licence with Number (i issued

by Manchester City Council and showing his address a_,

| —- advised however this address needed to be
changed to — I advised-to contact

Manchester City Council to amend his licence ASAP. | reminded - that
we had met 2 years earlier, he advised me he had left his job at the premises
shortly after September 2017 but had recently returned. [ sat in the waiting area
of the restaurant with (il and went through the conditions on the premises
licence whilst the Officers from the other agencies carried out the inspections
and interviews with staff. -stated he was not the DPS at the premises
that was Mr CHEN. He stated CHEN was not often at the premises but was in
regular contact with -nd did call - when he needed to. Whilst
going through the conditions on the premises licence several breaches were
identified as follows; ( the corresponding condition appears in brackets)

The CCTV system was running 36 minutes behind (7). - had no idea
how many days the CCTV recordings were kept (5). Staff were trained verbally
how to lawfully operate the CCTV but this training was not documented (76, 18
and 19). There was no refusals register or incident report register (20, 21, and
22). There were no notices asking customers to leave quietly (23).~

stated the premises closed before midnight and therefore they do not use door



Page 171

staff at any time. There was no evidence of a noise management plan on site

nor was there evidence of one being submitted to the Licensing Authority (35).
| produce a copy of the Part A of the premises licence including the conditions

as Exhibit HLS/.

Alter speaking with- I undertook a full inspection of the premises in

company of Lestey COOKE, On the first floor | noted a strong smell of cigarette

e -..smoke.in.both the karaoke rooms.and evidence of cigarelle smoking (smelland..__

used cigarettes and ash) in the Gentleman's toilet. There were also sets of dice
and dice shakers in each karaoke room. On the second floor there was
evidlence of persons sleeping in some of the kKaraoke rooms this inciuded
. persenal effecte guch as clothing, shoes,
toothbrushes and luggage. Some rooms on the second floor were in the
process of being renovated/decorated. Whilst | was in 6ne of the karaoke rooms
a young white male with an Eastern European agcent came into the room, he
sald he'd come to get his passport. When asked where he was sleeping he
stated it was In this karaoke roomi. At the ground floor level | met my colleague
Nigel WOODHEAD, Licensing Enforcement Officer in the rear car park | noted
there was evidence of a severely blocked drain al the rear entrance to the car
park which was averflowing wiih foul water and grease. | then met with Kevin
CAULFIELD from North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service who informed me
that due to & defect on the fire alarm system he would be issuing a Prohibition
Notice which would prohibit any persons sleeping on the premises. The Police
Officer in charge informed me that several members of staff had been detaineq

and four persons had been detained for potential immigration offences.



Page 172

After The Tnspection T reporied my Tindings on he mght to colleagues m the
Council Gambling Commission, the City of York Council Neighbourhood
Enforcement Team (regarding the blocked drain), | also contacted Manchester
City Council’s Licensing Team regarding - Personal Licence detalils.

On 4 November 2019 an gpplication was received by the City of York Council's
Licensing Team to apply to vary the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) at
the premises known as Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street, York. | produce a
copy of the application as Exhibit HLS/2. The DPS is the person who holds
overall control and day to day management of a licensed premises, they are
also responsible for authorising the sale of alcohol. As part of the application
process the Licensing Authority must consult with North Yorkshire Police.
Enquiries were made with North Yorkshire Police who in turn consulted Home

Office Immigration Officers as to the status of the person named to be the new

DPS at the premises —

As a result Immigration Officer Glyn JONES provided a statement regarding
@ 2nd his status regarding being unable to work in the UK. The application
to vary the DPS was ultimately rejected by the Licensing Authority due to the
application being incomplete. This was confirmed in my letter dated 28
November 2019 and hand delivered to the premises address, copied to the
DPS home address and the registered office of the premises licence holder.
The letters were all hand delivered on 28 November 2019. | produce a copy of

the letter dated 28 November 2019 as Exhibit HLS/3.



Page 173

| BELIEVE THAT THE FACTS STATED IN THIS WITNESS STATEMENT

ARE TRUE.

Signed:

Dated: 4 Fehruary 2020

el



Page 174

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENGE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT
Copy of Premises Licence for The REGENCY 16 Barbican Road,
YORK, YO10 5AA

This is the Exhibit HLS/1 referred to in the statement of Helen Louise SEFTON,
dated 3 February 2020,



Page 175

e, , |

i

% Ol CITY OF

YORK

K COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
Schedule 12

Part A
Eré_mist;.s licence number
Part 1 Premises details TR
i Pastal address of premiises;
l 16 Barbican Road
| Post town: York | Post code: YO10 5AA

l Telephone number: 01904 623134

Explry date: This licence has no explry date,
Licensabla activities authorised by the ticence:

Live Muslc

Recorded Music
Performances of Dance
Activities llke muslic/dance
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

Tha times the licance authorises the carrying out of licansable activities:

LIVE MUSIC

Indoors

Monday Tuesday Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:3Q




Page 176

RECORDED MUSTC

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

ACTIVITIES LIKE MUSIC/DANCE

Indoors

Monday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indoors

Monday
23:00 - 03:30

Friday
23:00 - 03:30

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Manday
10:00 - 03:30

Friday
10:00 - 03:30

Noh Standard Timings for Live Muslc, Recorded Musie,

Tuesday
23:00 - 03:30

Saturday
23:00 - 03:30

Tuesday
10:00 - 03:30

Saturday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
23:00 - 03:30

Sunday
23:00 - 03:30

Wednesday
10:00 - 03:30

Sunday
10:00 - 03:30

Muslic/Dance, Late Night Refreshment and Supply of Alcohal:

From the end of

Year's Day.

An additlonal hour on the day that B-tish Summertime commences,

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Thutsday
10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Thursday
23:00 - 03:30

Thursday
10:00 - 03:30

Performances of Dance, Activities like

permitted hours on New Year's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New



Page 177

[ The Opening Hours of the Preamises

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00 10:00 - 04:00

Non Standard Timings:

From the end of permitted hours on New Yeat's Eve to the start of permitted hours on New I.
Year's Day.

An additional hour on the day that British Summertime commences.

Where the |Ilcence authorises supplled of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

On and off the premises

Part 2
Namae, (registered) address, talephone number ana emaii (wnere reievant) of haider
of premise licence:

| Namme: Mr Zhangle Chen l
Address: 16 Barbican Road i
York .

YO10 5AA I

|

i Telephone number: None

! Emall address: None

‘Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 16 Barblcan Road
York
Y010 58A

| Telephiene number: None
Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premlises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcahol:

Selby District Councll
| LN/0D0006043

-



Page 178

“RIWWEX 1T = Mangatory conditions

MANDATQRY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPBLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance wlth sectlon 19 of the Llcensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must Include the following conditions.

2. The firsl condition is thet no supply of alcohol may be maile under the premises licence -
(8) at a Lime where there Is no designated premises suparylsor In respact of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hald a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condltlon Is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorisad by a person who holds a personal llcence,

4, (1) The responslible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or particlpate In any liresponsible proraotions In relation to the premises,

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar aclivities, carred on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of aleohal for consumption on the premises -

(a) vames or other activities which requlre or encourage, or are deslgned to require-or
encourage Individuals to -

(1Y drink a quantity of alcahot within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sald or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period In which the responsible person Is
iuthorised to sall or supply alcohol), or

() drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within-a Ume limit or otherwise);

(b) proviston of unlimited or unspecified quaritities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic In a manner which carrles
o slanificant risk of undermining a licensing objective; .

() provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage of
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a perlod of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol (n association with promational posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamerise antli-soclal behaviour or to refer to the effocts of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

{e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person Into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person Is unable L drink withoul assistance by reason of disabllity),

5. The responslble person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where It Is reasonably avallable.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy Is adopted In respect of the premises In refation to the sale or supply of
alcahol,

(2) The deslgnated premises supervisor In relation to the Premlses licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises Is carried on in accordance with the age verlfication
policy.

(3) The policy must require Individuals who appear to the responsible person to be undar
18 years of age {or such older age as may be specified In the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and elther -
(a) a holegraphic mark, or
(h} an ultraviolal feature,



Page 179

7. The responsible person must ensure that -
{a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up (n advance ready

for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it Is avallable to customers In the following
measures -

(i) beer or cider: Y2 pint;

(1) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

(ili) still wine In & glasgs: 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a rmeny, price list oi ather printed materal which is
avallable to customers on the premises; and

{c) where a customer does not In relation to a sale ot aicohol speclfy the quantity of aiconol te
be sold, the customer Is made aware that these measures are available,

MANDATQRY - GONDITION - ALCOHOL-PRICING

1. A relavant person shall ensure that no alcohol Is sald or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which Is less than the permitted price.

2. For the nurposes of the condition set aut in paragraph 1 -

(&) "“duty” ls to be construed In accordance with the Alcohollc Liquor Duties Act 1979,

(b) “permitted price” Is the price found by applying the formula ~ P = D + (D x V)
e S RURAA” 4 A=l o

(i) P is the permitted price,

() L s the rate of duty chargeabie in relation to ifie aiwiici as il

the date of the sale or supply of the alcohal, and

(1) V Is the rate of value added tax chargeable In relation to the alcohol as if the value added

tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

{C) “reivvaiil puisun” jneans, norelation [ premises noreapaat of which thorg s in f

premises licence -

(1) the holder of the premises licence,

(lf) the designated premises supervlisor (If any) In respect of such a licence, or

{iii) the. personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a

licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, In relation to premises In respect of which there Is in force a ciub

premlises certificate, any member or officer of the club present en the premises In a capacity

which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged In accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994,

[N cav - R
uiS uuly wel Lilgl ey wis

o ldolo iG]
AR RETCT A O PO RN TE B P STy

3. Where the permitted price glven by Paragraph (b} of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennles, the price glven by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4, (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applles where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day ("the flrst day") would be different from the permitted price on the
next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.
(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applles to sales or supplles of

alcohol which take place before the expiry of the perlod of 14 days beginning on the second
day.



Page 180

Annax Z — Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. CCTV recordings will Include, as a minimum, a head and shoulders Image of. each Individual
who enters the premises through the malf entrance.

Protectlon of Children frem Harm

2. There shall be a "Challenge 21" policy [N aperation at the premises requiring any Individual
who appears to be under the age of 21 to produce Identification Lo prove thal they are over
the age of 18, the sale of alcoliol being refused where they are unable to do so,

3. The following forms of Identification are acceptable: photocard driving licence, valid
passport, PASS accredited 'Proof of Age Card', any other form of )dentification previously
agreed with representitives of North Yaorkshire Pollee licensing Unit.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

1. Prior to uslhg the karaoke rooms customers must have consumed a meal In the restaurant,
excluding snacks,

2, Digital colour CCTV will be installed to cover the premises and will Include all areas to where
public have access for llicensable activities and whera the public can copsume alcohol, For the
purpose of clarity this will Include alt rooms and stalrways to wiilcl) the publle:-have access for
licensable actlvities and where the public can consume alcohol. )

3, It will be malntalnad, working and recording at all times when the premises are open.
4., The recordings should be of sufficlent quality to be produced in Court or other such hearing.
3. Coples of the recordings will be kept avallable for any Responsible Authorlty for 28 days.

6. Coples of the recordings will be made available to any Respansible Authority within 48hrs of
request.

7. Coples of the recordings will display the correct time and date of the recording.

8. All off sales shall be made in sealed containers save for those that are Intended for
consumptlon within the bullding.

9, After 24:00hrs the only daor used by members of the public to enter the premises shall be
the maln door on to Barblcan Road.

10, Last public ehlry to the premises shall be 24:00hrs. For the purpose of clarity no members
of the public will be allowed entry to the premises after 24:00rs untll the close of business
(this does not prevent re-entry Lo customers who have left the venue to smoke).

L1, After 24:00hrs customers who have left the venue to smoke shall he manltored by a Door

Supurvisor In a clearly demarked area at the front of the venue which will not block the
footpath,



Page 181

12, Two SIA Door Supervisors shall be pravided at the venue from 24:00us until the close of
business, with at least one staffing the main door on to Barblcan Road.

13. The only acceplable proof of age ldentification shall be a current passpart, photocard
driving licence or dentiflcation carrying the PASS logo.

14. Standard one pint capacity, half gint capaclty and “high ball tumbler” drinking glasses will

be strengthencd glass (tempered glassware) in desian whereby in the event of breakage the
glass will fragmant and no sharp cdges are left,

15, Drinking alasses of any type should not be allowed to enter or leave the premises whilst
under the customers care.

16. Documented staff training will be glven regarding the retall sale of alcohol, the conditions
attached Lo the premises licente and the opening times of the venue.

17. Such training (referred to In Condition 16) will be refreshed and documented every 6
months.

18. Such training,records (referred to in Condition 16) should be kept for at least 3 years.

19, Such tralning records (referred to Condition 16) will be made avallable for inspection Upon
request By any Reéspons|ble AUtRority. ™ ~ 7

20. A Reijusais itegister and dncident Repucl feyister will be kept. Such doduimiants vl recond

Incldents of stall refusals to underage or drunk people, as waell as Incidents of any anti-social
behaviour and ejéctions from the premises.

21, Ooth the above documants (referred 5o In Condltian 20) will ba kept for at least 3 yedrs.

22. Both the above documents (referred to in Conditlon 20) will be avallable for inspection
upon request by any Responsible Authority.

23. Prominent clear and legible notices shall be displayed at all exits requesting the public to
respect the needs of local resldents and to leave the premises and area quletly.

24. So as to ensure the Licensing Objective the prevention of crime and disorder Is not
undarmined there shall be @ maximum capaclty of 100 persons of which there shall be no
more that 30 persons on the first floor and no more that 20 persons on the second floor.

25. When the karaoke rooms are being used there shall be at least one member of staff
permanently sltuated an each floor of the venue on which the room Is being used.

26, The member of staff shall monitor the rooms that are In use and will enter each room that
is occupled no less than every 30 minutes.

27. The members of staff situated on the first and sacond floor shall be In direct radlo link with
the Door Staff.

28. All alcohol consumed In the karaoke rooms shall be served by way of walter/waitress
service,

25, No dancing Is to take place on the ground floor of the building at anytime.

30. All users of the karaoke rooms must have evidence of thelr room hire on thelr food blll as
sultable evidence of food purchasc.

1Y



Page 182

31. Al doors and windows shall be closed durlng regulated entertainment or, when
entertainment is not provided, after 23:00hrs each nlght (except for Ingress and egress).

32, A direct contact number for the duty manager shall be made avallable to residents living in
the vicinity ¢f the premises on request,

33. The use of external areas shall be restricted to 10:00hrs - 23:00hrs each day. Afler this

time, customers shall only be permitted at the front of the property, fronting onto Barblcan
Road, for the purpose of smoking,

35, A detailed noise management plan shall be devised prior Lo Lthe premises operaling, The
plan should be submilted and sgreed by the lacal licensing aythority to thelr reasonable
satisfoction prior to its Implementation, Tt stall show how nearby resldential properties will be
protected from nolse generated st the premises. The agreed noise management plan shall be
Implemented at all times during requlated entertalnment.

Annex 4 - Approved Plan - Plan Number BR.(16)/01

For and on behalf of Date: 28/09/2005

The Dlrector of Communitles 25/06/2015 (Transfer and DPS Varlatlon)
8 Neighbouthoods

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552512

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Emall: licensing.unit@york.gov.uk

York

Y010 3DS

Website! www,york.qov.tik/licensing



Page 183

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT '
Copy of Application to Vary the Designated Premises Supervisor at The
REGENCY, 2-4 George Hudson Street, YORK, YO1 6LP

This Is the Exhibit HLS/2 referred To in the:statement of Helen Louise SEFTON, dated

3 February 2020.



Page 184

PEr

SN CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
YORIK  Ucensing Ssrvicss, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Street, York, Y010
COURC)L SDS

Application to vary a premises llcence to specify an individual as deslgnated
pramises suporvisar under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.,
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly In block capitals, in all

cases ansura that yaur answers are inslde the boxes and written In black Ink, Use

addltional sheets if necessary. .

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

two  THONG LE CUWESY
{full name(s) of premises licence holder)

being the premises licence holdar, apply to vary a premlises licence to specify
the Individual named in this applicatlon as tha premises supervisor under
section 37 of the Licansing Act 2003

Premlsgs licence numbaer
CNC - OG22
Part 1 - Pramlises detalls

Postal address of premises or, If none, ordnance survey map reference ot
dascription

REAENCM
2L GEeRaGE  HUDIEN SRECT,

Post town | Post coda (if known}

NORK \Jodl &LP
Telephone number (if any)
oIGoL 6599776

Description of premises (please read guidance note 1)

CHINESE  RESTAURANT = %uPCRMPleCL




Page 185

Part 2

Natlonality
CHINESE

Place of birth
CHIWA

' Parsonal licance number of proposed deslgnated promises supsrvisor and

i issulng-authority of that licence (if any)
i

| Full name of oxisting designated premises supervisor (it any) B
L. ZHeNG LE CHEN

Please tick yes
| Would like: (hls application to have Immediate sffect undar =
section 3 of the Licensing Act 2008 (Please read guidance note 2)
| have enclosed the premises licence or relevant partof it EZ

(If you have not anclosed the premises licence, or relevant par of it, please give
reasons wiw not)

| Reasons why | have falled to enclose tho premises licence or reievant part of It

i
]
|
| have made or enclosed payment of the fes

¥ lwillgive a copy of this epplication ta the chief officer of police
(Please read Guidance note 3)

| have enclosed the consent form completed by the proposed premises

Please tick yes

RIS

)
supervisor
* I'have'enclosed tha premises licencs, or relevant part of it or explanation |zf
* L will nolify the existing premises supervisor (if any) of this application %
(Please read guidence note 4)
*  lunderstand thal If | do not comply with the above requlrements my g

applieation will ba rejected

Sea detalls of Licensing Act 2003 statutory fees: wwwyoil.goviukiLiconsingAct2003 5t
2

atuipryfeas



Page 186

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO KNOWINGLY OR
RECKLESSLY MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION,

THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A
FINE OF ANY AMOUNT,

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO
WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS.

THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT A VALID LEAVE TO ENTER OR REMAIN IN THE
UK OR AN ADULT WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS WHICH WOULD PREVENT THAT
PERSON FROM TAKING UP EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER
SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND, PURSUANT
TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO
SO IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED BY VIRTUE OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS,

Part 3 — Sighatures (please read guidance note 5)

Slgnature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent

(See guidance note 6). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what
capacity,

A%

Slgnature

bae o & lolgma

i 2 R R R R b R R R I L N T R e TP - R e e

ey MANAGES

........... Faoarreliutii et ercic et a g R AR AR e n e e b e ga A My g d e b e 4R v ele 63

For Jelnt applicants signature of 2™ applicant 2 applicant's solicltor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance hote 7). If signing on hahalif of the
applicant please state In what capaclty.

Signature

Capacily



Page 187

Contact name (where not prev al; rass-for
c ' ith this application (plense read guld_e'mpa note 8)

VREGENCY s
oy QEeRar it 8T REET

Posttowp, . Post Code
st loWD R PUET oo

Telephofic homber (ifdny] ™ =

If you would prefor us to corraspond with vou by o-mail your e-mail addvass
{optinnal)




Page 188

’ CiEy o

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
YOR K Licansing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Streat, York, Y010
COUNETL 30S )

Canseont of individual to being speclfied as premises supervisor

of

hereby confirm that | give my consent to be speclfied as the designated premises
supervisor In relation to the application for

APKCATION, To VARM D82 ...

(type of application]

by
[name of applicant]
. b Y B =~ 2
relating to a premises licence CNE, = OSAAST
[rumber of existing licance, If any!
for

REGENC, 2k GEORGE. HUDGeR) STRECT, MORK

m‘uur ind aeliions uwfemhes o m’n‘ch the application relates) \{O :L_ 6 LP



Page 189

Guigance notes

1
2

.s' —

N B

. Describe the promizes. For oxample the type ul premises it Is, '
. An application to vary the premises licence so as 1o name a dilierent premises

supervisor may be givan immaediate effect {thal is, from the lime the application 1s
recalvad by lhe licensing autharlty) if the premises llicence holder raquesls it al the ime
he makes an application under Secllon 37, Section 38 enables the holds of a
premises lleance to conlinue the supply of alcohol If, for exa mple, the existing premises
supetvisor s suddenly lndisposed or unable 1n wark, If the application is rejocted, tha
lleenicn rovents 1o the form Il look befora the application was made,
Afulicopy of the application Torm musl be sent to tha chiaf officar(s) of police for the
police area(s) jn which he premises are situated, The notlce should stale whether
sectlon 38 of that Act (direumatanaas In whizh seclion 37 application given lnterin
affact) applies to the application,

Saclion 37{4)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the pramises licenca halder lo
nolify the existing designatad preimlses supetvisor (if any) about this application, It is
sulficiont far e lleensse Lo inform the existing prenlises supervisor In wiiting, without
the need Lo share tha specific details of the application, The notice shauld slate
whathor section 36 of that Act (circumsiances In which seclion 37 application glven
Interim effect) applies to the application.

The application form mus! ba sigaed,

An applieant's agent (for example soliciior) may sign the form on thair behalf provided
that thay have actual authority 16 do so.

Where thare is more than one applicant, both applicants or thelr respective agents
must slan the applicatlon form,

This Is the address which wa shall use to correspond with you abiout (his epplicatlan.




Page 190

and any premises licence (o be granted ot varied in respect of this application made by

[name of applicant)

concerning the supply of aicohol at

[name and address of pramises to which appllcaluon miales} {(\
| also confirm that | am entitled to work in the Unlted Kingdom and am applying for,

Intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which 1 set out
below.

Personal licance number

[Insert personal licence number, If any]
Personal licence issuing autharity

LEEDS T CoUNY (L

R R R R R L N R NN N T

{insert name and addrsss and telephone numbar of parsonal ficence Issuing aulhor/ty, I eny]

Sighed
R (R ) e ——
Date asliolig



Page 191

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT
Copy of Letter dated 28 November 2019

This is the Exhibit HLS/3 referred to in the statement of Helen Louise SEFTON, dated

3 February 2020.



Page 192

Economy and Place

o COUNCIL Eco Depot

Hazel Court

York

YQ10 3DS
Mr Zhong Le Chen
21a Blake Street Tel: 01804 552422
York E-mall:  licensin

-mall: g@yark.gov.uk

YO1 8QJ

Ask for:  Helen Sefton
Ourref.  cyc 530837

Delivered by hand 28 November 2019

Dear Sir

Licensing Act 2003
The Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York

I am writing to you as the premises licence holder at the above address
and further to receipt of an application to vary the Deslgnated Premises
Supervisor {(DPS) made In accordance with Section 37 of the above Act,

My colleague Mr Woodhead wrote to you on 13 November 2019 to
advise that we were not in a position to proceed with this application.
Furthermore the Licensing Authority has not received the original
premises licence as required by Section 37 (3), (b) of the Act.

| would like to speak to both you and your proposed new DPS Mr
“ about this application. We have made attempts to call and

email you'in addition to the hand delivered letters but so far no contact

has been made. You are therefore invited to attend an informal interview

at the City of York Council Hazel Court, Eco Depot, James Street, York,
YO10 3DS.

| would be grateful if you could contact me on 01804 562422 or via the
email address above to arrange a mutually beneficial date for that
interview. If | do not hear from you within 14 days we will be following this
up by making visits to the premises to resolve this matter.

Yours sincerely

Helen Sefton
Senior Licensing Officer

ww.york.gav.uk

Director; Neil Ferris Fublic Protection



Page 193

Copy to:
* North Yorkshire Police Licensing Team, via emall
¢ MrZhong Le Chen, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1 8LP




Page 194

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 2

A statement from Nigel Woodhead, Licensing Enforcement Officer



Page 195

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

WITNESS STATEMENT OF Nigel Philip Woodhead. .

l, Nigel Philip Woodhead the Licence Enforcement Officer of City of York
Council, Eco Depot, Hazel Court, York, make thls statement in support of an
application by The Council Of The City Of York for a review of a premises
licence, namely Regency Restaurant, George Hudson Street, York and
Regency Restaurant, Barbican Road, York

1 | declare that the contents of this my statement are true and correct to th

Sy [} ]

o

best of my knowledge and belief. | make this statement in the knowledge
that it will be used in premises licence review proceedings.

2. I make this statement based upon the records held by the Council. The
information provided in this witness statement is within my own

knowledge, unless expressly stated otherwise.
3.

i am the Licence Enforcement Officer for the City of York Council and part of
my duties are to enforce all legislation with premises licensed by this authority
under the Licensing Act 2003.

Inthe st;mmer of 2019 | was asked by the Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton
to assist in a multi agency visit to two premises in York by the name of Regency.
About 16.30hrs on Friday 8" September 2019 | attended a briefing at Fuilord
Road Police Station. In attendance were officers from North Yorkshire Police,

HMRC, Home Office Immigration Enforcement, The Gangmasters and Labour



Page 196

Abuse Authority, North Yorkshire Fire Authority Officers, City of York Council

ifinss o =l tt "
Housing-Enfereementeoffieers-and-severatinterproters:

About 18.00hrs the same day | attended at the Regency Restaurant and
Supermarket at 2-4 George Hudson Street, York. Also in attendance were
officers from HMRC, Immigration and North Yorkshire Police. Two interpreters
were also in attendance. Once inside the premise | spoke to the female
manager named as YAN FENG. Ms FENG also goes by the name of 'Tina',
The Premise Licence Holder (PLH) and Designated Premise Supervisor (DPS)
ZHONG LE CHEN was not present.

| took ‘Tina' to a table to go through the conditions on the Premise Licence.
Whilst speaking to her she was constantly looking around and trying to use her
mobile phone and told not to by the police as well as looking at a CCTV monitor
which showed various areas of the premises. Several breaches of the
conditions were identified as follows with the number of the condition appearing
in brackets

(2)The CCTV was displaying wrong time and date

(6) Yan Feng is the only person who can download footage

(7) There Is no documented staff training

(9) There is no incident bo'ok/refusals register

(16) Na notices asking the public to leave quietly

Throughout my dealings with her she was very un co-operative and wouldn't
say much to me. She was then spoken to by Immigration and HMRC.

I can produce a copy of Part A of the premise licence as an exhibit marked

NPW/1,



Page 197

| then walked round the premises including going into the basement under the

supermarket part of the premises where | saw that two police officers had found
several suitcases containing female clothing along with paperwork that
appeared to be in Chinese and also unsigned letters from the University of York.

About 19.30hrs | was then called to the Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road,

~“York'Where | met tp with My colleagues, Leslay COOKE (Licensing Manager)

and Heien SEFTON. i noted near the entrance to the premises from the car
park there was a blocked drain which was overflowing with fowl water and
grease. | went up onto the first floor where the karaoke rooms were and found
a strong smell of cigarette smoking as well as used cigaretles and ash in a
basin on the floor of the gent's toilet. There were also sets of dice and dice
shakers in each karaoke room.

| went itjto the kitchen where the fire alarm was being tested and noted that
there was a large amount of water on fhe flour which was flowlng out of the
bottom of a kitchen unit.

Kevin CAULFIELD from North Yorkshire Fire and Rescue service was testing
the alarm with a Chinese male | now know to be the Manager—
whose real name [s-. The Fire Officer informed us that due
to a defect on the fire alarm system he would be issuing a prohibition notice
which would prohibit any parsons from sleeping on the premises.

About 11.15hrs on Thursday 24™ October 2019 in company with the North
Yorkshire Police Licensing Officer Pc Kim HOLLIS we attended at The Regency
Restaurant on George Hudson Street, York for the purpose of carrying out a
routine inspection. The manager YAN FENG was not present and neither was

the PLH and DPS ZHONG LE CHEN. WE spoke to another female who gave



Page 198

her name as - She said that she was in charge and on going through

the~conditiors-of-ficenteitwas oEd I e S5 conditions were being

breached as of my 6" September visit. M. said that did not know how to work
the CCTV system. As a result of the inspection Pc HOLLIS issued the premises
with a Section 19, Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 closure notice giving
the premises seven days to rectify the breaches. This was clearly explained to
Ms.and she signed the notice.

About 12.10hrs the same day again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at the
Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road, York, again to carry out a routine
inspection. We spoke with the manager— The PLH and DPS
ZHONG LE CHEN was not present. It was seen when the top floor of the
premises were checked that several males were resident in bedrooms who
appeared to be of Eastern European descent. Details of the males were
obtained by Pc HOLLIS. They stated that they were not employed by the
restaurant. On checking the karaoke rooms the dice and dice shakers were still
in situ. Several breaches of the licence conditions were noted including the fact
that the CCTV was not connected, no staff paper records, no incident/refusals
book and no notices asking for customers to leave the premises quietly. Pc
HOLLIS then issued -with a Section 19, Criminal Justice and Police Act
2001 closure notice giving the premises seven days to rectify the breaches
which he duly signed.

At 10.30hrs on Thursday 31% October again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at
The Regency Restaurant on George Hudson Street where we again spoke with
@D \sither YAN FENG or PLH and DPS ZHONG LE CHEN were

present. All the condition breaches had been rectified apart from the fact that



Page 199

the CCTV system was still showing the wrong date and time and the premises

S5Ue a Section 19, Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001
notice by Pc HOLLIS giving them another seven days to rectify the CCTV fault.
About 12.15hrs the same day again with Pc HOLLIS we attended at the
Regency Restaurant on Barbican Road where we spoke with -
T — -'.11"\?&'53 noted thatall the ficence conditions were now being applied with
and thé Section 18, Criminai Justice and Police Act 2007 notice was iifted.
On Monday 4" November 2019 the Licensing office received an Application to
vary a premises licence to specify an individual as designated premises
supervisor under the Licensing Act 2003. The application was in the name of
Zhong Le Chen and was for the Regency premises at 2-4 George Hudson

Street, York, YO1 6LP,

The new DPS who had signed the necessary consent form was to be a -

G © G - c o vesono
licence | P issucd by Leeds City Coungil,

The application was copied and sent to the North Yorkshire Licensing Office at
Fulford Road, York.

As a result of information then received | wrote a letter to ZHONG LE CHEN
stating ihat we couldn't accept the application over problems with .
@ riot to work in this country. This was hand delivered to both 2-
4 George Hudson Street and the PLH address at 21a Blake Street, York, YO1

8QJ. { can produce a copy of this letter as NPW/2

| BELIEVE THAT THE FACTS STATED IN THIS WITNESS STATEMENT
ARE TRUE.



Signed

Page 200

Daled 2™ January 2020




Page 201

IN THE MATTER OF AN APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES

LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003
EXHIBIT
Copy of Premise Licence for Regency Restaurant, 2-4 George Hudson
Street, York

This is the Exhlbit NPW/1 referred to in the statement of Nigel Philip
Woadhead, dateid 2 dannary 2020,



Page 202

ORK

o COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003

PREMISES LICENCE
Schedule 12

Part A
Premises licence_n:mber J

Part 1 Premises details Rl —
Postal address of premises;
2-4 George Hudson Street
York
Post town: York Past code: YO1 6LP
Telephone number: 01904 623656
Expiry date: This llcence has no expiry date,
Licensable activities authorised by the licence:
Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol
RECORDED MUSIC
Indoors
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00 10:00 - 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 24:00




Page 203

b T AITEet i I
L5 o L S i

il a0l L
THTESTTrETey

Indoors
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00 23:00 - 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday
23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 24:00
__SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL -

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10;00 24.00 10:00 24.00 10:00 24:00 10:00 24:00
Friday Saturday Sunday
10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 24:00
The Opening Hours of the Premises

‘ OPENING HOURS

| Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday

| LRG0 2400 1000 2400 10:00 24:00 10:00 24109
Friday Saturday Sunday

| 23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 24:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
‘ supplies:

On and off the premise

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of premise licence:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
‘ Address: 21a Blake Street
York
YO1 8QJ

‘ Telephone number: 07477030338

Emall address: service@ukregency.com




Page 204

f the
premises-ieenseauthorises-far-thesupply-of-aleohol
Name; Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 21a Blake Street
York
Y01 8Q)J

Telephone number: 01757 705101

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by dééi_gnated
premlises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Selby District Council
LN/000006043

Annex 1 — Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions,

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff an relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises,

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more af the following
activities, or substantially similar actlvitles, carrled on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption an the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage Individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person Is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible {whether within a time limit or otherwise);

{b) provisian of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcahol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objectlve;




Page 205

A 1 -
o)y s f L f rln;rnrc QL. bl

vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other persan is unable to drink withpul assistance by reasan of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water Is provided an request to
customers where [t Is reasonably avallable,

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopled in respect of the premises in refation to the sale or supply of
aicohol.

(2) The designated premises supervisor {ii relation to Lhe premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcahol at the premlses s carried onin accordance with the age veriflcation
pallcy.

(3) The policy must require individuals who sppeai to the respansibie person ta be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograpn, date of birth and either -
(a) a holographic mark, or
{5 an aitraviolet feature.

7. The responsible persan miist anaure that -
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for cansumption on the
premiges (nther than alcoholic drinks sold ar supolled having been made up In advance ready

for sale or supply In a securely closed container) it is available to customers In the tollowing
measures -

(i) beer or cider: ¥ pint;

(i) ain, rum, vodla ar whislar 25mi ar 35ml: and

{iliy still wine in a glass: 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does hot in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -
(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P = D + (D xV)
where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcahol, and

(i) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohoi as if the vaiue added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person“ means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,
(i) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

il the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of aleohol under such a
licence;



Page 206

(AT TEIEValT PeErsomn means, M reauon 10 Premises 17 respect of Which there 15 m Torce 8 club
X et

" y . " L) ™1 SES T Capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994,

3. Where the permitted price glven by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny,

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price

on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value

added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applles to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

MANDATQRY CONDITION: DOOR SUPERVISION

1. In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified
times one or more Individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the
licence must include a condition that each such individuat must -

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed -

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences autherising plays or films), or

(b) in respect of premises in relation Lo -

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8 (3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule {premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence, or

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedute (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act),

3. For the purposes of this section -

(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Scheduie appiies,
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that Act), and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an accasion) applies as It
applles In relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. A colour digital CCTV system shall be installed within the premises and be operational and
recording at all times when licensable actlvities take place.



Page 207

2. The CCTV equipment shall have constant time/date generation Which must e checken o a

daily basls for accuracy,

3. CCTV cameras shall be Installed to provide adequate cover of all public areas in the
premises {excluding toilets).

4. The CCTV system must be capable of providing quality images of good evidential value.
Recordings must be kept far @ minimum of 28 days.

5. North Yorkshire Pollce or a Responsible Authority (as defined in the Licensing Act 2003)

may at any lime reques a recording, This should be complied with within 24 hours of the
request being made.

6. It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the CCTvV
systern at the request of the palice or respounsible authority.

7. A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of stalf at the
premises in respect of the:-

a\l Pl S

b) age verification policy;

r) conditions attached to the Premises Lirance;
d) permitted licensable activities;

e) the licensing obiectives; and

f) opening times for the venue.

ratmil naln af aleakhnl:
SICONC

with sud 1eurds being kepl fof & minmunm of anc year, [For the avoidance of doubt, the one
yoar periard rolates to each respective entry in the loq baok and runs from the date of that
particular entry].

8. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 policy for the sale of alcohol.

9. An incident book / refusals register will be kept at the premises and made available on
request to an autharised officer or the police which will record the following:-

2) all alcohol related crimes reported to the venue

b) any complaints received regarding alcohol related crime and disorder
¢) any faults in the CCTV system

d) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

10, Alcohalic drinks purchased on the premises may only be taken off the premises in sealed
containers.

11. All alcohol on sales will be ancillary to @ meal, sold by waitress service and for seated
consurnption only.

12. The-restaurant section of. the premises will be.securely.dividable fram the Supermarket
area when the Supermarket is nat in use. The restaurant will be laid out with seatlng and
tables to accommodate a minimum of 40 seated patrons at any one time.

13. There shall be a minimum of one door supervisor on duty at the restaurant premises from
23.00hrs to close of business at all times when open-to-the public & undertaking-licensable
activity beyond 01:00hrs,



Page 208

T W TET e OO S PeT VIS OTS are O Oty tHeEy ST SIgTT T armd Ut of the Prefses 10y UookK,

-providing full-detals-ofthelerame-and - SIA-pumbas:
15. The Deslgnated Premises Supervisor shall be responsible for risk assessing the need for
additional door staff at the venue on days of York Races, on Fridays, Saturdays or bank
holidays or other locally or nationally significant events,

Public Nulsance

16. Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exit requesting the public to
respect the needs of nearby residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

17. Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business wlll be carried out at such a
time or in such a manner as to prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

No hearing held

Annex 4 - Approved Plan

Plan Number Endorsed on the 12/08/2015

For and on behalf of Date: 10/09/2015
The Director of Communities
8 Nelghbourhoods

Licensing Services Phone; 01904 552512

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Emall: licensing.unit@york.gov.uk
York Website: www . yark.qov. uk/licensing

YO10 3DS



Page 209

ICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES
LICENCE

THE LICENSING ACT 2003

EXHIBIT
Copy of letter sent to DPS ZHONG LE CHEN at 21a Blake Street, York

This is the Exhibit NPW/2 referred to in the statement of Nigel Philip
Woodhead, dated 2" January 2020.



Page 210

Ecanamy & Place

COUrNCTL

Hazel Court EcoDepot
James Street

York
Y010 3DS
Mr Zhong Le CHEN Tel: 01904 552422
21a Blake Street Fax: 01804 551590
York Email: licensing @york.gov.uk
YO18QJ
13" November 2019
Dear Mr Chen

Licensing Act 2003
Application for Variation of Designated Premise Supervisor
Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP

| am wriling to you loday to inform you that we cannot proceed with the proposed variation to
your Designated Premise Supervisor al the above premises It has been
brought te our attention by the relevant Authorities thal Mi does not have the right to
work in this country and therefore his Personal Licence to supply alcohol is not valid, this
having lapsed al the time that his right to work ended or at the time that Schedule 4 of the
Immigration Act 2016 came into force.

In order to proceed we will have to receive another application and until we do you will be
remaining as the Designated Premise Supervisor unless we hear to the contrary.

Further investigations will need to be made into this matter and it may well be that we will
have to formally interview you with regard to the checks that you make on your employees

Yours sincerely

Nigel Woodhead
Licence Enforcement Officer
City of York Council

Dj - Nei i
irector: Neil Ferris www.york.gov.uk

ﬂuﬂﬂqﬂhm



Page 211

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
" under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 3

A statement from Glynn Jones, Immigration Officer at the Home Office



Page 212

Government Security Classiflcation OFFIGIAL SENSITIVE | MG1_1 I

Appraved for Immigroilon Enforcement use ~ Aprll 2014

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procadure Rules, r 27, 2; CtminalJustice Act 1967, s 9; Magistrates - Courte-Ast-49805-8E—

URN | GRJ'"["eeis | 07012020 | 1 ’
Statement of: Glynn Ronald JONES '
Age if under 18: Over 18 (if aver 18 Insert ‘over 18 Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 2 (iwd) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, { shall be llable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not belieye la be true.

LT 0 1o (V] £ e, (WIthess)  Date: 07/01/2020 _J

L amn the person named above and T am employed by the Home Office as au Jmmigration Officer. [ amn currently a membey
of (ke Arrest Team, Yorkshire & [Tumberside [CE (YHICE) based at Watersids Court, Kirkstall Road, Teeds LS4 2QB. 1
have been employed by the Home Office since October 20073, My position as an IMMIGRATION OFFICER grants me
access to information held on Home Oftice systems that stores details of enforsement visits conducted by YRICE and the

fumbers of arrested persons and their naticnalities from each of those visits,

On 10" DECEMBFR 2019, [ was requested to provide a summary of YHICE vigits conducted Lo hoth the REGENCY, 16
BARBICAN ROAD, YORK. Y310 SAA and the REGENCY, 2-4 GEORGE HUNSON STREET, YORK YOI 6I.P in
terms of breaches of the IMMIGRATION ACT 197] (AS AMENDED), as purt of on-going enquiries into the two

businesses.

HOME OT¥ICE records show YHICE have conducted EIVE enforcement visils to the REGENCY, 16 BARBICAN
ROAD, YORK YO10 SAA which are recorded below,

1). 7% JUNE 2014 - 2 Chinese nationals arrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING, and 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (CLANDESTINE)
(inilially provided false details and luter found (o have bzen previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTRANT
(CLANDLSTINE)).

2} 21" MAY 2017 1 Chinese national acresied for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant luave with no pesmission to
wolk).

3). 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 - 6 Chinesc nationals arrested; 4 for OVERSTAYING their leave, and 2 for ILLEGAL ENTRY
(ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE),

4). 16" MARCH 2018 - No arrests wore made, all staff present had permission to live and work in the United Kingdom.
5). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 - 3 Chincse nationals anested; 1 for OVERSTAVING heir lm;ve, 1 for WORKING IN
BREACH (held extant leuve with no permission Lo work) and 1 as a PERSON LIARLE 'O DETENTION (previously
REFUSED LEAVE TO ENTER but granted temporary udmission/bail at port following an application for leave to remain,

and subsequently failed to appear for an interview to progeess their application),

Signatures.. ... R Signature witnessed by: ... ..

1 2014 »_‘J l Government Securlty Classification OFFIC_iAL SENSI%I_VE—l



Page 213

Government Securlty Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE l MG11 I
Approved for Imnalgration Euforcenient usa— Aprll 2014

Similarty, HOME OFFICE recordy show YHICE hive eonducted THREE sofbreement visits o the REGENCY, 2-4

GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YO ! 61.P which are tecorded.belaw,

1). ™ APRIL 2017 -1 Ch;nesc national arvested for TLLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).
1), g™ SEPTEMBER 2017
permission to work)

3), 6" SEPTEMBER 2019

1 Chinese natioon) arrested for WORKING IN BREACH (Leld exlunl leuve with ng

4 Chinese nationals arresied; 1 for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant leave with no
permiasion to work), I for ILLEGAL ENTRY (VERBA( DECRPTION) hy providing infarmation to en Entey Closranes

T Offioer wiieh Wy Tater Tonnd not t e tawe, witich, it 11 hid hoan (isolosed nt e fime of the appiication wanld have fod to

ilie entry cloarance beng relused, | lor (LIEGAL ENTRY (BRTRY WITHOUT LEAVLE), and 1 for heing 4 PERSON
[TABTE TO DETENTION (previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTIRANT (ENTRY WITIIQUT LEAVE) aad faifed to

ndhere to theit bail conditions by failing to report to the Home Office, and working without peausissior),

I'kis witness statement was made and completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 7 JANUARY 2020 at 14:15 hrs,

Signature:........ccou Signature witnessed by: ...

P T L T O L P T P T F T

l 2014 ] Govarnment Security Clz;ssiﬁcatfon OFFICIAL SENSITIVE



Page 214

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix 4

A copy of the summonses relating to Food Safety and Hygiene Offences



Page 215

SUMMONS

N THE COUNTY OF NORTH YORKSHIRE

YORK MAGISTRATES COURT

The Law Courts, Clitford Sireel, York, YO1 ORE

01904 818300
CODE: 2641
ACCUSED: China Regency Lid
Co. NU MEBER: 10961793
ADDRESS: 16 Barhican Road
York
YO10 5AA

You are heraby gummonsed O appear on 14 August 2018 at 10am before the
Magistrates’ Court at The Law Courts, Clifford Sireel, York, to answer the following
informatlon:

ALLEGED OFFENCE:

Count 1

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 al he Regency ustauaii, 16
Barbican Road, in the City of York being a food business operator did fail lo comply with a
Community provision, namely to keep food premises clean and maintained in good repair
and condition, contrary lo Annex 1| Chapter | Paragraph | and Adticle 4(2) of Regulation
(EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England)

Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European Communities
Act 1872

Count 2

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Rastaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in tha Cily of York being a food business operator did fail to comply with a
Community Provision, namely to provide washbasins with materials for cleaning hands
and hygienic drying, contrary o Annex Il Chapter 1 Paragraph 4 and Article 4(2) of
Regutation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safely and Hygiene

(England) Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European
Communities Acl 1972

Count 3

That you betwesn 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the City of Y rk being a food business operator you failed to comply
with a Community provision, namely to effectively clean and disinfact all articles, fittings
and equipment with which food comes into contact, contrary 1o Annex || Chapter V
Paragraph Ka) and Article 4(2) of Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the

VWA/LCNL.622 (1187034)




Page 216

Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 made under section 2(2) of the
European Communities Act 1972

PROSECUTOR: Andrew Docherty, Assistant Director Legal & Governance
on behalf City of York Council

ADDRESS: Legal Services, West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA
DATE OF INFORMATION: 22 June 2018

]
..... ? R R PR R PP

LATE: 28 JUN 2018

VWA/LCN1.622 (1187034)



Page 217

SUMMONS

I THE COUNTY OF NORTH YORKSHIRE
YORK MAGISTRATES COURIT
The Law Courts, Clifford Street, York, YO1 9RE
01904 818300
CODE: 2541
ACCUSED: Xiu Lan Chen _
DATE OF BIRTH: 18 August 1976
ADDRESS: 16 Barbican Road

York

YO10-5AA

You are hereby summonsed to appear on 14 August 2018 at 10am before the

Magistrates’ Court at The Law Courts, Clifford Street, York, to answer the following
information:

Count 1

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the City of York being a food business operator did fail to comply with a
Community provision, namely to keep food premises clean and maintained in good repair
and condition, contrary to Annex Il Chapter | Paragraph | and Article 4(2) of Regulation
(EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England)
Reguiations 2013 (as amended) made- under section 2(2) of the European Communities
Act 1872 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency Limited, and the said
offence was committed with your consent or connlvance or Is attributable to your neglect,
contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013

Count 2

That you between 2 January 2018 and 2 March 2018 at the Regency Restaurant, 16
Barbican Road, in the City of York being a food business operator did fail to comply with a
Community Provision, namely to provide washbasins with materials for cleaning hands
and hyglenic drying, contrary to Annex |l Chapter 1 Paragraph 4 and Article 4(2) of
Regulation (EC) No 852/2004-and Regulation 19 of the Food Safety and Hygiene
(England) Regulations 2013 (as amended) made under section 2(2) of the European
Communilties Act 1972 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency Limited, and
the said offence was committed with your consent or connivance or is attributable to your

neglect, contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations
2013 .

VWA/LCNI.622 (1187038)



Page 218

Count 3

Tmmmmmmwmam 16

P E FAMEEHS ot 3 NI ULVET o YL e t! lUL.U[T]pl
with a Communlty prowsion name|y to effectnvely clean and dlsinfect all articles, ﬁttlng;J
and equipment with which food comes into contact, contrary to Annex Il Chapter v
Paragraph (a) and Article 4(2) of Regulation (EC) No 852/2004 and Regulation 19 of the
Food Safety and Hygiene (England) Regulations 2013 made under section 2(2) of the
European Communities Act 1972 and at that time you were a Director of China Regency
Limited, and the said offence was committed with your consent or connivance or is
attributable to your neglect, contrary to Regulation 20 of the Food Safety and Hygiene
(England) Regulations 2013

PROSECUTOR: Andrew Docherty, Assistant Director Legal & Governance
on behalf City of York Council
ADDRESS: Legal Services, West Offices, Station Rise, York, YO1 6GA

DATE OF INFORMATION: 22 June 2018

................

Clerk to the Jﬁsilcaifdt@tlm.af-me'iﬂﬁﬁﬁf
DATE: i2 § JUN 2018 N

VWA/LCNIL.622 (1187038)



Page 219

Application for a review of a premises licence or club premises certlficate
under the Licensing Act 2003

Appendix.s

A copy of the signed simple caution relating to the sale of the knife to a person under
the age of elghteen



-2 85

&

CIYyY ©

YORK

Page 220

Public Protection
Eco Depot, Hazel Court

York Y010 3DS
T, .

COLMLA 1)
N\

CASE REFERENCE: 2628 /9

SIMPLE CAUTION (COMPANY)

COMPANY NAME:

COMPANY REGISTERED ADDRESS:

COMPANY REGISTERED NO:

DATE of OFFENCE(S):
PLACE of OFFENCE(S):

BRIEF CIRCUMSTANCES of OFFENCE(S)

That you on 18 July 2017 in the City of York sold to a person under the age of eighteen an article,
namely a knife, contrary to section 141A of the Criminal Justice Act 1988.

York Regency Associates Ltd.
4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP
09197841

18 July 2017
In the City of York

PLEASE READ THE 'NOTES AND DECLARATION AND MAKE SURE YOU UNDERSTAND IT BEFORE YOU SIGN,

DECLARATION

i have read and understand all this information.

| hereby declare that |, '7:2 ne

cens

, am authorised by the Company?

to admit the offence(s) described above and agree to accept a Caution in this case. | understand that
a record will be kept of this caution and that it may influence a decision to institute proceedings should
the Company be found to be infringing the law in the future. | further understand that this Caution may
be cited should the Company subsequently be found guilty of an offence by a Court of Law. | also
understand that in some circumstances the Company may be under a duty to disclose the existence of

this Caution.
[ NAME (Block capitals) ’(1(\/'[4( 'ff{‘rbg' ., SIGNED: _
| POSITION WITH THE COMPANY |, //{/7,, ceger
DATED THIS (9 DAYof ., [/ 2007
AFTER A SIGNATURE HAS BEEN ADDED ABOVE, AN OFFICER OF GITY OF YORK COUNGIL
WILL COUNTERSIGN AND RETURN A COPY.
J NAME (Biock capitals) MATTHEW BOXALL SIGNED:
[ DESIGNATION Acting Head of Public Protection
DATED THIS 23 DAY of M ove o 20 177

! SEE NOTES OVERLEAF

2 ONLY DIRECTORS/AUTHORISED OFFICERS QF THE COMPANY MAY SIGN



NOTES:

Page 221

The Company admits to committing the offence(s) shown above. A simple caution

is not a criminal conviction, but | understand that detalls of the caution may be Kept

Sd

on any national convictions databases.

If new evidence comes to light suggesting that the offence(s) the Company has
committed are more serious, you might still take legal action against the Company.

If there are any victims as a result of these offences, they might still take civil action

against the company and you might give the name and address of the Company's
registered office to the victims so they can do this.

If the Company is chargeﬂ with another offence and we ga to rourt, you will tell the
court that the company has received this simple caution.

if the Company applies for certain licences connected with the business, e.g. under
the Consumer Credit Act 1974 or Licensing Act 2003, this caution may be taken
into account in any decision whether to issue any licence.

| also understand that in some circumﬁtances the Comp;my may be under a duty to
disclose the existence of this Caution.



Page 222

| Economy and Place Directorate

Eco Depot
Hazel Court

YorkXQJ0 3DS

1 3s

For the addressee only Tel: 01904 551598

Yantong Feng Email: jane.aird@york.gov.uk
3 Lincombe Bank Our ref: 2629

Leeds Date: 21 November 2017
LS8 1QG

Dear Yantong Feng

Simple Caution — Sale of a Knife to a Minor

Public Protection has received a signed caution in relation to the sale of
a knife to a minor. | have noted that the caution has been signed by Tina
Feng (please see the copy enclosed), whom I note is not a Director or
Company Secretary of York Regency Associates Ltd. We are happy to
accept the signed caution however we would like to make sure you are
aware of this document.

Please contact me if you wish to discuss this further. If | do not hear from
you | will assume that you are happy for Ms Feng to sign the caution and
it will be processed.

Yours sincerely

Jane Aird
Trading Standards Officer

Corporate Director Economy and Place: Neil Ferris www.yark.gov.uk
v o kbbb ated



Page 223

A‘yvxé;ac 2

—_—
’44‘

o
\“b CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE
Schedule 12

Part A
Premises licence number

Part 1 Premises details CYC - 053937
Postal address of premises:
2-4 George Hudson Street
York
Post town: York Post code: YO1 6LP
Telephone number: 01904 623656
Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date.
Licensable activities authorised by the licence:
Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol
RECORDED MUSIC
Indoors
Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 00:00




Page 224

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indoors

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00
rriday Saturday sunday

23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 00:00

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 00:00
'The Opening Hours of the Premises

OPENING HOURS

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 -00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - U3:30 1U:00 - VULV

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies:

On and off the premises

T e ]
1L &

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder
of premises licence:

Name: Mr Zhongle Chen
Address: 21a Blake Street
York
YO1 8QJ

Telephone-number:-07477030338

Email address: service@ukregency.com




Page 225

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mrs Yan Tong Feng
Address: 3 Lincombe Bank
Gledhow
Leeds
LS8 1QG

Telephone number: None

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Leeds City Council
LEEDS/PERL/10402/20

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises -

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;




Page 226

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

(2) The designated premisces supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification
policy.

(3)-The-policy-must-require-individuais-who-appear-to-the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either -
(a) a holographic mark, or
(b) an ultraviolct featurce.

7. The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the followIng alcoholic drinks is sold ur supplied fur consumption v Lhe
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply In a securely closed container) it is avaiiabie to customers in the foiiowing
measures -

(i} beer or cider: A pint;

(i) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25ml or 35ml; and

(iit) still wine in a glass: 125ml,

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979,

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P =D + (D x V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii)-\_is_the rate_of value added tax chargeable_in_relation to_the alcohol_as_if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;

-



Page 227

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994.

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price

on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value

added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

MANDATORY CONDITION: DOOR SUPERVISION

1. In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the
licence must include a condition that each such individual must -

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed -

(a) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to -

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8 (3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence, or

(i) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act).

3. For the purposes of this section -

(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that Act), and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. A colour digital CCTV system shall be installed within the premises and be operational and
recording at all times when licensable activities take place.



Page 228

2. The CCTV equipment shall have constant time/date generation which must be checked on a
daily basis for accuracy.

3. CCTV cameras shall be installed to provide adequate cover of all public areas in the
premises (excluding toilets).

4. The CCTV system must be capable of providing quality imagcs of good cvidential valuc.
Recordings must be kept for a minimum of 28 days.

5. North Yorkshire Police or a Responsible Authority (as defined in the Licensing Act 2003)
may at any time request a recording. This should be complied with within 24 hours of the
request being made.

&. Itis the responsibility of the management to ensure that there

are sufficient members of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the CCTV

system at the request of the police or responsible authority.

7. A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the
premises in respect of the:-

a) retail sale of alcohaol,;
b) age verification policy;

d) permltted Iicensable actlvltles
e) the licensing objectives; and
) opening times for the venue.

with cuch records hmng kepi— for 2 minimum of one vear,

ar
vear period relates to each respective entry in the log bo ok and runs from the date of that
particular entry].

[For the avoidance of douht. the one

hatiit

8. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 policy for the sale of alcohol.

9. An incident book / refusals register will be kept at the premises and made available on
request to an authorised officer or the police which will record the following:-

d} ail aicoi
b) any complalnts received regarding alcohol related crime and disorder
c) any faults in the CCTV system

d) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

10. Alcoholic drinks purchased on the premises may only be taken off the premises in sealed
containers.

11. All alcohol on sales will be ancillary to a meal, sold by waitress service and for seated
consumption only.

12. The restaurant section of the premises will be securely dividable from the Supermarket
area when the Supermarket is not in use. The restaurant will be laid out with seating and
tables to accommodate a minimum of 40 seated patrons at any one time.

13. There shall be a minimum of one door supervisor on duty at the restaurant premises from
23:00hrs to close of business at all times when open to the public & undertaking licensable
activity beyond 01:00hrs.



Page 229

14. Where door supervisors are on duty they shall sign in and out of the premises log book,
providing full details of their name and SIA number.

15. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall be responsible for risk assessing the need for

additional door staff at the venue on days of York Races, on Fridays, Saturdays or bank
holidays or other locally or nationally significant events.

Public Nuisance

16. Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exit requesting the public to
respect the needs of nearby residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

17. Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a

time or in such a manner as to prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

No hearing held

Annex 4 - Approved Plan

Plan Number Endorsed on the 12/08/2015

For and on behalf of Date: 10/09/2015

The Director of Economy 12/02/2020 (DPS Variation)
& Place

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Email: licensing@york.gov.uk

York Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing

YO10 3DS



Page 230



Page 231

= |
boiler
Toilets
& ] l . o
b kitchen
store
ey
‘Jm | [

X
i
4%
7
e

3

:

H §
i

7RIV 4




Page 232



Page 233

Police Representation

Lhe Regency
George Hudson Street
York
YO1 6GA

City of York Council
Licensing Services
Hazel Court EcoDept
James Street

York

YO10 3DS

St March 2020
Dear Sir/Madam,

As the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police, | am delegated on behalf of the Chief
Constable to respond to all applications under the Licensing Act 2003. This representation relates to
the Licensed Premises, The Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street York YO1 6LP, and for which the
Police deem that the Premise Licence holder and Designated Premises Supervisor Mr Zhong Le
Chen has undermiined the licensing objective Prevention of Crime and Disorder, which will be
evidenced below.

Mr Zhongle (Zhong Le) CHEN has been the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises
Supervisar since 10" September 2016. The premises are situated within York City In the Cumulative
Impact Are and have licensable activities as follows:-

Recorded Music Sun- Thurs 1000-2400 Fri- Sat 1000-0330hrs
Late Night Refreshment Sun- Thurs 1000-2400 Fri- Sat 1000-0330hrs
Supply of Alcoho! Sun- Thurs 1000-2400 Fri- Sat 1000-0330hrs

On two separate occasions in September 2017 and September 2019 North Yorkshire Police have
attended the premises as part of a multi-agency operation with officers from the Home office
(Immigration) due to intelligence that persons have been employed to work at the Premises who do
not have a right to work in the UK. As a result of attending the premises on these occasions persons
were ramoved by Immigratlon officers on the grounds, they did not have leave to remain in the
country.

North Yorkshire Police are concerned that the Premises have undermined the licensing objective
Prevention of Crime and Disorder and are concerned that the Premises has failed to ensure
compliance with the authorisation issued by the Licensing Autharity.

On 8'" September 2017, PC Bolland an officer from North Yorkshire Police licensing department and
staff from the home office and licensing enforcement officers from City of York Council attended the
premises, which was open to the public. At the time of the visit, the Designated Premises Supervisor
Mr Zhong Le Chen was not present and officers spoke with a female who provided her details as Tina
Feng. PC Bolland and Helen Sefton an officer from City of York Enforcement team went through the
Premise licence conditions. Feng stated she was unable to work CCTV at the premises and unable to
produce details of any staff tralning. The premises licence conditions state the following:-

« It is the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members
of staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from
the CCTV system at the request of the police or responsible authority.



Page 234

+« Adocumented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the

P
pimiﬁm'imt oroTe”

AS 'S alanb-al | L
L Retait-sale-of-aloohol:

b) Age verification policy;
¢) Conditions attached to the Premises Licence;
d) Permitted licensable activities;
e) The liconsing objectives; and
Opening times for the venue
With such records belng kept for a minimum of one year. (For the avoidance of doubt, the

one-year perlod relates to each respeotive ontry in the log book and runs from the date of
that particular entry).

O 6™ Septamber 2019, a8 part 6f & rulti Bfjshcy Partnerehip operation; officersfrom-North Yorkshire
Police's Safeguarding team, Home Office Immigration officers, staff from the Gang masters and Labour
abuse Authority and Licensing enforcement otticers trom City of Yark Council, attended the Premises.

Four persons working at the premises were removed by Immigration officers due to concerns around

their right to work in the UK. The premises were open to the public, and operating licensable activities.
Nigel-Woodhead -Enfercament- officer-{rom -Glly -of York souncil-identified -a-number:ef braaches-in..—.. ..
respect of the Premises | icence authorisation. As a result of the breaches identified, a follow up visit

was arranged with a police licensing officer.

premises. A lemale who provided her dalails uS « {(advising was her English name) steled
she was In charge of the Premises. PC Hollis reques ed to speak to the DPS Mr Zhong Le Chen, but
was informed byjilishe.did_not know whom this porson was nor did olhar staff present. PC Hollis went
through the Pronf®e Licence Conditions wm.and identified thefollowing:-

On 24" October 2019, PC Kim Hollis, police licensing officer and Niijal Wouadhead, re-attended the

The CCTV equipment was displaying the incorrect time, which Is a breach of the following condition:-

s The CCTV equipment shall have constant time/dats gensraticn, which must be checked
on a daily basis for accuracy,

No notices displayed at the exit/entrance, which is a breach of the following condition:-

« Prominent, clear and lagible notices will be displayed a the exit requesting the public
to respect the needs of nearby residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

No challenge 25 notices displayed on the pramises. Premise licence condition states:-
« The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 policy for the sale of alcohol

No incident book, could be produced upon request, which is a breach of the following condition:-
« Anincident book/refusals book will be kept at the premises and made available on
request to an authorised officer or the police which will record the following:-
a) All alcohol related crimes reported to the venue
b) Any complaints received regarding alcohol related crime and disorder
¢} Any faults in the CCTV system
d) Any refusal of the sale of alcohol
e) Any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

No staff training records were available. The Premise Licence states the fallowing:-

¢ A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the
premises in respect of the:-

a) Retail sale of alcohol;

b) Age verification policy;

c) Conditions attached to the Premises Licence;

d) Permitted licensable activities;

€) The licensing objectives; and

f) Opening times for the venue



Page 235

With such racords being kept for a minimum of one year. (For the aveidance of doubt, the
one year period relates o each r t i

that particular entry).

Die 16 concems thal nabody knew who Ihe DPS Mr Zhong Le Chen was and & DPS is the person
who authorises the sale of alcohol PC Hollls provided her contact detalls and requested that the
Premise Licence halders contact her to discuss this matter or a DPS variation ba submitted with
immediate effect, Prior to leaving PC Hollis issued a Section 19 Closure Notice (Section 19 of the
criminal justice and police act 2001.

notice. Present again was M@ who advised a DPS transfer had been submitied to the Licensing
authority and PC Hollis went ffirough the Premise Licence Conditions again.

PC Hollis identified that the CCTV equipment was still displaying the time incorrectly and staff lraining
racords wera not completed correctly. A further Saction 19 notice was issued which M Igned.
She was advised thal offences ware being commilied under Section 136 of the Licensing Act,
unauthorised licensable activities whilst premises licence conditions were not adhered to, the police
reserved the right to prosecute in respect of the matters.

On 31* October 2019, PC Hﬁs atlended the Premises to alieck compliance with the Seclion 19

On 4™ November 2019, North Yorkshire Police were notified that the Licensing Authority for City of
York had received & llon In respect of The Regency. The proposed Designated Premises
Supervisor was M&. The Police are the only respansible authorily who can make
representalions in respect of a Designated Premises Supervisor. Upon receipl of this application PS
Booth the Force Licensing Manager for Narth Yorkshire Police conducted, the due diligence checks in
respect of the application. PS Booth was provided a statement from Immigration officer Glyn Jones
who advised lhat Mr had no right to work in the UK. Upon receipt of this information, on 21

Navember 2019, PS h submilted a reprasentation to the Licensing Authorily in respect of Mr
@ obiccting to the DPS transfer.

femala who slaled haer name was Ms ) and advised she wanted to check compllance with the
Seclion 19 nolice issued by PC Hollis on 37* Oclober 2019. The CCTV was displaying the correct
limafdate.produced training documents to PS Booth, and PS Booth took photos of the records. On
these records the DPS was recorded a“{ whom Ihe police had abjected 10). PS
Booth asked if was prasent lo spea dvised he was not at the Premises, Halen
Safton hand deliv®ed a leller advising that the proposed DPS M and the Pramises licance

holdar Mr Zhong Le Chen had failed lo respond lo communicalion rom the Licensing Authority in
rasiecl of the DPS application and thal conlact was required,.slaled that she would ensure that

ON 28" November 2019, PS Booth ald Halen Sefton attended the premises. PS Booth spoke to a

was provided the letter. PS Boolh advised il that whilst there had been compliance with the
remise Licence conditions at Annex 2 on the Premise Licence, North Yorkshire Police could not
cancel the Section 19 notice issued until the matter regarding the DPS was resolved and agaln
reserved the right to prosecute for any offences under Section 136 of the Licensing Act.

On 12" February 2020 North Yorkshire Palice were notified by the Licensing Authority that a further
DPS variation had been submitted in respect of the premises. North Yorkshire Police have not
objected to this application.

Mr Zhong Le Chen has made no contact with North Yorkshire Police Licensing department or the

Licensing Autharlty in respect of the above breaches of the Premises Licence for the matters to be
investigated.

Appendix 1 — Statement from PC Bolland

Appendix 2 — Staterment from PC Hallis
Appendix 3 — Section 19 Notice 1 — dated 24/10/19

Appendix 4 — Section 19 Notice 2 — dated 24/10/19

Appendix 5 — DPS Vadation-



Page 236

mppene=rones ot o or S

Appendix 7 — Statement of Immigration officer Glynn Jones
Appandix 8 - Statement of DC Wise
Appendix 9 - Statement of Sgt Plumb

Appendix 10- Statement of PS Booth

Appendix.11-.Rhotos oftraining records wisit 28/41/19.

Appendix 12 - Statement of Inspector Freer

Appendix 13 - Section 19 Notice — dated 31/10/19

Yours Sincaraely,

I Booth

PS133 Booth

Force Licensing Manager
Alcohol Licencing Department -
Fulford Road Police Station
York

Y010 4BY

Email: - Jacqueline.bpoth@northyorkshire.pan.police.uk




Page 237

Police representation In response to a review of a premises lcence or ¢club premises cert!ficate

under the Licenslng Act 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 1

Statement of PC Balland



Page 238

| RESTRICTED (when complets) | [ ot |

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1987, s. 0; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, 2.5B
URN

Statement of: Samantha Bolland

Age ifunder 18: Over  {if over 18 Insert ‘aver 187 Occupation: Police Officer

This statement (conslsting of 1 page(s) each signed by me) (s true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make It knowing that, If it ls tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to progecution if | have wilfully stated
in it anything which | know to be false, or do not belleve to be true.

Slgnatura-(S?nD ..... s (Witness)  Date: 0303/2020

I am PC 1520 Samantha Bolland from North Yorkshire Police. I am stationed at Fulford Road Police
Station, York, in the role as a Police Alcohol Licensing Officer, and I have been iu this role for the
last 4 years.

On §th September 2017 at 1800 hrs I was on duty when I attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police
Station, York largetting The Regency Chinese Restaurant Barbican Road, York and The Regency,

-George Hudson Street, York, as part of a multi-agency partnership operation, in company with

officers from North Yorkshire Police's Safeguarding team, Home Office Immigration officers, and
Licensing enforcement officers from City of York Council,

My role was to assist City of York Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton to inspect both premises
under section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003,

At 18:45 on the same date above, in company with Senior Licensing Officer, Helen Sefton, I entered
The Regency Chinese Restaurant, Barbican Road. Upon entering the premise it was open to the
Public, there were customers and staff present, Myself and Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton
proceeded to speak to a male who identifed himself as the manager, he stated his name
. Wo then went through the Licence conditions outlined within the Premise Licence,
We asked 1o see the CCTV system, however Mr stated he could not access it and it was only
the owner who had access. The owner and Designated Premise Supervisor, ZHONG LE CHEN,
arrived at approximately 19:25 hours, Helen Sefton approached the owner and ireid to communicate
with him, the stated he could not understand English. Helen Sefion asked to interpret. Helen
Sefton asked CHEN, who owned the business and he stated it was his ,but
he was in China, and he was the only person able to access the CCTV system.

After furtHER discussions myself and Helen Sefton conducted a full inspetion of the premise and
found the following breaches as per the licence conditions attached to the Premise Licence:

-staff training records were not present/ documented
-No notices asking patrons to leave quietly

-no noise management plan

-no access to CCTV /recordings or retention

SIGNAIUFe: .......ccorverieeececeeere et srenas ﬁwSIgnaturewltnassed DY it et a e
EXZH | RESTRIGTED (when complate)




Page 239

RESTRICTED (when complete) ‘ | won |

Continuation statement of: Samantha Bolland

After the inspection we then attended the second premises at George Hudson Street, York,

A female called Tina FENG stated she was the manager of the premise and spoke with Helen Sefton
regarding the Premise Licence conditions. FENG stated she was only in charge of the supermarket
part of the premises and there was a separate manager for the restaurant as the premise wa divided into
two parts.

FENG stated she did not know ot have access to the CCTV system, that staff training had been given
in relation to licenisng matters, but this was not documented. She also stated that the Designated
Premise Supervisor was ZHONG LE CHEN,

Shotlly aller we left the premise and this was the last time I dealt with both premises.

4520

SIgnature. ......comvoimminsnnee SIPNAUFG WIHIBBRBA BY: .....coooovviriiirrecreirarmerstsevrennsasosidarssmecrosn

| 2ot | if RESTRICTED (when complete)



Page 240

Police representation In response to a review of a premises licence or cfub premises certificate

under the Llcansing Act 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 2

Statement of PC Hollis



Page 241

RESTRICTED (when complete) [ Mo |

“WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27, 2; Criminal Justice Aot 1087, &. 9; Maglstrates’ Courts Act 1980, ©.5B

URN
Statement of: Kimberley HOLLIS
Age H under 18: Over 18 (#f over 18 insert over 18]

Occupation: Police Constable

This statement (cansisting of 1 page(e) each signed by ma) is true to tha best of my knowledge and bellef
and | make It knowing that, If it s tendered In evidence, | shall be flable to prosecution If | have wilfully stated
in It anything which | know to be false, or do not belleve to be true.

Signalure: Peclb1l  (witness)
Date: 4" March 2020

lam PC 1671 Kim HOLLIS of North Yorkshire Police currently stationed at FULFORD ROAD POLICE
STATION, YORK, 1 am an Alcohol Licansing Officer covering York and Selby and | have been In the role since
April 2018.

At 11.16hrs on 24" October 2019 1 attended The Regency restaurant and supermarket 2-4 GEORGE HUDSON
STREET, YORK In company with Nigel WOODHEAD City of York Coungll Licensing enforcement Officar with
the Intentlon to carry out a licensing check under Section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003,

Woe enterad the restaurant and spoke with , who asked to be called . identifying ourselves and
explaining thal we were conducting a licensing chack. | asked to speak with the deslgnated premlses
supervisor and pramises licence holder Zhong le CHEN. explalnad she did not know who this person was
but the managar was not in and thal she would assist us.

| asked her to olarify if Mr Ztiong le CHEN ever attended the premises as she confirmed again that she did not
know him and had not seen him.

AL 11.40hrs | noted that the CCTV in the main restaurant was Incorrect showing the fime #s10.30hrs and |
made a nole of this as it breached conditions as per the pramlses licenca, advised she did not know
how to use the CCTV and that only Tina knew how to change it.

| praceeded to go through the conditions of the licence and document any braaches.

The breaches were as follows:
o CCTV displaying incorrect time
No notices on the exlt asking patrons to be qulet/respact nelghbours
No challenge 25 posters on display
No incident book
Staff belng unaware of who authorised the sale of alcohal (DPS)
No staff training records

» 8 7 &4 &

| documented these on a closure notice under Saction 19 of the Criminal Justice and Police Act 2001 and
numbered these CYC-063937-1 and CYC-053937-2,

I placed on the notice steps to be taken to address these lssues which Included:
¢ Immad|ate DPS Change
« CCTVtime to bs made correct (7 days given)
» Challenge 25 posters (7 days glven)
s Incident book (7 days given)




Page 242

| RESTRICTED (when complete) [ wort |

=

e Notloss (7 days given)

e Slafl refresher raming and records (7 days given)

| explalnad the notlce L and asked for her signature on both parts. After signing | left a copy of the two
5.10 nollcas will

Myeslf and Nigel WOODHEAD then left the premises,

At approximately 12,10hrs that same day Nigel and | attended the Regency restaurant 16A BARBICAN ROAD,
YORK.

O our arival we spoke with a mala that identified Rimaelf ta be (NN, asked 1o be known as
We explained thal we wera there 1o conduct & licensing check and asked If the deslgnated premises licence
holder was prasent h- said that he was not and | then began to go through the premises licence with

-Bxplalned to me that currently the CCTV was not warking after a previous visit from Police and
Immigration and i has not been able to connect since: -afeo Mentified some furthar breaches of the licenca and
as such | documented these on a Sectlon 10 closure notkce as befors. This noflce was given number CYC-
008221 and they were as follows:

e No staff treining records conditions 16,17,18 and 19

e No incident book conditions 20,21 and 22

<« No notices asking pairons to be quite and respect neighbours vondition 23

«+ CCTV not working condilions 2-7

The steps | documented to be taken were as follows:
e Steff ratrained and records mada (7 daye glven)
« Incident book (7 days given)
« Nolices displayed on exit (7days glven)
o CCTV working (7 days)

room had & male Inslde that gave his details { as born { ssed these deteils

Whilsl being shown around the premises on the top floor o shown s which had beds Inside and one
on to me as the mafe dlid not spaak English. Hn#;ﬂrmad [l

did not work al the pramises,

Bafore leaving the premises | explainad the Seclion 19 notice to. and asked him to sign this which he did.

I feft a copy of the notice wit and we then left,

cormpany with Nigel WODDHEAD and we sgaln spoke with >
A follow up check was conducted after Issue of the Section 19 nolica and | noted thal the notices had bieen
placed up, tha challenge 25 posters ware displayed er was [n place and a nofe-about
authorigation Lo sell alcohiol showing the new DPS who | was advised had submitted an
application to transfer DPS from Zong Le CHEN, a refusals register had been created and staff training records
head bean created but unfortunately did nol have signatures on them.

On 31" Oclober 2010 at around 10,30hrs | again attended Reﬁrwi. GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK in

l also noted that the CCTV at 10.30hrs was now showing 11.29hrs.

explained that she had noi reallsed the staff had to sign the training records and the CCTV had been
mpled to be changed but this must not have been dane.

Due to this | made the declslon to Issue a further section 18 notice allowing a further 7 days to rectify thesa final
Issuds, Thie hotica breaches werd as follows: ;

¢ CCTV time incorrect

¢ Staff tralning records to be fllled in correctly

| asked for the following steps 1o be taken:
¢ CCTV time to be made corect
« Staff training forms to be signed (7 days glven for both)



Page 243

| RESTRICTED (when complste) |

| agaln axplained |his l' and asked her to sign the notice leaving her a copy before we left number CYC-
0 -3,

Al around 1200hrs we attended Regency BARBICAN ROAD, YORK and agaln spoke with*
who showed me the work they had dons te reclify any breaches listed on the section 18 nolice [ssued. Al

polnte ware now rectiffod and they were complying with licence conditions so | explained to. that the
notlce was now olosad,

York Councll Licensl d as such checks were made by our department In relation to the applicant
bom As a result of these checks | made contact with immfirauon Offloer 663

0n 4" November 2019 | was made aware that an application to change DPS had been accopted by Clil! f
3 Glyn
JONES that same day via emall and requested a parson check be conducted o

Officer JONES advised me by reply that -dld nol have permisslon to work In the UK. | passed this
information on to the Foree Licensing Manager PS 133 Jackle BOOTH,

On 13" November 2019 Immigration Officer Glyn JONES provided me with a statement In ralation t-
| produce the section 18 nolices as exhibits:

KH/1 - 24/10/19 Regency George Hudson Street CYC-053937-1

KH/2 - 24/10/19 Regancy George Hudson Street CYC-053937-2

KH/3 - 24/10/19 Regency Barbican Road CYC-009221
KH/4 - 31/10/18 Regency George Hudson Strast CYC-053937-3

Signature witnessed by:



Page 244

Police reprasentation In response to a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

under the Licensing Act 2003

The Regency, Gearge Hudson Street, York

Appendix 3

Section 19 Notice 1 - dated 24/10/19



Page 245

1

Form 221 -01/2010

CLOSURE NOTICE MADE

TR GRS TICE
AND POLICE ACT 2001

D and tine of the Gl ve Hotiog!

Ferson maniggiho Isotice:

.
S'ﬁﬂauﬂ'.. B T e TS T ONNp NS T

Mame 0fasphenbln) anad acddrass aline SHeCted tiemizns,

AN unanhaasodiusa atdhie peeiniaes,

Hch may e tehon & end e allggad pnathaoel sesd

el tha propnes et 00 o prevenl o o esen

e s on Ghapplical:iedion vwhioh e dlosie notles has

Loenselvety

'
b
L4
i
i
i
i
1

Slgnature: ....................

White copy: Occupler Blus copy: Legal Sarvices Pink copy; Oficer



Page 246

Police representation In responsé to a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

wader-the-Llcensing-Ant 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 4

Section 19 Notlce 2 - dated 24/10/19



Page 247

Fam 221 - 01/2019

CLOSURE NOTICE MADE
UNDER SECTION 19 OF
THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE

Dale anooime oi'l

B N
nature: il s veaiapriniunesns fls ares . y
s re. .Ji. NIV MR A B UG AS O IRAGIAI AR H I e b Gk

teamni Ol apEIes it and dddrayy

allhe allcoted sreminngt

Adegadunnuthansed use of 1he premises

sudnch iy ha taken to phd dtha wiieand noauthohisg!

SO B AT e IR CE R T TP PR AT R P R ARTY R R e ning

Lappucable) onahiomithe clgguoe neicu i

'y
LY

Nam b,
v

s‘gnﬂ‘uro: mitvesakeveud basun LR EE E L]

White copy: Ocoupler Blua copy: Legal Services Pink copy: Officer
(IR~ [ [ 1) (V] (- FRT, < IRTOPRINS SO TN




Page 248

Police representation In response to a review of a premises licence or club premises certlificate

1131015 45 20 514 0V )1

The Ragency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 5

DPS Variation ZhengChen FENG



Page 249

gef EFFF-OF YORK-COUNEIE
YORK Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Street, York, Y010
COUNCIL 3DSs

| Telephone iumber (If any) quo LQ. 6Sqq 7 6

Application to vary a premises licence to specify an individual as dasignated
premises supervisor under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.
If you are completing this form by hand please wriie legibly In block capitals. (n all

cases ensure that your answers are Inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use

additional sheets If necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

I/we

{full name(s) of premises licence holder)
belng the premises Hcence holder, apply to vary a pramises licence to specify
the Individual named in this application as the premises supervisor under
section 37 of the Licensing Act 2003

.................................................

Pmmlsas licence number
05 “)q;'?: -I

Part 1 - Premises detalls
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference ar
description

REGENCY
2L} GERAE  HUDWN  STREET,

| Posttown ' - - Poatcode(tfknown]

NOoRK J \Io:L éLP

Descriptlon of premises (please read guidance note 1)

l
CHIMESE RESTAURANIT % %uPERMPxQKtT




Page 250

Part 2

1|' Full name of irﬁ_i_aeﬂ 'de_li'i'naiod pramises supervizor
l Natlonality
CHINESE
| Place of birth
| CHINA
Date of birth

issuing authorlty of that licence (if any

Personal licence number of pmpond dulgnatod pmmlau supervisor and )

" o

Please tick yes
| would like this application to have Immadiate effact under &
section 38 of the Licensing Act 2003 (Please read guidance note 2)

1 have enclosed the premises llcence or relevant partof it g

(If you have not enclosed the premises licence, or relevant part of it, please give
reasons why not)

l

Please tick yes
= | have made or enciosed payment of the fee Qf
= | wlll give a copy of this application to the chlef officer of police LA

(Please read Guidance note 3)

* | have enclosed the consent form completed by the proposed premises  [4
supervisor

= | have enclosed the premises licence, or relevant part of it or explanation Qf

v | will notify the existing premises supervisor (if any) of this application 1%
(Please read guldance note 4)
« | understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my w4

application will be rejected

See detalls of Licensing Act 2003 statutory fees: www.york.gov.ukiLlcensingAct2003StatutoryFees
2




Page 251

AL 1 2003, 1O KNUYVIN 013

RE SLY A EMEN A ONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION,
THOSE WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A
FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT 18 AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A PERSON TO
WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE
DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS.

THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT A VALID LEAVE TO ENTER OR REMAIN IN THE
UK OR AN ADULT WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS WHICH WOULD PREVENT THAT
PERSON FROM TAKING UP EMPLOYMENT WILL BE LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER
SECTION 15 OF THE RMMIGRATION, ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2008 AND, PURSUANT
TO SECTION 21 OF THE SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO
80 IN THE KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE IS DISQUALIFIED BY VIRTUE OF THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS.

Part 3 - Signatures (please read guldance note 5)

Signature of applicant or applicant's solicitor or other duly authorised agent
(Sea guidance note 6). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state In what
capacity.

Signature

L e N e L R R PY TR Y P TR I TR R S PREPPYCD PPN

oae 1 elisloma

............................... e R S S R T Y T R T P R F R T TR T GO

e MeNAGER

For Joint applicants signature of 2" appiicant 2" applicant’s sollclitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 7). If signing on behalf of the
applicant please state In what capacity.

Signature



Page 252

Cori a ot previously glven) and postal address for |
cﬁ%W@nu read guldance note B) l
\ Ge e
| REGENCY
n1| GEORGE HUDSN)  STREET

Preiore.  |PU6E e

{Folaphonsmumber (ifamy)—————

(f you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mall your e-malf address
(optional) | {

B




Page 253

Guldance notes

—

s

Describe the premises. For example the typa of pramises it is.

An application to vary the premises licence so as to name a different premises
supervisor may be given immediate effsct (that is, from the time the application is
recelved by the licensing authority) If the premises licence holder requeste it at the time
he makes an application under Saction 37. Section 38 enables the holdar of a
premises licence to continue the supply of alcohol if, for example, the existing premiees
supervisor Is suddenly indisposed or unable to work. If the application Is rejacted, the
licence reverts to tha form it tock before the application was made.

A full copy of the application form must be sent to the chief officer(s) of police for the
police arsa(s) in which he premises are situated. The notlce should state whether
section 38 of that Act (circumstances in which section 37 application given interim
affect) applles to the application,

Sectlon 37(4)(b) of the Licensing Act 2003 requires the premises licence holder to
notify the existing designated premises supervisor (if any) about this applicatlon, Itis
sufficlent for the licensee to inform the existing premises supervisor In writing, without
the need to share the spacific detalls of the application. The notice should state
whether section 38 of that Act (clrcumstances In which section 37 application given
interim effect) applies to the application.

Tha application form must be signed.

An applicant’'s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on thelr behalf provided
that they have actual authority to do so.

Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents
must slign the application form.

This Is the address which we shall use 1o corespond with you about this application.



Page 254

2 e CITY

B\  Ulcensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Streat, York, Y010
EpUNEIL aDs

Consent of Indlvidual to being specified as promises supervisor

[full nama of prosnsciive premises supsrvisor]

of

supervisor in relation to the application for

ARMCATION,. To vARM | DS

{type of spplication]
by

{name of applcant]

relating to a premises licence ch’ogng‘d? e B s sy e

[number of existing licence, If any]

for

REAENCN , 2-H GEORGE HUDSOW TTRECT, MORK

{name and address of premises to which the application relates] \(O :1_ 6 L P



Page 255

| |!f?@”‘

-

!
f

(1
A\

\

O w b 5 s H 5 =11 el 5 o

[name of applicant]

concaming the supply of alcohol at

REGENCY AL GECRAE. HUDEON gnzeer,\io&\&

[name and address ofpmmlses {o which applicatlon relates]

| also confirm that | am entitled to work In the United Kingdom and am applying for,
intend to apply for or currently hold a personal licence, details of which | set out
below,

Personal licence number

D T T R R R T L Y Peiey

[lnsert personai licence number, if any]

Personal licence Issuing authority

finsert name and address and telephone number of personal licence issuing authorfty, If any]

Signed
Name (please print)

Date




Page 256

Police representation in response to a review of a pramises licence or club premises certificate

—nder-theeensing-Art-2003
The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 6

Police objection to DPS Feng



Page 257

NOTICE OF RELEVANT REPRESENTATION FOR A
PREMISES LICENCE UNDER THE LICENSING ACT 2003

North Yorkshire Police hereby give notice of oblection to the Premises Licence as listed below:

 Postal Address of premises or club premises: j

{ Regency

; 2-4 George Hudson Street

l Post town: York ‘ .gPosrt dﬁde (If knowm): YO1 6LP !

Natice of Objection relates to the following licensing objective: (Please tick one or more boxes)

-: 1. The prevention of crime and disorder
2, Public safety
3. Prevention of Public Nuisence

4, The protection of children from harm

ooox

GROUNDS FOR RELEVANT REPRESENTATION
Pleasa provide as much Information as possible to support this relevant representation:
{e.g. please list any additional infonnation, e.g. dates of prablems which sre Included in the grounds for review)

This application relates to vary a Premises licence to spacify an individual as designated premises suprevisor under the
Licensing Act 2003 for the Regency Chinese Restaurant and Supermarket.

As the Force Licensing Manager for Narth Yorkshire Police, | am delegated on behalf of the Chief Constable to respond
to all applications under the Licensing Act 2003. In assessing this epplication, | have consldered the Licensing objectives,
particularly the Prevention of Crime and Disorder objective.

North Yorkshire Police do nat support this application for 2 premises licence under Section 18(9) of the Licensing Act, as
the applicant and proposed Desighated Premises Supervisor Mr_ itis believed would undermine the
Crime Preventlon Objective.

| The Section 182 guidance para 4.39 states
. "The Police may object to the designation of a new DPS where, In exceptional circumstances, they believe that the
appointment would undermine the crime prevention objective. The police can object where, for example, a DPS Is first

specified In relation to particular premises and the specification of that DPS in relation to the particular premises glves
‘ rise to exceptlohal concerns.”

. North Yorkshire Police have to be satisfied that an individual, who perfarms the role of a DPS, and who will ultimately

have dey-to-day management of the Premises and be the point of contact for responsible authoritles, is able to
effectively promote the Licensing Objectives.

582-05/2018



Page 258

On 6" Saptember 2019, North Yorkshire Police as part of multl-agency partnership working, attended the Regency
Restaurant 2-4 George Hudson Street, in company with Immigration officers. At the time of the visit four persons were
removed from the Premises by Immigration officers suspected to be working there lllegally. | refer to the statement of
DC Lucy Wise { Appendix 1),

Due to the angolng partnership working with immigration in respect of the premises, followlng the vislt on &%
Septembier 2019, North Yorkshire police have been provided a statement by lmmigration Officer Glynn Jones that Mr
has fio right to work i Hhis UK (Appendiy 2}

CAsMr has no right to work in the UK, If he Is to perform the role of Designated Premises Supervisar, he wili be
- committing a criminal offence, which undermines the licensing oblective of Prevention of Crime and Disorder.

North Yorkshire Police have a duty of care to consider infarmation in line with the Prevention of Crime and Disorder
objective for Licensing Appllcations and it Is for this reason the Palice object to this application and would respectfully
ask members of the Licensing Committee to reject this application.

Appendix 1 - Statement of DC Lucy Wise

Appendix 2 - Statement of immigration Officer Glyn Jones

Signature: Date: 20/11/i09

Contact name: PS 133 Jackie Booth
- Address for correspondence: Alcohol Licensing Department Fulford Road Palice Station

Post town: York | Post code: YO10 4BY Tel. number (If any}: 01609 643273

1

* Emall address if preferred option of contact: NYPLicensing@ northyorkshire.pnn.pollce.uk



Page 259

Police representation in response to a review of a premises licence or club premlses certificate

underthellcensing-Act-2002

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 7

Statement of Immigration officer Glynn Jones



Page 260

( Government Security Clasaification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE =
Approved for Immigration Eaforcement use — April 2014
WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27, 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9: Maglstrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B
URN | | | l
Statement of; Glyn Ronald JONES
Age if under 18: over 18 (f over 1a insert 'over 18) Occupatlon: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 (one) page(s) each slgned by me) is true lo the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, If It is tendered In evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution If | have witiully
stated In it anything which | know to be false, or do not beliava to be true.

SIgNature:.......c.ccvnivnrevinrens e (Withess) Date: 13/11/2019

1 am the person named above and I am employed by the Home Office &s an Immigration Officer. Tam currently a member
on the Arrest Team, Yorkshire & Humberside ICE based at Waterside Court, Kirkstall Road, Leeds 1S4 2QB. I have been
employed by the Home Office since October 2003.

On 4" NOVEMBER 2019 1 received a request from PC1671 HOLLIS of NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE enquiring as to

whether a male known as —, bum- CHINA, and wesiding « (D
@ - v-cssion to work in the United Kingdom,

1 was able to confirm from Home Office records mau-. borr{ D CHNA had No

PERMISSION TO WORK in the United Kingdom,

This statement was made and completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on WEDNESDAY 13" NOVEMBER 2019 at
13:20hrs,

Signature:........... sereneeens - SiGNBLUTE WItNESS@A bY: L.icvv e cres e e,

EN Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 261

Police representation In response to a review of a premises licence or club premises certificate

under the Ucansing Act 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 8

Statement of DC Wise



Page 262

RESTRICTED (when complete) | [ Matt |

WITNESS STATEMENT

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27, 2; Criminal Justice Act 1867, . 8; Maglstrates’ Courts Act 1980, 5.58

URN i 5

Statement of. Lucy Wise
Age if under 18: Over 18 (i ovar 18 insert 'over 18)

Occupation: Deteclive Constable 1358

This statement {conslsting of 1 paga(s) each signed by me) Is true to the best of my knowladge and bellef
and | make [t knowling that, If it Is tendered In evidence, | shall be llable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
in it anything which | know to ba false, or do not believe to be true,

Signature wit
o , - 1288 (vitnece)
Date: 21/11/19

| am Detective Constable 1358 WISE, currently attached to the Safeguarding Unit with North Yorkshire Police.

On Friday 6" September 2019, | was on duty In plaln clothes, At 1800 hours ! attended THE REGENCY
RESTAURANT, GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK, in company with PS PLUMB and a number of
colleagues from North Yorkshire Police, Home Office Immigration and Gangmasters and Labour Abuse
Authorlty, in order to execute a Sectlon 8 PACE Warrant,

There were a number or workers encountered In these premises, and four people wera found to be there
waorking illegally. These four workers were arrested by Home Office Immigration colleauges and were removed
from fhe premises.

.

| am aware that Immigration enquirles are currently ongoing  ~

B4

W

Signature: KB
. C o
Slgnature withessed by:




Page 263

Police representation In response to a revlew of a premlises licence or club premises certificate

underthe Heensing Act- 2009

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 10

Statement of PS Booth



Page 264

" RESTRICTED (when complete) [ won |

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; CrimInal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1880, s.5B
urRN || '.
Statement of: Jacqueline BOOTH ;
Age if under 18: Over 18 (i over 18 insert ‘over 18)

Occupation: POLICE OFFICER

This statement (conslsting of two page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, If it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
in it anything which [know 1o be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: J Baoth (witness)
Date: 4% March 2020

1 am the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Palice and have responsibility for managing a team of
Palice staff who deliver front-line aperational services to over 7,500 premises across eight Licensing Autharity
areas within North Yorkshire and the City of York.

{ am authorised (o act on behalf of ihe Chief Constable of North Yorkshire Police in matters relating to the
Licensing Act 2003, Gambling Act 2005, Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2014 and Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act 1982.

| have completed the Institule of Licensing Professional Licensing Practitioner's Qualification and the British
Institute of Inn keeping Awarding Body's Award for Licensing Practitioner's (Alcohof).

My role involves working with statutory partners and key stakeholders to ensure the promotion of the four
Licensing objectives, The Prevention of Crime and Digorder, The Prevention of Public Nuisance, Public Safety
and the Protection of Children from harm, alongside compliance with the Licensing Act 2003.

At 1130hrs on Thursday 28th November 2019, | was on duty In company with Helen Sefton Senlor Licensing
officer from City of York Licensing Authority when we atiended, The Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street York,
Upon entering the premises, we spoke to a female | now know to be M%(she advised us har English
name w#. | explained that | was present to conduct a compliance respect of the Section 19
Closure Nofice that my colleague PC Kim Hollis had Issued on ihe 3151 October 2019, @@stated she
understood, as she was present when the notice had been issued (@ showad me the CTTV that was displaying
the correct date, time, and produced to me a folder that she staled contained the tmining records of the
Premises, | took photos of the following documents:-

Age Verification Policy- dated 25/10/19 llsting— as DPS(Deslgnated Premises Supervisor)
Exhibit JBO1

Authorisation to Sell Alcohol - DPS listed as _Exhiblt JBO2

Indlvidual Staff Tralning Record - Exhibit JBO

Individual Staff training Record - Exhibit JB04

Upon viewing the above documents, | explained tof@that there had been compliance with the Premise Licence
conditions listed at Annex 2 on the Premise Licence however that both the Licensing Authority and Police
needed to speii ith the Desiinatad Premises Supervisor (DPS), who from the documentation held on site

was listed as

| asked .If Mr was available for me to speak to but she stated he was not on the premises and she did
not know what time he would arive, as he did not have set hours but did tum up most days.,

Helen Seflon explained that she had been irying to get in touch with Mr to discuss his application as the
DPS but he had failed to respond o any communication, A lattar addressed fo the Prenilses from the llcensing
Authority was given to(@ and she was asked to give it to Mr @l or the premises Licence holder Mr Zhong Le
CHEN. Exhlblt JBOS refers.




Page 265

RESTRICTED (when complete) [ ot |

| can confirm that on 4th November 2019 North Yutkshlre Police were notlﬂed by City of York Llcenslng

Authonly Tn accordance 3
George Hudson Street had been received wl'llch namad

Due lo Informalion held on police systems and a statement from Immigration officer 6633 Glyn Jones that Mr
d had no right to work in the UK, on the 21st November 2019 | objected to this application,

sighting the documentation held on site shawing Mr as lhe DPS, datad 25th October 2019 which was
prior to the application being submitied to vary the D 1 4th November 2019, that the Premises were not
complying with legislation and due process in respect of the Licensing Act. The premises ficence holder Mr

e Zong Le CHEN was alsoundermining the licensing objsctive Prevention of Crime and Oisorder bynot
conducting dus diligence checks In respect of employees.

From a Police perspectiva | was concemed that follcwlni my visil on 28lh November 2019 to the Pramises and

Signature: J Booth

Signature witnessed by:



Page 266

Bokice pappresentaton 1B Fasponse 162 reuwew of sprarmise icenee or clubpremises ceriliicaie

CrRiET THE TS TN 7AET 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, Yark

Appendix 11

Photos of tralning records visit 28/11/19



Page 267

%
Widn,

i
"
.
ey
of TaE L Nt il
VAT
i AT
wir oo,




Page 268

W l“&""

L@ e ma#m L
chm\ﬂes e g
whan carrding mﬁ

% i oriteal o our pusiaess and
n'a:hms to cmwpiywm; thc- regulr

i

o
-
o
-
-
L
&

e

s
=

S
pila e F o hen

BT
B gk

N
S

i

F
o

el
iy Lt

TR T e




Page 269

i

e

v
o
wE
i
i
e
b
-
-
.

it




iy g R N

e

£

Page 270

i




Page 271

Police representation in response to a review of a premises licence or club premises certiflcate

Under the Licensing Act 2003

The Regency, George Hudson Street, York

Appendix 13
Section 19 Notice — dated 31/10/19



Page 272

Mﬂhn'rm|;

CLOSURE NOTICE MADE

UNDER SECTION 19 OF
THE CRIMINAL JUSTICE

ANDPOLICEACT2001
o,
Date andd Jine ot the Clasiine Nalice ;

Signature:

Nontesil applicabie)

R T L R T T TR TR P YOO PO

ant address ol fho allectatl premigps:

Allgert urnahioissd vae oOe pren

RSN gy Do Wlenr (e shd S ileas wnesthariand

G R 00 s O arning

Tl preonian bl A0 1Oy i = oy Vs Sy =i Jiano e ha
T v ¢

Signature: ............

White copy: Ocoupler Biue copy! Legal Services Pink copy: Officer

Ay




Page 273

 RESTRICTED (when complete) | [ Mer1

WITNESS STATEMENT

CHminal Procedure RUTES, F 27. 2; Griminal Justice Act 1967, 8. ; Maglstrates' Gourts Act 1980, .58

URN
Statement of: Nicholas PLUMRB

Age if under 18: Over (i over 16 insert ‘aver 18) Occupation: Police Officer

This statement (consisting of 2. page(s) each slgned by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief
and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated
in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: ...... e e (Withess)  Date; 28/02/20

I'am the above named person and currently The Safer Neighbourhood Sergeant for York City Policing
Team based at Mill House Police station.

I have been in my current position since 2015 and am responsible for managing the Safer
Neighbourhood Team dedicated to working within York City to reduce crime and disorder and
provide a highly visible and reassuring presence in the area. A key part of my role is identifying,
monitoring and responding to community issues. Community issues may involve quality of life,
tensions, crime, disorder or anti-social behaviour, To assist in addressing these issues I work closely
with partner agencies to decide a suitable response, and focus on engagement, education and
enforcement working towards a multi-agency problem solving approach.

On Thursday 6th September 2019 at 1800 hrs I was on duty when I attended The Regency Chinese
Restaurant George Hudson Street York as part of a multi-agency partnership operation, in company
with officers from North Yorkshire Police's Safeguarding team, Home Office Immigration officers,
staff from the Gangmasters and Labour abuse Authority and Licensing enforcement officers from City
of York Council, My role was to assist pariners present with the execution of a Section 8 PACE
warrant and secure the Premises so that no persons could leave or enter the premises without their
identity being establsished.

Colleagues from my team and [ assisted Immigration officers to search the Premises, for staff within.
Immigration colleagues conducted all checks in respect of individuals present to establish their
immigration status and if they had a right to work in the UK.

Immigration officers did identify a number of persons who were alleged to be illegal immigrants.
Those persons where detained by Immigration officers and removed from the location.
I'had no involvinent in detaining any persons from the location.

At the time of the Premises was open to the Public, and a number of customers tried to enter the
convenience storc and also the restaurant. the store was been operated by a number of staff and also it
appeared some family members were present. A female at the location seemed to be

of the owner and despite not claiming to be working it appcared she was working,

Officer were tasked to search the downstairs part of the store and in this location were a number of
suitcases not belonging to anybody present on the premises and this seemed very strange. Whilst

Signature: .. ........... B . Signature WItNESSE DY: ....cieiecioiiiiiiioiesienerosestrersssesrontess s consns

————————

[ 2ottt | RESTRICTED (when complete) |

s e




Page 274

[ T!ESH!IET;EB {when complete) @

Continuation statement of: Nichalas PLUMB

'}

o ?

Signalure: - Signature WItNESSEM DY: .v.vuvmercivvimeorioriossnravssessassenes

[20t0m | | RESTRICTED (when complete)




Page 275

By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 281

A NINeoc L\-—

NORTH YORKSHIF
FIRE & RESCUE SERVI!

NYFRS Reference: Premises: York Fire Station
Job: Kent Street

York

North Yorkshire

YO10 4AH

When telephoning please ask for: K Caulfield Tel: 01904 625272

Fax: 01904 620732
Email: kevin.caulfield@northyorksfire.gov.uk

11 February 2020

Dear Sir or Madam

Cover Letter from Watch Manager Kevin Caulfield

Regency Restaurant, 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA

| have provided a witness statement on the request of City of York council with reference to
Regency Restaurant, 16 Barbican Road, York, and Regency Restaurant, George Hudson Street
York.

The witness statement is to assist the review of the premises licences for these premises.

The majority of information we collect regarding business fire safety is non-personalised
information, however any personal data we collect will be managed in accordance with our Privacy
Notice which can be viewed on our website, www.northyorksfire.gov.uk/ about-us/yourdata.

Under the Regulatory Reform Order 2005 we are obliged to publish a public register of
enforcement action which can be viewed via our website, www.northyorksfire.gov.uk/about-
us/key-documents/links-registers.

Yours faithfully

K Caulfield

Waest Offices,
Station Rise,
Yark,

YO1 6GA

Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives, Sprinklers Save Lives
www.northyorksfire.gov.uk



Page 282




Page 283

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

STATEMENT OF Kevin Caulfield

AGE OF WITNESS: over 18

OCCUPATION OF WITNESS Fire Safety Officer

ADDRESS OF WITNESS: York Fire Station, Kent Street, York, YO10 4JF

This statement (consisting of ...3 pages each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge
and belief, and | make it knowing that if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if
| have wilfully stated in it anything which | know to be false or do not believe to be true.

DATED THE 30th day of January 2020

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY: At

1.0 My name is Kevin John CAULFIELD. | am employed as a Watch Manager by North
Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service (NYFRS) and have worked in various Fire Service roles
for over 26 years. | am currently working within the Fire Safety department as a Fire Safety
Officer. My current duties include planning and implementing audit inspections on
commercial/business premises, building consultations, within the York area, and assisting
the Service to meet its statutory obligations as an enforcing authority. | have a national
qualification Level 3 Certificate in Fire Safety (Fire Auditors) (QCF). | have completed
courses including Fire Safety & Building Design, Building Regulations and Technical
Guidance, Fire Safety & Building Design Complex Buildings: BS9999. | hold IOSH

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY: =
Page 10f 3

RRO.WIT.01



Page 284

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY '

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

CONTINUATION SHEET

Managing Safely qualification. | hold Level 3 NVQ in Watch Management.

a3
=)

Fam warranted under the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (RRFSQ) to carry out
the dulies imposed by it on the Fire gnd Rescueg Authority.

~ This witness statement isinralation totwo premises;
e Hepency Restaurani 16 Barbican Road YO10 SAA
e Regency Restaurant 2-4 George Hudson Street York YO1 GLP

Regency Reslauranl 16 Barbican Road YO 10 5AA

Fire calls received
None

Complaints Received
e 16/04/2016
Complaint received from customer. Overcrowding, staff living on top floor and smoking on site,
Fire Safety Audit carried out — fire safety advice given no further action.
e 11/09/2017
Complaint received from Police. 20 People living in cramped conditions. Fire Safety Audit carried
out- fire safety advice given no further action.

Recent Audits

09/09/19

Fire Safety Audit carried out as part of Operation Alligator - Regency Restaurants. Multi-
agency operation Joint visit.

During this visit a number of fire safety issues were found;
e Padlocks fitted to sleeping accommodation, flre doors held open with catches, fire exits blocked
due to refurbishment wark,

e Fire alarm not working

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

Page 2 of 3
RRO.WIT.01

T



Page 285

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME COMMISSIONER FIRE AND RESCUE
AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF WITNESS

POLICE AND CRIMINAL EVIDENCE ACT 1984
CRIMINAL JUSTICE ACT 1967, SECTION 9

CONTINUATION SHEET

»  Prohibition and Enforcement notices severed. A Prohibition notice was served due to the
premises being not safe for sleeping as the means of escape had been blocked and the fire alarm
was not working.

09/10/19 Compliance fire safety audit carried out following previous audit

e Two Emergency lights not working ~ otherwise satisfactory

Regency Restaurant 2-4 George Hudson Street York YO1 6LP

Fire calls received

None

Complaints received

e 29/7/2009 Complaint received from City of York Environmental Health Officer. Fire doors held
open by boxes of food. Language line used to advise senior staff member to remove obstruction.
e 13/9/17 Complaint received from licensing enforcement officer. Fire exit between restaurant and
front exit in state of disrepair and one side bolted shut. Fire safety audit carried out and
notification of deficiencies sent.
Recent audits

14/9/17 Fire Safety Audit (due to complaint received 13/09/2017)

* No fire detection in basement and fire door to basement held open
» No weekly testing of fire alarm

»  Staff training not recorded

» Notification of deficiencies served.

SIGNATURE OF WITNESS:

SIGNATURE WITNESSED BY:

Page 3 of 3
RRO.WIT.01



Page 286



Page 287
Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE A .

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use - April 2014

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B

URN | GRJ | 6633 | 03032020 J1 !

Statement of: Glyn Ronald JONES
Age if under 18: Over 18 (if over 18 Insert ‘over 18" Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 2 (two) page(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make it knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which | know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:......cccoceriveisienns e (Withess)  Date: 03/03/2020

I am the person named above and I am employed by the Home Office as an Immigration Officer. 1 am currently a member
of the Arrest Team, Yorkshire & Humberside ICE (YHICE) based at Waterside Court, Kirkstall Road, Leeds LS4 2QB. [
have been employed by the Home Office since October 2003. My position as an IMMIGRATION OFFICER grants me
access to information held on Home Office systems that stores details of enforcement visits conducted by YHICE and the

numbers of arrested persons and their nationalities from each of those visits.

On 10" DECEMBER 2019, I was requested to provide a summary of YHICE visits conducted to both the REGENCY, 16
BARBICAN ROAD, YORK YOI0 5AA and the REGENCY, 2-4 GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YOI 6LP in
terms of breaches of the IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 (AS AMENDED), as part of on-going enquiries into the two

‘businesses.

HOME OFFICE records show YHICE have conducted FIVE enforcement visits to the REGENCY, 16 BARBICAN
ROAD, YORK YO10 5AA which are recorded below.

1). 7" JUNE 2014 - 2 Chinese nationals arrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING, and 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (CLANDESTINE)
(initially provided false details and later found to have been previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTRANT
(CLANDESTINE)).

2). 21* MAY 2017 ~ 1 Chinese national arrested for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant leave with no permission to
work).

3). 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 - 6 Chinese nationals arrested; 4 for OVERSTAYING their leave, and 2 for ILLEGAL ENTRY
(ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).

4). 16" MARCH 2018 - No arrests were made, all staff present had permission to live and work in the United Kingdom.
5). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 ~ 3 Chinese nationals arrested; 1 for OVERSTAYING their leave, 1 for WORKING IN
BREACH (held extant leave with no permission to work) and 1 as a PERSON LIABLE TO DETENTION (previously
REFUSED LEAVE TO ENTER but granted temporary admission/bail at port following an application for leave to remain,

and subsequently failed to appear for an interview to progress their application).

Slanature:......cocevevinnren rneraivasesaaras evrerepas e raeenarent Sigrature witnessed by! ... srcsnneon,

| 2014 | Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE




Page 288

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

Approved for Immigration Enforcement use — April 2014

Similarly, HOME OFFICE records show YHICE have conducted THREE enforcement visits to the REGENCY, 2-4
GEORGE HUDSON STREET, YORK YO1 6LP which are recorded below,

1). 7% APRIL 2017 - 1 Chinese national arrested for ILLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE).

2). 8" SEPTEMBER 2017 - 1 Chinese natiqnal arrested for WORKING IN BREACH (held extant leave with no
permission to work)

3). 6" SEPTEMBER 2019 - 4 Chinese nationals arrested: 1 for WORKING IN BREACH {held extant leave with no
permiesion to work), 1 for ILLEGAL ENTRY (VERBAL DECEPTION) by providing information (v an Entry Clearance
Officer which was later found not to be true, which, if it had been disclosed at the time of the application would have led to
the entry clearance being refused, | for ILLEGAL ENTRY (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE), and 1 for being a PERSON
LIABLE TO DETENTION (previously served as an ILLEGAL ENTRANT (ENTRY WITHOUT LEAVE) and failed to

adherc 1o iheir bail conditions by failing (o report to tie Home Office; and working without permission).

This witness statement was completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 3% MARCH 2020 at 09:45hrs.

Signature witnessed By: ..o,

| Govermment Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE

-



Page 289

Government Security Classification OFFICIAL SENSITIVE PV /\’\».ﬂg(_/ é
Approved for Immigration Enforcement use - April 2014

WITNESS STATEMENT
Criminal Procedure Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, 5. 9; Magistrates’ Courts Act 1980, s.5B8

URN | GRS | 6633 f_o-aoazozo 1]
— - — 'J

Statement of: Glyn Ronald JONES
Age if under 18: Over 18 (ifover 18 insert over 18) Occupation: Immigration Officer

This statement (consisting of 1 (one) page(s) each signed by me) Is true to the best of my knowledge and
belief and | make |t knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully
stated in it anything which I know to be false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature:..........................-.. W= e, (Witness)  Dates 04/03/2020

access to information held on Home Office systems that stores details of enforcement visits conducted by YHICE, and the
numbers of arrested persons and their nationalities from each of those visits, and the outcomes of any investigations

conducted.

ENTRANTS or, REMAINING BEYOND THE TIME LIMITED BY THEIR LEAVE and served as such,

This witness statement was made and completed at WATERSIDE COURT, LEEDS on 4t MARCH 2020 at 12:46hrs.

Signaturer....reoe. LN Signature witnessed DY i,

[ 2014 [ Govermnment Security Classification OFFICIAL smsmvﬂ




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 291

Y

CITY OF
Annex 7 - Regency, 2-4 George Hudson YORK
’Q COUNCIL
FH
[ 16
15
Raoof Car
Holses Farl
FH
S helte 7 o
31
Rougier _ Ppo
Phich & IIII :
Shlter ¥
‘-.||.| ks
{a I."‘i'
[1 III
i A
Rathimell 4
I. H Hall L
(i i PH 19
24 20 ]
EtSub
Sta
Offices
Mulbstore
[ il
St Mieharéls, Leida House
19 Erg8lib St .. Chapel
o Irt] HoLEs
: FPH
oy | 4 : Hatel
|_| (23 J
II:III 15 1 - Shelters
1 » T e [
A “_ﬁ 5reg@© Crown copyrightfand d‘atat.)a.se rights 2020 Ordnance S_urlv’.;;l”ﬂilol()-020818 |
Date: 27 May 2020 0
Author: City of York Council
0 0.025 0.05 0.075 0.1 0.125
Scale: 1:1,250 Km




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 293
ANNEX 8

Legislation and Policy Considerations
Review of Premises Licence

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application: S4 general
duties of licensing authorities; s51 Application for review of premises licence; s52
Determination of application for review; s53 Supplementary provision about review.

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises Licences and Club
Premises Certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to this application: Regulation 42, Part
2 (Premises licences) and Part 4 (General) relating to applications, notices and
representations and advertising of reviews.

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this application:
Chapter 10 Conditions attached to premises licences and club premises certificates
and Chapter 11 Reviews.

The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy apply
to this application: 8.0 Licensing Hours;11.0 Review of licences.

The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to
consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and disorder in the city.

The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the right to a
fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights. The Act also provides
for the protection of property, which may include licences in existence, and the
protection of private and family life.

(amended 27/02/19)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 295

ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION FROM
COUNSEL FOR THE

APPLICANT



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 297

Additional information from Applicant — guidance notes

In accordance with Para 9 of Appendix 1 | can confirm that Counsel for
the Applicant intends to rely on the following legal points:-

1) East Lindsey v Abu Hanif is a High Court case concerning the
revocation of a premises licence where the licence holder employed
illegal workers at his restaurant and paid them less than the minimum
wage. Mr Justice Jay upheld the revocation stating at paragraph 18:

“The question was not whether the respondent had been found guilty of
criminal offences before a relevant tribunal, but whether revocation of his
licence was appropriate and proportionate in the light of the salient
licensing objectives, namely the prevention of crime and disorder. This
requires a much broader approach to the issue than the mere
identification of criminal convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much
as antecedent facts will usually impact on the statutory question, but
importantly the prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective
consideration of what is warranted in the public interest, having regard to
the twin considerations of prevention and deterrence.”

2) The further High Court decision in Bassetlaw (at para 32) also
confirms that “deterrence” (i.e. to deter this licence holder and others
tempted to do the same) is a relevant consideration at premises licence
review hearings.

3) Chapter 11 of the s.182 Guidance (April 2018) states (at paragraphs
11.27-11.28) that in relation to licensed premises that employ people
who are disqualified from working by reason of their immigration status
in the UK (among other crimes)

“It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office
(Immigration Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which
are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively to
deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing
authority determines that the crime prevention objective is being
undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is
expected that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance —
should be seriously considered.”

4) There is a public interest in not sanctioning attempts by licence
holders to avoid the consequences of their illicit activity by simply



Page 298

transferring their licence to 3 parties. The High Courtin R v
Knightsbridge Crown Court considered the position where a holder of a
casino licence, who was found not be fit and proper person under the old
Gaming Act 1968, wished to avoid the cancellation of their licence by
selling the shares of their business to other individuals who, arguably,
were fit and proper (which is analogous to transferring the premises
licence). Lord Justice Griffiths observed at 318(G-H) and 319(B):

“It is also right that the licensing justices or the Crown Court on an
appeal should have regard to the fact that it is in the public interest that
the sanction of the cancellation of a licence should not be devalued. It is
obvious that the possibility of the loss of the licence must be a powerful
incentive to casino operators to observe the gaming laws and to run their
G premises properly. If persons carrying on gaming through a limited
company can run their establishment disgracefully, make a great deal of
money and then when the licence is cancelled sell the company to
someone who because he is a fit and proper person must be entitled to
continue to hold the licence through the company, it will seriously
devalue the sanction of cancellation.... A licensing authority is fully
entitled to use the sanction of cancellation in the public interest to
encourage other operators or would-be operators of gaming
establishments to observe the law in the area of their jurisdiction.”



Page 299

Neutral Citation Number: [2016] EWHC 1265 (Admin)

CO/345/2016
IN THE HIGH COURT OF JUSTICE
QUEEN'S BENCH DIVISION
THE ADMINISTRATIVE COURT

Roval Courts of Justice
Strand
London WC2A 2LL

Thursday, 14 April 2016

Before:

MR JUSTICE JAY

Between:
EAST LINDSEY DISTRICT COUNCIL_
Appellant

v

ABU HANIF
(TRADING AS ZARA'S RESTAURANT AND TAKEAWAY)_
Respondent

Computer-Aided Transcript of the Stenograph Notes of
WordWave International Limited trading as DTI
165 Fleet Street London EC4A 2DY
Tel No: 020 7404 1400 Fax No: 020 7404 1424
(Official Shorthand Writers to the Court)

Mr P Kolvin QC & Mr D Dadds (instructed by David Dadds LLP) appeared on behalf of the
Appellant

The Respondent did not appear and was not represented

JUDGMENT
(Approved)

Crown copyright©



Page 300

. MR JUSTICE JAY: This is an appeal by way of case stated from the decision of the
Lincoln Magistrates' Court, District Judge Veits, given on 23 June 2015, whereby he
allowed an appeal from the revocation of a premises licence by the licensing authority.

The appellant, the East Lindsey District Council, is the licensing authority. The
Magistrates' Court in the usual way is not a party to these proceedings. The respondent,
Mr Abu Hanif, trading as Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway, is the licence holder. He
through a licensing consultant has submitted correspondence making various limited
points, but indicating that he would not be taking any part in these proceedings.

The premises in question are Zara's Restaurant and Takeaway situated in North
Summercoates on the Lincolnshire coast. They are licensed to sell alcohol ancillary to
the supply of food. The restaurant is owned and managed by the licensee, Mr Hanif.
On 29 April 2014, the premises were the subject of a joint visit by the police and
immigration officers, and it was discovered that Mr Miah was working in the kitchen as
a chef. It was common ground that Mr Miah had no current entitlement to remain in the
UK, let alone to work. I was told that he arrived here illegally some years ago.
Furthermore, it was also accepted by the respondent that he (i) employed Mr Miah
without paperwork showing a right to work in the United Kingdom,; (ii) paid Mr Miah
cash in hand; (iii) paid Mr Miah less than the minimum wage; (iv) did not keep or
maintain PAYE records; (v) purported to deduct tax from Mr Miah's salary; and (vi) did
not account to HMRC for the tax deducted.

The police then applied for a review of the respondent's licence under section 51 of the
Licensing Act 2003 and the matter came before the appellant's subcommittee on

30 June 2014. The subcommittee decided to revoke the respondent's licence. Its
reasons were as follows:

"The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif did not take the appropriate checks of
staff members having knowledge that there were problems previously at the other
premises with overstayers, and that he continued to allow staff to work at Zara's
restaurant without making appropriate checks.

The subcommittee were satisfied that Mr Hanif had not undertaken the relevant checks to
ensure the employee concerned was eligible to work in the United Kingdom. Instead of
not allowing employees to work if they had not provided the correct documentation he
allowed them to work and paid cash in hand. With all this in mind the subcommittee
were satisfied that Mr Hanif had knowingly employed person/s unlawfully in the

United Kingdom.



Page 301

7. The subcommittee considered the evidence by Mr Kheng on behalf of Mr Hanif and the
Home Office section 182 Guidance to Licensing Authorities. The subcommittee were of
the view that the premises licence should be revoked and that revocation was
an appropriate step with a view to promoting the crime prevention licensing objective."

8. The respondent then appealed to the Magistrates' Court. There was a hearing on
27 March 2015, and on 23 June the district judge decided to allow the respondent's
appeal. On 1 September 2015, the district judge determined the issue of costs and on
7 January 2016 he stated the case. The appeal to the district judge was de novo, but he
accepted that he could only allow the appeal if the subcommittee's decision was "wrong",
the burden being on the appellant before him to establish that.

9. Looking now at the stated case, the district judge noted that the respondent had received
a civil penalty for employing an illegal worker under section 15 of the Immigration,
Asylum and Nationality Act 2006. An immigration officer gave evidence to the effect
that although by virtue of section 21 a criminal offence was committed, such proceedings
were rarely brought. The district judge also noted that the police and the Council's
licensing officer were no longer saying that the respondent was a serial offender, but
a redacted report which was placed before the subcommittee still gave the impression that
he "was in a much worse position than he actually was". As for the failure to pay the
minimum wage, the district judge said this:

A. "In his evidence before me Mr Hanif accepted that he had not paid the minimum
wage and this in itself can be a criminal offence. I found that this was not the
main basis of the subcommittee's decision however and again there was no
evidence that he had been reported for that alleged offence. It would appear
from their reasons that the subcommittee used the evidence of paying cash in
hand as justification for the finding that he knowingly employed Mr Miah. The
prosecuting authority however appear to have taken a different view in offering
the civil penalty."

10. The district judge's core reasoning was that no crime had been committed. As he put it:

A. "It appeared to me that no crime had been committed as a result of the visit to the
premises in April of last year. A civil penalty had been imposed rather than



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Page 302

prosecution for the section 21 offence and no other crime had been reported in
relation to not paying the minimum wage."

In the district judge's view, the crime prevention objective was not engaged.

The district judge also criticised the subcommittee for adopting an inconsistent approach
because in other similar cases only warnings were issued. Finally, he considered that the
subcommittee may have been influenced by comments in the police report, leading them
to believe that they were dealing with a serial offender.

At the conclusion of the stated case, the district judge posed two questions for my
determination. [ will address these at the end of my judgment.

I was taken by Mr Philip Kolvin QC to various provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 as
amended. Under section 4(1)and(2) a licensing authority must carry out its licensing
functions with a view to promoting the licensing objectives, which include "the
prevention of crime and disorder". The provisions dealing with the review application
brought by the police are contained in sections 51 and 52. Under section 52(3), the
licensing authority (and on appeal the Magistrates' Court):

A. "... must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations, take
such of the steps mentioned in subsection (4) (if any) as it considers appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives."

The epithet "appropriate" was introduced by amendment in 2011. Previously the test had
been stricter. In my judgment, it imports by necessary implication the concepts of
proportionality and relevance.

Mr Kolvin submitted that the district judge erred in a number of respects. First, he
wrongly held that, given that criminal proceedings were never brought, the crime
prevention objective (see section 4(2)) was not engaged. The statute is concerned with
the prevention rather than the fact of crime. Secondly, and in any event, the interested
party had committed criminal offences in relation to tax evasion, the employment of

an illegal worker, and employing an individual at remuneration below the minimum
wage. As for the employment of an illegal worker, Mr Kolvin accepted that this requires
knowledge on the part of the employer, and he also accepted that it is not altogether clear
whether the district judge found as a fact that the respondent possessed the requisite
knowledge. However, the core question is the promotion of the licensing objectives, not



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Page 303

the fact of anterior criminal activity, and in this regard a deterrence approach is
appropriate.

Thirdly, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no evidence of an inconsistent approach by
the subcommittee in giving warnings in some cases because all cases turn on their own
facts. Finally, Mr Kolvin submitted that there was no basis for the district judge's
conclusion that the subcommittee may have been influenced by a suggestion that the
respondent was a serial offender.

I accept Mr Kolvin's submissions. In my view the district judge clearly erred. The
question was not whether the respondent had been found guilty of criminal offences
before a relevant tribunal, but whether revocation of his licence was appropriate and
proportionate in the light of the salient licensing objectives, namely the prevention of
crime and disorder. This requires a much broader approach to the issue than the mere
identification of criminal convictions. It is in part retrospective, in as much as
antecedent facts will usually impact on the statutory question, but importantly the
prevention of crime and disorder requires a prospective consideration of what is
warranted in the public interest, having regard to the twin considerations of prevention
and deterrence. The district judge's erroneous analysis of the law precluded any proper
consideration of that issue. In any event, I agree with Mr Kolvin that criminal
convictions are not required.

To the extent that the analysis must be retrospective, the issue is whether, in the opinion
of the relevant court seized of the appeal, criminal offences have been committed. In the
instant case they clearly had been: in relation to tax evasion (see the common law offence
of cheating the Revenue and the offence of fraudulent evasion of tax contrary to

section 106A of the Taxes and Management Act 1970); and the employment of Mr Miah
at remuneration below the minimum wage (see section 31 of the National Minimum
Wage Act 1998). Moreover, given the evidence that Mr Miah never provided the
relevant paperwork, notwithstanding apparent requests, the obvious inference to be drawn
is that the respondent well knew that he could not, and that no tax code and National
Insurance number had been issued. The corollary inference in my judgment is that the
respondent well knew that Mr Miah could not provide the relevant paperwork because he
was here illegally.

I also accept Mr Kolvin's submission that each case must turn on its own facts. As
a matter of law, unless it could be said that some sort of estoppel or related abuse of
process arose in the light of warnings given in other cases, the alleged inconsistent
approach led nowhere. In my judgment, it could not be so said.

Finally, I agree with Mr Kolvin that there is nothing in the point that the subcommittee
could have been misled about the interested party being a serial offender. The point that



Page 304

the subcommittee was making was the fact that the respondent had worked at premises
where illegal workers were also employed meant that he should have been vigilant to the
issue.

22. Thus the answer to the district judge's two questions are as follows:

23.

24.

A. Q. "Was I correct to conclude that the crime prevention objective was not
engaged as no crimes had been proceeded with, the appellant only receiving
a civil penalty?"

B. No.

C. Q. "Was I correct in concluding that the respondent had been inconsistent in
similar decisions in not revoking the licence [sic]?"

Having identified errors of law in the district judge's decision, the next issue which arises
is whether I should remit this case for determination in the light of my ruling or whether
I have sufficient material to decide the issue for myself. I should only adopt the latter
course if satisfied that the issue is so obvious that no useful purpose would be served by
remission. [ am so satisfied. Having regard in particular to the twin requirements of
prevention and deterrence, there was in my judgment only one answer to this case. The
respondent exploited a vulnerable individual from his community by acting in plain,
albeit covert, breach of the criminal law. In my view his licence should be revoked.
Another way of putting the matter is that the district judge had no proper basis for
overturning the subcommittee's assessment of the merits.

It follows in my judgment that the only conclusion open to the district judge in the
present case was to uphold the revocation of the respondent's licence. This appeal must
be allowed and the respondent's licence must be revoked.



25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

Page 305

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, I'm very grateful. Can I deal with the question of costs, both
here and below.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes.
MR KOLVIN: Should I start with here.
MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes.

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, we would ask for the costs before this court. I just want to
pray in aid four very brief points. The first is the result. The second is that the district
judge's approach was expressly urged on him by the respondent's legal team. Thirdly,
that the respondent was expressly urged to concede this appeal to stop costs running, he
was given that opportunity at pages 42 and 43 of the bundle. Fourthly, perhaps a little
bit tugging at the heart strings, but there's no reason why the Council Tax payers of East
Lindsey should bear the cost of establishing what has been established in this court. So
we would ask for the costs up here.

There is a schedule and the schedule has been served upon Mr Hanif by letter dated
16 March of 2016. I don't know whether the schedule has found its way to my Lord, if
not I can hand up a copy.

MR JUSTICE JAY: It has.

MR KOLVIN: Ithas. My Lord, I can see that VAT has been added on. It doesn't need
to be because of course the Council can retrieve the VAT, so my application is for
£16,185. Iknow there's not a lot of explanation around my fee, but it was taken on

a single fee for all work involved in relation to the case stated; advice, the skeleton
argument and attendance today, so it's one single --

MR JUSTICE JAY: What about your junior's fees?
MR KOLVIN: My learned junior is also my instructing solicitor, he wears two hats.
MR JUSTICE JAY: Isee.

MR KOLVIN: He has his own firm which is Dadds LLP, and he is also a member of the
bar, so although he has appeared as my junior, his fee is wrapped up in the solicitors' fees
set out in the schedule.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Okay. What about the costs below?

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, I'm just trying to ascertain what the position is.



39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

Page 306

MR JUSTICE JAY: I thought there was no order for costs below.

MR KOLVIN: There was no order for costs below, that was on the basis that the appeal
had been allowed. The situation in relation to costs of licensing appeals are set out in
section 181 of the Act, which enables the court to make such order as it thinks fit.
Normally when appeals are dismissed there is no real question about it, costs follow the
event. When appeals are allowed, some further considerations come into play, which are
expressed by the Master of the Rolls in a case which you may have come across called
City of Bradford v Booth, which is the case where the Master of the Rolls said that local
authorities shouldn't be put off from trying to make honest and reasonable decisions in the
public interest. And so one has to take account additionally of the means of the parties
and their conduct in relation to the dispute, but in this case of course the appeal has now
been dismissed, and so we would say that the ordinary rule is that the costs should follow
the event, the appeal having failed. I'm just trying to ascertain whether schedules were
ever served below, in the light of the way the case came out. (Pause)

My Lord, I'm really sorry that we don't actually have the schedule here, apparently it was
£15,000. If you were minded to order costs below the options are either I suppose to
wait and we will have the thing emailed up, or to say, "Look, it was below, it's a little bit
more complex, they should be assessed if not agreed."

MR JUSTICE JAY: This is going to wipe him out, isn't it?

MR KOLVIN: Well he has already said, I have to say, I'm just telling you frankly what
I've been told this morning, that when the bundles and the schedules were served on him,
he had clearly read them, but he said, "If you win in the High Court and get costs against
me, then I'm just going to declare myself bankrupt." So there may well be a bit of
football(?) about this, but nonetheless it was his appeal, his team raised a point which in
retrospect was very surprising, and caused an awful lot of costs to be incurred.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes. Well I am going to assess the costs here in the round figure
of £15,000.

MR KOLVIN: Thank you.

MR JUSTICE JAY: If there was a schedule, which you tell me there was, below, it is
proportionate that I assess those costs rather than put you to the trouble of a detailed
assessment, so if you could have that emailed to my clerk in due course, I will assess the
costs below.

MR KOLVIN: Thank you, my Lord.

MR JUSTICE JAY: On the basis of that schedule.



49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

61.

Page 307

MR KOLVIN: We're not trying to be too ambitious, but we would like to see what we
can --

MR JUSTICE JAY: TI'll take a broad brush approach to that.
MR KOLVIN: Thank you.

My Lord, the only other thing to mention is that this isn't the only case which is kicking
around the east of England where licensing subcommittees are being urged to take no
action because there has been no prosecution in these immigration cases. Although

I appreciate that this is hardly stellar law making, it's an application of pretty well
established legal principles to the facts, I'm asking whether my Lord would be minded to
certify this so that we can adduce the authority in other cases, because it's a clear
statement of the law that there doesn't need to have been a prosecution. So with the
practice direction in mind, would my Lord be minded to --

MR JUSTICE JAY: Just remind me of the practice direction.
MR KOLVIN: Yes, can I hand it up?
MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes. (Handed)

MR KOLVIN: If Mr Hanif had come I wouldn't need to make the application. It's
paragraph 6.1. The judgment has to clearly indicate that it purports to establish a new
principle or extends the present law and that has to take the form of an express statement
to that effect, and then 6.2 says what categories of judgment we're dealing with, which
include applications attended by one party only.

So that's the situation we're in. In reality these judgments get around anyway, because
we're dealing with administrative tribunals and not courts, but sometimes the point is
taken, "Ah yes, but the court didn't certify".

MR JUSTICE JAY: But where's the new principle I've established?

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, what you have said clearly, which hasn't been said before, by
dint of the fact that not many licensing cases reach the lofty heights of this building, is
that there does not need to have been a prosecution in order for the crime to have --

MR JUSTICE JAY: Oh, Isee. Well that's so obvious it almost goes without saying,
that's why it hasn't been said before.

MR KOLVIN: My Lord, it was obvious to everyone except the district judge, the
appellant and other licensees in the east of England.



62.

63

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

Page 308

MR JUSTICE JAY: Okay.

. In terms of the logistics, if you want a copy of the judgment, don't you have to pay for it?

MR KOLVIN: We may have to, and we would be obviously very pleased to do so.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Because I'm not sure that all judgments are, in the Administrative
Court, they're not all transcribed and published.

MR KOLVIN: That is correct, and I have no doubt that my client would be -- this isn't
a matter about the costs of the judgment.

MR JUSTICE JAY: No, fortunately it doesn't cost that much. But I will give the
certification. I have never been asked to do so before, I must confess.

MR KOLVIN: Yes.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Because these cases are referred to almost willy nilly, if they're
available on Lawtel or wherever.

MR KOLVIN: Yes, they are.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Then they're just provided.

MR KOLVIN: They get into the textbooks and they --
MR JUSTICE JAY: No-one objects.

MR KOLVIN: Yes. Ithas happened once before, in relation to the meaning of the
Court of Appeal judgment in Hope and Glory, and Lindblom J, as he then was, was asked
repeatedly would he certify in relation to the meaning of Hope and Glory, which is

an important test, and he was pretty engaged in the practice direction. But since then
that judgment, there's always an argument in court about whether it can be cited or not.
The difference between licensing and some other fields of law is that very few cases
reach here, so when they do, the judgments of High Court judges are gold dust.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes, well I'm happy to make the certification.
MR KOLVIN: Thank you very much indeed.
MR JUSTICE JAY: We wouldn't want this point to be taken again successfully.

MR KOLVIN: No.



79.

80.

81.

82.

83.

84.

85.

Page 309

MR JUSTICE JAY: Now as a matter of courtesy, is the judgment, once available, sent
to the district judge, or is it something that I should do informally?

MR KOLVIN: Idon't know, my Lord, what the normal practice is. [ don't think that
I have previously been on a legal team which has sent judgments, but we're very happy to
undertake to do so.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Yes, I think if you're going to get a copy, obviously you're going to
send it to the respondent --

MR KOLVIN: Indeed.

MR JUSTICE JAY: --so he can ingestit. I think you should send it to the district
judge, just saying that the judge directed that out of courtesy he should see it.

MR KOLVIN: We're very happy to do that. Thank you very much indeed.

MR JUSTICE JAY: Thank you very much.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 311

Page 1

Status: [E Positive or Neutral Judicial Treatment
*366 R (Bassetlaw District Council) v Worksop Magistrates' Court

Queen's Bench Division

7 November 2008

[2008] EWHC 3530 (Admin)

[2010] L.L.R. 366
Slade J
7 November 2008

Premises licence — Unauthorised sales to under age persons — Review — Appeal — Licensing
objectives — Licensing Act 2003

Following test purchases conducted by trading standards officers of Bassetlaw District Council
(the council) at the off-licence premises of Mr and Mrs Jones, when alcohol was sold to two
14-year-old girls on four occasions, the council instituted a review of the premises licence. The
licensing committee suspended the licence for 1 month. Mr and Mrs Jones appealed to the
magistrates' court where the district judge allowed the appeal and instead imposed what were
said by him to be additional conditions on the licence. He stated that it was not the function of the
licensing authority to punish licensees for an infringement of licensing law and that the authority's
powers were restricted to guidance or remedial action. The council sought judicial review of that
decision for the purposes only of clarification as to the correctness in law of the decision.

Held — granting judicial review —

(1) The district judge had considered solely the provisions of the Guidance which were not
specific to reviews arising in connection with crime. A proper reading and application of the
Guidance, which governs the approach which the licensing authority must take in discharging its
duties, requires where the circumstances render it applicable, the consideration of the
paragraphs relating to reviews in connection with crime. Where criminal activity is applicable
wider considerations come into play and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged
includes the prevention of crime. In those circumstances deterrence is an appropriate objective
and one contemplated in the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

(2) The Guidance contains specific provisions as to the approach to be adopted where criminal
activity connected with the licensed premises is concerned. Plainly an appellate body must
operate similar principles to those applicable to the licensing authority. The district judge failed to
give reasons for a departure from the applicable guidance.

Statutory provisions considered

Licensing Act 2003, ss 4(2). (3). 51. 52(3). (4). 146(1). 182

Cases referred to in judgment

Stepney Borough Council v_Joffe; Stepney Borough Council v_Diamond; Stepney Borough
Council v White [1949] 1 KB 599, [1949] 1 All ER 256, OBD

Representation

James Quirke Local authority solicitor for the claimant


http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I5F9A7FC0E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IBED3FE80E42811DA8FC2A0F0355337E9
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IBED3FE80E42811DA8FC2A0F0355337E9

Page 312

Page 2

The defendant did not appear and was not represented

Cur adv vult
SLADE J:

1 Bassetlaw District Council applies for judicial review of the judgment and decision of a district
judge allowing an appeal from decisions made on a *367 licensing authority's review of a licence
held by Mr and Mrs Jones. The licensing committee of the district council had reviewed the
premises licence of the premises where Mr and Mrs Jones operated, in the light of offences
which had taken place on 10 March 2007 namely the unlawful sale of alcohol on the premises to
two 14-year-old girls. The girls were sent to the premises for test purchases in accordance with
arrangements made by the trading standards office. The sales took place over a relatively short
period of time. Each girl made a separate purchase or purchases, was served by one of two
different young cashiers. Having regard to these matters, on review the licensing authority
suspended the licence for the premises for 1 month. There was an appeal to the district judge.
The district judge overturned the decision of the licensing authority and instead imposed what
were said by him to be, ‘additional conditions on the licence’.

2 Mr Quirke appears for the licensing authority. The district judge has served two statements in
connection with this hearing, but otherwise takes no further part in it. The interested parties, Mr
and Mrs Jones, were served with the notice of application but have not served an
acknowledgement of service. | am also told that the licensing authority are not going to seek to
overturn the determination of the district judge as to penality. They seek, however, declarations
as to the correctness in law of the decision and the judgment of the district judge.

3 The grounds for judicial review may be analysed as falling under five headings. As will become
apparent later on in this judgment, two of those matters can, in my judgment, be taken together.

4 First, it is said that the district judge erred in holding that, in accordance with the Guidance
issued by the Secretary of State, it is not the function of the licensing authority to punish
licensees for an infringement of licensing law and provisions on its licence. Further, it is said that
the district judge was in error in holding that, on a proper construction of the licensing provisions
and guidance applicable, the licensing authority powers were restricted to guidance or remedial
action which was the approach of the district judge. It is said that the steps which the licensing
authority and the district judge on appeal may take include a range of powers which must be
deployed according to the particular circumstances of the case.

5 Secondly, it is said that the orders made by the district judge which were in substitution for the
suspension of the licence imposed by the licensing authority were, in effect, not additions to the
conditions of the licence which applied up to that point. Save in one respect they were merely a
reiteration of steps which were already being taken or were already in fact conditions of the
licence.

6 Thirdly, it is said that the district judge erred in his approach to his own decision-making on
appeal. It is said that he adopted a too generous approach to his powers on appeal in that he
appears at 2, para 5 of his judgment to direct himself that he could take a decision standing in the
shoes of the licensing authority having regard to the particular circumstances and considering
whether the licensing authority's decision was justified. It is said that the district judge failed to
give proper regard to the Guidance issued under s 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 in that he did
not state that he was *368 departing from such guidance in certain respects. Since, it is said,
that he departed from such guidance, he erred in failing to state why he was departing from such
guidance.

7 Fourthly, it is said that the district judge failed properly to apply and have regard to para 5.115
of the Guidance given under s 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 . This sets out and categorises as
criminal certain activities which may arise in connection with licensed premises and which the
Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. Included in the use of
licensed premises for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and prosperity for crime of young people.
It is said that the district judge failed to pay proper regard to that. Where there has been a
compliant of an incident which is categorised rightly as criminal activity in connection with



http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

Page 313

Page 3

licensed premises, it is said that the district judge failed to take into account para 5.113 of the
guidance. This provides that the licensing authority's duty, in circumstances such as these, is:

‘... to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives in the interests
of the wider community and not those of the individual holder of the premises licence.’

8 Finally, it is said that the district judge failed in his approach to pay proper regard to the
guidance of Lord Goddard in the case of Stepney Borough Council v Joffe ; Stepney Borough
Council v Diamond ; Stepney Borough Council v White [1949] 1 KB 599 which the judge himself
referred to at 2 of his judgment, para 5. In Joffe it was said that although on an appeal, such as
this, there is a right to a re-hearing. The appellate court should pay regard to the fact that the duly
constituted and elected local authority have come to an opinion on the matter. The appellate
body ought not lightly to reverse their opinion.

9 >Discussion

10 | will briefly outline some of the relevant statutory provisions and guidance. Pursuant to the
Licensing Act 2003, s 4 , the licensing authority must carry out its function under the Act with a
view to promoting the licensing objectives. Subsection (2) provides that:

‘The licensing objectives are—

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder;
(b) public safety;

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and

(d) the protection of children from harm.’

11 Importantly, s 4(3) provides:

‘In carrying out its licensing functions, a licensing authority must also have regard to—
*369

(b) any guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 1.282.’

12 Section 52 of the Licensing Act 2003 applies where an application for a review of licence
under s 51 has been made. Section 52(3) provides:

‘The authority must, having regard to the application and any relevant representations,
take such of the steps mentioned in subsection 4, if any, as it considers necessary for
the promotion of the licensing objectives.’

13 Those objects are setoutins 4.

14 Section 52(4) provides that the steps are:

(a) to modify the conditions of the licence ...

(b) to suspend the licence for the period not exceeding three months.

(c) to revoke the licence.

For this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified. If any of them is altered or

omitted or any new condition is added.’

15 It is to be noted that s 146(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 provides:



http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=IBED3FE80E42811DA8FC2A0F0355337E9
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92B445B0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D477E0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92B445B0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D477E0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D22DF0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D477E0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92B445B0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D477E0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93046180E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

Page 314

Page 4

‘A person commits an offence if he sells alcohol to an individual aged under 18’

16 Pursuant to s 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 guidance is issued. | have already outlined the
requirement for the licensing authority in carrying out its functions to do so in accordance with the
Guidance and to have regard to it. The background and the approach which should be taken to
that guidance is set out in para 2.3 of the Guidance itself which was applicable at the relevant
date. The Guidance was revised with effect from June 2007. Reference is made in para2.3tos 4
of the Licensing Act 2003 which provides that:

‘In carrying out its functions, a licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued
by the Secretary of State under section 182 . The requirement is therefore binding on all
licensing authorities to that extent.’

17 1t is recognised that the Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of
circumstances that may arise. So long as the Guidance has been properly and carefully
understood and considered, licensing authorities may depart from it, if they have reason to do so.
When doing so, licensing authorities will need to give full reasons for their decisions. Departure
from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review and the reasons given will then
be a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision
taken.

18 I will set out here the passages in the Guidance material to this application. Paragraph 5.99
provides:

‘Proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences represent a key
protection for the community where problems *370 associated with crime and disorder,
public safety, public nuisance or the protection of children from harm are occurring. It is
the existence of these procedures which should, in general, allow licensing authorities to
apply a light touch bureaucracy to the grant and variation of premises licence by
providing a review mechanism when concerns relating to the licensing objectives arise
later in respect of individual premises.’

19 The provisions relating to the power of the licensing authorities in conducting a review are set
out in para 5.107 and following. Paragraph 5.107 provides:

‘The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority on determining and
review that it may exercise where it considers them necessary for the promotion of the
licensing objectives.’

20 At para 5.109, there are set out the steps which may be taken by the licensing authority where
it considers that actions under its statutory powers are necessary. Those include modification of
the condition of the premises licence, suspension of the licence and revocation of the licence; the
suspension, being for a period not exceeding 3 months.

21 Paragraph 5.110 provides that:

‘In deciding which of the powers to invoke the licensing authority should so far as
possibly seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns which the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than a necessary and proportionate response.’

22 Paragraph 5.111 refers to the need for any detrimental financial impact of a licensing
authority's decision, in particular of suspension of a licence, to be considered.

23 A separate section in the Guidance deals with reviews arising in connection with crime. In my
judgment these provisions are particularly material to this case. Paragraph 5.112 states:


http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92B445B0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92B445B0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65
http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

Page 315

Page 5

‘A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities.’

24 1t is agreed by Mr Quirke that the sale of alcohol on the premises to under age drinkers is
connected with licensable activities. Indeed, in para 5.115 such activity is expressly referred to in
the following terms:

‘There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which the Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. These
are the use of the licensed premises [and there are enumerated a number of crimes ...
which include] for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on
the health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people.’

*371

25 Of importance to the consideration of the case before me is also para 5.113 which provides:

‘Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps are
necessary to be taken in connection with the premises licence for the promotion of the
crime prevention objective.’

26 The paragraph continues:

‘The licensing authority's duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the
licensing objectives in the interests of the wider community and not those of the
individual holder of the premises licence.’

27 At para 5.114, there is a reference to the fact that it is not the role of the licensing authority to
determine guilt or innocence, but it is stated that:

‘At the conclusion of the review, it will be for the licensing authority to determine, on the
basis of the application for the review and any relevant representations made, what
action needs to be taken for the promotion of the licensing act objectives in respect of
the licence in question regardless of any subsequent judgment in the courts about the
behaviour of individuals.’

28 | now turn to a consideration of the various heads of challenge which Mr Quirke, on behalf of
the licensing authority, makes to the judgment and determination of the district judge in this case.
In the course of the discussion | may refer not just to the district judge's judgment but also, albeit
maybe briefly, to a statement filed by him in these proceedings. Taking grounds 1 and 4 of
challenge together, the main issue raised by those grounds is that the district judge misdirected
himself in considering that the function of the authority and his function as the appellate body was
not punitive but in effect was remedial. It is submitted that the approach of the district judge was
to confine his consideration to remedy of the cause of the breach of the licence provisions and of
the law.

29 At paras 4 and 5 of the judgment in the section headed, ‘Discussions', at 10 the district judge
said that:

‘The function of the local authority, and now this court, must be first to establish why the
four sales of the alcohol to girls A and B occurred on 10 March 2007. Secondly, to take
such steps, if any, under section 52 of the Act as are necessary to ensure that no further
sales occur thereby promoting the two licensing objectives principally engaged by this
case: namely, the prevention of crime and disorder, and the protection of children from


http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I92D477E0E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

Page 316

Page 6

harm. The step or steps taken must be the minimum intervention necessary to achieve
those aims. What is necessary is a question of value and judgment which will involve
the local authority or the court taking account of all the circumstances of the case.’

*372

30 In my judgment, the language of para 5 indicates clearly that the district judge was
considering solely the provisions of the Guidance which were not specific to reviews arising in
connection with crime. In my judgment, a proper reading and application of the guidance which
governs the approach that a licensing authority must take in discharging its duties requires,
where the circumstances render it applicable, the consideration of the paragraphs relating to
reviews in connection with crime. While it may be said that in reviews which do not engage a
requirement to consider the paragraphs giving guidance on the approach where there is activity
in connection with crime related to licensed premises, the general provisions which apply to all
reviews may result in the approach outlined in para 5 being the appropriate one to follow. Indeed,
para 5.110, which applies generally to the exercise by a licensing authority of its powers on
review, does state a requirement, so far as possible, on the authority to establish the cause or
causes of the concerns and that remedial action taken should be directed generally to these
causes and should always be no more than a necessary and proportionate response. That
observation, in my judgment, is directed to the overall approach to the exercise by the licensing
authority of its powers on a review. When considering reviews arising in connection with crime,
decisions of the licensing authority would have to be reasonable in all the circumstances and that
would necessarily engage a requirement to consider necessity and proportionality.

31 However, in my judgment the district judge failed to have regard to the requirement on a
licensing authority conducting a review on the grounds that the premises had been used for
criminal purposes to take steps with view to the promotion of licensing objectives in the interests
of the wider community. That is a requirement set out in para 5.113. For reasons given earlier,
and in particular by reason of the fact that para 5.115 clearly specifies criminal activity which may
arise in connection with the use of the licensed premises for the purchase and consumption of
alcohol by minors, that provision is engaged in this case.

32 Accordingly, in my judgment, the district judge misdirected himself by confining his
consideration of the case to the test which would be appropriate where no criminal activity was
concerned. Where criminal activity is applicable, as here, wider considerations come into play
and the furtherance of the licensing objective engaged includes the prevention of crime. In those
circumstances, deterrence, in my judgment, is an appropriate objective and one contemplated by
the guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

33 The district judge held that the provisions are not to be used and cannot be used for
punishment. That may strictly speaking be correct. However, in my judgment deterrence is an
appropriate consideration when the paragraphs specifically directed to dealing with reviews
where there has been activity in connection with crime are applicable. Therefore, when the
district judge confined himself, as in my judgment he did, to the considerations of remedying, and
adopted only the language of para 5.110 in his considerations, he erred in law. In my judgment,
that error is sufficient to undermine the basis of his decision. On those two grounds alone,
grounds 1 and 4 as | have outlined, | allow this application for judicial review. *373

34 However, | continue to consider under the various headings the other grounds raised. The
orders made by the district judge are challenged. He added to the existing conditions of the
licence six matters as to which | am told that five were already present but not properly
implemented. The sixth new provision was acceptable identification to establish the age of a
purchaser shall be a driving licence with photographs, passport or proof of age scheme card
recognised by or acceptable by the licensing authority. | am told these provisions were already in
place, but not properly implemented. No doubt those are perfectly sensible and appropriate
provisions to be included on a licence. However it is said that the action taken on appeal being
confined in effect to reiterating existing practice with a minimal addition was entirely inappropriate
to meet the situation where there have been sales of alcohol to 14-year-old girls. In effect this is a
perversity challenge to the decision of the district judge. Even if the approach of the district judge
had been correct, which in my judgment it was not, it may well be that the order he made was
perversely minimal to meet the circumstances and gravity of the case.



Page 317

Page 7

35 Under the third general head of challenge, it is said that the district judge failed to pay proper
regard to the decision of the licensing authority. Whereas he directed himself in accordance with
the dictum of Lord Goddard in Joffe which he set out at 2, para 5 of his judgment, nonetheless, it
is said that he failed to pay regard to the initial decision of the licensing authority when coming to
his decision. Since in my judgment the district judge erred in other respects | determine this
judicial review challenge on other grounds.

36 It is finally said that the district judge erred in that he departed from the Guidance issued
under s 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 but failed, as he was obliged to do, to state that he was so
departing and failed to give reasons for so departing. The departure, it is said, is constituted by
the failure to give recognition and carry into effect the provisions of paras 5.113, 5.115 and 5.116.

37 Earlier in this judgment | set out the basis upon which licensing authorities must pay regard
and be governed by guidance issued. Plainly an appellate body must operate similar principles to
those applicable to the licensing authority. The guidance contains specific provisions as to the
approach to be adopted where criminal activity connected with licensed premises is concerned.
He failed to give reasons for a departure from applicable guidance. The district judge in reaching
his decision simply referred to the circumstances of the case and the fact that what is necessary
is a question of the valuation and judgment which will involve the local authority or the court
taking into account all the circumstances of the case, that is at 10 of his judgment, para 5. The
district judge in my judgment failed to identify why and in what respects he was departing from
the guidance. | find that the district judge erred in failing to give reasons for departing from the
applicable guidance.

38 Accordingly, for the reasons set out in this judgment | allow this application for judicial review
and find that the district judge erred in law in his approach to determining the appeal of the
licensees in this case. *374

Kerry Barker, Barrister
*375

No need for a declaration that the district judge erred in law in his approach to the appeal. No order
for costs.

(c) Jordans

© 2016 Sweet & Maxwell

Westlaw


http://login.westlaw.co.uk/maf/wluk/ext/app/document?src=doc&linktype=ref&context=28&crumb-action=replace&docguid=I93177450E45211DA8D70A0E70A78ED65

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 319

Hme Office

Revised Guidance issued
under section 182 of the
Licensing Act 2003

April 2018



11.

Page 320

Reviews

The review process

11.1

11.2

11.3

11.4

11.5

The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a premises
licence or club premises certificate.

At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate, a
responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing authority to review the
licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the premises in connection with any
of the four licensing objectives.

An application for review may be made electronically, provided that the licensing
authority agrees and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy of the application, if
the licensing authority requires one. The licensing authority may also agree in advance
that the application need not be given in hard copy. However, these applications are
outside the formal electronic application process and may not be submitted via GOV.UK
or the licensing authority’s electronic facility.

In addition, the licensing authority must review a licence if the premises to which it
relates was made the subject of a closure order by the police based on nuisance or
disorder and the magistrates’ court has sent the authority the relevant notice of its
determination, or if the police have made an application for summary review on the
basis that premises are associated with serious crime and/or disorder.

Any responsible authority under the 2003 Act may apply for a review of a premises
licence or club premises certificate. Therefore, the relevant licensing authority may apply
for a review if it is concerned about licensed activities at premises and wants to intervene
early without waiting for representations from other persons. However, it is not expected
that licensing authorities should normally act as responsible authorities in applying for
reviews on behalf of other persons, such as local residents or community groups. These
individuals or groups are entitled to apply for a review for a licence or certificate in their
own right if they have grounds to do so. It is also reasonable for licensing authorities to
expect other responsible authorities to intervene where the basis for the intervention falls
within the remit of that other authority. For example, the police should take appropriate
steps where the basis for the review is concern about crime and disorder or the sexual
exploitation of children. Likewise, where there are concerns about noise nuisance, it is
reasonable to expect the local authority exercising environmental health functions for the
area in which the premises are situated to make the application for review.

Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and applies
for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still achieved in this
process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of interest. As outlined
previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of acting as licensing
authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different officials to ensure a
separation of responsibilities. Further information on how licensing authorities should
achieve this separation of responsibilities can be found in Chapter 9, paragraphs 9.13 to
9.19 of this Guidance.

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 89



1.7

11.8

11.9

11.10

11.11

Page 321

In every case, any application for a review must relate to particular premises in respect
of which there is a premises licence or club premises certificate and must be relevant to
the promotion of one or more of the licensing objectives. Following the grant or variation
of a licence or certificate, a complaint regarding a general issue in the local area relating
to the licensing objectives, such as a general (crime and disorder) situation in a town
centre, should generally not be regarded as a relevant representation unless it can be
positively tied or linked by a causal connection to particular premises, which would allow
for a proper review of the licence or certificate. For instance, a geographic cluster of
complaints, including along transport routes related to an individual public house and its
closing time, could give grounds for a review of an existing licence as well as direct
incidents of crime and disorder around a particular public house.

Where a licensing authority receives a geographic cluster of complaints, the authority
may consider whether these issues are the result of the cumulative impact of licensed
premises within the area concerned. In such circumstances, the authority may also
consider whether it would be appropriate to include a special policy relating to
cumulative impact within its licensing policy statement. Further guidance on cumulative
impact policies can be found in Chapter 14 of this Guidance.

Representations must be made in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent
hearing or may stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount
to an amplification of the original representation may not be made at the hearing.
Representations may be made electronically, provided the licensing authority agrees
and the applicant submits a subsequent hard copy, unless the licensing authority waives
this requirement.

Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about problems
identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible they should advise
the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to address those
concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is expected to lead to a
decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in promoting the licensing
objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be used to undermine this co-
operation.

If the application for a review has been made by a person other than a responsible
authority (for example, a local resident, residents’ association, local business or trade
association), before taking action the licensing authority must first consider whether the
complaint being made is relevant, frivolous, vexatious or repetitious. Further guidance
on determining whether a representation is frivolous or vexatious can be found in
Chapter 9 of this Guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10).

Repetitious grounds of review

11.12 A repetitious ground is one that is identical or substantially similar to:

* aground for review specified in an earlier application for review made in relation to
the same premises licence or certificate which has already been determined: or

* representations considered by the licensing authority when the premises licence or
certificate was granted; or

* representations which would have been made when the application for the premises

90 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003



11.13

11.14

11.15

Page 322

licence was first made and which were excluded then by reason of the prior issue of
a provisional statement; and, in addition to the above grounds, a reasonable interval
has not elapsed since that earlier review or grant.

Licensing authorities are expected to be aware of the need to prevent attempts to
review licences merely as a further means of challenging the grant of the licence
following the failure of representations to persuade the licensing authority on an earlier
occasion. It is for licensing authorities themselves to judge what should be regarded as
a reasonable interval in these circumstances. However, it is recommended that more
than one review originating from a person other than a responsible authority in relation
to a particular premises should not be permitted within a 12 month period on similar
grounds save in compelling circumstances or where it arises following a closure order.

The exclusion of a complaint on the grounds that it is repetitious does not apply to
responsible authorities which may make more than one application for a review of a
licence or certificate within a 12 month period.

When a licensing authority receives an application for a review from a responsible
authority or any other person, or in accordance with the closure procedures described in
Part 8 of the 2003 Act (for example, closure orders), it must arrange a hearing. The
arrangements for the hearing must follow the provisions set out in regulations. These
regulations are published on the Government’s legislation website
(www.legislation.gov.uk). It is particularly important that the premises licence holder is
made fully aware of any representations made in respect of the premises, any evidence
supporting the representations and that the holder or the holder’s legal representative
has therefore been able to prepare a response.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.16

11.17

11.18

11.19

The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the promotion
of the licensing objectives.

The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take any further
steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there is nothing to
prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence holder and/or to
recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is expected that licensing
authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important mechanism for ensuring
that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and that warnings should be
issued in writing to the licence holder.

However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental health
officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement — either orally or in writing
- that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns, licensing
authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into account
when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing authorities may
take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence holder has been
required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is
appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 91



11.20

11.21

11.22

11.23

Page 323

+ modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times;

* exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the
incidental live and recorded music exemption)'?;

* remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that
the problems are the result of poor management;

* suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

* revoke the licence.

In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities
should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that the
representations identify. The remedial action taken should generally be directed at these
causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate response
to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.

For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal and
replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy a
problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor management
decisions made by that individual.

Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may be
an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent review
hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove a
succession of designated premises supervisors as this would be a clear indication of
deeper problems that impact upon the licensing objectives.

Licensing authorities should also note that modifications of conditions and exclusions of
licensable activities may be imposed either permanently or for a temporary period of up
to three months. Temporary changes or suspension of the licence for up to three
months could impact on the business holding the licence financially and would only be
expected to be pursued as an appropriate means of promoting the licensing objectives
or preventing illegal working. So, for instance, a licence could be suspended for a
weekend as a means of deterring the holder from allowing the problems that gave rise
to the review to happen again. However, it will always be important that any detrimental
financial impact that may result from a licensing authority’s decision is appropriate and
proportionate to the promotion of the licensing objectives and for the prevention of illegal
working in licensed premises. But where premises are found to be trading irresponsibly,
the licensing authority should not hesitate, where appropriate to do so, to take tough
action to tackle the problems at the premises and, where other measures are deemed
insufficient, to revoke the licence.

" See chapter 15 in relation to the licensing of live and recorded music.

92 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003



Page 324

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24

11.25

11.26

11.27

A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected
with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs problems at
the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband or stolen
goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing authorities
do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue. This is a matter
for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a review is not
therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to ensure the
promotion of the crime prevention objective.

Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not
part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why representations
giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending the outcome of
any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the criminal
courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the alleged crimes are taking place on
the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives. Where a review
follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing authority to attempt to go
beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated as a matter of undisputed
evidence before them.

Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the premises
have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what steps should
be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of the crime
prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal activity or
associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the best efforts of
the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite full compliance with
the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the licensing authority is
still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the problems. The licensing
authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion of the licensing objectives
and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the wider community and not
those of the individual licence holder.

There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises
which should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the licensed
premises:

« for the sale and distribution of drugs controlled under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971
and the laundering of the proceeds of drugs crime;
« for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;

« for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which
does considerable damage to the industries affected:;

» for the illegal purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the
health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of
young people;

« for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;
* by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;
* as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;

Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 | 93



Page 325

« for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks:

« for employing a person who is disqualified from that work by reason of their
immigration status in the UK;

¢ for unlawful gambling; and
« for the sale or storage of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.

11.28 ltis envisaged that licensing authorities, the police, the Home Office (Immigration
Enforcement) and other law enforcement agencies, which are responsible authorities,
will use the review procedures effectively to deter such activities and crime. Where
reviews arise and the licensing authority determines that the crime prevention objective
is being undermined through the premises being used to further crimes, it is expected
that revocation of the licence — even in the first instance — should be seriously
considered.

Review of a premises licence following closure order or illegal
working compliance order

11.29 Licensing authorities are subject to certain timescales, set out in the legislation, for the
review of a premises licence following a closure order under section 80 of the Anti-social
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 or an illegal working compliance order under
section 38 of and Schedule 6 to the Immigration Act 2016. The relevant time periods run
concurrently and are as follows:

« when the licensing authority receives notice that a magistrates’ court has made a
closure order it has 28 days to determine the licence review — the determination must

be made before the expiry of the 28th day after the day on which the notice is
received;

* the hearing must be held within ten working days, the first of which is the day after
the day the notice from the magistrates’ court is received;

* notice of the hearing must be given no later than five working days before the first
hearing day (there must be five clear working days between the giving of the notice
and the start of the hearing).

Review of a premises licence following persistent sales of alcohol
to children

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly
and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at
the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme).
Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those managing
the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised appropriate due
diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to ensure that a review of
the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the case where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 147A or a closure notice has been
given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing
authority should consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

94 | Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003



This page is intentionally left blank



304

Page 327

[1982]

REGINA v. KNIGHTSBRIDGE CROWN COURT,

Ex parte INTERNATIONAL SPORTING CLUB (LONDON) LTD.

AND ANOTHER

1981 May 12, 13, 14, 15; Griffiths L.J. and May J.

Judicial Review — Certiorari— Crown Court— Error on face of

record — Oral judgment containing errors of law — Whether
certiorari available )

Gaming—Club—Gaming licence—Companies owning clubs found

not to be fit and proper persons to hold licence—Appeal—
Companies restructured—W hether restructuring of companies
and change of club management relevant consideration—
Gaming Act 1968 (c. 65), Sch. 2, para. 20

On a joint application to the gaming licensing committee by
the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis and the Gaming
Board of Great Britain, the gaming licences of three London
gaming clubs were cancelled on the ground that the companies
owning the clubs were not fit and proper persons to hold
gaming licences. The companies entered notices of appeal to
the Crown Court and were thereby able to continue operating
pending the appeals. Before the hearing of the appeals, the
entire shareholdings of the companies were sold, and the pur-
chasers replaced the old with new management and put in
hand the necessary reforms. The companies under the new
ownership pursued the appeals and contended that despite past
misconduct they were now reformed by the complete change
of shareholding and management and were, therefore, fit and
proper persons to hold gaming licences. The Crown Court dis-
missed the appeals and a circuit judge sitting with licensing
justices delivered a judgment giving the reason for the de-
cision that the fitness of the companies was to be judged by
their past misconduct.

On an application by two of the companies for an order of
certiorari to quash the order of the Crown Court dismissing
the appeals on the grounds, inter alia, that the judgment
showed errors of law on the face of the record, and on a
submission by the Gaming Board that the record consisted
only of the formal order of the court and that the judgment
formed no part of the record: —

Held, (1) that in the growth of administrative law over the
past four decades, the concept of the record had been
broadened so as to include documents embodying the reasons
for the decision of an inferior tribunal; that since judges and
tribunals were expected to give reasons for their decisions and
the practice of the Divisional Court to consider the document
recording the reasons for a decision had been given parliamen-
tary approval by the Tribunal and Inquiries Acts 1958 and
1971, it would be unreasonable and contrary to the developing
practice of the court to exclude documents recording reasons
of tribunals to which the Acts did not apply; and that,
accordingly, the record of the Crown Court for the purposes
of the prerogative order of certiorari included the transcript of
the oral judgment (post, pp. 313c-p, 314D-F, H—3154, D-F,
316A). :

Reg. v. Supplementary Benefits Commission, Ex parte



Page 328

305
1 Q.B. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.)

Singer [1973]1 1 W.L.R. 713, D.C. and dictum of Lord Denning
M.R. in Reg. v. Preston Supplementary Benefits Appeal
Tribunal, Ex parte Moore [1975] 1 W.L.R. 624, 628, C.A.
applied.

Overseers of the Poor of Walsall v. London and North
Western Railway Co. (1878) 4 App.Cas. 30, H.L.(E.) con-
sidered.

(2) Granting the applications, that the question for the
Crown Court was whether at the time of hearing the appeal
the companies were fit and proper persons to hold a licence
and, therefore, the restructuring of the companies was a matter
to be taken into account and that, accordingly, the transcript
of the judgment of the Crown Court showed an error of law
in failing to consider that matter; that although it was possible
that the Crown Court would have come to the same decision
if it had taken into account the restructuring of the companies,
the companies should not be denied a rehearing and, there-
fore, the court would exercise its discretion to quash the
decision of the Crown Court leaving the applicants to pursue
their appeals against the orders of the licensing justices
cancelling their licences (post, pp. 3174-B, 318D—g, 319A-B, C-F).

The following cases are referred to in the judgment:

Baldwin & Francis Ltd. v. Patents Appeal Tribunal [1959] A.C. 663; [1959]
2 W.L.R. 826; [1959] 2 All E.R. 433, H.L.(E.).

Gaming Board of Great Britain v. Victoria Sporting Club (unreported),
October 17, 1980, Judge Friend.

Overseers of the Poor of Walsall v. London and North Western Railway
Co. (1878) 4 App.Cas. 30, H.L.(E.).

Racecourse Betting Control Board v. Secretary for Air [1944] Ch. 114;
[1944] 1 All E.R. 60, C.A.

Reg. v. Chertsey Justices, Ex parte Franks [1961] 2 Q.B. 152; [1961] 2

" W.L.R. 442; [1961] 1 All E.R. 825, D.C. _

Reg. v. Inland Revenue Commissioners, Ex parte National Federation of
Self-Employed and Small Businesses Ltd. [1981] 2 W.L.R. 722; [1981]
2 All ER. 93, HL.(E).

Reg. v. Justices for Court of Quarter Sessions for the County of Leicester,
Ex parte Gilks [1966] Crim . L.R. 613, D.C.

Reg. v. Knightsbridge Crown Court, Ex parte Ladup Ltd. (unreported),
March 18, 1980, D.C.

Reg. v. Leeds Crown Court, Ex parte Bradford Chief Constable [1975] Q B.
314; [1974] 3 W.L.R. 715; [1975] 1 All E.R. 133, D.C.

Reg. v. Medical Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Gilmore [1957] 1 Q.B. 574
[1957] 2 W.L.R. 498; [1957] 1 All E.R. 796, C.A.

Reg. v. Preston Supplementary Benefits Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Moore
[1975] 1 W.L.R. 624; [1975] 2 All E.R. 807, C.A.

Reg. v. Supplementary Benefits Commission, Ex parte Singer [19731 I
W.L.R. 713; [1973] 2 All ER. 931, D.C.

Rex v. Northumberland Compensation Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Shaw
[1951] 1 K.B. 711; [1951] 1 All E.R. 268, D.C.; [1952] 1 KB 338
'[19521 1 Al ER. 122, C.A.

South East Asia Fire Bricks Sdn. Bhd. v. Non-Metallic Mineral Products
Manufacturing Employees Union [1981] A.C. 363; [1980] 3 WLR
318; [1980] 2 All E.R. 689, P.C. :



Page 329
306
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.) [1982]

The following additional cases were cited in argument:

Anisminic Ltd. v. Foreign Compensation Commission [1969] 2 A C. 147;
[1969] 2 W.L.R. 163; [1969] 1 All ER. 208, H.L.(E.).

Attorney-General v. British Broadcasting Corporation [1981] A.C. 303;
[1980] 3 W.L.R. 109; [1980] 3 All ER. 161, H.L.(E.).

Boulter v. Kent Justices [1897] A.C. 556, H.L.(E.).

Company, In re A [1981] A.C. 374; [1980] 3 W.L.R. 181; [1980] 2 All E.R.
634, H.L.(E.).

Hanks v. Minister of Housing and Local Government [1963] 1 Q.B. 999;
[1962] 3 W.L.R. 1482; [1963] 1 All E.R. 47.

Pearlman v. Keepers and Governors of Harrow School [1979]1 Q.B. 56;
[1978] 3 W.L.R. 736; [1979] 1 All ER 365, C.A.

Reg. v. Midhurst Justices, Ex parte Thompson [1974] Q.B. 137; [1973] 3
W.L.R. 715; [1973] 3 All E.R. 1164, D.C,

Reg. v. Patents Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Swift & Co. [1962] 2 Q.B. 647;
[1962] 2 W.L.R. 897; [1962] 1 All E.R. 610, D.C,

Reg. v. Southampton Justices, Ex parte Green [1976] Q.B. 11; [1975] 3
W.L.R. 277; [1975] 2 Al E.R. 1073, C.A.

Rex v. Hyde Justices [1912] 1 K.B. 645, C.A.

Rex v. Manchester Justices, Ex parte Lever [1937] 2 K.B. 96; [1937] 3 All
ER. 4, D.C.

. Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors Ltd. [1922] 2 A.C. 128, P.C.

Rex v. Newington Licensing Justices [1948] 1 KB 681; [1948] 1 All E.R.
346, D.C.

AprLicaTION for judicial review.

The applicants, International Sporting Club (London) Ltd. and Palm
Beach Club Ltd., applied for judicial review by way of certiorari to quash
a judgment given by Knightsbridge Crown Court (Judge Friend and
justices), on March 9, 1981, dismissing an appeal from a decision of the
Gaming Licensing Committee for the South Westminster Division of Inner
London made on September 24, 1980, cancelling the gaming licences granted
under Part IT of the Gaming Act 1968 in respect of the International
Sporting Club, the Curzon House Club and the Palm Beach Club. The
grounds on which relief was sought were (1) that the Crown Court had
failed to determine the appeal according to law; (2) that the Crown Court,
in the * speaking order” which was constituted by or included in its
judgment, held contrary to law (a) that the question whether the applicants
were fit and proper within the meaning of paragraph 20 (1) (b) of Schedule
2 to the Gaming Act 1968 ought to be determined by exclusive considera-
tion of past misconduct of the applicants and that there should be excluded
from consideration any reformation or change in ownership and manage-
ment of the applicant companies, (b) that the court should take into
account, in determining whether the applicants were fit and proper and
whether discretionary power ought to be exercised, the extraneous and
erroneous consideration that the sale of shares in a company owning a
licence, and in particular if such licence was under threat of cancellation,
was contrary to public policy or wrong or an unacceptable means of
obviating or evading the control or operation of the Gaming Act 1968, and
(c) that the jurisdiction of the Crown Court on appeal was punitive and not
merely regulatory; and (3) that the failure or refusal by the Crown Court to



Page 330
307
1 Q.B. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.)
determine whether the applicants were fit and proper persons at the date of
the hearing of the appeal constituted a failure or refusal to exercise the'

jurisdiction of the court.
The facts are stated in the judgment of the court.

Gavin Lightman Q.C. and David Tudor Price for International Sporting
Club (London) Ltd. The decision of the Crown Court ought to be quashed
by reason of (a) error on the face of the record and (b) as made in excess
of jurisdiction.

As to (a) the judgment of the Crown Court giving its reasons for its
decision either constitutes the record or constitutes part of the record. Since
the formal order of the court does not in terms dismiss the appeal but refers
to the appeal having been dismissed when the judgment was delivered, the
judgment alone and not the formal order constitutes the record. If this is
not correct, the reasons given constitute part of the record: see Reg. v.
Chertsey Justices, Ex parte Franks [1961] 2 Q.B. 152; Reg v. Justices for
Court of Quarter Sessions for the County of Leicester, Ex parte Gilks
[1966] Crim.L.R. 613, and Reg. v. Leeds Crown Court, Ex parte Bradford.
Chief Constable [1975] Q.B. 314,

The modern practice is to include the reasons for a decision as part of
the record: see Reg. v. Supplementary Benefits Commission, Ex parte
Singer [1973] 1 W.L.R. 713; Baldwin & Francis Ltd. v. Patents Appeal
Tribunal [1959] A.C. 663; Reg. v. Medical Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte
Gilmore [1957] 1 Q.B. 574 and Reg. v. Preston Supplementary Benefits
Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Moore [1975] 1 W.L.R. 624.

Rex v. Newington Licensing Justices [1948] 1 K.B. 681 was to the
effect that no decision had in fact been made by the licensing justices and
accordingly no order for certiorari could be made. The dictum of Singleton
J. at p. 690 that no order for certiorari could be made where the decision
was given orally, is wrong. The conservative approach to determining what
constitutes the record, manifested in the cases cited in Reg. v. Knights-
bridge Crown Court, Ex parte Ladup Ltd. (unreported), March 18, 1980,
is out of accord with modern practice and authority for relaxing the rules
governing the grant of relief in the field of administrative law to be found
in the decision in Reg. v. Inland Revenue Commissioners, Ex parte
National Federation of Self-Employed and Small Businesses Ltd. [1981] 2
W.LR. 722.

If error does appear on the face of the record, the fact that the Gaming
Act 1968 provides that the decision of the Crown Court is final is no ground
for refusing certiorari: see Reg. v. Medical Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte
Gilmore [1957] 1 Q.B. 574 and South East Asia Fire Bricks Sdn. Bhd. v.
Non-Metallic Mineral Products Manufacturing Employees Union [1981]
A.C. 363,

The judgment of the Crown Court discloses error in its insistence that
in determining the fitness of a licensee, only his past record should be
considered and nothing else. The question of fitness must be determined in
the lisht of circumstances existing at the time of the appeal and in particular
the character and reputation of the shareholders and directors at that time
and the question whether at the time of the hearing they have the capacity
and intention to run the casino properly.



Page 331

308
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.) [1982]

As to (b), an error of law by the Crown Court involved the failure to
take into account relevant considerations and thus constituted an excess of
jurisdiction: see Reg. v. Southampton Justices, Ex parte Green [1976]
Q.B. 11. Such an error of law by an inferior court such as the Crown
Court (including four lay members) exercising an administrative function
invalidates its decision even if not open to challenge on the ground of error
of law on the face of the record.

Mark Cran for Palm Beach Casinos Ltd. The subm1ss1ons on behalf
of International Sporting Club (London) Ltd. are adopted. The question
raised was whether a casino owner with a cancellation of licence pending
should be able to sell at a commercial value. These were casino premises
in Mayfair owned by Coral Leisure Group Ltd. Pending the appeals, Coral
Leisure Group Ltd. could continue to make a profit. The Crown Court
said that if the clubs were sold at a commercial value it was a way of
enabling the wrongdoer to benefit.

It was an issue of fact whether an applicant was a fit and proper person.
A company, unlike an individual, can change its character. The structure
of the Gaming Act 1968 is such that a transferee, whether licensee or
shareholder in a licence holding company, cannot escape the wrongdoings
of the past. Therefore it is entirely proper for a court to disregard past
wrongdoings in deciding the issue of whether an applicant is a fit and proper
person at the date of the hearing. There was no circumvention of the Act.
If there was circumvention of the Act, the court did not consider if in
relation to this applicant there had been any circumvention.

On the exercise of the discretion, the court took the view that there was
a means of benefiting the wrongdoer as a general policy rather than con-
sidering whether the wrongdoer had in fact benefited in this case. Past
misconduct was only evidential. The Crown Court had also failed to
consider whether it was in the interests of the public that casino licences
should go into the hands of reputable operators as soon as possible.

John Marriage Q.C. and Timothy Cassel for the Commissioner of Police
of the Metropolis. Before the licensing justices, the Commissioner of
Police put forward evidence and argument but the matter of disqualifica-
tion was left entirely to the court. The Commissioner did not comment on
the bona fides of the new management. He was only interested to see
that the premises were policed and that there were no criminal offences
taking place on them. To achieve that end, the Commissioner worked
very closely with the Gaming Board. The new management of the clubs
took over and started running them immediately without even a day’s
pause to reorganise them.

As a matter of policy, the licensing justices and the Crown Court had
to ensure that discipline was restored and enforced after past misconduct.
The judgment of the Crown Court must be regarded in the light of licensing
policy generally. The enforcement of discipline in a gaming club requires
an effective sanction against a management company guilty of misconduct.
That sanction is the cancellation of the management company’s licence.
The sanction is devalued if the company can be sold for a high price, as it
can if the new owners and management are able to have the licence
restored. The applicants are secking to make use of a lacuna in the law



Page 332

309
1 Q.B. Reg. v. Crown Ct,, Ex p. International Club (D.C.)
which would weaken'the cancellation of a gaming licence as a sanction for
breaches of the law.

As to the general nature of licensing law, hcensmg questions are not
matters of inter partes applications. They are questions of importance to
the public. [Reference was made to Boulter v. Kent Justices [1897]
A.C. 556 and Rex v. Hyde Justices [1912] 1 K.B. 645.]

In order to quash a decision by way of certiorari it is not sufficient to
find an error on the face of the record. There must be an abuse of the
court’s jurisdiction by which the court wrongfully extends or limits the area
in which it is entitled to reach decisions. A wrong decision in law is not
of itself an abuse of the court’s jurisdiction. [Reference was made to Rex
V. Nat Bell Liquors Ltd. [1922] 2 A.C. 128.]

Simon Tuckey Q.C. for the Gaming Board of Great Britain. The record
must be strictly construed and cannot extend beyond the formal order
dismissing the appeals. The reasons contained in the judgment of the
inferior court form no part of the record unless that court chose to embody
those reasons in the order. Only then would it exist as a document which
the inferior court keeps as a formal record of its proceedings. The record
must not be given an arbitrary significance and cannot extend to include
any other document. What is quashed on certiorari is the record which the
inferior court has in its physical custody.

Certiorari will lie only where an inferior court has acted without juris-
diction or has exceeded its jurisdiction. Certiorari will not lie on the
ground merely that an inferior court made an error of law: see Racecourse
Betting Control Board v. Secretary for Air [1944] Ch. 114. A judge’s
mistake is not an error of law on the face of the record. An error on the
face of the record must be palpable and apparent. On an application for
certiorari a court should take care not to go behind the face of the record
and decide a point of mixed fact and law.

Cur. adv. vult.

June 5. GrirriTHS L.J. read the following judgment of the court.
Between 1974 and 1979 Coral Leisure Group Ltd. controlled and managed
three London gaming clubs; they were the International Sporting Club, the
Curzon House Club and the Palm Beach Club. The clubs were very badly
run and with scant regard to the provisions of the Gaming Act 1968.
Eventually they were all raided by the police in November 1979 and there-
after the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis and the Gaming Board
of Great Britain joined in applications to the Gaming Licensing Committee
for the South Westminster D1v151on to cancel the gaming licences of the
three clubs. .

In each case the gaming licence was held by a limited company. They
were International Sporting Club (London) Ltd., Curzon House Club Ltd.
and Palm Beach Club Ltd. Coral Casinos (U.K.) Ltd., a wholly owned sub-
sidiary of Coral Leisure Group Ltd., owned the whole of the share capital
of the International Sporting Club Ltd. and Curzon House Club Ltd., and
Coral Leisure Group Ltd. itself owned two-thirds of the share capital of
Palm Beach Club Ltd:, the remaining one-third being owned by Gordon



Page 333

310
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.) [1982]

Hotels Ltd. Coral Casinos (U.K.) Ltd. were responsible for the manage-
ment of each of the clubs.

The applications to cancel the licences were made upon three grounds;
first, that the companies were not fit and proper persons to hold a gaming
licence, secondly, that Coral Casinos (U.K.) Ltd. for whose benefit the
clubs were operated, were not fit and proper persons to hold a licence and
thirdly, that the clubs had been used for unlawful purposes.

The evidence took many days to hear and revealed a whole catalogue
of wrongdoing. It is not necessary to enumerate all the various breaches of
the Gaming Act 1968 that the companies had been committing; it will
suffice to say that they were numerous, serious and extended over a number
of years. The licensing committee on September 24, 1980, cancelled the
licences on the ground that the companies were not fit and proper persons
to hold gaming licences. It is conceded that that was a proper finding and a
correct exercise of their discretion by the licensing committee on the
material then before them.

The licensing committee did not make any specific finding on whether
the clubs had been used for an unlawful purpose or purport to cancel the
licence on that ground. No doubt it seemed to them unnecessary to do so.
But had they wished to do so it appears that there was ample material upon
which they could have acted. Nevertheless, although the committee invited
submissions on the point, it did not exercise its discretion to disqualify the
premises under paragraph 49 of Schedule 2.

On October 9 the companies entered notices of appeal. That meant that
despite the fact that their licences had been cancelled the clubs could con-
tinue operating until their appeals were determined by the Crown Court:
see Schedule 2, paragraph 44.

Before the hearing of the appeal there was much business activity. The
two Coral companies sold out their entire interests in the three clubs, and
handed over their management to the new owners. They sold the shares of
the International Sporting Club Ltd. to A.V.P. Ltd., a wholly-owned sub-
sidiary of Lonrho Ltd. They sold the shares of the Curzon House Club Ltd.
to the Aspinal organisation. They sold the two-thirds share holding in Palm
Beach Club Ltd. to Mecca Sportsman Ltd. By the time the appeal com-
menced on February 17, 1981, Coral Casinos (U.K.) Ltd. had ceased to have
any interest in the ownership or management of any of the clubs, and the
appeals were pursued by the new owners.

An appeal to the Crown Court is by way of rehearing. Mr, Marriage on
behalf of the Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis opened the facts
to the court, but he was not required to call any evidence because the trans-
gressions of the three companies that had been proved before the licensing
authority were admitted and it was also conceded that at the date of the
hearing in September the companies were not fit and proper persons to
hold a licence. Nevertheless, we are told it took Mr. Marriage a day to
open the facts which gives some idea of the scale of the past wrongdoing.

The new owners of the clubs called a great deal of evidence in an
attempt to satisfy the Crown Court that, whatever their past sins, the casino
companies were completely reformed characters and were now fit and
proper persons to hold gaming licences. Their argument was that, whereas



Page 334

311
1 QB. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.)
it might be difficult for an individual with a bad record to persuade a
court that he had completely reformed, a company was in a different posi-
tion for it was as good or as bad as the people who controlled and managed
it, and where there had been a complete change of shareholding and
management there should be no impediment to holding that the company
was now a fit and proper person to hold a gaming licence, if the share-
holders and managements were now respectable and capable of the proper
management of a gaming club. But their argument did not prevail and the
appeals were dismissed.

The hearing in the Crown Court was before a circuit judge sitting with
four licensing justices. At the end of the hearing the judge gave a judgment
in which he gave the reasons why the appeals were dismissed. He ended his
judgment by saying:

“ For those reasons, I think it is right that I should express our rea-
sons and the appeal is dismissed. I could have said simply, ¢ The

- appeals are dismissed,” but I thought it right and proper that you

should all know precisely why they are dismissed.”

In these proceedings the International Sporting Club (London) Ltd. and
the Palm Beach Casino Club Ltd. apply for orders of certiorari to quash the
orders of the Crown Court dismissing their appeals on the grounds that
the reasons stated in the judgment show errors of law on the face of the
record, alternatively, that the Crown Court exceeded their jurisdiction, or
in the further alternative that the Crown Court failed to determine the
question referred.

Mr. Tuckey on behalf of the Gaming Board, with the somewhat reluc-
tant support of Mr. Marriage, has submitted that the judgment forms no
part of the “ record” and that this court is entitled to look only at the
formal order of the court and not at the reasons that the court gave for
making the order.

If this submission is well founded, the supervisory power of this court
to review the decisions of inferior courts for errors of law will be drastically
curtailed. The * order ”* of the court rarely, if ever, contains the reasons that
led to the making of the order. The order merely recites the decision of the
court, not its reasons. In the case of an appeal the order will normally say
no more than “ it is ordered that the appeal be dismissed * and then record
any order as to costs. So, if it is only the order that constitutes the record,
there will be scarcely any occasion when it will be possible to obtain an
order for certiorari on the ground of error of law on the face of the record.
In fact in the present case the order was drawn in a somewhat curious form;
it is dated March 9, 1981, and reads:

“In the appeals of Curzon House Club Ltd., International Sporting
Club (London) Ltd. and Palm Beach Casino Club Ltd. On March 9,
1981, when the appeals were dismissed the above-named appellants
were ordered to pay one-third of the taxed or agreed costs of the
respondents: (1) the Commissioner of Police [of] the Metropolis;
(2) the Gaming Board; and (3) licensing justices.”

Mr. Lightman has argued on behalf of the applicants that the order does
not record the dismissal of the appeals but by the use of the word “ when ”



Page 335

312
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.) [1982]

refers to it only as a matter of history and that accordingly the only record
of the dismissal of the appeal is to be found in the judgment, which, what-
ever the general rule, must in this particular case form a part of the record.
We carninot accept this submission; we read the order as recording the dis-
missal of the appeal; if the general rule is found to be that the reasons con-
tained in a judgment do not form part of the record they should not be
admitted because of some slightly unusual wording used by a clerk in draw-
ing the order of the court.

The historical review of the use of certiorari by the Court of Queen’s
Bench to exercise a supervisory jurisdiction over inferior courts and
tribunals contained in the judgments of Lord Goddard C.J. and Denning
L.J. in Rex v. Northumberland Compensation Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte
Shaw [1951] 1 K.B. 711 and [1952] 1 K.B. 338 show how for over 100 years
the use of certiorari to quash a decision for error of law on the face of the
record fell into disuse. So far as criminal jurisdiction was concerned, it
flowed from the decision of Parliament to put a stop to the over-formalistic
approach of the lawyers which allowed the conviction by the lower court to
be quashed for any defect in form in any of the documents that in the 17th
and 18th centuries the Court of Queen’s Bench required to be kept as part
of the record of the inferior court. These included the charge, the evidence
and the reasons for the conviction.

The result was that many convictions were quashed for want of form
rather than merit, This unsatisfactory state of affairs was put an end to by
the Summary Jurisdiction Act 1848 which prescribed a standard form in
which convictions were to be recorded but which omitted any mention of
the evidence or the reasons for the decision. Therefore, as the record no
longer disclosed the reasons of the justices, there was nothing at which
the court could look to see if they had made an error of law and certiorari
fell into disuse save in those cases in which it was alleged that the court or
tribunal had exceeded or abused its jurisdiction.

In so far as civil matters were concerned the Summary Jurisdiction Act
1857 enabled justices to state a case for the opinion of the court and this
enabled the parties to have points of law decided without resort to ¢ertiorari.

So far had the jurisdiction to quash for error of law on the face of
the record been forgotten that its very existence was denied by the Court
of Appeal in Racecourse Betting Control Board v. Secretary for Air
[1944] Ch. 114. But that case was decided without full citation of
authority and was disapproved in Rex v. Northumberland Compensation
Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Shaw [1951] 1 K.B. 711; [1952] 1 K.B. 338
particularly by Lord Goddard C.J. who had been a party to the earlier
decision of the Court of Appeal.

Once reborn, the jurisdiction has proved to be a most valuable develop-
ment in our system of administrative law. In the ever increasing complexity
of a modern society there has inevitably been a great increase in the number
of tribunals required to regulate its affairs. Trained lawyers play their part
in manning these bodies but it is neither possible because there are not
enough lawyers, nor desirable because lawyers may lack the special exper-
tise of people from other walks of life, that they should all be in the hands
of the lawyers. Laymen play their part and will often outnumber and be

H:



Page 336

313
1 Q.B. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.)
able to outvote the lawyers among them when it comes to making a
decision. The citizen affected by these decisions is entitled to expect
that they will be given in accordance with the law and, if the rule of
law is to mean anything, a court manned by trained lawyers is required
to speak with authority to correct the decision where it appears that it
is founded upon error of law. This function is now performed in many
cases by the Divisional Court of the Queen’s Bench Division by the use
of an order of certiorari to quash an erroneous decision; in other cases
Parliament may often give a right of appeal to the High Court.

But before the Divisional Court can exercise its supervisory jurisdiction
it must be able to see what the error of law is said to be. The document
to which anyone would naturally expect it to look must surely be that
which records the reasons given by the court or tribunal for its decision
—in this case the transcript of Judge Friend’s judgment.

In the collective experience of the members of this court and the very
experienced counsel appearing before us it has been the practice of the
Divisional Court under the presidency of successive Lord Chief Justices
over the last four decades to receive the reasons given by a court or tribunal
for its decision and if they show error of law to allow certiorari to go to
quash the decision. The court has regarded the reasons as part of the record.
They are sometimes referred to as a “ speaking order.”” Many of the cases
are, of course, unreported but examples of the court acting upon such reasons
are to be found in Reg. v. Chertsey Justices, Ex parte Franks [1961] 2 Q.B.
152 (an oral judgment of justices); Reg. v. Justices for Court of Quarter
Sessions for the County of Leicester, Ex parte Gilks [1966] Crim.L.R. 613
(an oral judgment of quarter sessions) and Reg. v. Leeds Crown Court, Ex
parte Bradford Chief Constable [1975] Q.B. 314 (an oral judgment of the
Crown Court in a liquor licensing appeal). Reg. v. Supplementary Benefits
Commission, Ex parte Singer [1973] 1 W.L.R. 713 shows how far the
modern practice has extended to include the reasons for a decision as part
of the record. The applicant was aggrieved by a refusal of a grant of legal
aid on the ground that the Supplementary Benefits Commission had deter-
mined his disposable income at greater than £950 per annum. Bridge J.
giving the reserved judgment of the Divisional Court said, at p. 715:

“ There is no document before the court embodying the commission’s
determination, although that is the order sought to be quashed, because
it was not communicated directly to the applicant but only to The Law
Society. But on hearing of it the applicant wrote to the Department of
Health and Social Security, as representing the commission, on June
15, 1972, expressing himself as ‘ completely mystified > by the decision,
setting out his financial circumstances, and asking that the matter might
receive further consideration. The department replied on June 29,
1972, on behalf of the commission. ¢ A thorough re-examination,’ the
writer says, ¢ has been made of the basis of the determination already
issued to The Law Society.” The letter proceeds to set out that basis, in
other words, to disclose the reasons for the earlier determination, and
concludes: ‘I must confirm that the determination was correct.’

“Mr. Slynn, for the commission, has taken the point that the letter
of June 29 is not part of the record relating to the determination



Page 337

Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.) [1982]

which is questioned; indeed, that there is no such record available for
the court to consider. We cannot accept this submission. It seems to us
that whenever a statutory body, having made a decision of a kind which

- can be questioned in proceedings for an order of certiorari, has subse-
quently chosen to disclose the reasons for the decision, whether it
could have been compelled to do so or not, and however informal the
document embodying the reasons, the decision with the added reasons
becomes a ‘ speaking order’ and if an error of law appears in the
reasons certiorari will lie to quash the decision.”

314

In order to do justice the court has, in addition to regarding the reasons
for a decision as part of the record, been prepared to regard other documents
as part of the “ record ” where if read with the decision they will show that
the tribunal has erred in law. In Baldwin & Francis Ltd. v. Patents Appeal
Tribunal [1959] A.C. 663 Lord Denning held that the decision of the super-
intending examiner and two patent specifications formed part of the record
of the proceedings before a patents appeal tribunal. In Reg. v. Medical
Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Gilmore [1957] 1 Q.B. 574 the Court of Appeal
held that the report of a medical specialist constituted part of the record. As
Lord Denning M.R, said in Reg. v. Preston Supplementary Benefits Appeal
Tribunal, Ex parte Moore [1975] 1 W.LR. 624, 628: “ The ‘record’ is
generously interpreted so as to cover all the documents in the case.”

Parliament has set its seal of approval on this practice of the court in
the case of all those bodies to which the Tribunals and Inquiries Acts 1958
and 1971 apply. They are required to state their reasons and it is provided
that the reasons constitute part of the record, and that certiorari will lie:
see sections 12 and 14 of the Act of 1971.

We can see no sensible reason why the court should adopt a different
approach to a decision of an inferior court or other quasi-administrative
body such as licensing justices from that which it is required to adopt in the
cases to which the Act applies. If we were now to hold that the practice of
the Divisional Court over the past 40 years was wrong and that the court
could look only at the order dismissing the appeal, we should be putting the
clock back to the days when archaic formalism too often triumphed over
justice.

The argument for the Gaming Board is that it is only if the inferior
court chooses to embody its reasons in its order that it becomes part of the
record, for only then does it exist as a document for which the Court of
Queen’s Bench can call and examine. So if at the end of the judgment
giving the reasons the judge or chairman adds the words ‘“ and I direct that
this judgment be made part of the order,” the court may look at it but not
otherwise. It seems to us that it would be a scandalous state of affairs that,
if having given a manifestly erroneous judgment, a judge could defeat any
review by this court by the simple expedient of refusing a request to make
his judgment part of the order. That would indeed be formalism triumphant.

It may be said that the same end can be achieved by the court refusing
to give any reasons, as Judge Friend said he was entitled to do in this case.
However, it is the function of professional judges to give reasons for their
decisions and the decisions to which they are a party. This court would look



Page 338

1 QB. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.).

askance at the refusal by a judge to give his reasons for a decision particu-
larly if requested to do so by one of the parties. It does not fall for decision
in this case, but it may well be that if such a case should arise this court
would find that it had power to order the judge to give his reasons for his
decision.

The Commissioner of Police of the Metropolis took the same point on
the scope of the record in Reg. v. Knightsbridge Crown Court, Ex parte
Ladup Ltd. (unreported), March 18, 1980. In his judgment Lord Widgery
C.J. quoted extensively from some of the earlier authorities and expressed
the view that they gave some support to the commissioner’s submission; he
then contrasted this to the modern practice of the court over which he had
presided but in the event found it unnecessary to express any concluded
view as he held that the Crown Court’s reasons did not, in fact, disclose an
error of law,

There are undoubtedly passages in the older authorities that support the
Gaming Board’s arguments. It would appear that at the time when those
cases were decided in the last century the Court of Queen’s Bench would
not look at the reasons of quarter sessions unless they had been formally
recorded in their order: see in particular the speech of Lord Cairns L.C. in
Overseers of the Poor of Walsall v. London and North Western Railway
Co. (1878) 4 App.Cas. 30,

But the courts must adapt their procedures to modern conditions. In the
last century the facilities available for recording spoken reasons were not
comparable to those which exist today. Shorthand had only recently been
invented and there was no electronic recording apparatus with which many
courts are now equipped. This court can now rely with confidence upon a
transcript of the oral judgment given by a lower court or tribunal as
accurately setting out its reasons which may not have been the case 100
years ago. Furthermore, the recent decision of the House of Lords in
Reg. v. Inland Revenue Commissioners, Ex parte National Federation of
Self-Employed and Small Businesses Ltd. [1981] 2 W.L.R. 722, concerned
with the remedy of mandamus shows that administrative law is in a phase
of active development and that the judges will adapt the rules applying
to the issue of the prerogative orders to protect the rule of law in a changing
society. As Lord Diplock said, at p. 736: * Any judicial statements on
matters of public law if made before 1950 are likely to be a misleading
guide to what the law is today ” and Lord Roskill said, at p. 751;

‘. .. in the last 30 years—no doubt because of the growth of central
and local government intervention in the affairs of the ordinary citizen
since the Second World War, and the consequent increase in the
number of administrative bodies charged by Parliament with the per-
formance of public duties—the use of prerogative orders to check
usurpation of power by such bodies to the disadvantage of the ordinary
citizen, or to insist upon due performance by such bodies of their
statutory duties and to maintain due adherence to the laws enacted by
Parliament, has greatly increased. The former and stricter rules de-
termining when such orders, or formerly the prerogative writs, might
or might not issue, have been greatly relaxed.”

315



Page 339

316
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.). [1982]

Although the old authorities do show a stricter approach to what con-
stituted the “ record,” the modern authorities show that the judges have
relaxed the strictness of that rule and taken a broader view of the ‘‘ record ”
in order that certiorari may give relief to those against whom a decision
has been given which is based upon a manifest error of law. We, therefore,
hold that the reasons contained in the transcript of the oral judgment of the
Crown Court constitute part of the record for the purposes of certiorari and
we are entitled to look at it to see if they contain errors of law.

The statutory provisions governing applications to licensing justices for
cancellation of a gaming licence and appeals from the decision of the licen-
sing justices are contained in Schedule 2 to the Act. Paragraph 42 provides
that the licensing justices may cancel the licence on any of the grounds
specified in paragraphs 20 or 21. The grounds relevant to this application
are those in paragraph 20 (1) (b) that the applicant is not a fit and proper
person to be the holder of a licence under this Act and in paragraph 21 (1)
(e) that, while the licence has been in force, the relevant premises have been
used for an unlawful purpose or as a resort of criminals or prostitutes. In
addition to cancelling the licence there is also a power to make a disqualifi-
cation order prohibiting a licence being held in respect of the premises for
a period not exceeding five years: see paragraph 49. Paragraphs 45 and 29
provide for an appeal to the Crown Court to be by way of a rehearing with
a power to make any order that might have been made by the licensing
justices, and provides that the judgment of the Crown Court shall be final.
In passing we observe that the fact that the appeal is said to be final is no
ground for refusing certiorari if error is found on the face of the record:
see Reg. v. Medical Appeal Tribunal, Ex parte Gilmore [1957] 1 Q.B. 574
and South East Asia Fire Bricks Sdn. Bhd. v. Non-Metallic Mineral
Products Manufacturing Employees Union [1981] A.C. 363.

We turn now to the judgment of the Crown Court. We would have
expected the judge’s judgment to have followed this basic outline: first, a
consideration of and decisions upon whether it had been shown that the
companies were not fit and proper persons to hold a licence (Sch. 2, para.
20 (1) (b)) or that while the licences had been in force the relevant premises
had been used for an unlawful purpose (paragraph 21 (1) (¢)); and secondly,
assuming findings against the companies on either or both of these grounds,
whether the court should exercise its discretion to cancel the licences.

At this point we should observe that, if the court concludes that the
companies are not fit and proper persons to hold gaming licences, it is diffi-
cult to conceive of any grounds upon which it would be right to exercise a
discretion not to cancel the licence. The judgment, after apparently holding
that the companies, because of past misconduct are not fit and proper
persons to hold a gaming licence, then devotes pages to the consideration of
discretion; this suggests a confusion of thought in the approach of the court.
The court made no finding as to whether or not the premises had been used
for an unlawful purpose, though, subject to any argument that Mr. Light-
man may hereafter wish to address on the subject, we should have thought
that they clearly had been so used, as Mr. Cran conceded in the course of
his argument. :



Page 340

317
1 Q.B. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. Internationsal Club (D.C.).

On the question of whether or not the companies are fit and proper
persons to hold the licence it is conceded that this question must be deter-
mined in the light of the circumstances existing at the time of the appeal.
Past conduct will, of course, be relevant as we shall discuss more fully here-
after. There are, however, other considerations which should be taken into
account particularly when the licence holder is a limited company; for
instance, whether the shareholding or management of the company remains
the same at the date of the material hearing as they were when the past
misconduct occurred; the general character and reputation of the share-
holders and directors of the company at the date of the hearing should be
taken into account. So should any evidence that the  re-structured > licence
holder has the capacity and intention to run the casino on different lines, or
indeed that it may have already started to do so. It is conceded by the res-
pondents that a failure to take these very material matters relating to the
restructuring of the companies into account when considering an application
to cancel a licence would amount to an error of law.

This had already been decided in Reg. v. Knightsbridge Crown Court,
Ex parte Ladup Ltd. (unreported), March 18, 1980 which we are told was
cited to the Crown Court. Furthermore, it was apparently upon the basis
of the “restructuring” of the licence holder company that Judge Friend
and the justices in Gaming Board of Great Britain v. Victoria Sporting
Club (unreported), October 17, 1980, allowed the earlier appeal of the
Victoria Sporting Club against the cancellation of their gaming licence.
This makes it all the more difficult to understand why in the present case
the Crown Court refused to consider the restructuring to be a relevant
consideration. That they did not do so is, we think, clearly demonstrated
by the repeated assertion in the judgment that because of their past
misconduct the companies were not fit and proper persons coupled with
the refusal to make any finding on the Gaming Board’s submission that
even in their restructured form the companies were not fit and proper
persons to hold a gaming licence. We cite two passages which clearly
demonstrate the approach of the Crown Court:

“ The respondents, and indeed the Gaming Board, have submitted to
us that what is a fit and proper person can only be judged by past
conduct because every person is a fit and proper person at one moment,
and you have to look and see what they have done in the past to judge
whether they are fit and proper persons, and it is on the evidence given
before the justices the Gaming Board and the respondents both submit
to us that by reason of their past conduct they must be judged not to
be fit and proper persons to hold a licence.

““ Well, there it is. We have come to the conclusion and we are
quite satisfied that that is the only proper way to approach this matter..
There has been considerable confusion in the hearing of this appeal
between International Sporting Club, which is now Lonrho, but that is
not so, it is still International Sporting Club Ltd., and Curzon House is
still Curzon House Club Ltd., and likewise, the Palm Beach is still
Palm Beach Club Ltd., and each of these three companies is tainted,



Page 341

318
Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.). [1982]
each of them has misconducted its affairs in the past and it is only by
past conduct that we can judge it, and accordingly we have come to
the conclusion that they are not fit and proper persons to hold a
licence because of the past misconduct.”

Later the following passage appears :

“ The Gaming Board also put forward various reasons why the three
purchasers should not be allowed to hold the shares, Lonrho because
they are, as I put it, thin on the ground in directive personnel, Aspinal
because of the warning in the past and the manner in which the Aspinal
club has been run, and Mecca because they had two directors on the
board who ought to have moved off and done what they could to stop,
or make inquiry into what was happening, and they were met with a
blunt refusal to be of any assistance from the other directors appointed
by Corals, got a firm no answer and were obstructed in every way. It
may be that one or other or all of those matters have good foundation
but we are not going to make any finding upon them. Our finding
simply is this, that each of those casino limited liability companies has

- transgressed in the past, the present situation must be judged by the
manner in which they have conducted themselves, and as I say, we
find that they are not fit and proper persons.”

Mr. Lightman conceded that past misconduct was a relevant considera-
tion but submitted it was of marginal weight in a case such as this. Mr. Cran
went further and submitted that it was irrelevant. We have no hesitation in
saying that past misconduct by the licence holder will in every case be a
relevant consideration to take into account when considering whether to
cancel a licence. The weight to be accorded to it will vary according to the
circumstances of the case. There may well be cases in which the wrong-
doing of the company licence holder has been so flagrant and so well
publicised that no amount of restructuring can restore confidence in it as a
fit and proper person to hold a licence; it will stand condemned in the
public mind as a person unfit to hold a licence and public confidence in
the licensing justices would be gravely shaken by allowing it to continue to
run the casino. Other less serious breaches may be capable of being cured
by restructuring.

It is also right that the licensing justices or the Crown Court on an
appeal should have regard to the fact that it is in the public interest that
the sanction of the cancellation of a licence should not be devalued. It is
obvious that the possibility of the loss of the licence must be a powerful
incentive to casino operators to observe the gaming laws and to run their
premises properly. If persons carrying on gaming through a limited com-
pany can run their establishment disgracefully, make a great deal of money
and then when the licence is cancelled sell the company to someone who
because he is a fit and proper person must be entitled to continue to hold
the licence through the company, it will seriously devalue the sanction of
cancellation. But logically this is a consideration that falls to be taken into
account when deciding whether or not to exercise the discretion to cancel
and not at the point at which the court is considering whether or not one of
the grounds for cancellation has been established. As we have already said,



Page 342

319
1 QB. Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.).

if the court concludes that even at the date of the rehearing and taking info
account the restructuring the company is not a fit and proper person to hold
a gaming licence, it is difficult to see how they could exercise their discretion
otherwise than by cancelling the licence. On the other hand if because of
the restructuring the court considered that the company was now a fit and
proper person, but it also found that in the past the company had used the
premises for an unlawful purpose, it would certainly be open to the court
in the exercise of its discretion to cancel the licence. A licensing authority is
fully entitled to use the sanction of cancellation in the public interest to en-
courage other operators or would-be operators of gaming establishments to
observe the law in the area of their jurisdiction.

It is clear from the judgment that these considerations weighed heavily
with the court. It may be that, even if the court had been prepared to take
the restructuring into account, they would either have found that the com-
pany was not a fit and proper person or, alternatively, even if it was, that by
reason of the past use of the premises for unlawful purposes the licence
should be cancelled. Certiorari is a discretionary remedy and we have
thought long about the question whether, even if the court had taken the
restructuring into account, it would inevitably have ordered the cancellation
of the licence, We think that it might have done so. But taking into
account that in Gaming Board of Great Britain v. Victoria Sporting Club
(unreported) the same court allowed an appeal against cancellation
after taking into account the restructuring of the company and the
fact that peither the licensing justices nor the court saw fit to make
an order pursuant to paragraph 49 of Schedule 2 disqualifying the premises,
we have decided that it would not be right to deny these companies
a rehearing. If we did so we should be substituting our discretion for
that of the Crown Court and that we are not permitted to do on an applica-
tion for an order for certiorari. Therefore, somewhat reluctantly, because we
do not look upon these companies as good Samaritans coming to the rescue
of the gaming public as at one stage in the argument we were invited to do,
but because as Mr. Lightman said everyone, including gaming companies, is
entitled to fair treatment under the law, we grant the applications and orders
will go to quash the decisions of the Knightsbridge Crown Court. This means
that the orders of the licensing justices cancelling the licences still stand. If
the applicant companies wish to pursue their appeals, they should be
expedited and heard by another judge sitting with a different panel of
licensing justices.

As we are of the view that the judgment forms part of the record and
discloses error of law, it is not necessary for us to express our opinion on
the alternative ground that the court exceeded its jurisdiction. To some
extent the two points are inter-related because if the judgment is part of the
record it is not necessary for this court to seek by subtle reasoning to find
excess or abuse of jurisdiction in order to enable it to do justice by
quashing a decision founded on error of law. Upon this difficult question of
jurisdiction we are at the moment divided. But as the point is not necessary
to our decision we shall not set out on the necessary lengthy analysis to
defend our respective positions. It is sufficient to say that if our decision on



Page 343

Reg. v. Crown Ct., Ex p. International Club (D.C.). {1982]

the scope of the record is challenged it will be open to the applicant com-
panies to seek to uphold the decision of this court on the ground that the
Crown Court exceeded their jurisdiction.

320

Applications granted.

Solicitors : Cameron Markby; M. J. Kusel & Co.; Solicitor, Metropolitan
Police; Gregory, Rowcliffe & Co.

[Reported by SHIRANIKHA HERBERT, Barrister-at-Law]

[COURT OF APPEAL]

REGINA v. OLUGBOJA

1981 May 19, 21; Dunn L.J., Milmo and May JJ.
June 17

Crime—Rape—Consent—Submission to sexual intercourse without
force or threat of violence—Whether * consent "—Actus reus
of offence—Sexual Offences Act 1956 (4 & 5 Eliz. 2, c¢. 69),
s. 1—Sexual Offences (Amendment) Act 1976 (c. 82), s. 1!

The defendant and the co-accused L met the complainant
and K, at a discotheque and offered to take them home but,
instead of taking them home, the defendant drove them to L’s
bungalow. They refused to go in and began walking away. The
defendant went into the bungalow but L followed the girls
and raped the complainant in the car. The three returned to
the bungalow where L dragged K into a bedroom. The defen-
dant then told the complainant that he was going to have
intercourse with her. She told him what had happened in the
car and asked him to leave her alone. He told her to take off
her trousers. She did and he had intercourse with her. The
defendant, who admitted having sexual intercourse with
the complainant, was charged with rape. The judge directed the
jury that, although the complainant had neither screamed nor
struggled and she had submitted to sexual intercourse without
the defendant using force or making any threats of violence,
they had to consider whether the complainant had consented
to sexual intercourse. The defendant was convicted.

On appeal against conviction: —

Held, dismissing the appeal, that, since the amendment of
section 1 of the Sexual Offences Act 1956 by section 1 of the
Sexual Offences (Amendment) Act 1976, the offence of rape
was having sexual intercourse against the woman’s consent;
that the offence was not limited to cases where sexual inter-
course had taken place as a result of force, fear or fraud and,
therefore, the judge had properly directed the jury and left to
them the question whether the complainant had consented to

1 Sexual Offences (Amendment) Act 1976, s. 1: see post, p. 326A-B.



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 345 Agenda Item 8

COUNCIL

Meeting of Licensing Act 2003 Sub- 8 June 2020
Committee

Report of the Assistant Director of Planning and Public Protection

Section 44(5)(a) Determination of application for transfer of
premises licence for The Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York,
YO16LP.

Summary

1. This report seeks Members determination of an application for the
transfer of a premises licence, which has been made under the
Licensing Act 2003 (the Act).

2. Premises Licence reference number: CYC-53937

3. Name of applicant: Yan Tong FENG

Background

4. An application was received to transfer the existing premises licence
from Zhong Le CHEN to Yan Tong FENG on 25 February 2020. The
transfer took effect immediately on 25 February 2020 in accordance
with S44(2) of the Act.

5. A copy of the existing premises licence is attached at Annex 1.

6. A copy of the application to transfer the premises licence is attached
at Annex 2.

7. The premises is currently the subject of a review application made
by the Licensing Authority under S51 of the Act.

Consultation

7. A copy of the application was given to North Yorkshire Police by the
applicant in accordance with S42(5) of the Act.

8. All procedural aspects of this application have been complied with.



10.

11.

12.
13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Page 346

Members are reminded that under S42(6), where the police are
satisfied that the exceptional circumstances of the case are such
that the granting of the transfer would undermine the crime
prevention objective, they must give the licensing authority a notice
stating why they are so satisfied.

Notice by North Yorkshire Police

A copy of the North Yorkshire Police notice of objection (on the
grounds that it would undermine the crime prevention objective) is
attached at Annex 3.

Options

By virtue of S44(5)(b) of the Act, the Committee have the following
options available to them in making their decision:-

Option 1. Grant the application.

Option 4: Reject the application if considered necessary for the
promotion of the crime prevention objective to do so.

Analysis

The following could be the result of any decision made this Sub
Committee:-

Option 1: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the police.

Option 2: This decision could be appealed at Magistrates Court by
the applicant.

Corporate Priorities

The Licensing Act 2003 has 4 objectives; the prevention of crime
and disorder, public safety, prevention of public nuisance and the
protection of children from harm.

By taking the statutory requirements of the Act into consideration, as
well as the four licensing objectives when determining licensing
applications the Council are supporting the new and existing licence
trade, as well as local residents and businesses. The functions



Page 347

support the Council’s Plan of safe communities and culture for all,
and a good quality of life for everyone.

Implications

19.

Financial - N/A
Human Resources (HR) — N/A
Equalities — N/A

Legal — The legislation and policy considerations associated
with this report are contained in Annex 4. This decision could be
appealed at Magistrates Court by the applicant or any of the
representors.

Crime and Disorder - The Committee is reminded of their duty
under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime
and disorder implications of their decisions and the authority’s
responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and
disorder in the city.

Information Technology (IT) — N/A
Property — N/A

Other — none

Risk Management

20. All Members of the Licensing Act 2003 Committee have received full
training on the Act and the regulations governing hearings. They
are aware that any decision made which is unreasonable or unlawful
could be open to challenge resulting in loss of image, reputation and
potential financial penalty.

21. The report details the options available to the panel in determining
the application and recommends that a decision be reached. There
are no risks involved with this recommendation.

Recommendations

22. Members determine the application.



Page 348

Reason: To address the notice received as required by the
Licensing Act 2003.

Contact Detalls

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the
report:

Matt Boxall Michael Slater

Head of Public Protection  Assistant Director

Ext 1528 Planning and Public Protection
Ext 1300
Report N Date 29/05/20
Approved

Wards Affected: Micklegate Ward

For further information please contact the author of the report

Background Papers:
None

Annexes

Annex 1 - Copy of premises licence

Annex 2 - Copy of application form to transfer premises licence
Annex 3 - Copy of objection notice from North Yorkshire Police
Annex 4 - Legislation and Policy Considerations



Page 349 A»
N\ l _

P
’_ al -

g

V.

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LICENSING ACT 2003
PREMISES LICENCE

Schedule 12

Part 1 Premises details

Part A

Premises licence number
CYC - 053937

Postal address of premises:

2-4 George Hudson Street
York

Post town: York

Post code: YO1 6LP

Telephone number: 01904 623656

Expiry date: This licence has no expiry date.

Licensable activities authorised by the licence:

Recorded Music
Late Night Refreshment
Supply of Alcohol

RECORDED MUSIC

Indoors

Monday Tuesday
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00
Friday Saturday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30

Wednesday Thursday
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00
Sunday

10:00 - 00:00




Page 350

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Indoors

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday

23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00 23:00 - 00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 03:30 23:00 - 00:00

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Monday Tuesday Wedneasday Thursday

10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 00:00

The Opening Hours of the Premises

OPENING HOURS

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday i
10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 00:00 i0:00 -00:00
Friday Saturday Sunday

10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 03:30 10:00 - 00:00

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off

supplies:

On and off the premises

Part 2

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder

of premises licence:

Name:
Address:

Mr Zhongle Chen
21a Blake Street
York

YO1 8QJ

" Telephone number: 07477030338

Email address

: service@ukregency.com




Page 351

Name, address and telephone number of desighated premises supervisor where the
premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Name: Mrs Yan Tong Feng
Address: 3 Lincombe Bank
Gledhow
Leeds
LS8 1QG

Telephone number: None

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated
premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol:

Leeds City Council
LEEDS/PERL/10402/20

Annex 1 - Mandatory conditions
MANDATORY CONDITIONS IN RELATION TO THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

1. In accordance with section 19 of the Licensing Act 2003, where a premises licence
authorises the supply of alcohol, the licence must include the following conditions.

2. The first condition is that no supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence -
(a) at a time where there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises
licence, or

(b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or his
personal licence is suspended.

3. The second condition is that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be
made or authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

4. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale
or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises -

(2) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage individuals to -

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied
on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is
authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted
fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in @ manner which carries
a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner
which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;




Page 352

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable
(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where
that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

5. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to
customers where it is reasonably available.

6. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age
verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of
alcohol.

{(2) The designated premises SUpervisor in reiation Lo the prermises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification
policy.

(3)y-The policy must-require-individuals-who-appear-to-the-responsiblte-person-to-be-under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request,
before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either -
(a) a holographic mark, or
{(b) an ultraviolet feature.

- i P o .

7. The responsible person must ensure that -

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following
measures —

(i) Deer or cider: Y2 ping;

(i) ain, rum vodka or whiskyv: 25ml ar 36ml: and

(iii) still wine in a glass: 125ml;

(b) these measures are displayed in @ menu, price list or other printed material which is
available to customers on the premises; and

(¢) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to
be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.

MANDATORY CONDITION - ALCOHOL PRICING

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no aicohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off
the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1 -

(a) “duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b) “permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula - P =D + (D x V)

where -

(i) P is the permitted price,

(ii) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on
the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii)-V-is-the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation-to the alcohol as-if the value added
tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) ‘“relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a
premises licence -

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a
licence;



Page 353

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club
premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity
which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and

(e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax
Act 1994,

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this
paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be
taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price

on the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value

added tax.

(2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of
alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second
day.

MANDATORY CONDITION: DOOR SUPERVISION

1. In accordance with section 21 of the Licensing Act 2003 (as amended by section 25 Violent
Crime Reduction Act 2006), where a premises licence includes a condition that at specified
times one or more individuals must be at the premises to carry out a security activity, the
licence must include a condition that each such individual must -

(a) be authorised to carry out that activity by a licence granted under the Private Security
Industry Act 2001; or

(b) be entitled to carry out that activity by virtue of section 4 of that Act.

2. But nothing in subsection (1) requires such a condition to be imposed -

(@) in respect of premises within paragraph 8(3)(a) of Schedule 2 to the Private Security
Industry Act 2001 (c.12) (premises with premises licences authorising plays or films), or

(b) in respect of premises in relation to -

(i) any occasion mentioned in paragraph 8 (3)(b) or (c) of that Schedule (premises being used
exclusively by club with club premises certificate, under a temporary event notice authorising
plays or films or under a gaming licence, or

(ii) any occasion within paragraph 8(3)(d) of that Schedule (occasions prescribed by
regulations under that Act).

3. For the purposes of this section -

(a) "security activity" means an activity to which paragraph 2(1)(a) of that Schedule applies,
and which is licensable conduct for the purposes of that Act (see section 3(2) of that Act), and

(b) paragraph 8(5) of that Schedule (interpretation of references to an occasion) applies as it
applies in relation to paragraph 8 of that Schedule.

Annex 2 - Conditions consistent with the operating schedule
Licensing Objectives
Prevention of Crime & Disorder

1. A colour digital CCTV system shall be installed within the premises and be operational and
recording at all times when licensable activities take place.



Page 354

2. The CCTV equipment shall have constant time/date generation which must be checked on a
daily basis for accuracy.

e ] T —‘—\r\ﬂ ._

2. LV La --bl nnnnnnnnn +h

e Qi cao III Llle

4. The CCTV system must be capable of providing quality images of good evidential value.
Recordings must be kept for a minimum of 28 days.

5. North Yorkshire Police or a Responsible Authority (as defined in the Licensing Act 2003)
may at any time reguest a recerding. This should be complied with within 24 hours of the

raquest heing made.

6. It Is the responsibiiity of the management to ensure that there are sufficient membpers of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the CCTV
system at the request of the police or responsible authority.

7. A documented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the
premises in respect of the:-

a) retail sale of alcohol;

b) age verification policy;

¢) conditions attached to the Premises Licence;
d) permitted licensable activities;

e) the licensing obijectives; and

f) opening times for the venue.

o < e
I

with such records DElﬂg Ke'p or a minimurr

viaar norinAd ralatac +ta aarh race cnactivo onf-r\l ir
HE SOOI/ A C S B LR o SHC

barticular entry].

r
i

JC\

ne year. [For tre avoidance o d
and rune fram tha da

-r e
cC
o
lal
(=)

8. The premises shall operate the Challenge 25 policy for the sale of alcohol.

9. An incident book / refusals register will be kept at the premises and made available on
request to an authorised officer or the police which will record the following:-

a) all alcohol related crimes reported to the venue

b) any complaints received regarding alcohol related crime and disorder
¢) any faults in the CCTV system

d) any refusal of the sale of alcohol

e) any visit by a relevant authority or emergency service.

10. Alcoholic drinks purchased on the premises may only be taken off the premises in sealed
containers.

11. All alcohol on sales will be ancillary to a meal, sold by waitress service and for seated
consumption only.

12. The restaurant section of the premises will be securely dividable from the Supermarket
area when the Supermarket is not in use. The restaurant will be laid out with seating and
tables to accommodate a minimum of 40 seated patrons at any one time.

13. There shall be a minimum of one door supervisor on duty at the restaurant premises from
23:00hrs to close of business at all times when open to the public & undertaking licensable
activity beyond 01:00hrs.



Page 355

14. Where door supervisors are on duty they shall sign in and out of the premises log book,
providing full details of their name and SIA number.

15. The Designated Premises Supervisor shall be responsible for risk assessing the need for
additional door staff at the venue on days of York Races, on Fridays, Saturdays or bank
holidays or other locally or nationally significant events.

Public Nuisance

16. Prominent, clear and legible notices will be displayed at the exit requesting the public to
respect the needs of nearby residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.

17. Deliveries of goods necessary for the operation of the business will be carried out at such a

time or in such a manner as to prevent nuisance and disturbance to nearby residents.

Annex 3 - Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing
authority

No hearing held

Annex 4 - Approved Plan

Plan Number Endorsed on the 12/08/2015

For and on behalf of Date: 10/09/2015

The Director of Economy 12/02/2020 (DPS Variation)
& Place

Licensing Services Phone: 01904 552422

Hazel Court EcoDepot Fax: 01904 551590

James Street Email: licensing@york.gov.uk

York Website: www.york.gov.uk/licensing

YO10 3DS



Page 356



Page 357
AN\@C, 2. .

58 gl CITY OF YORK COUNCIL |
Yo R K Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Stréet,
& COUNCIL York, Y010 3DS

Application to transfer premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

It you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

e YANTONGEENG
{Insert name of applicant)
apply to transfer the premises licence described below under section 42 of the Licensing Act

2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below

Premises licence number CYC-053937 —I

Part 1-- Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

REGENCY, 2 - 4 GEORGE HUDSON STREET

Post town York Post code YOI 6LP

Telephone number at premises (if any) 01904 659976

Please give a brief description of the premises (sec note 1)
CHINESE RESTAURANT AND SUPERMARKET

Name of current premises licence holder
MR ZHONG LE CHEN

Part 2 - Applicant details
In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence to be transferred to you?

Please tick ¥ yes

a) an individual or individuals* IZ' please complete section (A)

b) a person other than an individual *
i. asa limited company/limited liability partnership [J please complete section (B)



ii. as a partnership (other than limited liability)
iii. as an unincorporated association or

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation)

¢) a recognised club
d) a charity

&) the proprietor of an educational establishment

f) a health service body

g) an individual who is registered under Part 2 of the

Page 358

please complete scction (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)
please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

please complete section (B)

O 0O ogogoo oOod

please complete section (B)

Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an

independent hospital in Wales

ga) a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part
1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within the [] please complete section (B)
meaning of that Part) in respect of an independent

hospital in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in please complete section (B)

England and Wales

*If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

Please tick M yes

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use
of the premises for licensable activities; or IE/

I am making the application pursuant to a

o]
[¢]

statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative n

O

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr [ IE( Miss  [] Ms O Other title |
(for example, Rev)
Surname First names
FENG YAN TONG
Please tick [ yes
Date of birth I am 18 years old or gver




Page 359

Nationality CHINESE

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 2 for information)

Current 3 LINCOMBE BANK
residential

address if
different from
premises
address

GLEDHOW

Post town . Leeds LS8 106

Post code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)
Me [ w™Mes [ Miss [ Ms | Other title -

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names
Please tick ] yes
Date of birth I am 18 years old or over

Nationality ]

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 2 for information)

Current
residential
address if -
different from
premises
address




Page 360

Post town Post code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate),
please give the name and address of each party concerned.

Name

Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Te!ephoﬁe number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Part3

Please tick M yes
Are you the holder of the premises licence under an interim authority notice? O
Do you wish the transfer to have immediate effect? 7

If not when would you like the transfer to take effect?
Day Month  Year

LILI I T TTT

Please tick M yes

I have enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder EZ/



Page 361

If you have not enclosed the consent form referred to above please give the reasons why not. What
steps have you taken to tty and obtain the consent?

Please tick ] yes
If this application is granted I would be in a position to use the premises during the [2/

application period for the licensable activity or activities authorised by the licence (see
section 43 of the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick [ yes

1 have enclosed the premises licence rd

If you have not enclosed premises licence referred to above please give the reasons why not.

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee

I have enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder or
my statement as to why it is not enclosed

[ have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation

I have sent a copy of this application to the chief officer of police today

I have sent a copy of this form to Home Office Immigration Enforcement today
Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not
a limited liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I
have included documents, or my Home Office online right to work checking service

share code, to demonstrate my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please
read note 2)

RN N

See details of Licensing Act 2003 statutory fees: www.york.gov.uk/LicensingAct2003StatutorvFees.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE



Page 362

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

IT IS AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS. THOSE WHO EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT 2006 AND, PURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO SO IN THE
KNOWLEDGE, OR WITH REASONABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE iS DISQUALIFIED.

Tunderstand I am not entitled to be issued with a licence if T do not have the entitlement to live
and work in the UK (or if T am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to
the carrying on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to be
entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 2)

Part 4 - Signatures (please read guidance note 3)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (See guidance
note 4). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature

...............................................................................................................

Date J
............... /7 (02 20

For joint applicants signature of second applicant, second applicant’s solicitor or other
authorised agent (please read guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please
state in what capacity,

Signature

...............................................................................................................

...............................................................................................................

Capacity

................... LR R T T T S L e

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (1f any)




Page 363

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)
TINA@UKREGENCY.OM

Notes for Guidance

1. Describe the premises. For example the type of premises it is, its general situation and layout
and any other information which would be relevant to the licensing objectives.

2. Right to work/immigration status for individual applicants and applications from
partnerships which are not limited liahility partnerships:

A licence may not be held by an individual or an individual in a partnership which is not a limited
liability partnership who:

«does not have the right to live and work in the UK; or

is subject to a condition preventing him or her from doing work relating to the catrying on
of a licensable activity.

Any premises licence issued on or after 6 April 2017 will lapse if the holder ceases to be entitled
to work in the UK.

Applicants must demonstrate that they have the right to work in the UK and are not subject to a
condition preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensing activity.
They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this application copies or scanned copies of
the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), or 2) by providing their ‘share
code’ to enable the licensing authority to carry out a check using the Home Office online right to
work checking service (see below).

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

An expired or current passport showing the holder, or a person named in the passport as
the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a citizen of the UK and Colonies having the
right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sections of the passport
apply].
An’'expired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or a person
named in the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a European Economic
Area country or Switzerland.

A Registration Certificate or document certifying permanent residence issued by the
Home Office to a national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
national of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.
A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay indefinitely
in the UK, or has no time limit on their stay in the UK.
A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control,
is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time
limit on their stay in the UK.
A current [mmigration Status Document issued by the Home Office to the holder with an
endorsement indicating that the named person is allowed to stay indefinitely in the UK or
has no time limit on their stay in the UK, when produced in combination with an official
document giving the person’s permanent National Insuyrance number and their name
issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.
A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, together with an official document
giving the person’s permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a



Page 364

Government agency or a previous employer,

A birth or adoption certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or Ireland
when produced in combination with an official document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by a Government agency or a
previous employet,

« A certificate of registration or naturalisation as a British citizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National [nsurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous cmployer,

« A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is allowed to stay in the UK and is
currently allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

« A current Biometric Immigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) issued by the
Home Office to the holder which indicates that the named person can currently stay in the
UK and is allowed to do the work in question.

A current Residence Card issued by the Home Office o a person who is not a national of
an EEA state or Switzerland but who is a family member of such a national or who has
detivatlve rights or residence.

A current [mmigration Status Document containing a photograph issued by the Home
Oftice to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the named person may stay in the

K, and is allowed to work and is not subject to a condition preventing the holder from
doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity wien produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National Insurance
number and their name issued by a Government agency or a previous employer.

+ A Certificate of Application, less than 6 months old, issued by the Home Office under
regulation 18(3) or 20(2) of the Immigration (European Economic Area) Regulations 2016, to a
person who is not a national of an EEA state or Switzerland but who is a family member of
such a national or who has derivative rights of residence.

+ Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding application to vary their
permission to be in the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office
acknowledgement letter or proof of postage evidence, or evidence that the person has an
appeal or administrative review pending on an immigration decision, such as an appeal or
administrative review reference number.

- Reasonable evidence that a person who is not a national of an EEA state or Switzerland but
who is a family member of such a national or who has derivative rights of residence in
exercising treaty rights in the UK including:

o evidence of the applicant’s own identity — such as a passport,

o evidence of their relationship with the EEA family member — €.g. a marriage
certificate, civil partnership certificate or birth certificate, and

=

o evidence that the EEA national has a right of permanent residence in the UK or
is one of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
(i) working e.g. employment contract, wage slips, letter from the em ployer,
(i) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts with a bank,
(iif)  studying e.g. letter from the school, college or university and evidence
of sufficient funds; or
(iv)  self-sufficient e.g, bank statements,

Family members of EEA nationals who are studying or financially independent must also
provide evidence that the EEA national and any family members hold comprehensive sickness

insurance in the UK. This can include a private medical insurance policy, an EHIC card or an
S1, S2 or 83 form.



Page 365

Original documents must not be sent to licensing authorities. If the document copied is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder’s personal details including nationality;

(ii) any page containing the holder’s photograph;

(iil) any page containing the holder’s signature;

(iv) any page containing the date of expiry; and

(v) any page containing information indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole document should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve
us checking your immigration status with the Home Office. We may otherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guidance.

Home Office online right to work checking service

As an alternative to providing a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority to catry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate their right to work via the Home Office online right to work checking service,
applicants should include in this application their 9-digit share code (provided to them upon
accessing the service at hitps:/www.gov.uk/prove-right-to-work) which, along with the

applicant’s date of birth (provided within this application), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check,

In order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the check will need to indicate that the
applicant js allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from doing work relating to the carrying on of a licensable activity.

An online check will not be possible in all circumstances because not all applicants will have an
immigration status that can be checked online, The Home Office online right to work checking
service sets out what information and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access
the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should submit
copy documents as set out above.

3. The application form must be signed.

4, An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that
they have actual authority to do so.

5. Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents must sign the
application form,

6, This is the address which we shall use to cotrespond with you about this application.



Page 366



Page 367

|
|

CITY OF i e
YORK CITY OF YORK COUNCIL
by Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Street York, Y010 3DS

PartB
Consent of premises licence holder to transfer

O/\/ 6‘ L {? ..... CL:/EN . (full name of premises Iioence holder(s})
the premises licence holder of premises licence number . L\['C. ............ (557 .
relating to ... 2.5 ... ﬁ;-éf}:ﬂf]@ W M{Q«"?’l ...... SRR A

e diosstessassiresstn Stwlh... Yook Yol Le T

(name and address of premises to which the application relates)

hereby givé my consent for the transfer of premises licence number

................... \ YC0$5%57 Insert premises licence number} to
{J“;N [0/,}& ?é?’\/&‘ .................... (full name of transferee).
SINAIUT .i..... et e e et n s et anrae e
Name (please print)....... .Z/‘/ON&"L@:CH@/Y
Date................. 22/@2./.9’0 ..........................................................

p



Page 368



Page 369

Consent of premises licence holder to transfer

I Mr Zhong Le Chen the premises licence holder of premises licence number CYC-053937 relating to
Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP hereby give my consent for the transfer of
premises licence number CYC-053937 to Mrs Yan Tong Feng.

signed

name (please print) 2/y g L@ Ches .

dated { 7/02,/20



Page 370



Page 371

Ref: 1B/10032020/1

City of York Council
Licensing Services
Hazel Court EcoDept
Jlames Street

York

Y010 3DS

10March 2020
Dear Licensing Services,

Police Notice of Objection - Transfer of Premlises licence at Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street York
YO1 6LP, under Section 42 Licensing Act 2003

As the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police, | am delegated on behalf of the Chief
Constable to respond to all applications under the Licensing Act 2003,

On Tuesday 25" February 2020, North Yorkshire Police recelved notification from City of York
Licensing Authority in respect of an application from Mrs Yan Tong Feng to transfer the Premises
Licence for The Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street York into her name with immediate effect.

Under Section 42(6) of the Licensing Act 2003 [ glve notice on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police
that North Yorkshire Police is satisfied that the exceptional circumstances of this case are such that
granting the application would undermine the crime prevention objective for the following reasons:-

On 8'" September 2017, PC Bolland an officer from North Yorkshire Police licensing department and
staff from the home office and licensing enforcement officers from City of York Council attended the
premises, which was open to the public. At the time of the visit, the Designated Premises Supervisor
Mr Zhong Le Chen was not present and officers spoke with a female who provided her details as Tina
Feng. Subsequent enquiries via police systems and checks with Immigration have shown that Tina
FENG is an alias for Yan Tong FENG, the applicant for this transfer request.

The transfer application Part 2 applicant details lists the following email address for YanTong Feng:-
Tina@ukregency.com

At the time of the above visit, PC Bolland and Helen Sefton an officer from City of York Enforcement
team went through the Premise licence conditions. Feng stated she was unable to work CCTV at the
premises and unable to produce details of any staff training. The premises licence conditions state
the following:-

¢ Itis the responsibility of the management to ensure that there are sufficient members of
staff available during the hours of operation to be able to download evidence from the
CCTV system at the request of the police or responsible authority.

® Adocumented staff training programme shall be provided to all members of staff at the
premises in respect of the:-

a} Retail sale of alcohol;

b) Age verification policy;



Page 372

¢} Conditions attached to the Premlses Licence;

{f—Permitted-icensable-activitte
arrermmm =

e) The licensing objectives; and

f} Opening times for the venue

With such records being kept for a minimum of one year. (For the avoidance of doubt, the
one-year period relates to each respective entry in the log book and runs from the date of that
particular entry).

On 6 September 2019, as part of a multi-agency partnership operation, officers from North Yorkshire
Police’s Safeguarding team, Home Office Immigration officers, staff from the Gang masters and Labaur
abusc Authér':ty and Licgncing enfarcement officars from City of York Councll, 2ttended the Premises,
Four persons warking at the nremises were ramoved hy Immigration afficers due to concerns around
their right to work in the UK. The prenises were open ta the public, and operating licensable activities.
Nigel Woadhead Enfarcement officer from City of York council Identified a number of breaches in
respect of the Premises Licence authorisation. At the time of his visit, he spoke to a female manager
who provided her name as Yan FENG, who also went by the name Tina.

On 4" November 2019, North Yorkshire Police were notified that the Licensing Authority for City of
York had received a DPS Variation in respect of The Regency. The proposed Designated Premises
Supervisor was M . The Police are the only responsible authority who can make
representations in respect ot a Designated Premises Supervisor. Upon receipt of this application PS
Booth the Force Licensing Manager for North Yorkshire Police conducted, the due diligence checks in
respect of the application. PS Booth was provided a statement from Immigration officer Glyn Jones
who advised that Mr had no right ta work in the UK.

(The address off Is the same address provided on the transfer application by
the appiicant, Yan tong Feng,
Upan receipt of this information, on 219 Navembaor 2019, 1S Booth submitted a representation to
the Licensing Authority in respect of M. objecting to the DPS transfer,

On 7™ February 2020, North Yorkshire Police were notified by City of York Licensing Authority of a
Sectlon 51 review, which had been instigated for the Regency 2-4 George Hudson Street York. At the
time of the review, being instigated the Premise Licence holder and DPS was Mr Zhong Le Chen.

Police enquiries have established that Mr Zhong Le Chen and Yan Tong Feng are partners and the

transfer of the Premise Licence application has only been made as a result of Section 51 Formal
Review Proceedings.

Yan Tong Feng has been present at the premises, when:-
» Premise licence conditions have been breached

e Persons have been removed by Immigration officers due to concerns regarding right to work
in the UK and

She has provided a residential address where a person who is known to have no right to
work in the UK has stated they are living.

It is the view of North Yorkshire Police that Yan Tong Feng would seriously undermine the Licensing
objective of Crime and Disorder as premise Licence holder and do not support this application.

Appendix 1 - Statement from PC Boliand

Appendix 2 — Transfer Application —25/02/20



Page 373

Appendix 3 - DPS Variation—

Appendix 4 - Police objection to DPS.

Appendix 5- Statement of Immigration officer Glynn Jones

Yours Sincerely,

I Booth

PS133 Booth

Force Licensing Manager
Alcohol Licensing Department
Fulford Road Police Station
York

Y010 4BY




Page 374

Sl A

| RESTRICTED (when complata) | | won |
1
Criminal Procedurs Rules, r 27. 2; Criminal Justice Aot 1967, s. 9; Mugisirntos* Courts Act 1980, 5. .58
URN | &
Statemant of: Samantha Bolland
Age Ifunder 18: Over  (ifovar 18 sart Gver 189 Qccupation: Police Officer

This statement (cansisting of 1 paga(s) each signed by me} Is true to the best of my knowledge and bellef
and | make it knowing thay, If It is lendered In evidencs; | shall be liable to prosecution i | have wilfully stated
in It anything which | know to be false. or do not belleva to ba true.

Y
Slghature: ....... B == SR (X 4 S T - LN o (Withess) Date: 0303/2020

1am PC 1520 Samantha Bolland from North Yorkshire Police. I am stationed at Fulford Road Police
Station, York, in the role as a Police Alcohol Licensing Officer, and T have been in this role for the
last 4 years.

On 8th Ssptember 2017 at 1800 hrs I was on duty when 1 attended a briefing at Fulford Road Police
Station, York targetting The Regency Chinese Restaurant Barbican Road, York and The Regency,
George Hudson Street, York, as part of & multi-agency parinership operation, in company with
officers from North Yorkshirc Police's Safeguarding teatn, Home Office Immigration officers, and
Licensing enforcement officers ftom City of York Council.

My role was to assist City of York Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton to inspect both premises
under section 179 of the Licensing Act 2003,

At 18:45 on the same date above, in company with Senior Licensing Offioer, Helen Sefton, I entered
The Regency Chinese Restaurant, Batbican Road. Upon entering the premise it was open to the
Public, there were customers and staff present. Myself and Senior Licensing Officer Helen Sefton
roceeded 1o speak fo a male who identifed himself ag the manager, he stated his name was
We then went through the Licence conditions outlined within the Premise Licence,
We asked to see the CCTV system, however Mr stated he could not access it and il was only
the owner who had access. The owner and Designated Promise Supervisor, ZHONG LE CHEN,
arrived at approximately 19:25 hourg, Helen Sefton approached the owner and treid to communicate
with him, the stated he could not understand English. Helen Sefton asked to interpret. Helen
Sefton asked CHEN, who owned the business and he stated it wag his but
he was in. China, and he was the only person able to access the CCTV system.

After furtHER discussions myself and Helen Sefton conducted a full inspetion of the premise and
found the following breaches as per the licence conditions attached to the Premise Licence:

-staff training records were not present/ documented
-No notices asking patrons to leave quietly
-no noise management plan
-no access to CCTV /recordings or retention
Y Ho®
0

Signamre';.a.- /6 Signature Witneagad bY: ... vt eens

[ aotom1 ] [ RESTRICTED (when complete)




- Page 375

| RESTRICTED (when complote)

Continuation statement of: Samantha Bolland

After the inspestion we then attended the second premises at George Hudsan Street, York,

A femuly called Tina FENG stated she was the munager of thie premise and spoke with Helen Seflon
regarding the Premise Licence conditions. FENG stated she was only in charge of the supermarket
part of the promises and there was a separate manngor for the restaurant as the premise wa divided into
two parts. .

FENG stated she did not know ar have access to the CCTV system, that staff training had been given
in relotion to Jicenisng matters, but this was not documented. She also stated (hat the Desigoated .. . .
Pranise Supa visot was ZHONG LE CHEN.

Shortly after we Jeft the premise and this was the last time I deslt with both premises.

eyt lenciine

Slgnature: Blgnature WIheBBed DY: ... oo emsemssminmene

| RESTRICTED (when complste)



Page 376-

M TUENY N 2

Ao CTITY OF YORK COUNCIE |
YO R K Licensing Services, Hazel Court EcoDepot, James Stréet, !
P COuUNEIL York, Y010 3DS |

Application ta transfer premises Heence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guldance notes at the end of the form,

If you ure completing this form by hand please write leglbly in block capitals, Tn all cases ensure
that your angwers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You tnay wish to keep u copy of the completed form for your records,

UWe  _YANTONGFENG
(fnsert name of applicant)
apply fo tranafer the premises licence described below under seetion 42 of the Licensing Act

2003 for the premises described fn Part 1 below

B e D R N T A v

Premises licence namber TUeYe-beassr 0 T

Part 1-— Premises details

| Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or deseription

REGENCY, 2 - 4 GEORGE HUDSON STREET

Post town York | Posteode YOI 6LP ' j
Telephone number at premises (if any) 01904 659576 o - '

Please give a brief description of the premises (see nofe 1)
CHINESE RESTAURANT AND SUPERMARKET

Neme of current premisos lieence holdor
MR ZHONG LE CHEN

Part 2 - Applicant details
In what capacity are you applying for the premises lioence to be transferred to you?

Please tick 2 yes
a) an individual or individuals* [Z' please tomplete sectlon (A)

b) a person ather than an individual *
I, as a limited company/limited linbility partnership (] please complete section (B)



i - Page 377

ii. as a partnership (other than limited liability) [0 pleass complete section (B)

iii. ae an unincorporated associatlon or [0 please complete section (B)

iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) please complete saction (B)
O

¢) a tecogaised club [} please complets section (B)

“dyweharity o o

v s e (B g complots SectieRTRY

&} $he proprietor of an sducational catablishunent [ please somplete section (2)
f) a health service body [ please campiete sectlon (B)

g) an individual who Is registered under Part 2 of the (] please complete section (B)
Cury Stundards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an

Independont hospital in Wales

ga) a person who Is registered under Chapter 2 of Part
1 of the Health and Sanial Care Act 2008 {withhi the [ please complete sectlon B)
meaning of thet Purt) in respect 'of an indépendeni

hospita! in England

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in please complete section (3)

Ongland and Wales

¥If you are applying as 4 person described in () or (b) pleese confitm:

Please tick I yes

+ ] am carrying on ot proposing to carry on a business which involves the use
of the premises fot licensable activities: ot M

+ 1 am making the application pursuant to a

o statutory fnction or Q
o afunction discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative O
(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)
Mr [0 WM IE/ Mss O Ms (O Othertitle [
(Tor example, Rey)
Surnane First names
|rrENG ‘ l YAN TONG
Please tick & yes

Date of birth

I am 18 yeurs old or gver



Page 378

Nationallty CHINESE

Whiere applicable (if' demonstrating a right to work vin the Home Office anfine right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that service (please see
note 2 for information)

Curremt o — e

residentlal, 3 LINCOMBE BANK

address If

different from GLEDHOW

premises

address

Post town Leeds ] l - I1QG o
Post code

Daytime contact telephone number l_'“ _—

E-mail address I .H - == — — I ——

(optional) Sl T

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

M O Ms O wMs O M O Othertitte | |
(for example, Rev)

Surnsane ) Hirst names
|
I N
Please tick &1 yes
Date of birth Iam 18 years old or aver
Notionnlity a

Where applioeble (if demonstrating & right to work via the Home Office online right to work
checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applioant by that service (please see
note 2 for information)

Current
residential
Addreay If
different from ’
premises

address [



Page 379

_Pasttawn | | Rost-code -'

Daytime contact telephone number ‘

E-mall address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS -
Plense provide name and reglstered address of upplicant In full, Where appruprinte please give any

regidicred number, In the cese of & partnership or other jolnt ventuse (other then a body corporute),
please glve the name and address of each parly concarned,

Nime

Address ' o

1

[ ’ s
Registered numbicr (where applicabls)

Description of uppliount (fur exaniple partnership, company, unthcorporated assoclation efe.)

| ‘Telephone number (}f any)

P-mall address (optional)

Part3

Please tiok & yea
Are you the holder of the premises licence under an intetim euthority notice? a
Da you wish the transfer to have immediate effect? 7.4

1f not when would you like the transfar to take effect?
Day  Month  Year

L]

Please tick I yes

1 have enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder IQ/



Page 380

T you have not enclosed the consent form referred fo above please give the reasons why not, What |
steps have you taken to try and obtaln the consent?

Pleacge tick (4 yes
If this application Is grented I would be in & position to use the premises during the IE/

application period for the licensable activity or activities authorised by the licence (see
sectlon 43 of the Licensing Act 2003)

Please tick & yes

I have enclosed the premises licence nd

[ 1f you have not enclosed premises Ticence referred to above please give the reasons why not,

+ 1 have made or enclosed payment of the fee

» Ibave enclosed the consent form signed by the existing premises licence holder or
my statemnent as to why it i not enclosed

s+ lhave enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation
1 have sent a copy of this application to the chlef officer of police today
I have sent a copy of this form fo Home Office Immigration Enforceinent today
Applicable to all indlvidual applicants, Including those in e partnership which Is not
a limited liability partnershlp, but niot compeanies or Hmited liability partnerships] 1
have Included documents, or my Homs Office online right to work checking service

shiare code, to demonstrate my entltiement to work In the Unlted Kingdom (please
read note 2)

QRN BN |

See detmils of Licensing Act 2003 statutory fees: www.vork.uoy,ub/Licensing Ac2003StntutarsFoes.

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION, THOSE



Page 381 -

AU EE R A Al

. = oS YCONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT,

IT 1§ AN OFFENCE UNDER SECTION 24B OF THE IMMIGRATION ACT 1971 FOR A
PERSON TO WORK WHEN THEY KNOW, OR HAVE REASONABLE CAUSE TO
BELIEVE, THAT THEY ARE DISQUALIFIED FROM DOING SO BY REASON OF
THEIR IMMIGRATION STATUS, THOSE WHQ EMPLOY AN ADULT WITHOUT
LEAVE OR WHO IS SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS AS TO EMPLOYMENT WILL BE
LIABLE TO A CIVIL PENALTY UNDER SECTION 15 OF THE IMMIGRATION,
ASYLUM AND NATIONALITY ACT Z006 AND, FURSUANT TO SECTION 21 OF THE
SAME ACT, WILL BE COMMITTING AN OFFENCE WHERE THEY DO 8O IN THE
KNOWLEDCE, O WITH REASONANLE CAUSE TO BRLIEVE, THAT THE
EMPLOYEE I8 DISOUALIRTED.

I'understand ! em o1 entitled 1o be Jssued with o licenee it 1 do not have the entitlement to Hve
anid ook b the UK (o [T i subjeet (o a conditdon preventing me froin doing work relating to
i <anyiig on of & Heciisdble activity) and that my ticenco will becorme tvalid if' ] cease (o be
eititled 1o live and wark in the UK (ploase read gnldance note )

Part 4 - Signatures (please read puidance note 3)

Slenatnre af apntlos nt gy applicunt’s solicitor or other duly authurised sgent (See guldaace
nofe 4), If gigning on behnif of (e applicant please state in what enpiicity.

Signatore

v o=
A S S AR LA AR S LR L R DD R T Ty N R NN DL B R g

e 1O 200

R R R R P R YR T PP I DA

- N Lad
Lupaciy Ty
PN Depelpr
B R P P P S PP A R L N YRR R IR]

IFor Joint applicants signature of second applicant, second npplicnnt’s sollcltor or olher
nuthorised agent (please read guidancs note 3). IFsigning on behnif of the applicant plense
ptate In what capacity.

Signature

l-.uuu-q|u.s|.z-q\..-un-au'unnuun-u-n.....n-.....u-unuunnnu:-nunvuu_u'n-nnu-u

Date

u.n-.;....:.-uu.-n“u-a»-uuu.n.unsnrun-r-unnrn,u.nun_nuguu,u AR R TR R Y YR E E PR PR FRRPAY

Capacity

un‘nn.q-un---u"n|u..._uc.-u-u-u-uu-nr-nrununnu-u-.un.u-uunnncn......n.-nn-nu.

Contact name (where not previously given) and posial address for correspondenco
agsociated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

:' Pos( town Powt Code

l Telephone number (if any)




Page 382

| If you would prefor us to correspond w

|TTH i

Nofes for Guldance

1, Deseribe the premises, For example the type of prewises It s, its general situation and layout
and any other information whick would be relevant to the llcensing objectives,

2, Right to work/immigratlon status for individunal applicants and appllcations from
partnerahips which are not limited Hability parinerships:

A licence may nol be held by an individual or an individual in s partnership which is not a Hmited
llbility partership who!

« does not have the right ta Jive and work in the UK; or

« i subject to a condition preventing him or her from dolng work relating to the canrying on
of a licensnble activity,

Any premlées licence issucd on or after 6 Aptil 2017 will fapsc if the holder ceases to be entitled
to work in the UK,

Applicants must demonstrate that they have the right to work it the UK and are not subject to a
condition preventing them from doing work releting to the carrying on of a licensing activity.
They do this in one of two ways: 1) by providing with this epplication copies or scanned coples of
the documents listed below (which do not need to be certified), ot 2) by providing thelr 'share
vode’ to enable the Licensing authority 10 carry out a check using the Home Office anline right to
work checking service (see below),

Documents which demonstrate entitlement to work in the UK

An expired or cutrent passport showing the holder, or a person named In the passport as
the child of the holder, is a British citizen or a itlzen of the UK and Colonies having the
right of abode in the UK [please see note below about which sectlons of the passport
apply].

+  Anexpired or current passport or national identity card showing the holder, or & person
named [n the passport as the child of the holder, is a national of a Buropean Economic
Area country or Switzerland.

+ A Registration Certlficate or document certifying pormanent residetice tssued by the
Home Offica to a national of a European Economic A tea country or Switzerland,

« A Permanent Residence Card issued by the Home Office to the family member of a
natlonal of a European Economic Area country or Switzerland.

+ A current Biometric Inmigration Document (Biometric Residence Permit) Issued by the
Home Office to the holder indicating that the person named is allowed to stay Indefinitely
in the UK, or has no fime limit on their say in the UK,

« A current passport endorsed to show that the holder is exempt from immigration control,
is allowed 1o stay indefinitely in the UK, has the right of abode in the UK, or has no time
[imit on their stay In the UK.

+ A current Immigration Status Document {ssued by the Home Office to the holder with an
endorsement jndicating that the named petson is allowed to stay [ndefinitely in the UK or
has no timne limit on their stay in the UK, when produced In comblination with an official
document giving the person’s parmanent Natiopal Insurance number and their name
lssued by a Government agency ot a previous employer,

« A birth or adoption certificate issued in the UK, together with an officlal document
giving the person's permenent Nationa! Insurance number and their name fssued by &



- Page383 -

{ itW\- oL i ‘M:’“"’

+ A birth or adoptior certificate issued in the Channel Islands, the Isle of Man or [reland
when produced in combination with an officlel document giving the person’s
permanent National Insurance number and their name issued by 4 Government agency ot a
previous employer,

« A certificate of reglstration or naturalisation as a Britlsh ¢ilizen, when produced in
combination with an official document giving the person’s permanent National [nsurance
aumber aad their name issued by & Govermment agency or a provious employer,

« A curcent pussport endorsed to show that the holder (s ellowed to stay in the UK. and is
eurrently allowed to work-and is ot subject 10 B-condition preventing the holder froin
Going work relatng i the swrying on of a licensable actlvity.

<A currend Biometric Immigemion Document (Biometrie Residence Permit) issucd by the
Home Office ta the holder which indicetos that the némed persoh cah currently stay in the
UK and is allowed 1o do e work in question,

A currvent Rosidence Card issued by the Home Office 10 4 person who is not 0 national of
an EEA state or Switzerland but who is o family niember of such & nstionst or who has
derivative rights ot resldence.

+ A currentImmigeation Status Document containtng u phatogeaph issucd by the Home
Oftice to the holder with an endorsement indicating that the namad person yuny sty inthe
UK, aiid is utlowed to work mnd is not subject to & condition preventing the holder from
doing work relefing to the carcving onof  Heensahle sebvity whiven produced in
cambination with an official document giving the person's permanent National Insurance
miimbarand thate wanso T by a Gayanne oot SESGGY O @ i ciipluyar.

v A Certificate of Application, lesé than 6 months ald, issued by the Home Office undor
regulation 18(3) or 2002) of the hnmigration (European Ecanomic Area) Resuilntions 2016, fo »
person who is nat 8 natianal of an BEA state or Switzerland but who s a family metnber of
such u ativing vr who has derlvative rights of residence,

Reasonable evidence that the person has an outstanding epplicétion o vary their

permission to be o the UK with the Home Office such as the Home Office

acknowledgement letter or praof of pnstage evidence, or evidence that the person has an

appeal or administrative reviow pending on an Imuwigration decision, such as an appeal or

administrative review reference nuniber,

Reasonable evidince ihat a person who is not a national of an EEA slate or Switzerland but

who is a family member of such-a national or who hes derivative rights of residence In

exercising frealy rdglis in the UK including:

o evidenco of the applicant's own identity — such asa passport,

o evidence of thisir reletionship with the EEA famfly member - e.g. a marriage
certifionte, civll parinership corfificate or birth certifioate, and

o evidence (hat the EEA natlonal hiis a right of permanent residence inthe UK or
is one of the following if they have been in the UK for more than 3 months:
() working ez, employment contract, wage slips, lofter from the employer,
(1) self-employed e.g. contracts, invoices, or audited accounts With a bank,
(1) studying e.p, lotter from the school, college or university and évidence
- of sufficient funds; or
(iv)  self-sufficient e.g. bank statements,

Family niembers of EBA nationals who are studying or financidlly independent must also
pravide evidence that the BEA national and any family members hold comprehensive siekness
insurance in the UK. This can include a private medical insurnee policy, tn BHIC card or an
51,82 0r 83 form,



Page 384 -

Original documents must not be sent to Iicensing authoritles, If the document copied Is a
passport, a copy of the following pages should be provided:

(i) any page containing the holder's personel details including nationality;

(ii) moy page containing the holder’s photograph;

(1) any page containing the holder's signature;

(iv) any page containing the date af expiry; and

(v) any page containing information Indicating the holder has permission to enter or remain in
the UK and is permitted to work.

If the document is not a passport, a copy of the whole dosument should be provided.

Your right to work will be checked as part of your licensing application and this could involve
s checking, your immigration status with the Home Office, We may ofherwise share
information with the Home Office. Your licence application will not be determined until you
have complied with this guldance.

Homea Office online right to work checking service

As an slternative to providlng a copy of the documents listed above, applicants may
demonstrate their right to work by allowing the licensing authority 1o carry out a check with
the Home Office online right to work checking service.

To demonstrate thelr right to work via the Home Office onllne right to work checking service,
applicants should Include in this application their 9-digit share cade (provided to them upon
accessing the service at hitps://www.rovaukdprove-ripht-to-work) which, along with the
applicant’s date of birth (provided within this applicatlon), will allow the licensing authority to
carry out the check.

{0 order to establish the applicant’s right to work, the chieck will need to indicate that the
applicant is allowed to work in the United Kingdom and is not subject to a condition
preventing them from dolng work relating to the cartying on of a licensable actlvity,

An online check will not be possible In all circumstances because not all applicants will have an
immigration status that can be checked online, The Home Office online right to work checking
servico sefs out what Informatlon and/or documentation applicants will need in order to access
the service. Applicants who are unable to obtain a share code from the service should submit
copy documents as set out above,

3. The applloation form must be signed.

4, An applicant's agent (for example solleltor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that
they have actual authorlty to do so,

5, Where there I3 more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents must sign the
application form,

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.



Page 385

Consent-of pramiseslicence-haoldarsesransfer

| Mr Zhong Le Chen the premises licenca holder of pramises licence number CYC-083937 relating to
Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP hereby give my consent for the transfer of
premises licance number CYC-053937 to Mrs Yan Tong Feng,

slgned

name (please print) 2}.@3 le CA@/L

ded | 7{02{ o5



‘Page 386

V€L s W

CITY OF YORK COUNCIC
YORIK  ticensing services, Hazel Court Ecobepat, James Street, York, Y010
COUNGIL 30s

Application to vary a premises licence to specify an Individual as designated
premises supervisor under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Befare completing this form please read the guldance notes at the end of tha form.
If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in black capltals. In all

cases ensure that your answers are Inside the boxes and written In black ink. Use
addltional sheets If necessary.

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.

Uwe THONG LE CHENY
(full name(s) of premises licence holder)

being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises llcance to specify
the Individual named In this application as the premises supervisor under
section 37 of the Licensing Act 2003

Pramlsss licence number

[ CNC-G52931 i i -

Part 1 - Premises details R ————
Postal address of premises or, If none, ordnance survey map reference or
“BeaE ey

2-1, GERGE HUDXON  STREET,

Post fown [ Post code (Fknown)
NOR K Vol 6P
Telephone number (If any) o o

S oot 6599 76 ;w

| Description of premises (please read guidance nole 1) ]

CHIRESE RESTAURANT & QUPERMARKET




Page 387

Legislation and Policy Considerations Annex 4
Transfer of Premises Licence

1.

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 apply to this
application: Part 3 Premises Licences, ss42, 44 and 45 Transfer of
premises licence.

The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 (Premises
licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005 apply to
this application:  Regulation 42, Part 2 Premises Licences,
paragraph 14 Transfer of premises licences; Part 4 General,
paragraph 24(2) Consents.

The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s statutory
Guidance ( revised April 2018) apply to this application:
Paragraphs 8.99 to 8.102 Transfers of premises licence.

The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of
licensing policy apply to this application: 3.2 Crime and Disorder,

The Sub-Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and
Disorder Act 1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications
of their decisions and the authority’s responsibility to co-operate in
the reduction of crime and disorder in the city.

The Sub-Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998
guarantees the right to a fair hearing for all parties in the
determination of their civil rights. The Act also provides for the
protection of property, which may include licences in existence,
and the protection of private and family life.



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Chair
	5 Minutes
	Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 07/11/2019 Licensing/Gambling Hearing
	Minutes

	Minutes Public Pack, 27/02/2020 Licensing/Gambling Hearing
	Minutes


	6 The Determination of an Application by Anthony Dean for the Review of Premises Licence  [Section 52(2)] in respect of The Regency, 16 Barbican Road, York, YO10 5AA (CYC/009221)
	Annex 1 - Review Application
	Annex 2 - Premises Licence
	Annex 3 - Police Representation
	JP Freer statement- restricted
	Annex 4 - Witness statement of Kevin Caulfield
	Annex 5 - First witness statement of Glyn Ronald Jones
	Annex 6 - Second witness statement of Glyn Ronald Jones
	Annex 7 - Map
	Annex 8 -  Legislation and Policy considerations

	7 The Determination of an Application by Anthony Dean for the Review of Premises Licence [Section 52(2)] in respect of Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York, YO1 6LP (CYC - 053937)
	Annex 1 - Review Application - 2-4 George Hudson Street
	Annex 2 - review 2-4 George Hudson St
	Annex 3 - Review Application - 2-4 George Hudson Street
	Annex 3 - Appendix 9 - Witness statement of Sgt Plumb
	JP Freer statement - restricted
	Annex 4 - review 2-4 George Hudson St
	Annex 5 - review 2-4 George Hudson St
	Annex 6 - review 2-4 George Hudson St
	Annex 7 - review 2-4 George Hudson St - map
	Annex 8 - Legislation & Policy considerations
	Cover sheet for Applicant Counsel
	Additional information from Applicant guidance notes
	E Lindsey v Abu Hanif [2016] EWHC 1265 (illegal worker)
	14042016RX01.rtf

	R (Bassetlaw Dist Coun) v Worksop Mag Court [2008]
	Ch 11 Reviews (s182 Guidance April 2018)
	Knightsbridge Casinos 1982 QB 304 (lic tran prior to appea)

	8 The Determination of an Application by Yan Tong Feng for the Transfer of Premises Licence [Section 44(5)(a)] in respect of Regency, 2-4 George Hudson Street, York YO1 6LP (CYC - 053937)
	Annex 1 - prem licence
	Annex 2 - transfer app
	Annex 3 - Police rep
	Annex 4- Legislation and Policy Considerations Transfer


